
HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING AGENDA 

Hamilton High School Library/Zoom/Facebook Live 
Wednesday, February 24, 2021 

 
5:30 p.m.  Public session for purposes of opening the meeting only via Zoom:  
5:30 p.m.  Closed session to discuss closed session items listed below via Zoom (For Board Only) 
6:00 p.m. Reconvene to open session no later than 6:30 p.m. via Facebook Live or Zoom (see below) 

 

Hamilton Unified School District Board Meetings are open to the public. We are still adhering to social distancing for 
public safety so in-person seating capacity in the Hamilton High School Library is limited to thirteen attendees.  
As authorized by the Governor’s Emergency Executive Orders issued on March 12 and 17, 2020, the Hamilton Unified 
School District Board of Education will continue to conduct Board of Education meetings by video conference until further 
notice. Please join the meeting by attending the livestream via Facebook Live on the District’s Facebook page or through 
the below Zoom link or dial by phone as listed below: 
 

Join Zoom Meeting 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/85626743829?pwd=TG1QdnN6dHdRQjJUVUMwLzBOYlQyUT09 
 
Meeting ID: 856 2674 3829 
Passcode: board 
 
Dial in: 
        +1 669 900 6833 
Meeting ID: 856 2674 3829 
Passcode: 329644 

 

1.0 OPENING BUSINESS: 
a. Call to order and roll call 

 
_______Hubert “Wendell” Lower, President  _______Rod Boone, Clerk   _______Gabriel Leal 
_______Genaro Reyes    _______Ray Odom 

 
2.0 IDENTIFY CLOSED SESSION ITEMS: 

 
3.0 PUBLIC COMMENT ON CLOSED SESSION ITEMS: Public comment will be heard on any closed session items. The board 

may limit comments to no more than three minutes per speaker and 15 minutes per item. 
 

4.0 ADJOURN TO CLOSED SESSION: To consider qualified matters. 
a. Government Code Section 54957 (b), Personnel Issue. To consider the employment, evaluation, reassignment, 

resignation, dismissal, or discipline of a classified and certificated employees. 
b. Government Code Section 54957.6, Labor Negotiations. To confer with the District’s Labor Negotiator, 

Superintendent Jeremy Powell regarding HTA and CSEA negotiations. 
c. Government Code Section 54956.9, Subdivision (a), Existing litigation. Name of case: Crews v. Hamilton Unified 

School District, Glenn County Superior Court, Case No. 15CV01394. 
d. Conference with Real Property Negotiators. Property: Westermann property north of Hamilton High School, 

approximately located at 500 Sixth Street, Hamilton City, CA 95951 (APN: 032-230-015-000). Agency 
Negotiator: Jeremy Powell, Superintendent; Matt Juhl-Darlington, Attorney for District. Negotiating Parties: 
Westermann Family and Hamilton Unified School District. Under negotiation: Price and terms of payment. 

e. Conference with labor Negotiator Gov. Code sec. 54957.6, subd. (a). Agency designated representative: Dr. 
Jeremy Powell; Employee Organization: Hamilton Teachers Association. 

 
Report out action taken in closed session. 

 
5.0 PUBLIC SESSION/FLAG SALUTE:   

 
6.0 ADOPT THE AGENDA: (M) 



 
7.0   COMMUNICATIONS/REPORTS: 

a. Board Member Comments/Reports. 
b. District Reports (written) 

i. Technology Report by Frank James & Derek Hawley (p. 5) 
ii. Nutrition Services Report by Sean Montgomery (p. 6) 

iii. Operations Report by Alan Joksch (p.7) 
c. Principal and Dean of Student Reports (written) 

i. Kathy Thomas, Hamilton Elementary School Principal (p. 8) 
ii. Maria Reyes, District Dean of Students (p. 9) 

iii. Cris Oseguera, Hamilton High School Principal (p. 10) 
iv. Sylvia Robles, Adult School (p. 11) 

d. Chief Business Official Report by Kristen Hamman (p. 12) 
e. Superintendent Report by Jeremy Powell (p. 13) 

 
8.0  PRESENTATIONS: 

a.  Teacher presentations 
 

9.0  CORRESPONDENCE: 
a. None 

 
10.0   INFORMATION ITEMS: 

a. Note that Agenda Item 13b “Approve Spring 2021 Schedule” on the January 20th Board Agenda has a 
correction: The description should have said, “During their special board meeting held on December 17, 2020 
…” The agenda incorrectly stating, “During their regular board meeting held on December 9, 2020 …” 

b. Form 700 – Annual Statement of Economic Interests (p. 14) 
c. HUSD Enrollment History for 5 years (p. 18) 
d. Bond Status (Fund 21) Update (p. 20)  
e. HHS Site Expansion Permitting Status Update – Mike Cannon (p. 23) 

 
11.0   DISCUSSION ITEMS: 

a. None 
 

12.0   PUBLIC COMMENT: Public comment on any item of interest to the public that is within the Board’s jurisdiction will be 
heard (agenda and non-agenda items). The Board may limit comments to no more than three minutes per speaker and 
15 minutes per topic. Public comment will also be allowed on each specific action item prior to board action thereon. 

 
13.0   ACTION ITEMS: 

a. Approve Spring 2021 Instructional Schedule (p. 25) 
b. Accept HUSD Audit Report June 30, 2020 (p. 26) 
c. Accept HUSD Updated Protocols Scenarios Matrix (p. 113) 
d. Accept Local Plan Section B: Governance and Administration FY 2020-21 SELPA (p. 118) 
e. Approve COVID State Regulations Updates: (p. 167) 

i. HUSD COVID-19 School Guidance Checklist 
ii. HUSD CPP 

f. Approve School site Safety Plans (full plans available on https://www.husdschools.org/ and available by request 
from the District Office): (p. 195) 

i. Hamilton Elementary School (includes Hamilton State Preschool and Hamilton Special Education) 
ii. Hamilton High School (includes District Office, Ella Barkley High School, Hamilton Community Day 

School and Hamilton Adult School) 
g. Adopt Resolution No. 20-21-106 Emergency Management Resolution – Hamilton Unified School District has 

implemented a School Emergency Plan for all school sites and facilities. (p. 215) 
h. Adopt Updates to Gamut CSBA Policy Conversion Reconciliation (p. 217) 

i. Deletion of Board Policy BP 0520.2 – Title I Program Improvement Schools 
ii. Deletion of Board Policy BP 0520.3 – Title I Program Improvement Schools 

iii. Deletion of Board Policy BP 1020 – Youth Services 
iv. Deletion of Board Policy BP 4112.24 – Teacher Qualifications Under the No Child Left Behind Act 

https://www.husdschools.org/


v. Deletion of Board Policy BP 6161.3 – Toxic Art Supplies 
vi. Deletion of Board Policy BP 6162.52 – High School Exit Examination 

vii. Renaming Board Policy BP 6146.5 – Elementary/Middle School Promotion/Graduation Requirements 
to Elementary/Middle School Graduation Requirements 

viii. Renaming Board Policy BP 6164.5 – Student Study Team to Student Success Teams 
ix. Renaming Board Policy BP 9240 – Board Development to Board Training 
x. Renumber Board Policy (current) BP 3541.2(a) to CSBA BP 3541.2 – Transportation for Students with 

Disabilities 
xi. Deletion of Administrative Regulation AR 0520.2 – Title I Program Improvement Schools 

xii. Deletion of Administrative Regulation AR 0520.3 – Title I Program Improvement Districts 
xiii. Deletion of Administrative Regulation AR 4112.24 – Teacher Qualifications Under the No Child Left 

Behind Act 
xiv. Deletion of Administrative Regulation AR 6162.52 – High School Exit Examination 
xv. Renaming Administrative Regulation AR 6164.5 – Student Study Team to Student Success Teams 

i. Adopt CSBA Policies for 2nd Reading Review and adoption (p. 220) 
i. Administrative Regulation AR 0430 – Comprehensive Local Plan for Special Education 

ii. Board Policy BP 1312.3 - Uniform Complaint Procedures 
iii. Administrative Regulation AR 1312.3 – Uniform Complaint Procedures  
iv. Board Policy BP 4119.25/4219.23/4319.25 – Political Activities of Employees 
v. Administrative Regulation AR 4119.25/4219.25/4319.25 – Political Activities of Employees 

vi. Board Policy BP 4140/4240/4340 – Bargaining Units  
vii. Board Policy BP 5113.2 – Work Permits 

viii. Administrative Regulation AR 5113.2 – Work Permits 
ix. Board Policy BP 5126 – Awards for Achievement 
x. Administrative Regulation AR 5126 – Awards for Achievement 

xi. Board Policy BP 5141.31 – Immunizations 
xii. Administrative Regulation AR 5441.31 – Immunizations 

xiii. Board Policy BP 5148.3 – Preschool/Early Childhood Education 
xiv. Administrative Regulation AR 5148.3 – Preschool/Early Childhood Education 
xv. Board Policy BP 6146.1 – High School Graduation Requirements 

xvi. Board Policy BP 6146.2 – Certificate of Proficiency/High School Equivalency 
xvii. Administrative Regulation AR 6146.2 – Certificate of Proficiency/High School Equivalency 

xviii. Exhibit E 6146.2 – Certificate of Proficiency/High School Equivalency 
xix. Board Policy BP 6170.1 – Transitional Kindergarten 
xx. Board Bylaw BB 9012 – Board Member Electronic Communications 

xxi. Board Bylaw BB 9320 – Meetings and Notices 
j. Adopt California AB 908 Establishing a probationary period for students involved in extracurricular and 

cocurricular activities due to COVID-19 for the remainder of the 2020-21 school year. (p. 222) 
k. Waive Senior Project Graduation Requirement for Hamilton High School Class of 2021. (p. 225) 
l. Donation of Edgewater Property to Hamilton City Community Service District (p. 226) 
m. Approve change to Middle School Bell Schedule Lunch to end at 12:25 p.m. (p. 243) 

 
14.0   CONSENT AGENDA: Items in the consent agenda are considered routine and are acted upon by the Board in one 

motion.  There is no discussion of these items prior to the Board vote and unless a member of the Board, staff, or public 
request specific items be discussed and/or removed from the consent agenda. Each item on the consent agenda 
approved by the Board shall be deemed to have been considered in full and adopted as recommended. 

a. Minutes from Regular Board Meeting on January 20, 2021 (p. 245) 
b. Certificated and Classified Seniority Lists 2020-21 (p. 251) 
c. Williams Quarterly January 2021 (p. 253) 
d. Hamilton Elementary SSC Minutes from November 10, 2020 (p. 254) 
e. Hamilton Elementary SSC Agenda, February 9, 2021 (p. 256) 
f. Hamilton High School SSC Agenda from January 15, 2021 (p. 266) 
g. Hamilton High School SSC Minues from January 15, 2021 (p. 267) 
h. Warrants and Expenditures (p. 269) 
i. Interdistrict Transfers (new only; elementary students reapply annually). 

i. Out 
1. Hamilton Elementary School 



a. K x 2 (2021-22) 
2. Hamilton High School 

a. None 
ii. In 

1. Hamilton Elementary School 
a. K x 2 (2021-22) 

2. Hamilton High School 
a. 12th x 1 (2020-21) 
b. 11th x 2 (2020-21) 

 
j. Personnel Actions as Presented: 

i. New hires: 
Kelley Chandler Varsity Girls Basketball Coach HHS 

Marilyn Langan Paraeducator/Library Media Technician HES 

Doris Velazquez Child Nutrition Assistant HHS/HES 

 
ii. Resignations/Retirement: 

Tara Teeter Paraeducator/Library Media Technician HES 

 

 
 

15.0   ADJOURNMENT: 



Technology Report 

Board Meeting on February 24, 2021 

Frank James, Director of Technology 

Derek Hawley, Information Systems Technician 

 
Completed and in Progress Tasks – February 2021 

• NEC Phone Project: This Project was been completely onboarded and is up and running. 

We are still ironing out a few details here and there but on the whole this project is 

finished. 

• APC Project: APC equipment has begun to arrive and Frank and myself are starting the 

process of configuring the APCs and installation plan. 

• Server Project: The new server has arrived and we hope to get started on the 

configuration within the next two weeks. The install will most likely be over the summer 

but that is still being determined.  

• Staff Support: January was a fairly steady month as far as tickets are concerned. We 

fielded 53 new requests and closed out 53 in total.  

Page 5



HUSD Food Service Report  

Board Meeting on February 24, 2021 

Sean Montgomery, Director of Nutrition and Student Welfare 

 

• We’ve added two new employees to our food service staff:  Giovanni Barron & Doris Velazquez.  

They’re both coming along great with their training, are getting to know the staff very well and 

are welcome additions to our department. 

• At the Elementary school our numbers are pretty steady with serving on average 135 for 

breakfast and 275 for lunch.  Compared to pre-Covid the breakfast service is about the same, 

with lunches about 50 meals less. 

• At the High School we are averaging about 44 breakfast and nearly 40 for lunch which is down 

about half from pre-Covid counts 

• At the State Pre-school we are delivering 8 meals Mondays and Wednesdays and 11 meals on 

Tuesdays and Thursdays.  Pre-Covid we served about 24 students breakfast and lunch, for a total 

of 24 meals a day 

• We are delivering two meals a day (breakfast and lunch) to an independent study student. 

• We are now serving curbside pick-up lunch on Fridays at the Elementary school from 10:00 a.m.-

12:30 p.m. This time coincides with our intervention student departures, allowing students to 

grab a lunch on their way home from school so parents won’t have to make a second trip to 

school to pick up a meal. 

• We also serve 20 to 25 meals at the High School on Friday intervention days. 

Page 6



HUSD Maintenance Report 

Board Meeting on February 24, 2021 

Alan Joksch, Director of Maintenance and Transportation 

 
Facilities 

• Our short-term custodian transferred to the Elementary School to work as a paraprofessional 

and part-time librarian. 

• We are awaiting approval of Sophie Montgomery to fill the presently vacant short-term 

custodian position. 

• We have fine tuned our cleaning schedules to better need meet the needs of the school sites. 

  

Maintenance 

• With the changes in weather we are now working on weed control and other yard maintenance. 

• We are mowing the football and practice fields for after-school conditioning. 

• We will be striping some lines on the North field for practice plays once restrictions are 

removed. 

• Plumbers were called to HHS on 2/12/2021 to flush the lines with a water jet to remove a sewer 

line blockage from the main restrooms. The issue is presently clear but a new trouble spot was 

found that may need repair in the future. 

• We average closing 5 to 10 maintenance tickets per week. Most tickets are cleaning or supply 

requests. 

 

 Transportation 

• We had an air leak on Bus 5 so we were able to pull our new bus and put it into service. 

• Cross Country had a track meet in Chico on Wednesday, February 17th, so we sent out our vans 

on the first sporting event of the season.  

Page 7



HAMILTON ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 

Board Meeting on 2/24/2021 

Submitted by  

Kathryn Thomas, Principal 

Enrollment: 421 

                     

Attendance: January 

Grade Mode Percentage 

TK Synchronous/Asynchronous 95.73% 

K Synchronous/Asynchronous 92.74% 

1 Synchronous/Asynchronous 92.29% 

2 Synchronous/Asynchronous 92.57% 

3 Synchronous/Asynchronous 91.94% 

4 Synchronous/Asynchronous 92.31% 

5 Synchronous/Asynchronous 94.10% 

6 Synchronous/Asynchronous 93.21% 

7 Synchronous/Asynchronous 94.90% 

8 Synchronous/Asynchronous 94.87% 

 
Campus News:  

• This week our ASB and leadership students are supporting Kindness Week 

• Leadership and ASB students supported Valentine’s Day with a goodie bag for each student 

• Progress Reports mailed 2/11/2021 

• Coach Nall is providing PE for Tk-5 students with rotations while teachers use the time for small group 
work, interventions, and/or assessment 

• HES is working together with PTO to support our positive incentive program with awards for PBIS 

• The School Site Council met and voted on the SARC, School Site Safety Plan, and made preliminary 
suggestions and actions for Title 1 funds  
 

Instructional News: 

• Teachers are fine-tuning their understanding of assessments with the new Illuminate/DNA and we will 
continue to provide time and training to support this work 

• Friday interventions are continuing to be well attended and teachers are working hard to decrease 
learning loss  

• Gear Up funds will be used to support a Science unit and professional development with a 
concentration on building literacy skills, specifically with our emerging bilinguals 

 
Coming Up: 

• SST Meetings March 10th 

• Student recognition 2/25 and 2/26: Caring and Kindness (Watch for our video on social media) 
 

Page 8



Alternative Education Report 

Board Meeting on Wednesday February 24, 2021 

Maria Reyes, Dean of Students 

 
Greetings from Alternative Ed! 

• The Spring semester has gone smoothly.  

• Social distancing is happening on a daily basis.   

• All students are screened daily at the start of each school day.   

• The HUSD maintenance department is doing a great job with daily classroom cleaning.    

• We will have Parent/Teacher Conferences on February 25, 2021.   

• February kicks off the start of Butte College Reg2Go program and this year the process will be 

done virtually.  Students can now go online and complete Orientation, then meet with a Butte 

Advising Counselor.   

• Adjustment to the AM/PM schedule is going well as students continue to work on earning 

credits towards graduation requirements or returning to the high school. 

• As needed we will continue with home visits and check in with students and families.   

• Students continue to use their Chromebook devices to complete homework and online 

assignments.  

Enrollment: 

12th grade =  6    

11th grade =  3   

                 9 

    

  

Page 9



Hamilton High School 
HUSD Board Report 

February 2021 
(created 2/16/21) 

 

********************************************************************************************************************* 

1. 2020-21 Current Enrollment: HHS Grades 9-12= 294; EBHS=8.  Total 9-12= 302 students. (+26 increase from 2019-20) 
2019 Enrollment: HHS Grades 9-12= 263; EBHS=13.   Total 9-12= 276  
2021-22 Projected 9-12 Enrollment: 290 students 

a. Attendance continues to be solid with nearly97% attendance for the latest attendance month! A testament to our 
Students and our Teachers, with great support from our Parents!  

b. This would indicate 9-12th grades remaining roughly at 290-295 for the upcoming school year and  with an 
expected 22-23 Frosh class of 80 (conservative), that would indicate approximately 292-297 for 9-12 in 22-23  .   

c. Out of district families continue to choose HHS and, as we rebuild our programs we expect more growth.  
2. We continue Health Screenings, conducted daily, between 7:35 and 8:10am (am group) and 11:35-12:10 (pm group), 

primarily in cafeteria parking lot but also near Room 1 along Road 203.  Students are asked health questions in addition to a 
vital temperature check and then stickered so that teachers know the screening has occurred.  Students and staff have been 
great in adherence and compliance of the safety expectations. Special Thank You to my head checkers- M. Reyes/K. 
Langan/E. Johnson/C. Rios who, along with myself, have helped run a smooth and efficient health screening process while 
ensuring our students get to class on time.  Also, Special thanks to R, Dietle and L. Widener for assisting during our time of 
being shorthanded these past few school days as we had several staff out on quarantine. 

3.     We currently have nearly 95% of our 9-12
th

 grade students back on campus in our current model! Teachers are working 
        diligently to serve our students with grace, compassion, love and understanding as well as remaining committed to the high 
        levels expected of each of our students within the classroom setting.  In our current model, Teachers are reporting that  
        students are able to receive more individualized attention through the set structure.  I am very proud of the fantastic effort 
        put forth by our teachers, and all staff, to ensure that our students are attended to emotionally as well as academically. 
4.     For HHS, the immediate PD goal is building the essential benchmarks with a new program. This is needed for data 
        Collection that will give understanding to what potential gaps are evident in core teaching areas  
        (Math/English/Science/History) so that we can then identify which students may be needing additional assistance through an  
        intervention plan. By the end of March/early April, we hope to have a set intervention plan for assisting students affected by  
        the pandemic. As is our norm here at HHS, continuing to build rapport and strong relationships, as has been exceptionally  
        true since the beginning of the pandemic, will continue and are vital to the continuing student buy-in into all things Hamilton. 
5.    Ongoing Top Priority emphasized to our teachers for our HHS students continues to be the health and well-being of all of our  
        students and their families. Teachers are asked to check-in, via various methods, with the students to see how they are doing 
        emotionally, socially, and physically.  Grace, compassion, and heart are to be exhibited to our students during this time.  This 
        is the primary concern emphasized  as we try to reduce the stress and anxiety of our students- all else is secondary and I am  
        continuing to adhere our staff to “do no harm” either socially, emotionally, or educationally.  How we continue to treat and 
        react to our students during this historic and health-concerning pandemic will be an important factor in their development.  I 
        am continuing to make home visits to our families to ensure students are attendant, engaged, and active participants  
        and to address questions or concerns parents may have.  In all, these efforts have led to increased positive appreciation of 
       our schools, our staff, and our district so I will continue these efforts. 
  6.   Especially thankful to our coaches (especially Andrea Jones and Aaron Elliott) for their organization and positive 
        vibes created in the safe workouts that we will continue to conduct.  We are still awaiting more updated information from 
        the CDPH and Governor’s office that may allow for interscholastic competition sooner rather than later. Our workouts have 
        been ongoing since November and are wonderful for our students physically and have also  been great for them socially and  
        emotionally. Thankful as well to Erin Johnson for her assistance in coordinating this athletic effort. 
 

 
           7.   Upcoming Dates/Events:  

 a.  February 17-  Cross Country Meet at Chico Five Mile Rec area.  4pm 
 b.  February 25-  Parent/Teacher Conferences, modified due to coronavirus. 
 c.  February 22-26-  FFA Week at HHS.  Includes Blood Drive on Feb. 24

th
; Teacher Appreciation on Feb. 26

th
. 

 d.  March 18-  End of 3
rd

 Quarter.  
 e.  March 19- No School for Students; Teacher Inservice Day. 

 

Submitted: 
 

Cris Oseguera 
Principal 
Hamilton High School  

 

Page 10



Hamilton Adult Education 

Board Meeting Report-February 24, 2021 

Silvia Robles/Director 

 

Completed and in Progress Tasks – January, 2021 

1. Enrollment and students served to date for all 2020-2021 programs:  

• Citizenship ..................................................................13  

• Computer Basics Spring 2021 ....................................12 

• CPR/First Aid scheduled for March  ...........................0 

• ESL ..............................................................................28  

• Floral Design Feb., Mar., & April ................................20 

• Forklift Training starts back up in March  ..................24 

• High School Diploma ..................................................24  

• Job Readiness scheduled for February and March ....0 

TOTAL:  ...................................................... 121 

 

2. Assist participants with the barriers and challenges of distance learning  

3. Call adult students to welcome them back in.  

4. Check in with HSD students to notify them about their course assignment. 

5. Second Quarter Data Integrity Report was submitted. 

6. Class schedule for Spring Semester 2021 was sent out. 

7. Enrollment-ongoing 

8. Recruitment-ongoing 

9. Adult Ed Teacher for Computer Basics has been hired. 

10. February:  

a. In search of an Adult Ed Teacher 

b. Advanced ESL ongoing 

Page 11



Hamilton Unified School District

General Fund - Unrestricted and Restricted

February 24, 2021 Board Report

2020-21 2020-21 2019-20 2019-20

Revised Budget Year To Date Revised Budget Year To Date

First Interim As of 2/17/21 First Interim As of 2/17/20

Revenues

LCFF Sources 7,711,013$    4,444,268$     7,873,467$    4,398,510$    

All Other Federal Revenue 1,154,128$    914,147$        279,569$        198,250$       

Other State Revenue 553,009$        274,532$        382,413$        152,737$       

Other Local Revenue 150,442$        130,484$        79,577$          61,058$         

Other Financing Sources -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                

Total Revenues 9,568,592$    5,763,431$     8,615,026$    4,810,555$    

Expenditures

Certificated Personnel Salaries 3,059,086$    1,782,267$     3,470,510$    1,912,647$    

Classified Personnel Salaries 1,054,399$    598,584$        1,191,536$    692,759$       

Employee Benefits 1,737,160$    1,021,807$     1,985,517$    1,094,498$    

Books and Supplies 929,401$        533,386$        447,944$        228,087$       

Travel and Conferences 103,456$        8,951$             118,453$        45,587$         

Dues and Memberships 15,920$          8,546$             12,000$          14,843$         

Other Insurance 93,766$          93,766$          100,695$        100,695$       

All Other Utilities 275,450$        155,028$        275,450$        188,679$       

Rents/Leases/Repairs 64,745$          29,345$          77,099$          45,203$         

Other Operating Expenditures 603,494$        407,886$        300,480$        187,115$       

Capital Outlay 337,122$        388,435$        402,972$        237,972$       

Other Outgo 1,000,084$    29,229$          903,813$        392,678$       

Total Expenditures 9,274,083$    5,057,230$     9,286,469$    5,140,763$    

Net Increase (Decrease) in Fund 294,509$        706,201$        (671,443)$      (330,208)$     

Beg. Fund Bal. (2019-20 Unaudited Actuals) 887,322$        

Projected End. Fund Bal. 1,181,831$    

P
age 12



HUSD Superintendent Report  

Board Meeting on February 24, 2021 

Jeremy Powell, Ed. D. 

 

 

District Target Goals: 

● Focus on Dual Immersion-Bilingual/Biliterate/Bicultural 
● All students at Standard and Achievement Gap Closed 
● Graduates who are College and Career Ready 

 
The District has continued to work through the various COVID related Academic and Social/Emotional 
needs with pride and an ongoing commitment to supporting our students and community.  We continue 
to focus on the health and safety of staff and students with ongoing health screenings as students arrive 
daily, cleaning and disinfecting of high touch areas multiple times a day, and close communication with 
Glenn County Public Health as we respond to COVID related illness.  While there have been cases of 
COVID within our District, we have no evidence of any spread while on any of our campuses.  

District Highlights for January & February: 

● On January 20th and February 17th, we have continued to have our Hamilton Unified 
Leadership Committee meetings via zoom.  These meetings have been attended, on average, by 
over 45 school and District employees.  This leadership committee has served primarily this 
school year as a place of common information in regards to State and Federal COVID updates, 
but also continues to serve as a forum to share academic and District-wide decision making.   

● We have begun again to meet with our New School Planning Committee focused on the vision 
for our new high school design.  The IEP2 team, once again, is working to facilitate these 
meetings.  Our goal in the coming weeks is to meet with specific focus groups and then have a 
presentation to the board by early summer.   

● Our COVID Independent Study Program is up and running in large part thanks to our two 
teachers, Jenny Firth and Lynn Larson.  The Accelerate Education Platform is new to the District 
and, after a rocky start, feedback is coming in that the program is helping to meet the needs of 
our students who have requested Independent Study during this difficult time. 

 

 
Upcoming District Events: 

● 3/8 & 3/9: SSDA Virtual Conference (please let me know if you would like to register) 
● 3/10: Special Board Meeting @ 6:30  

o Strategic Planning/LCAP Planning for the 2021-2022 school year & 2nd Interim Budget 
Report 

● 3/18: End of 3rd Quarter 
● 3/19: No School-Staff buyback day 
● 3/24: Board Meeting 5:30 @ HHS Library 
● 3/26: HHS Open House (tentative) 
● 4/2-4/11: Spring Break 

Page 13



Page 14



Conflict of Interest Code of the

Hamilton Unified School District

The provisions of 2 CCR 18730 and any amendments to it adopted by the Fair Political Practices 
Commission, together with the attached Appendix specifying designated positions and disclosure 
categories, are incorporated by reference and shall constitute the district's conflict of interest code.

Governing Board members and designated employees shall file a Statement of Economic Interest/
Form 700 in accordance with the disclosure categories listed in the attached Appendix. The 
Statement of Economic Interest shall be filed with the district's filing officer and/or, if so required, 
with the district's code reviewing body. The district's filing officer shall make the statements 
available for public review and inspection.

Page 15



APPENDIX

Disclosure Categories

1. Category 1: A person designated Category 1 shall disclose:

a. Interests in real property located entirely or partly within district boundaries, or within two miles of
district boundaries, or of any land owned or used by the district.

b. Investments or business positions in or income from sources which are engaged in the acquisition or
disposal of real property within the district, are contractors or subcontractors which are or have been
within the past two years engaged in work or services of the type used by the district, or manufacture or
sell supplies, books, machinery, or equipment of the type used by the district.

2. Category 2: A person designated Category 2 shall disclose:

a. Investments or business positions in or income from sources which are contractors or subcontractors
engaged in work or services of the type used by the department which the designated person manages
or directs.

b. Investments or business positions in or income from sources which manufacture or sell supplies,
books, machinery, or equipment of the type used by the department which the designated person
manages or directs. For the purposes of this category, a principal's department is his/her entire school.

3. Full Disclosure: Because it has been determined that the district's Board members and/or
Superintendent "manage public investments," they and other persons designated for "full disclosure"
shall disclose, in accordance with Government Code 87200:

a. Interests in real property located entirely or partly within district boundaries, or within two miles of
district boundaries, or of any land owned or used by the district.

b. Investments, business positions, and sources of income, including gifts, loans, and travel payments.

Designated Positions

Designated Position Disclosure Category

Governing Board Members 1

District Superintendent/Principal Alternative Education 1

Chief Business Official 1

District Accounts Clerk 1

Principal, Hamilton High School 2

Principal, Hamilton Elementary School 2

Assistant Principal, Hamilton Elementary School 2

Page 16



Director of Maintenance, Operations and Transportation 2

Dean of Students 2

Director of Technology 2

Director of Nutrition and Student Welfare 2

Activities Director 2

Disclosures for Consultants

Consultants are designated employees who must disclose financial interests as determined on a case-
by-case basis by the Superintendent or designee. The Superintendent or designee's written
determination shall include a description of the consultant's duties and a statement of the extent of
disclosure requirements based upon that description. All such determinations are public records and
shall be retained for public inspection along with this conflict of interest code.

A consultant is an individual who, pursuant to a contract with the district, makes a governmental
decision whether to: (2 CCR 18701)

1. Approve a rate, rule, or regulation

2. Adopt or enforce a law

3. Issue, deny, suspend, or revoke a permit, license, application, certificate, approval, order, or similar
authorization or entitlement

4. Authorize the district to enter into, modify, or renew a contract that requires district approval

5. Grant district approval to a contract that requires district approval and in which the district is a party,
or to the specifications for such a contract

6. Grant district approval to a plan, design, report, study, or similar item

7. Adopt or grant district approval of district policies, standards, or guidelines

A consultant is also an individual who, pursuant to a contract with the district, serves in a staff capacity
with the district and in that capacity participates in making a governmental decision as defined in 2
CCR 18702.2 or performs the same or substantially all the same duties for the district that would
otherwise be performed by an individual holding a position specified in the district's conflict of interest
code. (2 CCR 18701)

Page 17



HUSD ENROLLMENT OVER SIX YEARS

2015-2021

304 HHS 264 HHS 269 HHS 286 HHS 265 HHS 289 HHS

9 EBHS 14 EBHS 12 EBHS 9 EBHS 13 EBHS 8 EBHS

K-5 K-5 279 K-5 292 K-5 272 K-5 264 K-5

6-8 6-8 133 6-8 125 6-8 153 6-8 146 6-8

728 ENROLLMENT 692 ENROLLMENT 693 ENROLLMENT 712 ENROLLMENT 703 ENROLLMENT 707 ENROLLMENT

712.26 ADA 669.29 ADA 672.21 ADA 687.87 ADA 668.36 ADA 682.1 ADA

Enrollment and ADA totals above are based on P2 Data Reporting except current year based on current reporting

6

2020-21

5

2020-21 ADA based on Month 6 report (12/28/2020-1/22/2021)

2019-202018-192017-182016-172015-16

1 2 3 4

414415

728

692 693

712

703
707

712.26

669.29
672.21

687.87

668.36

682.1

2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20

D
is

tr
ic

t 
En

ro
llm

e
n

t 
&

 A
D

A

Enrollment  ADA

Enrollment & ADA by School Year

P
age 18



HUSD ENROLLMENT OVER SIX YEARS

2015-2021

#STU GRADE #STU GRADE #STU GRADE #STU GRADE #STU GRADE

13 TK 13 TK 12.11 13 TK 12.08 13 TK 11.93 13 TK 11.91

42 K 42 K 41.11 43 K 41.30 41 K 35.59 41 K 39.40

41 1 40 1 40.53 40 1 40.16 40 1 38.14 40 1 38.05

47 2 45 2 43.11 43 2 42.95 43 2 41.11 44 2 41.08

40 3 40 3 37.84 40 3 38.14 40 3 37.34 40 3 37.44

42 4 42 4 40.11 42 4 40.51 42 4 39.70 42 4 39.79

50 5 49 5 48.05 48 5 47.81 48 5 46.21 49 5 46.21

41 6 41 6 39.21 41 6 39.78 39 6 39.21 40 6 38.95

60 7 59 7 59.68 60 7 59.54 60 7 59.61 61 7 59.59

44 8 44 8 43.05 44 8 43.32 43 8 42.23 43 8 42.91

74 9 76 9 73.68 77 9 74.35 78 9 75.15 78 9 75.56

65 10 66 10 62.63 67 10 63.62 68 10 64.46 68 10 64.97

80 11 79 11 76.85 77 11 77.41 77 11 75.94 77 11 76.04

74 12 74 12 70.57 74 12 72.13 73 12 70.94 73 12 70.51

713 TOTAL 710 TOTAL 688.53 709 TOTAL 693.1 705 TOTAL 677.56 709 TOTAL 682.41

#STU GRADE #STU GRADE #STU GRADE #STU GRADE #STU GRADE

13 TK 11.96 TK TK TK TK

40 K 39.29 K K K K

41 1 37.97 1 1 1 1

42 2 41.13 2 2 2 2

39 3 37.38 3 3 3 3

41 4 39.68 4 4 4 4

48 5 46.2 5 5 5 5

41 6 38.87 6 6 6 6

61 7 59.43 7 7 7 7

44 8 42.74 8 8 8 8

80 9 75.69 9 9 9 9

70 10 65.17 10 10 10 10

73 11 73.67 11 11 11 11

74 12 72.92 12 12 12 12

707 TOTAL 682.1 0 TOTAL 0 0 TOTAL 0 0 TOTAL 0 0 TOTAL 0

2020-21

ADA5/17-6/11/2021

2020-21 2020-21

12/28-1/22/2021 01/25-2/19/2021

2020-21

8/11-8/17/20

2020-21

8/05-8/30/20

ADA

11/2-11/27

2020-21

11/2-12/25ADA ADA ADA

2020-21

3/22-4/16/2021ADA

2020-21

ADA

2020-21

ADA4/19-5/14/2021

2020-21

09/07-10/02
ADA

P
age 19



 Building Fund 21 (Bond) Expenditures for 2020-21

For February 24, 2021 HUSD Board Meeting

Total Expenditures through February 17, 2021

PO # Date Vendor Description Amount

PV 1 7/22/2020 Bank of New York Mellon Paying Agent Fee; RE: Election of 2018, GO Bonds, Series A 750.00$                 

423 9/23/2020 Dannis Woliver Kelley Legal fees related to land acquisition 490.50$                 

423 10/21/2020 Dannis Woliver Kelley Legal fees related to land acquisition 2,256.00$             

423 12/2/2020 Dannis Woliver Kelley Legal fees related to land acquisition 90.00$                   

423 12/9/2020 Dannis Woliver Kelley Legal fees related to land acquisition 12,913.50$           

423 2/3/2021 Dannis Woliver Kelley Legal fees related to land acquisition 3,598.50$             

PV 12 10/7/2020 Department of Toxic Substances Control - DTSC Property purchase testing 577.58$                 

21-150 8/19/2020 Educational Facilities Program Management LLC Program Management Services 3,360.00$             

21-150 9/16/2020 Educational Facilities Program Management LLC Program Management Services 4,480.00$             

21-150 10/14/2020 Educational Facilities Program Management LLC Program Management Services 3,920.00$             

21-150 11/10/2020 Educational Facilities Program Management LLC Program Management Services 4,200.00$             

21-150 12/9/2020 Educational Facilities Program Management LLC Program Management Services 2,520.00$             

21-150 1/13/2021 Educational Facilities Program Management LLC Program Management Services 1,120.00$             

21-150 2/10/2021 Educational Facilities Program Management LLC Program Management Services 1,120.00$             

PV 32 11/10/2020 Hamilton Unified Revolving Fund for Glenn County File a parcel map in Glenn County 1,136.00$             

19-515 11/10/2020 Placeworks Inc. CEQA Study/Expansion 2,097.38$             

19-515 11/10/2020 Placeworks Inc. CEQA Study/Expansion 2,186.63$             

21-152 8/19/2020 Robertson Erickson Inc Final survey and map package for county recorder 1,650.00$             

21-152 10/21/2020 Robertson Erickson Inc Final survey and map package for county recorder 740.00$                 

21-152 12/16/2020 Robertson Erickson Inc Final survey and map package for county recorder 540.00$                 

21-152 12/16/2020 Robertson Erickson Inc Final survey and map package for county recorder 1,105.00$             

21-152 2/3/2021 Robertson Erickson Inc Final survey and map package for county recorder 180.00$                 

448 9/2/2020 Sacramento Valley Mirror Legal ad for public hearing related to high school expansion 82.00$                   
Total expenditures through 2/17/2021 51,113.09$           

P
age 20



 Building Fund 21 (Bond) Expenditures for 2019-20

For HUSD Board Meeting August 26, 2020

PO # Date Vendor Description Amount

423 9/27/2019 Dannis Woliver Kelley Legal Fees related to land acquisition - matter ending 518 802.00$                

423 10/30/2019 Dannis Woliver Kelley Legal Fees related to land acquisition - matter ending 518 1,126.00$             

423 11/13/2019 Dannis Woliver Kelley Legal Fees related to land acquisition - matter ending 518 165.00$                

423 12/11/2019 Dannis Woliver Kelley Legal Fees related to land acquisition - matter ending 518 2,969.00$             

423 1/8/2020 Dannis Woliver Kelley Legal Fees related to land acquisition - matter ending 518/1103 807.00$                

423 5/6/2020 Dannis Woliver Kelley Legal Fees related to land acquisition - matter ending 518 754.50$                

423 5/20/2020 Dannis Woliver Kelley Legal Fees related to land acquisition - matter ending 518 1,833.50$             

423 6/24/2020 Dannis Woliver Kelley Legal Fees related to land acquisition - matter ending 518 1,194.50$             

423 6/30/2020 Dannis Woliver Kelley Legal Fees related to land acquisition - matter ending 518 2,179.50$             

423 6/30/2020 Dannis Woliver Kelley Legal Fees related to land acquisition - matter ending 518 9,317.00$             

19397 9/27/2019 Holdrege & Kull (NV5) Prelim Assessment #032-230-015 1,057.63$             

19397 9/27/2019 Holdrege & Kull (NV5) Prelim Assessment #032-230-015 1,445.00$             

19397 10/16/2019 Holdrege & Kull (NV5) Prelim Assessment #032-230-015 2,960.00$             

19397 10/23/2019 Holdrege & Kull (NV5) Prelim Assessment #032-230-015 171.62$                

19397 12/11/2019 Holdrege & Kull (NV5) Prelim Assessment #032-230-015 12,940.58$           

19397 2/5/2020 Holdrege & Kull (NV5) Prelim Assessment #032-230-015 12,895.93$           

19397 2/5/2020 Holdrege & Kull (NV5) Prelim Assessment #032-230-015 560.00$                

19397 3/18/2020 Holdrege & Kull (NV5) Prelim Assessment #032-230-015 4,475.12$             

19397 3/18/2020 Holdrege & Kull (NV5) Prelim Assessment #032-230-015 1,252.38$             

19397 6/17/2020 Holdrege & Kull (NV5) Prelim Assessment #032-230-015 1,366.98$             

19515 9/27/2019 Placeworks Inc. CEQA Review; expansion project 4,692.02$             

19515 10/2/2019 Placeworks Inc. CEQA Review; expansion project 5,009.48$             

19515 11/20/2019 Placeworks Inc. CEQA Review; expansion project 9,667.98$             

19515 11/20/2019 Placeworks Inc. CEQA Review; expansion project 14,715.59$           

19515 6/17/2020 Placeworks Inc. CEQA Review; expansion project 15,933.69$           

19515 6/30/2020 Placeworks Inc. CEQA Review; expansion project 430.49$                

19515 6/30/2020 Placeworks Inc. CEQA Review; expansion project 9,341.19$             

19515 6/30/2020 Placeworks Inc. CEQA Review; expansion project 2,588.26$             

20202 9/27/2019 Department of Toxic Substances Control - DTSC Property Purchase Testing 14,480.00$           

20219 9/27/2019 Educational Facilities Program Management LLC Consulting for HHS Expansion Project 5,040.00$             

20219 9/27/2019 Educational Facilities Program Management LLC Consulting for HHS Expansion Project 4,200.00$             

20219 11/13/2019 Educational Facilities Program Management LLC Consulting for HHS Expansion Project 4,480.00$             

20219 12/11/2019 Educational Facilities Program Management LLC Consulting for HHS Expansion Project 3,080.00$             

20219 1/15/2020 Educational Facilities Program Management LLC Consulting for HHS Expansion Project 2,520.00$             

20219 2/12/2020 Educational Facilities Program Management LLC Consulting for HHS Expansion Project 2,380.00$             

20219 3/11/2020 Educational Facilities Program Management LLC Consulting for HHS Expansion Project 4,480.00$             

20219 4/15/2020 Educational Facilities Program Management LLC Consulting for HHS Expansion Project 5,320.00$             

20219 5/20/2020 Educational Facilities Program Management LLC Consulting for HHS Expansion Project 3,920.00$             

20219 6/17/2020 Educational Facilities Program Management LLC Consulting for HHS Expansion Project 4,200.00$             

20219 6/30/2020 Educational Facilities Program Management LLC Consulting for HHS Expansion Project 5,180.00$             

20247 11/20/2019 Timios Title Title Report for new property 400.00$                

20287 10/9/2019 Robertson Erickson Inc. Survey for land 3,250.00$             

20287 6/30/2020 Robertson Erickson Inc. Survey for land 3,250.00$             

20495 6/30/2020 Integrated Educational Planning & Programming Building/Expansion Project 4,800.00$             

PV 98 3/11/2020 Sacramento Valley Mirror Legal Ad - Notice of Prep. of a Prelim. Environmental Assess. 90.20$                  

PV 119 6/17/2020 Sacramento Valley Mirror Legal Ad - Expansion Project 139.40$                
Total expenditures through 6/30/2020 193,861.54$        

P
age 21



2018-19 Bond and Property Expenses

PO # Vendor Description Amount Reimbursable

19-567 California Appraisals Appraisal for future site 4,000.00$   Yes

19-134 Educational Facilities Program Management LLC Bond Development & Election 34,440.00$ Yes

PV#69 Glenn County Elections Bond Election Fees 3,466.00$   No

19-309 Holdrege & Kull (NV5) Environmental Site Assessment 4,600.00$   Yes

19-397 Holdrege & Kull (NV5) Prelim Assessment #032-230-015 4,060.62$   Yes

19-524 HUSD Revolving Fund New property project 1,500.00$   Yes

19-514 Placeworks Inc. Title 5 Risk Assessment 15,210.00$ Yes

19-515 Placeworks Inc. CEQA Review; Expansion Project 5,877.75$   Yes

18-639 School Works Inc. Development Fee Study 6,000.00$   No

19-596 Western Valuation Professional Appraisal - new property 3,500.00$ Yes

423 Dannis Woliver Kelley matter # 10518 Property Purchase Negotiation 6,470$         Yes

423 Dannis Woliver Kelley matter # 10418 2018 Bond Discussions 1,017$         No

Total Amount Expended 90,140.87$ 

Reimbursable Total 79,657.87$ 

2018-2019 Bond and Property Related Expenses

Page 22



HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

HAMILTON HIGH SCHOOL SITE EXPANSION-PERMITTING STATUS 

BOARD INFORMATION & DISCUSSION ITEM 

February 24, 2021 

 

CURRENT SITE PURCHASE STATUS & TIMELINE - (Defer to Supt. & Legal Counsel) 

CDE SITE PERMITTING REQUIREMENTS 

DEPARTMENT OF TOXIC SUBSTANCES CONTROL (NV5) 

• Final PEA completed; submitted to DTSC 2/11/2020.  Required 30-day Public Comment Period 

opened 2/17/2020; closed 3/20/2020.  Public Comment Hearing completed at Board Meeting 

2/26/2020.  No adverse comments from DTSC received; No Further Action (Final Approval 

Letter) from DTSC (see attached) received 4/29/2020.  No further action required by the District; 

requirements completed. 

CALIFORNIA ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY ACT (PLACEWORKS) 

• CEQA Final Report now completed; Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration on District 

Agenda for review 4/22/2020 (see separate Agenda item). Notice of Intent to Adopt and 30 

Public Comment period from 4/20/2020 through 5/20/2020; no public comments received to 

date. Board adoption and final Notice of Determination on August 26, 2020 Board Agenda for 

approval.  Final Notices of Determination filed with Glenn County Planning Commission ant 

California Office of Planning and Research.  CEQA requirements completed. 

TITLE 5 REPORTS (PLACEWORKS) 

• Pipeline Safety Study: Research & Report Complete.  SUMMARY-No mitigation measures 
required. 

• Railway Safety Study: Research & Report Complete.  SUMMARY:  No special risks or mitigation 
required.  

• Dam Inundation Study: Research & Report Complete.  SUMMARY: Dam Inundation: No special 

risks or mitigation required. 

EDUCATIONAL SPECIFICATIONS (iep2) 

• Initial Steering Committee Meeting held 2/11/2020; focus group meetings now being scheduled 

for site faculty, support staff, administrators, parents, students and community members in late 

March 2021. 

GEOLOGICAL HAZARDS STUDIES (EFPM/LLC) 

• Geological Hazards Study completed by EFPM/LLC after consultation with Department of 

Education/Facilities Division. Now in review at CDE. 

  

Page 23



HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

HAMILTON HIGH SCHOOL SITE EXPANSION-PERMITTING STATUS 

BOARD INFORMATION & DISCUSSION ITEM 

February 24, 2021 

 

FINAL SITE SURVEY 

• Fieldwork for final site survey for escrow closure and recording completed by Robertson 

Erickson Surveying & Engineering in August 2020; final report now being held pending final 

resolution of specified metes & bounds.  

PLANNING COMMISSION SUBMITTAL (EFPM/LLC) 

• Request for Glenn County Planning Commission review (per Section 21151.2. Public Resources 

Code) submitted on 6/10/2020, with a requested return within 45 days. Public hearing and 

comments by Planning Commission at its August 19, 2020 Commission Meeting (see attached 

Glenn County Planning Commission Staff Report). Planning Commission submission requirement 

completed. 

WILLIAMSON ACT FILINGS (EFPM/LLC) 

• Initial Williamson Act abatement filings to County Planning Office and State Department of 

Conservation reviewed by District Legal Counsel and submitted to the State Department of 

Conservation and the Glenn County Planning Commission on 6/15/2020. Approval by 

Department of Conservation on 7/23/2020; review and comment by Glenn County Planning 

Commission at its August 19, 2020 Commission Meeting (see above).  Department must file 

copy of final executed purchase agreement with Department of Conservation. 

DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION FILINGS 

• CDE Initial Filings & SFPD 4.03 now being completed, including all completed studies/documents 

noted above. 

 

Page 24



HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

 

Agenda Item Number: 13a Date: 2/24/2021 

Agenda Item Description: 

Approve Spring 2021 Instructional Schedule 

Background: 

During the regular board meeting held on January 20, 2020 the HUSD Board approved a return to school 

in an AM/PM model for K-12 education with a review to be held on February 24, 2021 of returning to full 

in-person instruction March 1, 2021.  During this time, new guidance for the State of California 

Department of Public Health (January 14, 2021) and CDC (February 14, 2021) have been released with 

further operational strategies regarding safety protocols, student distancing, testing, and 

vaccinations.  The District has also conducted surveys of staff and parents regarding their feelings of a 

return to full in person school (see handouts for CDC and Survey Findings).  

Status: For Discussion and vote 

Fiscal Impact: None 

Educational Impact:  If students were allowed to return full time, five days a week, they would be in class 

for a longer period of time. 

Recommendation: 

HUSD should follow both the CDPH and CDC’s most recent recommendations for TK-12 schools and open 

fully 1) if the District is able to maintain the minimum of 4’ distance between student seating and 2) 

when Glenn County has reached the Moderate Transmission Level (Yellow) defined in the CDC’s 

Operational Strategy for K-12 Schools as: Total new cases per 100,000 person in the past 7 days at the 

moderate level (10%-49%) and Percentage of Positive tests in the past 7 days at the moderate level (5-

7.9%).  The District will use the Blueprint for a Safer Economy for this data: https://covid19.ca.gov/safer-

economy/#track-data 

 

Page 25



HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

Agenda Item Number: 13b Date: 2/24/2021 

Agenda Item Description: 

Approval of June 30, 2020 Audit Report for 2019-20 

Background:  

An annual independent financial audit is required of all K-12 local educational agencies in California.  

Audits of the prior fiscal year must be filed with the California Department of Education, the State 

Controller’s Office, and the local County Superintendent by December 15 each year.  Due to the COVID-

19 pandemic, the audit deadline has been extended until March 31, 2021.  The 2019-20 independent 

audit is being brought to the February board meeting for approval.  The auditors believe the financial 

statements present fairly, in all material aspects, the financial position of the district as of June 30, 2020.  

We had three non-financial audit findings.  One finding dealt with internal controls, another was related 

to Classroom Teacher Salaries and the last for Instructional Materials.  For further details please see 

pages 72-74 of the Audit Report.  The district has already addressed the findings noted in the report and 

made the necessary changes to ensure compliance going forward. 

Status: Pending board approval. 

Fiscal Impact: There were no financial statement audit findings.  As a result, there was no fiscal impact to 

the 2019-20 Unaudited Actuals that were previously presented. 

Educational Impact:  None 

Recommendation: Recommend board approve the June 30, 2020 Audit Report for 2019-20. 

Page 26



O: 619-270-8222   
F: 619-260-9085
christywhite.com

348 Olive Street
San Diego, CA 
92103

Certified Public Accountants serving 
K-12 School Districts and Charter
Schools throughout California

1 

January 25, 2021 

Board of Education  
Hamilton Unified School District 
Hamilton, CA 

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, each major fund, and the aggregate 
remaining fund information of Hamilton Unified School District (the “District”) for the year ended June 30, 2020. 
Professional standards require that we provide you with information about our responsibilities under generally 
accepted auditing standards (and, if applicable, Government Auditing Standards and the Uniform Guidance), as well 
as certain information related to the planned scope and timing of our audit. We have communicated such information 
in our letter to you dated January 25, 2021. Professional standards also require that we communicate to you the 
following information related to our audit. 

Significant Audit Matters 

Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices  

Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. The significant accounting 
policies used by the District are described in Note 1 to the financial statements. No new accounting policies were 
adopted, and the application of existing policies was not changed during 2020. We noted no transactions entered into 
by the District during the year for which there is a lack of authoritative guidance or consensus. All significant 
transactions have been recognized in the financial statements in the proper period. 

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are based on 
management’s knowledge and experience about past and current events and assumptions about future events. 
Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of their significance to the financial statements and 
because of the possibility that future events affecting them may differ significantly from those expected. The most 
sensitive estimates affecting the financial statements were:  

Management’s estimate of depreciation of capital assets is based on historical estimates of each 
capitalized item’s useful life.  We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop the 
depreciation of capital assets in determining that it is reasonable in relation to the financial statements 
taken as a whole.  

Management’s estimate of total other postemployment benefits (OPEB) obligation is based on an 
actuarial valuation.  We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop the total OPEB 
obligation in determining that it is reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole. 

Management’s estimate of the net pension liability and related deferred outflows of resources and 
deferred inflows of resources are based on actuarial valuations and pension contributions made 
during the year.  We evaluated the key factors, assumptions, and proportionate share calculations 
used to develop the net pension liability and related deferred outflows of resources and deferred 
inflows of resources in determining that it is reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken 
as a whole.

Page 27



 2 

Certain financial statement disclosures are particularly sensitive because of their significance to financial statement 
users. The most sensitive disclosures affecting the financial statements were:  

The disclosure of capital assets in Note 4 to the financial statements is based on historical information 
which could differ from actual useful lives of each capitalized item.  

The disclosure of other postemployment benefits and the total OPEB obligation in Note 10 to the 
financial statements represents management’s estimate based on an actuarial valuation.    Actual 
results could differ depending on the key factors and assumptions used for the actuarial valuation. 

The disclosure of the pension plans, net pension liability and related deferred outflows of resources 
and deferred inflows of resources in Note 11 to the financial statements represents management’s 
estimates based on actuarial valuations and pension contributions made during the year.  Actual 
results could differ depending on the key factors, and assumptions and proportionate share 
calculations used to develop the net pension liability and related deferred outflows of resources and 
deferred inflows of resources.  

The financial statement disclosures are neutral, consistent, and clear. 

Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit  

We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and completing our audit. 

Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements  

Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified during the audit, other 
than those that are clearly trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of management. Management has 
corrected all such misstatements. In addition, none of the misstatements detected as a result of audit procedures and 
corrected by management were material, either individually or in the aggregate, to each opinion unit’s financial 
statements taken as a whole.  

Disagreements with Management  

For purposes of this letter, a disagreement with management is a financial accounting, reporting, or auditing matter, 
whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that could be significant to the financial statements or the auditor’s report. 
We are pleased to report that no such disagreements arose during the course of our audit. 

Management Representations  

We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the management representation 
letter dated January 25, 2021. 

Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants  

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting matters, 
similar to obtaining a “second opinion” on certain situations. If a consultation involves application of an accounting 
principle to the District’s financial statements or a determination of the type of auditor’s opinion that may be expressed 
on those statements, our professional standards require the consulting accountant to check with us to determine that 
the consultant has all the relevant facts. To our knowledge, there were no such consultations with other accountants. 

Other Audit Findings or Issues  

We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing standards, 
with management each year prior to retention as the District’s auditors. However, these discussions occurred in the 
normal course of our professional relationship and our responses were not a condition to our retention. 

Page 28



3 
Other Matters 

We applied certain limited procedures to management’s discussion and analysis, and the required supplementary 
information section, which are required supplementary information (RSI) that supplements the basic financial 
statements. Our procedures consisted of inquiries of management regarding the methods of preparing the 
information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic 
financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We did not 
audit the RSI and do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the RSI.  

We were engaged to report on the supplementary information section, which accompany the financial statements but 
are not RSI. With respect to this supplementary information, we made certain inquiries of management and evaluated 
the form, content, and methods of preparing the information to determine that the information complies with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, the method of preparing it has not changed 
from the prior period, and the information is appropriate and complete in relation to our audit of the financial 
statements. We compared and reconciled the supplementary information to the underlying accounting records used 
to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves.  

Restriction on Use 
This information is intended solely for the information and use of Board of Education and management of the District 
and is not intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone other than these specified parties. 
Very truly yours, 

Christy White, Inc. 

Page 29



HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

AUDIT REPORT 
JUNE 30, 2020 

Page 30



 
HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
TABLE OF CONTENTS 
JUNE 30, 2020 

 
 

FINANCIAL SECTION 
 

Independent Auditors’ Report ............................................................................................................................................... 1 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis .............................................................................................................................. 3 
Basic Financial Statements 

Government-wide Financial Statements 
Statement of Net Position ........................................................................................................................................... 10 
Statement of Activities ................................................................................................................................................ 11 

Fund Financial Statements 
Governmental Funds – Balance Sheet ..................................................................................................................... 12 
Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet to the Statement of Net Position ........................... 13 
Governmental Funds – Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances .................... 14 
Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund 

Balances to the Statement of Activities ................................................................................................................. 15 
Fiduciary Funds – Statement of Net Position .......................................................................................................... 17 
Fiduciary Funds – Statement of Changes in Net Position ...................................................................................... 18 

Notes to Financial Statements ............................................................................................................................................ 19 
 

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
 

General Fund – Budgetary Comparison Schedule .......................................................................................................... 50 
Schedule of Changes in Total OPEB Liability and Related Ratios ................................................................................. 51 
Schedule of the District’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability - CalSTRS ............................................. 52 
Schedule of the District’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability - CalPERS ............................................. 53 
Schedule of District Contributions - CalSTRS .................................................................................................................. 54 
Schedule of District Contributions - CalPERS .................................................................................................................. 55 
Notes to Required Supplementary Information ................................................................................................................ 56 

 
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

 
Schedule of Average Daily Attendance (ADA) ................................................................................................................. 58 
Schedule of Instructional Time ........................................................................................................................................... 59 
Schedule of Financial Trends and Analysis ...................................................................................................................... 60 
Reconciliation of Annual Financial and Budget Report with Audited Financial Statements ....................................... 61 
Combining Statements – Non-Major Governmental Funds 

Combining Balance Sheet ................................................................................................................................................ 62 
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances ............................................... 63 

Local Education Agency Organization Structure ............................................................................................................. 64 
Notes to Supplementary Information ................................................................................................................................. 65 

Page 31



HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
TABLE OF CONTENTS 
JUNE 30, 2020 

OTHER INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORTS 

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of 
Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards ......................................... 66 

Report on State Compliance ............................................................................................................................................... 68

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

Summary of Auditors’ Results ............................................................................................................................................. 71 
Financial Statement Findings .............................................................................................................................................. 72 
State Award Findings and Questioned Costs ................................................................................................................... 73 
Summary Schedule of Prior Audit Findings ...................................................................................................................... 75 

Page 32



 

 

 

FINANCIAL SECTION 
 

 
 
 

Page 33



O: 619-270-8222   
F: 619-260-9085
christywhite.com

348 Olive Street
San Diego, CA 
92103

Certified Public Accountants serving 
K-12 School Districts and Charter 
Schools throughout California

 

1 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 
 
 

Governing Board 
Hamilton Unified School District 
Hamilton City, California 
 
Report on the Financial Statements 
 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, each major fund, and the 
aggregate remaining fund information of the Hamilton Unified School District, as of and for the year ended June 30, 
2020, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Hamilton Unified School 
District’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.  
 
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, 
and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.  
 
Auditor’s Responsibility 
 
Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in 
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable 
to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United 
States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether 
the financial statements are free from material misstatement.  
 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of 
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, 
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial 
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. 
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial 
statements. 
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinions. 
 
Opinions 
 
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial 
position of the governmental activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Hamilton 
Unified School District, as of June 30, 2020, and the respective changes in financial position thereof for the year then 
ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Page 34



 

2 

Other Matters 
 
Required Supplementary Information 
 
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the required supplementary 
information, such as management’s discussion and analysis, budgetary comparison information, schedule of changes 
in total OPEB liability and related ratios, schedules of proportionate share of net pension liability, and schedules of 
District contributions for pensions be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, 
although not part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who 
considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in appropriate 
operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required 
supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, 
which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the 
information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other 
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide 
any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to 
express an opinion or provide any assurance.  
 
Supplementary Information 
 
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise 
the Hamilton Unified School District’s basic financial statements. The supplementary information listed in the table of 
contents is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting 
and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing 
procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including 
comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare 
the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in 
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the 
supplementary information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a 
whole. 
 
Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 
 
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated January 25, 2021 on our 
consideration of Hamilton Unified School District's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its 
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The 
purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and 
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of Hamilton Unified 
School District’s internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit 
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering Hamilton Unified School District’s 
internal control over financial reporting and compliance.  
 
 
 
 
San Diego, California 
January 25, 2021 
 
 
 

Page 35



 

3 

HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

 
 

INTRODUCTION 
 
Our discussion and analysis of Hamilton Unified School District’s (District) financial performance provides an overview 
of the District’s financial activities for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020. It should be read in conjunction with the 
District’s financial statements, which follow this section. 
 
 
FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 
 

 The District’s net position was $(870,322) at June 30, 2020. This was a decrease of $733,834 from the prior 
year. 

 Overall revenues were $10,137,958 which were exceeded by expenses of $10,871,792. 
 
 
OVERVIEW OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
Components of the Financial Section 
 

Summary Detail

Management's 
Discussion & 

Analysis

Basic Financial 
Statements

Required 
Supplementary 

Information

Government-Wide 
Financial Statements

Fund Financial 
Statements

Notes to the Financial 
Statements

 
 

Page 36



 

4 

HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS, continued 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020 
 
 
OVERVIEW OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 
 
Components of the Financial Section (continued) 
 
This annual report consists of three parts – Management’s Discussion and Analysis (this section), the basic financial 
statements, and required supplementary information. The three sections together provide a comprehensive overview 
of the District. The basic financial statements are comprised of two kinds of statements that present financial 
information from different perspectives: 
 

 Government-wide financial statements, which comprise the first two statements, provide both short-term 
and long-term information about the entity’s overall financial position. 
 

 Fund financial statements focus on reporting the individual parts of District operations in more detail. The 
fund financial statements comprise the remaining statements. 
 

 Governmental Funds provide a detailed short-term view that helps you determine whether there 
are more or fewer financial resources that can be spent in the near future to finance the District’s 
programs. 

 
 Fiduciary Funds report balances for which the District is a custodian or trustee of the funds, such 

as Associated Student Bodies and pension funds. 
 

The financial statements also include notes that explain some of the information in the statements and provide more 
detailed data. The basic financial statements are followed by a section of required and other supplementary 
information that further explain and support the financial statements. 
 
Government-Wide Statements 
 
The government-wide statements report information about the District as a whole using accounting methods similar 
to those used by private-sector companies. The statement of net position includes all of the government’s assets and 
liabilities. All of the current year’s revenues and expenses are accounted for in the statement of activities, regardless 
of when cash is received or paid. 
 
The two government-wide statements report the District’s net position and how it has changed. Net position is one 
way to measure the District’s financial health or position. Over time, increases or decreases in the District’s net 
position are an indicator of whether its financial health is improving or deteriorating, respectively. 
 
The government-wide financial statements of the District include governmental activities. All of the District’s basic 
services are included here, such as regular education, food service, maintenance and general administration. Local 
control formula funding and federal and state grants finance most of these activities. 
 
  

Page 37



 

5 

HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS, continued 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020 
 
 
FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE ENTITY AS A WHOLE 
 
Net Position 
 
The District’s net position was $(870,322) at June 30, 2020, as reflected in the table below. Of this amount, 
$(7,235,952) was unrestricted. Restricted net position is reported separately to show legal constraints from debt 
covenants and enabling legislation that limit the Governing Board’s ability to use that net position for day-to-day 
operations. 
 

2020 2019 Net Change
ASSETS

Current and other assets 5,259,148$     4,588,165$     670,983$        
Capital assets 6,653,569       6,369,309       284,260          

Total Assets 11,912,717     10,957,474     955,243          

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 3,646,748       2,830,221       816,527          

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities 1,757,208       590,219          1,166,989       
Long-term liabilities 14,122,604     12,844,025     1,278,579       

Total Liabilities 15,879,812     13,434,244     2,445,568       

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 549,975          489,939          60,036             

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 5,386,483       5,186,646       199,837          
Restricted 979,147          981,695          (2,548)             
Unrestricted (7,235,952)      (6,304,829)      (931,123)         

Total Net Position (870,322)$       (136,488)$       (733,834)$       

Governmental Activities

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
  

Page 38



 

6 

HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS, continued 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020 
 
 
FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE ENTITY AS A WHOLE (continued) 
 
Changes in Net Position 
 
The results of this year's operations for the District as a whole are reported in the Statement of Activities.  The table 
below takes the information from the Statement and rearranges it slightly, so you can see our total revenues, 
expenses, and special items for the year. 
 

2020 2019 Net Change
REVENUES

Program revenues
Charges for services 68,682$          49,318$          19,364$          
Operating grants and contributions 1,382,546       1,452,921       (70,375)           

General revenues
Property taxes 1,964,159       1,630,983       333,176          
Unrestricted federal and state aid 6,572,355       6,370,423       201,932          
Other 150,216          168,079          (17,863)           

Total Revenues 10,137,958     9,671,724       466,234          
EXPENSES

Instruction 5,310,653       5,971,168       (660,515)         
Instruction-related services 1,555,152       1,343,398       211,754          
Pupil services 1,286,584       1,222,649       63,935             
General administration 907,990          796,973          111,017          
Plant services 873,456          969,560          (96,104)           
Debt service 61,616             58,010             3,606               
Other outgo 876,341          1,034,742       (158,401)         

Total Expenses 10,871,792     11,396,500     (524,708)         
Change in net position (733,834)         (1,724,776)      990,942          
Net Position - Beginning (136,488)         1,588,288       (1,724,776)      
Net Position - Ending (870,322)$       (136,488)$       (733,834)$       

Governmental Activities

 
 
The cost of all our governmental activities this year was $10,871,792 (refer to the table below). The amount that our 
taxpayers ultimately financed for these activities through taxes was only $1,964,159 because the cost was paid by 
other governments and organizations who subsidized certain programs with grants and contributions. 
 
 
  

Page 39



 

7 

HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS, continued 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020 
 
 
FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE ENTITY AS A WHOLE (continued) 
 
Changes in Net Position (continued) 
 
In the table below, we have presented the net cost of each of the District's functions.  Net cost shows the financial 
burden that was placed on the District's taxpayers by each of these functions.  Providing this information allows our 
citizens to consider the cost of each function in comparison to the benefits they believe are provided by that function. 
 

2020 2019
Instruction 4,665,751$               5,277,344$               
Instruction-related services 1,391,564                 1,185,121                 
Pupil services 659,998                    675,348                    
General administration 895,284                    751,285                    
Plant services 870,010                    942,651                    
Debt service 61,616                      58,010                      
Transfers to other agencies 876,341                    1,004,502                 

Total Expenses 9,420,564$               9,894,261$               

Net Cost of Services

 
 
 
FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE DISTRICT’S MAJOR FUNDS 
 
The financial performance of the District as a whole is reflected in its governmental funds as well. As the District 
completed this year, its governmental funds reported a combined fund balance of $3,959,406, which is less than last 
year’s ending fund balance of $4,203,601. The District’s General Fund had $355,464 less in operating revenues than 
expenditures for the year ended June 30, 2020. The District’s Building Fund had $151,671 less in operating revenues 
than expenditures for the year ended June 30, 2020. 
 
 
CURRENT YEAR BUDGET 2019-2020 
 
During the fiscal year, budget revisions and appropriation transfers are presented to the Board for their approval on 
a regular basis to reflect changes to both revenues and expenditures that become known during the year. In addition, 
the Board of Education approves financial projections included with the Adopted Budget, First Interim, and Second 
Interim financial reports. The Unaudited Actuals reflect the District’s financial projections and current budget based 
on State and local financial information.  
 
 
  

Page 40



 

8 

HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS, continued 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020 
 
 
CAPITAL ASSETS AND LONG-TERM LIABILITIES 
 
Capital Assets 
 
By the end of 2019-2020 the District had invested $6,653,569 in capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation. 
 

2020 2019 Net Change
CAPITAL ASSETS

Land 315,267$        293,887$        21,380$          
Construction in progress 252,138          1,150,401       (898,263)         
Land improvements 604,362          604,362          -                       
Buildings & improvements 10,349,441     9,278,697       1,070,744       
Furniture & equipment 2,058,340       1,629,370       428,970          
Accumulated depreciation (6,925,979)      (6,587,408)      (338,571)         

Total Capital Assets 6,653,569$     6,369,309$     284,260$        

Governmental Activities

 
 
Long-Term Liabilities 
 
At year-end, the District had $14,122,604 in long-term liabilities, a 9.95% increase from last year – as shown in the 
table below. (More detailed information about the District’s long-term liabilities is presented in footnotes to the financial 
statements.) 
 

2020 2019 Net Change
LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

Total general obligation bonds 2,687,734$     2,768,326$     (80,592)$         
Capital leases 13,344             -                       13,344             
Early retirement incentive 442,831          525,610          (82,779)           
Compensated absences 39,761             34,918             4,843               
Total OPEB liability 2,511,352       1,139,051       1,372,301       
Net pension liability 8,847,000       8,534,686       312,314          
Less: current portion of long-term liabilities (419,418)         (158,566)         (260,852)         

Total Long-term Liabilities 14,122,604$   12,844,025$   1,278,579$     

Governmental Activities

 
 
 
ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR’S BUDGET AND RATES 
 
At the time these financial statements were prepared and audited, the District was aware of several circumstances 
that could affect its future financial health. 
 
According to the UCLA Anderson Forecast, the U.S. economy is in a "depression-like crisis" and it will take at least 
three years before its GDP and unemployment rate return to the levels it saw before the COVID-19 pandemic struck.  
Between February 2020 and April 2020, California lost 2.56 million nonfarm payroll jobs, a 15% drop that is nearly 
double the job loss during the Great Recession in 2008 and 2009.     
 
Fiscal policy for the funding of public education changes annually based on fluctuations in State revenues.  Governor 
Gavin Newsom and the State Legislature provided resources and support beyond the Proposition 98 requirement in 
2020–21, giving one-time federal resources and pension rate relief and promising more than the minimum guarantee 
in 2021–22. 

Page 41



 

9 

HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS, continued 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020 
 
 
ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR’S BUDGET AND RATES (continued) 
 
Landmark legislation passed in Year 2013 reformed California school district finance by creating the Local Control 
Funding Formula (LCFF).   The LCFF is designed to provide a flexible funding mechanism that links student 
achievement to state funding levels.  The LCFF provides a per-pupil base grant amount, by grade span, that is 
augmented by supplemental funding for targeted student groups in low income brackets, those that are English 
language learners and foster youth.   
 
Factors related to LCFF that the District is monitoring include:  (1) estimates of funding in the next budget year and 
beyond; (2) the Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP) that aims to link student accountability measurements 
to funding allocations; (3) ensuring the integrity of reporting student data through the California Longitudinal Pupil 
Achievement Data System (CALPADs); and, (4) meeting annual compliance and audit requirements. 
 
The District participates in state employee pensions plans, California State Teachers’ Retirement System (CalSTRS) 
and California Public Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS) and both are underfunded.  The District’s 
proportionate share of the liability is reported in the Statement of Net Position as of June 30, 2020.  The amount of 
the liability is material to the financial position of the District.  In response to the ongoing pandemic, the 2020-21 State 
Budget reduced employer contribution rates in 2020–21 and 2021–22.  This will reduce the CalSTRS employer rate 
from 18.4% to approximately 16.15% in 2020–21 and from 18.2% to 16.02% in 2021–22.  The CalPERS employer 
contribution rate will be reduced from CalPERS recently set rate for 2020–21 of 22.68% to 20.7% and 2021–22 
estimated rate of 24.6% to 22.84%.  Despite this reduction in the planned rate increases, the projected increased 
pension costs to school employers remain a significant fiscal factor. 
 
Enrollment can fluctuate due to factors such as population growth, competition from private, parochial, inter-district 
transfers in or out, economic conditions and housing values.  Losses in enrollment will cause a school district to lose 
operating revenues without necessarily permitting the district to make adjustments in fixed operating costs. 
 
On March 27, 2020, the Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security Act (CARES Act) was signed into law.  The 
CARES Act provides California K-12 education with $1.65 billion in Elementary and Secondary School Emergency 
Relief (ESSER) Funds, $355 million in Governor’s Emergency Education Relief (GEER) Funds, and $4.4 billion in 
Coronavirus Relief Funds (CRF).  Collectively, GEER Funds, CRF, and $540 million in state General Fund (GF) 
contributions are known as Learning Loss Mitigation Funding (LLMF).  CARES Act funds will be apportioned in 2020-
21, however, ESSER and GEER are to be used on eligible expenditures beginning March 13, 2020 through September 
30, 2022, GF is to be used on eligible expenditures beginning March 1, 2020 through June 30, 2021, and CRF is to 
be used on eligible expenditures beginning March 1, 2020 through December 30, 2020. On December 27, 2020, the 
President signed the Consolidated Appropriations Act which extended the CRF spending deadline to December 30, 
2021. 
 
All of these factors were considered in preparing the District’s budget for the 2020-21 fiscal year. 
 
 
CONTACTING THE DISTRICT’S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT 
 
This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, students, and investors and creditors with a general 
overview of the District’s finances and to show the District’s accountability for the money it receives. If you have 
questions about this report or need any additional financial information, contact the District’s Business Office, 
Hamilton Unified School District, 620 Canal Street, PO Box 488; Hamilton City, CA 95951. 
 

Page 42



 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 

10 

HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 
JUNE 30, 2020 
 
 

Governmental
Activities

ASSETS
Cash and investments 3,857,170$              
Accounts receivable 1,397,233                
Inventory 4,745                        
Capital assets, not depreciated 567,405                   
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation 6,086,164                

Total Assets 11,912,717              

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 
Deferred outflows related to pensions 2,383,079                
Deferred outflows related to OPEB 1,263,669                

Total Deferred Outflows of Resources 3,646,748                

LIABILITIES
Deficit cash 21,944                     
Accrued liabilities 1,061,541                
Unearned revenue 254,305                   
Long-term liabilities, current portion 419,418                   
Long-term liabilities, non-current portion 14,122,604              

Total Liabilities 15,879,812              

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 
Deferred inflows related to pensions 549,975                   

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 549,975                   

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 5,386,483                
Restricted:

Capital projects 184,004                   
Debt service 450,960                   
Educational programs 260,525                   
All others 83,658                     

Unrestricted (7,235,952)               
Total Net Position (870,322)$                 

 
 

 

Page 43



 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 

11 

HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020 
 
 

Operating
Charges for Grants and Governmental

Expenses Services Contributions Activities
GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES

Instruction 5,310,653$              35,754$                   609,148$                 (4,665,751)$            
Instruction-related services

Instructional supervision and administration 2,336                        -                                -                                (2,336)                      
Instructional library, media, and technology 333,785                   19,618                     2,932                        (311,235)                  
School site administration 1,219,031                377                           140,661                   (1,077,993)               

Pupil services
Home-to-school transportation 187,274                   739                           165,032                   (21,503)                    
Food services 590,503                   12,159                     434,121                   (144,223)                  
All other pupil services 508,807                   -                                14,535                     (494,272)                  

General administration
All other general administration 907,990                   33                             12,673                     (895,284)                  

Plant services 873,456                   2                               3,444                        (870,010)                  
Interest on long-term debt 61,616                     -                                -                                (61,616)                    
Other outgo 876,341                   -                                -                                (876,341)                  

Total Governmental Activities 10,871,792$            68,682$                   1,382,546$              (9,420,564)               
General revenues

Taxes and subventions
Property taxes, levied for general purposes 1,618,406                
Property taxes, levied for debt service 345,753                   
Federal and state aid not restricted for specific purposes 6,572,355                

Interest and investment earnings 97,463                     
Interagency revenues 14,269                     
Miscellaneous 38,484                     

Subtotal, General Revenue 8,686,730                
CHANGE IN NET POSITION (733,834)                  
Net Position - Beginning (136,488)                  
Net Position - Ending (870,322)$                

Function/Programs

Net (Expenses)
Revenues and

Changes in
Program Revenues Net Position

 
 
 

Page 44



 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 

12 

HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
BALANCE SHEET 
JUNE 30, 2020 
 

General Fund Building Fund

Non-Major 
Governmental 

Funds

Total 
Governmental 

Funds
ASSETS

Cash and investments 1,538,948$              1,433,916$              884,306$                 3,857,170$              
Accounts receivable 1,248,665                14,193                     134,375                   1,397,233                
Due from other funds 19,118                     -                                874                           19,992                     
Stores inventory -                                -                                4,745                        4,745                        

Total Assets 2,806,731$              1,448,109$              1,024,300$              5,279,140$              

LIABILITIES
Deficit cash -$                              -$                              21,944$                   21,944$                   
Accrued liabilities 997,546                   14,117                     11,830                     1,023,493                
Due to other funds 41                             -                                19,951                     19,992                     
Unearned revenue 253,907                   -                                398                           254,305                   

Total Liabilities 1,251,494                14,117                     54,123                     1,319,734                

FUND BALANCES
Nonspendable 10,000                     -                                4,745                        14,745                     
Restricted 119,021                   1,433,992                898,174                   2,451,187                
Committed -                                -                                67,258                     67,258                     
Assigned 654,573                   -                                -                                654,573                   
Unassigned 771,643                   -                                -                                771,643                   

Total Fund Balances 1,555,237                1,433,992                970,177                   3,959,406                
Total Liabilities and Fund Balances 2,806,731$              1,448,109$              1,024,300$              5,279,140$               

 
 
 

 

Page 45



 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 

13 

HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET TO THE STATEMENT OF NET 
POSITION 
JUNE 30, 2020 
 
 
Total Fund Balance - Governmental Funds 3,959,406$         

Capital assets: 

Capital assets 13,579,548$       
Accumulated depreciation (6,925,979)          6,653,569            

Unmatured interest on long-term debt: 

(38,048)                

Long-term liabilities:

Total general obligation bonds 2,687,734$         
Capital leases 13,344                 
Early retirement incentive 442,831               
Compensated absences 39,761                 
Total OPEB liability 2,511,352            
Net pension liability 8,847,000            (14,542,022)        

Deferred outflows and inflows of resources relating to pensions:

Deferred outflows of resources related to pensions 2,383,079$         
Deferred inflows of resources related to pensions (549,975)             1,833,104            

Deferred outflows and inflows of resources relating to OPEB:

Deferred outflows of resources related to OPEB 1,263,669$         1,263,669            

Total Net Position - Governmental Activities (870,322)$           

Amounts reported for assets and liabilities for governmental activities in the statement of net position 
are different from amounts reported in governmental funds because:

In governmental funds, only current assets are reported. In the statement of net position, all
assets are reported, including capital assets and accumulated depreciation:

In governmental funds, interest on long-term debt is not recognized until the period in which it
matures and is paid. In the government-wide statement of activities, it is recognized in the
period that it is incurred. The additional liability for unmatured interest owing at the end of the
period was:

In governmental funds, only current liabilities are reported. In the statement of net position, all
liabilities, including long-term liabilities, are reported. Long-term liabilities relating to
governmental activities consist of:

In governmental funds, deferred outflows and inflows of resources relating to pensions are not
reported because they are applicable to future periods. In the statement of net position,
deferred outflows and inflows of resources relating to pensions are reported.

In governmental funds, deferred outflows and inflows of resources relating to OPEB are not
reported because they are applicable to future periods. In the statement of net position,
deferred outflows and inflows of resources relating to OPEB are reported.

 
 
 

Page 46



 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 

14 

HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020 
 

General Fund Building Fund

Non-Major 
Governmental 

Funds

Total 
Governmental 

Funds
REVENUES

LCFF sources 7,839,810$              -$                              53,000$                   7,892,810$              
Federal sources 237,411                   -                                421,413                   658,824                   
Other state sources 910,013                   -                                379,198                   1,289,211                
Other local sources 211,771                   42,190                     389,437                   643,398                   

Total Revenues 9,199,005                42,190                     1,243,048                10,484,243              

EXPENDITURES
Current

Instruction 4,885,743                -                                233,246                   5,118,989                
Instruction-related services

Instructional supervision and administration 2,336                        -                                -                                2,336                        
Instructional library, media, and technology 276,375                   -                                -                                276,375                   
School site administration 1,010,613                -                                103,418                   1,114,031                

Pupil services
Home-to-school transportation 281,654                   -                                -                                281,654                   
Food services 14,956                     -                                476,492                   491,448                   
All other pupil services 474,378                   -                                -                                474,378                   

General administration
All other general administration 758,018                   -                                8,557                        766,575                   

Plant services 969,963                   -                                24,582                     994,545                   
Facilities acquisition and maintenance -                                193,861                   -                                193,861                   
Transfers to other agencies 880,433                   -                                -                                880,433                   

Debt service
Principal -                                -                                76,500                     76,500                     
Interest and other -                                -                                70,657                     70,657                     

Total Expenditures 9,554,469                193,861                   993,452                   10,741,782              
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues

Over Expenditures (355,464)                  (151,671)                  249,596                   (257,539)                  
Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Other sources 13,344                     -                                -                                13,344                     
Net Financing Sources (Uses) 13,344                     -                                -                                13,344                     

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (342,120)                  (151,671)                  249,596                   (244,195)                  
Fund Balance - Beginning 1,897,357                1,585,663                720,581                   4,203,601                
Fund Balance - Ending 1,555,237$              1,433,992$              970,177$                 3,959,406$               

 
 
 

  

Page 47



 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 

15 

HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, 
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020 
 
 
Net Change in Fund Balances - Governmental Funds (244,195)$                 

Capital outlay:

Expenditures for capital outlay: 637,901$                 
Depreciation expense: (353,641)                  284,260                     

Debt service:

76,500                       

Debt proceeds:

(13,344)                      

Unmatured interest on long-term debt:

9,041                         

Compensated absences:

(4,843)                        

Other expenditures relating to prior periods:

82,779                       

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are different from
amounts reported in governmental funds because:

In governmental funds, the costs of capital assets are reported as expenditures in the period
when the assets are acquired. In the statement of activities, costs of capital assets are
allocated over their estimated useful lives as depreciation expense. The difference between
capital outlay expenditures and depreciation expense for the period is:

In governmental funds, repayments of long-term debt are reported as expenditures. In the
government-wide statements, repayments of long-term debt are reported as reductions of
liabilities.  Expenditures for repayment of the principal portion of long-term debt were:

In governmental funds, proceeds from debt are recognized as Other Financing Sources. In the
government-wide statements, proceeds from debt are reported as increases to liabilities.
Amounts recognized in governmental funds as proceeds from debt, net of issue premium or
discount, were:

In governmental funds, interest on long-term debt is recognized in the period that it becomes
due. In the government-wide statement of activities, it is recognized in the period it is incurred.
Unmatured interest owing at the end of the period, less matured interest paid during the period
but owing from the prior period, was:

In governmental funds, compensated absences are measured by the amounts paid during the
period. In the statement of activities, compensated absences are measured by the amount
earned. The difference between compensated absences paid and compensated absences
earned, was:

Certain expenditures recognized in governmental funds relate to prior periods. Typical
examples are payments on structured legal settlements or retirement incentives paid over
time. These expenditures are recognized in the government-wide statement of activities in the
period in which the obligations were first incurred, so they must not be recognized again in the
current period.  Expenditures relating to prior periods were:  

 
(continued on next page) 

 

Page 48



 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 

16 

HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, 
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES, continued 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020 
 
 
Postemployment benefits other than pensions (OPEB):

(203,945)                    

Pensions:

(724,179)                    

Amortization of debt issuance premium or discount:

4,092                         

Change in Net Position of Governmental Activities (733,834)$                 

In governmental funds, OPEB expenses are recognized when employer OPEB contributions
are made. In the statement of activities, OPEB expenses are recognized on the accrual basis.
This year, the difference between OPEB expenses and actual employer OPEB contributions
was:

In governmental funds, pension costs are recognized when employer contributions are made.
In the government-wide statement of activities, pension costs are recognized on the accrual
basis. This year, the difference between accrual-basis pension costs and employer
contributions was:

In governmental funds, if debt is issued at a premium or at a discount, the premium or discount
is recognized as an Other Financing Source or an Other Financing Use in the period it is
incurred. In the government-wide statements, the premium or discount is amortized over the
life of the debt.  Amortization of premium or discount for the period is:

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 49



 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 

17 

HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
FIDUCIARY FUNDS 
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 
JUNE 30, 2020 
 
 

Private-Purpose 
Trust Fund

Student Body 
Fund

ASSETS
Cash and investments 31,040$                   143,589$                 

Total Assets 31,040                     143,589$                 

LIABILITIES
Due to student groups -                                143,589$                 

Total Liabilities -                                143,589$                 

NET POSITION
Restricted 31,040                     

Total Net Position 31,040$                   

Trust Fund Agency Fund

 
 
 

Page 50



 

18 

HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
FIDUCIARY FUNDS 
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET POSITION 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020 
 
 

 Private-Purpose 
Trust Fund 

ADDITIONS
Contributions 6,644$                     

Total Additions 6,644                        

DEDUCTIONS
Other trust activities 6,700                        

Total Deductions 6,700                        

CHANGE IN NET POSITION (56)                            
Net Position - Beginning 31,096                     
Net Position - Ending 31,040$                   

Trust Fund

 
 
 
  

Page 51



 

19 

HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2020 
 
 
NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 
A. Financial Reporting Entity 

 
The Hamilton Unified School District (the “District”) accounts for its financial transactions in accordance with the 
policies and procedures of the Department of Education's California School Accounting Manual. The accounting 
policies of the District conform to generally accepted accounting principles as prescribed by the Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) and the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants (AICPA). 
 
The District operates under a locally elected Board form of government and provides educational services to 
grades K-12 as mandated by the state. A reporting entity is comprised of the primary government, component 
units, and other organizations that are included to ensure the financial statements are not misleading. The primary 
government of the District consists of all funds, departments and agencies that are not legally separate from the 
District. For the District, this includes general operations, food service, and student-related activities. 

 
B. Component Units 

 
Component units are legally separate organizations for which the District is financially accountable. Component 
units may also include organizations that are fiscally dependent on the District in that the District approves their 
budget, the issuance of their debt or the levying of their taxes. In addition, component units are other legally 
separate organizations for which the District is not financially accountable but the nature and significance of the 
organization’s relationship with the District is such that exclusion would cause the District’s financial statements 
to be misleading or incomplete. The District has no such component units. 

 
C. Basis of Presentation  

 
Government-Wide Statements. The statement of net position and the statement of activities display information 
about the primary government (the District). These statements include the financial activities of the overall 
government, except for fiduciary activities. Eliminations have been made to minimize the double-counting of 
internal activities. Governmental activities generally are financed through taxes, intergovernmental revenue, and 
other non-exchange transactions.  
 
The statement of activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program revenue for each 
function of the District’s governmental activities. Direct expenses are those that are specifically associated with a 
program or function and, therefore, are clearly identifiable to a particular function. Indirect expense allocations 
that have been made in the funds have been reserved for the statement of activities. Program revenues include 
charges paid by the recipients of the goods or services offered by the programs and grants and contributions 
that are restricted to meeting of operational or capital requirements of a particular program. Revenues that are 
not classified as program revenues are presented as general revenues. The comparison of program revenues 
and expenses identifies the extent to which each program or business segment is self-financing or draws from 
the general revenues of the District. 

 

Page 52



 

20 

HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, continued 
JUNE 30, 2020 
 
 
NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
 
C. Basis of Presentation (continued) 

 
Fund Financial Statements. The fund financial statements provide information about the District’s funds, 
including its fiduciary funds. Separate statements for each fund category – governmental and fiduciary – are 
presented. The emphasis of fund financial statements is on major governmental funds, each displayed in a 
separate column. All remaining governmental funds are aggregated and reported as non-major funds. 
 
Governmental funds are used to account for activities that are governmental in nature. Governmental activities 
are typically tax-supported and include education of pupils, operation of food service and child development 
programs, construction and maintenance of school facilities, and repayment of long-term debt. 
 
Fiduciary funds are used to account for assets held by the District in a trustee or agency capacity for others that 
cannot be used to support the District's own programs. 
 
Major Governmental Funds 
 
General Fund: The General Fund is the main operating fund of the District. It is used to account for all activities 
except those that are required to be accounted for in another fund. In keeping with the minimum number of funds 
principle, all of the District's activities are reported in the General Fund unless there is a compelling reason to 
account for an activity in another fund. A District may have only one General Fund. 
 
Building Fund: This fund exists primarily to account separately for proceeds from the sale of bonds (Education 
Code Section 15146) and may not be used for any purposes other than those for which the bonds were issued. 
Other authorized revenues to the Building Fund are proceeds from the sale or lease-with-option-to-purchase of 
real property (Education Code Section 17462) and revenue from rentals and leases of real property specifically 
authorized for deposit into the fund by the governing board (Education Code Section 41003). 
 
Non-Major Governmental Funds 
 
Special Revenue Funds: Special revenue funds are used to account for and report the proceeds of specific 
revenue sources that are restricted or committed to expenditures for specified purposes other than debt service 
or capital projects. The District maintains the following special revenue funds: 

  
Adult Education Fund: This fund is used to account separately for federal, state, and local revenues for adult 
education programs. Money in this fund shall be expended for adult education purposes only. Moneys 
received for programs other than adult education shall not be expended for adult education (Education Code 
Sections 52616[b] and 52501.5[a]). 

 
Child Development Fund: This fund is used to account separately for federal, state, and local revenues to 
operate child development programs. All moneys received by the District for, or from the operation of, child 
development services covered under the Child Care and Development Services Act (Education Code Section 
8200 et seq.) shall be deposited into this fund. The moneys may be used only for expenditures for the 
operation of child development programs. The costs incurred in the maintenance and operation of child 
development services shall be paid from this fund, with accounting to reflect specific funding sources 
(Education Code Section 8328). 

 
 
  

Page 53



 

21 

HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, continued 
JUNE 30, 2020 
 
 
NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

 
C. Basis of Presentation (continued) 

 
Non-Major Governmental Funds (continued) 
 
Special Revenue Funds (continued): 

 
Cafeteria Special Revenue Fund: This fund is used to account separately for federal, state, and local 
resources to operate the food service program (Education Code Sections 38090–38093). The Cafeteria 
Special Revenue Fund shall be used only for those expenditures authorized by the governing board as 
necessary for the operation of the District's food service program (Education Code Sections 38091 and 
38100). 
 
Deferred Maintenance Fund: This fund is used to account separately for state apportionments and the 
District's contributions for deferred maintenance purposes (Education Code Sections 17582–17587). In 
addition, whenever the state funds provided pursuant to Education Code Sections 17584 and 17585 
(apportionments from the State Allocation Board) are insufficient to fully match the local funds deposited in 
this fund, the governing board of a school district may transfer the excess local funds deposited in this fund 
to any other expenditure classifications in other funds of the District (Education Code Sections 17582 and 
17583).  
 

Capital Project Funds: Capital project funds are established to account for financial resources to be used for the 
acquisition or construction of major capital facilities (other than those financed by proprietary funds and trust 
funds). 

 
Capital Facilities Fund: This fund is used primarily to account separately for moneys received from fees 
levied on developers or other agencies as a condition of approving a development (Education Code Sections 
17620–17626). The authority for these levies may be county/city ordinances (Government Code Sections 
65970–65981) or private agreements between the District and the developer. Interest earned in the Capital 
Facilities Fund is restricted to that fund (Government Code Section 66006). 

 
Debt Service Funds: Debt service funds are established to account for the accumulation of resources for and 
the payment of principal and interest on general long-term debt. 

 
Bond Interest and Redemption Fund: This fund is used for the repayment of bonds issued for the District 
(Education Code Sections 15125–15262). The board of supervisors of the county issues the bonds. The 
proceeds from the sale of the bonds are deposited in the county treasury to the Building Fund of the District. 
Any premiums or accrued interest received from the sale of the bonds must be deposited in the Bond Interest 
and Redemption Fund of the District. The county auditor maintains control over the District's Bond Interest 
and Redemption Fund. The principal and interest on the bonds must be paid by the county treasurer from 
taxes levied by the county auditor-controller. 

 
  

Page 54



 

22 

HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, continued 
JUNE 30, 2020 
 
 
NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

 
C. Basis of Presentation (continued) 
 

Non-Major Governmental Funds (continued) 
 
Fiduciary Funds 
 
Trust and Agency Funds: Trust and agency funds are used to account for assets held in a trustee or agent 
capacity for others that cannot be used to support the District's own programs. The key distinction between trust 
and agency funds is that trust funds are subject to a trust agreement that affects the degree of management 
involvement and the length of time that the resources are held.  
 

Private-Purpose Trust Fund: The Private-Purpose Trust Fund is a scholarship trust fund, and consists only 
of accounts such as cash and balancing net position accounts.  
 
Student Body Fund: The Student Body Fund is an agency fund and, therefore, consists only of accounts 
such as cash and balancing liability accounts, such as due to student groups. The student body itself 
maintains its own general fund, which accounts for the transactions of that entity in raising and expending 
money to promote the general welfare, morale, and educational experiences of the student body (Education 
Code Sections 48930–48938).  

 
D. Basis of Accounting – Measurement Focus 

 
Government-Wide and Fiduciary Financial Statements 
The government-wide and fiduciary fund financial statements are reported using the economic resources 
measurement focus. The government-wide and fiduciary fund financial statements are reported using the accrual 
basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded at the time liabilities are 
incurred, regardless of when the related cash flows take place.  
 
Net Position equals assets and deferred outflows of resources minus liabilities and deferred inflows of resources. 
Net investment in capital assets consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by the 
outstanding balances of any borrowings used for the acquisition, construction or improvement of those assets. 
The net position should be reported as restricted when constraints placed on its use are either externally imposed 
by creditors (such as through debt covenants), grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments 
or imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. The net position restricted for other 
activities results from special revenue funds and the restrictions on their use. 
 
Governmental Funds 
Basis of accounting refers to when revenues and expenditures are recognized in the accounts and reported in 
the financial statements. Governmental funds use the modified accrual basis of accounting. 
 

  

Page 55



 

23 

HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, continued 
JUNE 30, 2020 
 
 
NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

 
D. Basis of Accounting – Measurement Focus (continued) 

 
Revenues – Exchange and Non-Exchange Transactions 
Revenue resulting from exchange transactions, in which each party gives and receives essentially equal value, is 
recorded under the accrual basis when the exchange takes place. On a modified accrual basis, revenue is 
recorded in the fiscal year in which the resources are measurable and become available. “Available” means the 
resources will be collected within the current fiscal year or are expected to be collected soon enough thereafter 
to be used to pay liabilities of the current fiscal year. Generally, “available” means collectible within the current 
period or within 60 days after year-end. However, to achieve comparability of reporting among California school 
districts and so as not to distort normal revenue patterns, with specific respect to reimbursements grants and 
corrections to State-aid apportionments, the California Department of Education has defined available for school 
districts as collectible within one year. 
 
Non-exchange transactions, in which the District receives value without directly giving equal value in return, 
include property taxes, grants, and entitlements. Under the accrual basis, revenue from property taxes is 
recognized in the fiscal year for which the taxes are levied. Revenue from the grants and entitlements is 
recognized in the fiscal year in which all eligibility requirements have been satisfied. 
 
Eligibility requirements include timing requirements, which specify the year when the resources are to be used 
or the fiscal year when use is first permitted; matching requirements, in which the District must provide local 
resources to be used for a specific purpose; and expenditure requirements, in which the resources are provided 
to the District on a reimbursement basis. Under the modified accrual basis, revenue from non-exchange 
transactions must also be available before it can be recognized. 
 
Unearned Revenue 
Unearned revenue arises when potential revenue does not meet both the "measurable" and "available" criteria 
for recognition in the current period or when resources are received by the District prior to the incurrence of 
qualifying expenditures. In subsequent periods, when both revenue recognition criteria are met, or when the 
District has a legal claim to the resources, the liability for unearned revenue is removed from the balance sheet 
and revenue is recognized. 
 
Certain grants received that have not met eligibility requirements are recorded as unearned revenue. On the 
governmental fund financial statements, receivables that will not be collected within the available period are also 
recorded as unearned revenue. 
 
Expenses/Expenditures 
On the accrual basis of accounting, expenses are recognized at the time a liability is incurred. On the modified 
accrual basis of accounting, expenditures are generally recognized in the accounting period in which the related 
fund liability is incurred, as under the accrual basis of accounting. However, under the modified accrual basis of 
accounting, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to compensated absences and claims and 
judgments, are recorded only when payment is due. Allocations of cost, such as depreciation and amortization, 
are not recognized in the governmental funds. When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for 
use, it is the District’s policy to use restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed. 

  

Page 56



 

24 

HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, continued 
JUNE 30, 2020 
 
 
NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
 
E. Assets, Deferred Outflows of Resources, Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources, Fund Balance and Net 

Position 
 
Cash and Cash Equivalents 
The District’s cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on hand, demand deposits and short-term investments 
with original maturities of three months or less from the date of acquisition.  
 
Investments 
Investments with original maturities greater than one year are stated at fair value. Fair value is estimated based 
on quoted market prices at year-end. All investments not required to be reported at fair value are stated at cost 
or amortized cost. Fair values of investments in county and State investment pools are determined by the program 
sponsor. 
 
Inventories 
Inventories are valued at historical cost using the first-in/first-out (FIFO) method. The costs of governmental fund-
type inventories are recorded as expenditures when consumed rather than when purchased. 
 
Capital Assets 
The accounting and reporting treatment applied to the capital assets associated with a fund is determined by its 
measurement focus. Capital assets are reported in the governmental activities column of the government-wide 
statement of net position, but are not reported in the fund financial statements. 
 
Capital assets are capitalized at cost (or estimated historical cost) and updated for additions and retirements 
during the year. Donated fixed assets are recorded at their fair acquisition value as of the date received. The 
District maintains a capitalization threshold of $5,000. The District does not own any infrastructure as defined in 
GASB Statement No. 34. Improvements are capitalized; the costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not 
add to the value of the asset or materially extend an asset’s life are not capitalized. All reported capital assets, 
except for land and construction in progress, are depreciated. Improvements are depreciated over the remaining 
useful lives of the related capital assets. 
 
Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the following estimated useful lives: 

 
Asset Class Estimated Useful Life 

Buildings and Improvements 25 – 50 years 
Furniture and Equipment 15 – 20 years 

Vehicles 8 years 
  

Interfund Balances 
On fund financial statements, receivables and payables resulting from short-term interfund loans are classified as 
"Due from other funds/Due to other funds.” These amounts are eliminated in the governmental activities columns 
of the statement of net position. 
 

  

Page 57



 

25 

HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, continued 
JUNE 30, 2020 
 
 
NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
 
E. Assets, Deferred Outflows of Resources, Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources, Fund Balance and Net 

Position (continued) 
 
Compensated Absences 
Accumulated unpaid employee vacation benefits are accrued as a liability as the benefits are earned. The entire 
compensated absence liability is reported on the government-wide financial statements. For governmental funds, 
the current portion of unpaid compensated absences is recognized upon the occurrence of relevant events such 
as employee resignations and retirements that occur prior to year-end that have not yet been paid with 
expendable available financial resource. These amounts are recorded in the fund from which the employees who 
have accumulated leave are paid.  
 
Accumulated sick leave benefits are not recognized as liabilities of the District. The District's policy is to record 
sick leave as an operating expense in the period taken because such benefits do not vest, nor is payment 
probable; however, unused sick leave is added to the creditable service period for calculation of retirement 
benefits when the employee retires. 
 
Accrued Liabilities and Long-Term Obligations 
All payables, accrued liabilities, and long-term obligations are reported in the government-wide financial 
statements. In general, governmental fund payables and accrued liabilities that, once incurred, are paid in a timely 
manner and in full from current financial resources are reported as obligations of the funds. 

 
Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions (OPEB) 
For purposes of measuring the total OPEB liability, deferred outflows of resources related to OPEB and deferred 
inflows of resources related to OPEB, and OPEB expense have been determined by an independent actuary. For 
this purpose, benefit payments are recognized when currently due and payable in accordance with the benefit 
terms. 
 
Generally accepted accounting principles require the reported results must pertain to liability and asset 
information within certain defined timeframes. For this report, the following timeframes are used: 
 
   Valuation Date  July 1, 2019 
   Measurement Date June 30, 2019 
   Measurement Period  July 1, 2018 to June 30, 2019 
 
Gains and losses related to changes in total OPEB liability are recognized in OPEB expense systematically over 
time. The first amortized amounts are recognized in OPEB expense for the year the gain or loss occurs. The 
remaining amounts are categorized as deferred outflows and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB and 
are to be recognized in future OPEB expense. The amortization period differs depending on the source of gain 
or loss. The difference between projected and actual earnings is amortized on a straight-line basis over five years. 
All other amounts are amortized on a straight-line basis over the average expected remaining service lives of all 
members that are provided with benefits (active, inactive, and retired) at the beginning of the measurement 
period. 
 
Premiums and Discounts 
In the government-wide financial statements, long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the statement of 
net position. Bond premiums and discounts are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the 
straight-line method. 
 

  

Page 58



 

26 

HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, continued 
JUNE 30, 2020 
 
 
NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
 
E. Assets, Deferred Outflows of Resources, Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources, Fund Balance and Net 

Position (continued) 
 

Deferred Outflows/Deferred Inflows of Resources 
In addition to assets, the District will sometimes report a separate section for deferred outflows of resources. This 
separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of resources, represents a consumption of net position 
that applies to a future period and so will not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) 
until then.  
 
In addition to liabilities, the District will sometimes report a separate section for deferred inflows of resources. 
This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources, represents an acquisition of net position 
that applies to a future period and so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. 

 
Pensions 
For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of 
resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the defined 
benefit pension plans (the Plans) of the California State Teachers’ Retirement System (CalSTRS) and the 
California Public Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS) and additions to/deductions from the Plans’ fiduciary 
net position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by the Plans. For this purpose, benefit 
payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance 
with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value. 
 
Fund Balance 
Fund balance is divided into five classifications based primarily on the extent to which the District is bound to 
observe constraints imposed upon the use of the resources in the governmental funds. The classifications are as 
follows: 
 
Nonspendable - The nonspendable fund balance classification reflects amounts that are not in spendable form. 
Examples include inventory, prepaid items, the long-term portion of loans receivable, and nonfinancial assets held 
for resale. This classification also reflects amounts that are in spendable form but that are legally or contractually 
required to remain intact, such as the principal of a permanent endowment. 
 
Restricted - The restricted fund balance classification reflects amounts subject to externally imposed and legally 
enforceable constraints. Such constraints may be imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or 
regulations of other governments, or may be imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling 
legislation.  
 
Committed - The committed fund balance classification reflects amounts subject to internal constraints self-
imposed by formal action of the Governing Board. The constraints giving rise to committed fund balance must be 
imposed no later than the end of the reporting period. The actual amounts may be determined subsequent to that 
date but prior to the issuance of the financial statements. In contrast to restricted fund balance, committed fund 
balance may be redirected by the government to other purposes as long as the original constraints are removed 
or modified in the same manner in which they were imposed, that is, by the same formal action of the Governing 
Board. 

  

Page 59



 

27 

HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, continued 
JUNE 30, 2020 
 
 
NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
 
E. Assets, Deferred Outflows of Resources, Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources, Fund Balance and Net 

Position (continued) 
 
Fund Balance (continued) 
Assigned - The assigned fund balance classification reflects amounts that the government intends to be used for 
specific purposes. Assignments may be established either by the Governing Board or by a designee of the 
governing body, and are subject to neither the restricted nor committed levels of constraint. In contrast to the 
constraints giving rise to committed fund balance, constraints giving rise to assigned fund balance are not 
required to be imposed, modified, or removed by formal action of the Governing Board. The action does not 
require the same level of formality and may be delegated to another body or official. Additionally, the assignment 
need not be made before the end of the reporting period, but rather may be made any time prior to the issuance 
of the financial statements.  

 
Unassigned - In the General Fund only, the unassigned fund balance classification reflects the residual balance 
that has not been assigned to other funds and that is not restricted, committed, or assigned to specific purposes. 
However, deficits in any fund, including the General Fund that cannot be eliminated by reducing or eliminating 
amounts assigned to other purposes are reported as negative unassigned fund balance.  

 
The District applies restricted resources first when expenditures are incurred for purposes for which either 
restricted or unrestricted (committed, assigned and unassigned) amounts are available. Similarly, within 
unrestricted fund balance, committed amounts are reduced first followed by assigned, and then unassigned 
amounts when expenditures are incurred for purposes for which amounts in any of the unrestricted fund balance 
classifications could be used.  
 

F. Interfund Activity 
 
Exchange transactions between funds are reported as revenues in the seller funds and as expenditures/expenses 
in the purchaser funds. Flows of cash or goods from one fund to another without a requirement for repayment 
are reported as interfund transfers. Interfund transfers are reported as other financing sources/uses in 
governmental funds. Repayments from funds responsible for particular expenditures/expenses to the funds that 
initially paid for them are not presented in the financial statements. Interfund transfers are eliminated in the 
governmental activities columns of the statement of activities. 

 
G. Estimates 

 
The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts 
reported in the financial statements and accompanying notes. Actual results may differ from those estimates. 
 

H. Budgetary Data 
 
The budgetary process is prescribed by provisions of the California Education Code and requires the governing 
board to hold a public hearing and adopt an operating budget no later than July 1 of each year. The District 
governing board satisfied these requirements. The adopted budget is subject to amendment throughout the year 
to give consideration to unanticipated revenue and expenditures primarily resulting from events unknown at the 
time of budget adoption with the legal restriction that expenditures cannot exceed appropriations by major object 
account. 
 

Page 60



 

28 

HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, continued 
JUNE 30, 2020 
 
 
NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
 
H. Budgetary Data (continued) 

 
The amounts reported as the original budgeted amounts in the budgetary statements reflect the amounts when 
the original appropriations were adopted. The amounts reported as the final budgeted amounts in the budgetary 
statements reflect the amounts after all budget amendments have been accounted for. For purposes of the 
budget, on-behalf payments have not been included as revenue and expenditures as required under generally 
accepted accounting principles. 

 
I. Property Tax 
 

Secured property taxes attach as an enforceable lien on property as of January 1. Taxes are payable in two 
installments on November 1 and February 1 and become delinquent on December 10 and April 10, respectively. 
Unsecured property taxes are payable in one installment on or before August 31. The County Auditor-Controller 
bills and collects the taxes on behalf of the District. Local property tax revenues are recorded when received. 
 

J. New Accounting Pronouncements 
 
GASB Statement No. 84 – In January 2017, GASB issued Statement No. 84, Fiduciary Activities.  This standard’s 
primary objective is to improve guidance regarding the identification of fiduciary activities for accounting and 
financial reporting purposes and how those activities should be reported.  The statement was postponed by GASB 
Statement No. 95 and is effective for periods beginning after December 15, 2019.  The District has not yet 
determined the impact on the financial statements. 
 
GASB Statement No. 87 – In June 2017, GASB issued Statement No. 87, Leases.  This standard’s primary 
objective is to better meet the information needs of financial statement users by improving accounting and 
financial reporting for leases by governments.  The statement was postponed by GASB Statement No. 95 and is 
effective for periods beginning after June 15, 2021. The District has not yet determined the impact on the financial 
statements. 
 
GASB Statement No. 91 – In May 2019, GASB issued Statement No. 91, Conduit Debt Obligations.  This 
standard’s primary objectives are to provide a single method of reporting conduit debt obligations by issuers and 
eliminate diversity in practice associated with (1) commitments extended by issuers, (2) arrangements associated 
with conduit debt obligations, and (3) related note disclosures.  The statement was postponed by GASB Statement 
No. 95 and is effective for periods beginning after December 15, 2021.  The District has not yet determined the 
impact on the financial statements. 

 
GASB Statement No. 92 – In January 2020, GASB issued Statement No. 92, Omnibus 2020.  This standard’s 
primary objectives are to enhance comparability in accounting and financial reporting and to improve the 
consistency of authoritative literature by addressing practice issues that have been identified during 
implementation and application of certain GASB Statements.  A portion of this statement was effective upon 
issuance, while the majority of this statement was postponed by GASB Statement No. 95 and is effective for 
periods beginning after June 15, 2021.  The District has implemented the requirements that were effective upon 
issuance but has not yet determined the impact on the financial statements for the requirements of this statement 
that are not yet effective. 

Page 61



 

29 

HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, continued 
JUNE 30, 2020 
 
 
NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

 
J. New Accounting Pronouncements (continued) 
 

GASB Statement No. 95 – In May 2020, GASB issued Statement No. 95, Postponement of the Effective Dates of 
Certain Authoritative Guidance.  This standard’s primary objective is to provide temporary relief to governments 
and other stakeholders in light of the COVID-19 pandemic by postponing the effective dates of certain provisions 
in Statements and Implementation Guides that first became effective or are scheduled to become effective for 
periods beginning after June 15, 2018, and later.  The statement is effective immediately.  The District has 
implemented GASB Statement No. 95. 

 
 
NOTE 2 – CASH AND INVESTMENTS 
 
A. Summary of Cash and Investments 

 
Governmental Fiduciary

Activities Funds
Investment in county treasury* 3,820,226$             -$                             
Cash on hand and in banks 5,000                       174,629                   
Cash in revolving fund 10,000                     -                               

Total 3,835,226$             174,629$                

*Amount does not include deficit cash of $21,944.  
 
B. Policies and Practices 

 
The District is authorized under California Government Code to make direct investments in local agency bonds, 
notes, or warrants within the state; U.S. Treasury instruments; registered state warrants or treasury notes; 
securities of the U.S. Government, or its agencies; bankers acceptances; commercial paper; certificates of deposit 
placed with commercial banks and/or savings and loan companies; repurchase or reverse repurchase 
agreements; medium term corporate notes; shares of beneficial interest issued by diversified management 
companies, certificates of participation, obligations with first priority security; collateralized mortgage obligations; 
and the County Investment Pool. 

 
Investment in County Treasury – The District maintains substantially all of its cash in the County Treasury in 
accordance with Education Code Section 41001. The Glenn County Treasurer’s pooled investments are managed 
by the County Treasurer who reports on a monthly basis to the board of supervisors. In addition, the function of 
the County Treasury Oversight Committee is to review and monitor the County’s investment policy. The 
committee membership includes the Treasurer and Tax Collector, the Auditor-Controller, Chief Administrative 
Officer, Superintendent of Schools Representative, and a public member. The fair value of the District's 
investment in the pool is based upon the District's pro-rata share of the fair value provided by the County 
Treasurer for the entire portfolio (in relation to the amortized cost of that portfolio). The balance available for 
withdrawal is based on the accounting records maintained by the County Treasurer, which is recorded on the 
amortized cost basis. 

 

Page 62



 

30 

HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, continued 
JUNE 30, 2020 
 
 
NOTE 2 – CASH AND INVESTMENTS (continued) 
 
C. General Authorizations 

 
Except for investments by trustees of debt proceeds, the authority to invest District funds deposited with the 
county treasury is delegated to the County Treasurer and Tax Collector. Additional information about the 
investment policy of the County Treasurer and Tax Collector may be obtained from its website. The table below 
identifies the investment types permitted by California Government Code. 

 

Authorized Investment Type  

Maximum 
Remaining 
Maturity  

Maximum 
Percentage of 

Portfolio  

Maximum 
Investment in 
One Issuer 

Local Agency Bonds, Notes, Warrants  5 years  None  None 
Registered State Bonds, Notes, Warrants  5 years  None  None 
U. S. Treasury Obligations  5 years  None  None 
U. S. Agency Securities  5 years  None  None 
Banker’s Acceptance  180 days  40%  30% 
Commercial Paper  270 days  25%  10% 
Negotiable Certificates of Deposit  5 years  30%  None 
Repurchase Agreements  1 year  None  None 
Reverse Repurchase Agreements  92 days  20% of base  None 
Medium-Term Corporate Notes  5 years  30%  None 
Mutual Funds  N/A  20%  10% 
Money Market Mutual Funds  N/A  20%  10% 
Mortgage Pass-Through Securities  5 years  20%  None 
County Pooled Investment Funds  N/A  None  None 
Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF)  N/A  None  None 
Joint Powers Authority Pools  N/A  None  None 

 
D. Interest Rate Risk 
 

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an investment. 
Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment, the greater the sensitivity of its fair value to changes in market 
interest rates. The District manages its exposure to interest rate risk by investing in the County Treasury. The 
District maintains a pooled investment with the County Treasury with a fair value of approximately $3,824,584 
and an amortized book value of $3,820,226.  

 
E. Credit Risk 
 

Credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to the holder of the investment. 
This is measured by the assignment of a rating by a nationally recognized statistical rating organization. The 
investments in the County Treasury are not required to be rated. As of June 30, 2020, the pooled investments in 
the County Treasury were not rated. 

 

Page 63



 

31 

HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, continued 
JUNE 30, 2020 
 
 
NOTE 2 – CASH AND INVESTMENTS (continued) 
 
F. Custodial Credit Risk – Deposits 
 

This is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the District's deposits may not be returned to it. The District does 
not have a policy for custodial credit risk for deposits. However, the California Government Code requires that a 
financial institution secure deposits made by state or local governmental units by pledging securities in an 
undivided collateral pool held by a depository regulated under state law. The market value of the pledged 
securities in the collateral pool must equal at least 110 percent of the total amount deposited by the public 
agencies. California law also allows financial institutions to secure public deposits by pledging first trust deed 
mortgage notes having a value of 150 percent of the secured public deposits and letters of credit issued by the 
Federal Home Loan Bank of San Francisco having a value of 105 percent of the secured deposits. As of June 30, 
2020, the District's bank balance was not exposed to custodial credit risk. 

 
G. Fair Value 

 
The District categorizes the fair value measurements of its investments based on the hierarchy established by 
generally accepted accounting principles. The fair value hierarchy is based on the valuation inputs used to 
measure an asset's fair value. The following provides a summary of the hierarchy used to measure fair value: 
 
Level 1 - Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets. 
 
Level 2 - Observable inputs other than Level 1 prices such as quoted prices for similar assets in active markets, 
quoted prices for identical or similar assets in markets that are not active, or other inputs that are observable, 
either directly or indirectly. 

 
Level 3 - Unobservable inputs should be developed using the best information available under the circumstances, 
which might include the District's own data. The District should adjust that data if reasonable available information 
indicates that other market participants would use different data or certain circumstances specific to the District 
are not available to other market participants. 

 
Uncategorized - Investments in the Glenn County Treasury Investment Pool are not measured using the input 
levels above because the District's transactions are based on a stable net asset value per share. All contributions 
and redemptions are transacted at $1.00 net asset value per share. 
 
The District's fair value measurements at June 30, 2020 were as follows: 

 Uncategorized 
Investment in county treasury 3,824,584$             

Total 3,824,584$              
 

Page 64



 

32 

HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, continued 
JUNE 30, 2020 
 
 
NOTE 3 – ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 
 
Accounts receivable at June 30, 2020 consisted of the following: 

General Fund Building Fund

Non-Major 
Governmental 

Funds
Governmental 

Activities
Federal Government

Categorical aid 12,113$                   -$                              115,991$                 128,104$                 
State Government

Apportionment 1,153,082                -                                -                                1,153,082                
Categorical aid 3,476                        -                                8,201                        11,677                     
Lottery 36,015                     -                                -                                36,015                     

Local Government
Other local sources 43,979                     14,193                     10,183                     68,355                     

Total 1,248,665$              14,193$                   134,375$                 1,397,233$               
 
 
NOTE 4 – CAPITAL ASSETS 
 
Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2020 was as follows: 

 
Balance Balance

July 01, 2019 Additions Deletions June 30, 2020
Governmental Activities

Capital assets not being depreciated
Land 293,887$                 21,380$                   -$                              315,267$                 
Construction in progress 1,150,401                172,481                   1,070,744                252,138                   

Total Capital Assets not Being Depreciated 1,444,288                193,861                   1,070,744                567,405                   
Capital assets being depreciated

Land improvements 604,362                   -                                -                                604,362                   
Buildings & improvements 9,278,697                1,070,744                -                                10,349,441              
Furniture & equipment 1,629,370                444,040                   15,070                     2,058,340                

Total Capital Assets Being Depreciated 11,512,429              1,514,784                15,070                     13,012,143              
Less Accumulated Depreciation

Land improvements 475,780                   17,243                     -                                493,023                   
Buildings & improvements 4,912,286                287,205                   -                                5,199,491                
Furniture & equipment 1,199,342                49,193                     15,070                     1,233,465                

Total Accumulated Depreciation 6,587,408                353,641                   15,070                     6,925,979                
Governmental Activities 

Capital Assets, net 6,369,309$              1,355,004$              1,070,744$              6,653,569$               
 

Depreciation expense is allocated to governmental functions as follows: 
 

Instruction 218,373$                 
Home-to-school transportation 64,562                     
Food services 25,367                     
All other pupil services 7,456                        
All other general administration 10,923                     
Plant services 26,960                     

Total Depreciation Expense 353,641$                  
  

Page 65



 

33 

HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, continued 
JUNE 30, 2020 
 
 
NOTE 5 – INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS 
 
Individual interfund receivable and payable balances at June 30, 2020 were as follows: 
 

Due To Other Funds General Fund

Non-Major 
Governmental 

Funds  Total 
General Fund -$                               41$                            41$                            
Non-Major Governmental Funds 19,118                       833                            19,951                       

Total 19,118$                    874$                          19,992$                    

Due from the General Fund to the Non-Major Adult Education Fund for sales tax. 41$                            
Due from the Non-Major Adult Education Fund to the General Fund for indirect costs. 8,606                         
Due from the Non-Major Adult Education Fund to the Non-Major Child Development Fund for sales tax. 816                            
Due from the Non-Major Child Development Fund to the General Fund for salaries and travel expenses. 10,512                       
Due from the Non-Major Child Development Fund to the Non-Major Cafeteria Special Revenue Fund for sales tax. 17                              

Total 19,992$                    

Due From Other Funds

 
 
 

NOTE 6 – ACCRUED LIABILITIES 
 
Accrued liabilities at June 30, 2020 consisted of the following: 

General Fund Building Fund

Non-Major 
Governmental 

Funds  District-Wide 
Governmental 

Activities
Payroll 189,705$                 -$                              6,016$                     -$                              195,721$                 
Vendors payable 499,962                   14,117                     5,814                        -                                519,893                   
Unmatured interest -                                -                                -                                38,048                     38,048                     
Due to grantor government 307,879                   -                                -                                -                                307,879                   

Total 997,546$                 14,117$                   11,830$                   38,048$                   1,061,541$               
 
 
NOTE 7 – UNEARNED REVENUE 
 
Unearned revenue at June 30, 2020 consisted of the following: 

General Fund

Non-Major 
Governmental 

Funds
Governmental 

Activities
Federal sources 15,680$                   -$                              15,680$                   
State categorical sources 238,227                   398                           238,625                   

Total 253,907$                 398$                         254,305$                  
 
 

  

Page 66



 

34 

HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, continued 
JUNE 30, 2020 
 
 
NOTE 8 – LONG-TERM LIABILITIES 
 
A schedule of changes in long-term liabilities for the year ended June 30, 2020 consisted of the following: 

 
Balance Balance Balance Due

July 01, 2019 Additions Deductions June 30, 2020 In One Year
Governmental Activities

General obligation bonds 2,625,100$              -$                              76,500$                   2,548,600$                285,800$                 
Unamortized premium 143,226                   -                                4,092                        139,134                     4,092                        

Total general obligation bonds 2,768,326                -                                80,592                     2,687,734                  289,892                   
Capital leases -                                13,344                     -                                13,344                        4,930                        
Early retirement incentive 525,610                   -                                82,779                     442,831                     124,596                   
Compensated absences 34,918                     4,843                        -                                39,761                        -                                
Total OPEB liability 1,139,051                1,372,301                -                                2,511,352                  -                                
Net pension liability 8,534,686                312,314                   -                                8,847,000                  -                                

Total 13,002,591$            1,702,802$              163,371$                 14,542,022$              419,418$                  
 

• Payments for general obligation bonds are made in the Bond Interest and Redemption Fund. 
• Payments for capital lease obligations are made in the General Fund. 
• Payments for early retirement incentive are made in the General Fund. 
• Payments for compensated absences are typically liquidated in the General Fund and the Non-Major 

Governmental Funds. 
 
A. Bonded Debt 

 
Bonds Bonds

Issue Maturity Interest Original Outstanding Outstanding
Series Date Date Rate Issue July 01, 2019 Additions Deductions June 30, 2020

2011 Refunding August 30, 2011 August 1, 2023 4.30% 886,200$    425,100$                 -$                              76,500$                   348,600$                 
Election 2018, Series 2019A June 5, 2019 August 1, 2053 4.00% 2,200,000   2,200,000                -                                -                                2,200,000                

2,625,100$              -$                              76,500$                   2,548,600$               
 
Election 1998 
 
In an election held April 14, 1998, the voters authorized the District to issue and sell $1,340,000 of principal 
amount of general obligation bonds. These bonds were issued for the purpose of constructing and acquiring a 
new library and classrooms for Hamilton High School.  
 
There was one issuance under this election, Series 1998, which was issued on August 6, 1998 with interest rates 
ranging from 3.90% to 4.70%. The original issuance consisted of $430,000 in current interest serial bonds and 
$910,000 in current interest term bonds. Interest accrues from August 1, 1998 and is payable semi-annually on 
February 1 and August 1 of each year, commencing February 1, 1999. Principal is payable annually on August 1, 
commencing August 1, 2000 through the final maturity date of August 1, 2023. On August 30, 2011, the District 
issued Refunding Notes to redeem the outstanding bonds. 

 
2011 Refunding Notes 
 
On August 30, 2011, the District issued $886,200 of refunding notes. The notes were issued to redeem the 
outstanding Election 1998, Series 1998 bonds. The bonds were issued as current interest serial bonds and carry 
interest of 4.30%. The transaction resulted in an economic gain (difference between the present value of debt 
service on the old bonds and the new notes) of $30,720. The principal balance outstanding on June 30, 2020 
amounted to $348,600. 

 
  

Page 67



 

35 

HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, continued 
JUNE 30, 2020 
 
 
NOTE 8 – LONG-TERM LIABILITIES (continued) 
 
A. Bonded Debt (continued) 
 

Election 2018 
 
In an election held November 6, 2018, the voters authorized the District to issue and sell $7,000,000 of principal 
amount of general obligation bonds. These bonds were issued to finance the acquisition, construction, furnishing 
and equipping of District facilities.  
 
There has been one issuance under this election, Series 2019A, which was issued on June 5, 2019 with a stated 
interest rate of 4.00%. The original issuance consisted of $645,000 in current interest serial bonds and $1,555,000 
in current interest term bonds. Interest on the bonds is payable on February 1 and August 1 of each year, 
commencing February 1, 2020. Principal is payable annually on August 1, commencing August 1, 2020 through 
the final maturity date of August 1, 2053. 

 
B. Debt Service Requirements to Maturity – Bonds 

 
The bonds mature through 2054 as follows: 

 
Year Ended June 30, Principal Interest Total

2021 285,800$                 102,164$                 387,964$                 
2022 235,100                   86,486                     321,586                   
2023 89,300                     79,736                     169,036                   
2024 93,400                     75,808                     169,208                   
2025 -                                73,800                     73,800                     

2026 - 2030 -                                369,000                   369,000                   
2031 - 2035 90,000                     361,400                   451,400                   
2036 - 2040 200,000                   333,000                   533,000                   
2041 - 2045 355,000                   278,500                   633,500                   
2046 - 2050 555,000                   188,100                   743,100                   
2051 - 2054 645,000                   53,900                     698,900                   

Total 2,548,600$              2,001,894$              4,550,494$               
 
C. Capital Lease 

 
The District entered into a capital lease for bus air conditioning, with annual payments in September of each year, 
with principal maturing through 2023.   Future minimum lease payments are as follows: 
 

Year Ended June 30, Lease Payment
2021 4,930$                     
2022 4,930                        
2023 4,890                        

Total minimum lease payments 14,750                     
Less amount representing interest (1,406)                      
Present value of minimum lease payments 13,344$                    

 
  

Page 68



 

36 

HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, continued 
JUNE 30, 2020 
 
 
NOTE 8 – LONG-TERM LIABILITIES (continued) 

D. Early Retirement Incentives  
 

The District entered into a supplementary retirement plan with the California State Teachers’ Retirement System 
(CalSTRS) whereby 10 employees (2 in the 2010-11 fiscal year, 2 in the 2011-12 fiscal year, 4 in the 2014-15 
fiscal year, and 2 in the 2018-19 fiscal year) of the District elected to take early retirement in exchange for 
supplementary retirement benefits.  
 
The District entered into a supplementary retirement plan with the California Public Employees’ Retirement 
System (CalPERS) whereby 7 employees (1 in the 2014-15 fiscal year and 6 in the 2018-19 fiscal year) of the 
District elected to take early retirement in exchange for supplementary retirement benefits.  

 
Future payments for the early retirement plans are as follows: 

 
Year Ended June 30, Lease Payment

2021 124,596$                 
2022 121,111                   
2023 114,781                   
2024 92,530                     
2025 55,786                     

2026 - 2027 36,842                     
Total minimum lease payments 545,646                   

Less amount representing interest (102,815)                  
Present value of minimum lease payments 442,831$                  

 
E. Compensated Absences 
 

Total unpaid employee compensated absences as of June 30, 2020 amounted to $39,761. This amount is 
included as part of long-term liabilities in the government-wide financial statements. 

 
F. Other Postemployment Benefits 

 
The District’s beginning total OPEB liability was $1,139,051 and increased by $1,372,301 during the year ended 
June 30, 2020. The ending total OPEB liability at June 30, 2020 was $2,511,352. See Note 10 for additional 
information regarding the total OPEB liability. 

 
G. Net Pension Liability 
 

The District’s beginning net pension liability was $8,534,686 and increased by $312,314 during the year ended 
June 30, 2020. The ending net pension liability at June 30, 2020 was $8,847,000. See Note 11 for additional 
information regarding the net pension liability. 
  

Page 69



 

37 

HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, continued 
JUNE 30, 2020 
 
 
NOTE 9 – FUND BALANCES 
 
Fund balances were composed of the following elements at June 30, 2020: 

General Fund Building Fund

Non-Major 
Governmental 

Funds

Total 
Governmental 

Funds
Non-spendable

Revolving cash 10,000$                   -$                              -$                              10,000$                   
Stores inventory -                                -                                4,745                        4,745                        

Total non-spendable 10,000                     -                                4,745                        14,745                     
Restricted

Educational programs 119,021                   -                                141,504                   260,525                   
Capital projects -                                1,433,992                184,004                   1,617,996                
Debt service -                                -                                489,008                   489,008                   
All others -                                -                                83,658                     83,658                     

Total restricted 119,021                   1,433,992                898,174                   2,451,187                
Committed

Other commitments -                                -                                67,258                     67,258                     
Total committed -                                -                                67,258                     67,258                     

Assigned
Postemployment benefits 216,610                   -                                -                                216,610                   
Other assignments 437,963                   -                                -                                437,963                   

Total assigned 654,573                   -                                -                                654,573                   
Unassigned 771,643                   -                                -                                771,643                   

Total Fund Balance 1,555,237$              1,433,992$              970,177$                 3,959,406$               
 

The District is committed to maintaining a prudent level of financial resources to protect against the need to reduce 
service levels because of temporary revenue shortfalls or unpredicted expenditures. The District’s Minimum Fund 
Balance Policy requires a Reserve for Economic Uncertainties, consisting of unassigned amounts, equal to no less 
than 4 percent of General Fund expenditures and other financing uses. 
 
 
NOTE 10 – POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS (OPEB)  
 
A. Plan Description 
 

The Hamilton Unified School District administers a single employer defined benefit OPEB plan that provides 
medical, dental and vision insurance benefits to eligible retirees. No assets are accumulated in a trust that meets 
the criteria in paragraph 4 of GASB Statement 75. 
 

B. Benefits Provided 
 
The District provides postemployment health care benefits based on the age and the years of service. District-
paid benefits are subject to a cap and paid until age 65.  The District provides medical, dental, and vision benefits 
to eligible retirees up to an annual cap of $11,370. 
 

Employee Group Age for Eligibility Years for Eligibility 
Certificated 55 15 
Classified and Classified Management 55 15 
Classified Confidential 50 10 
Superintendent 55 5 

Page 70



 

38 

HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, continued 
JUNE 30, 2020 
 
 
NOTE 10 – POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS (OPEB) (continued) 
 
C. Contributions 
 

For the measurement period, the District contributed $45,447 to the Plan, all of which was used for current 
premiums. 
 

D. Plan Membership 
 
Membership of the Plan consisted of the following: 
 

Number of 
participants

Inactive employees receiving benefits 4                       
Inactive employees entitled to but not receiving benefits* -                        
Participating active employees 77                     

Total number of participants** 81                     

*Information not provided
**As of the July 1, 2019 valuation date  

 
E. Total OPEB Liability 
 

The Hamilton Unified School District’s total OPEB liability of $2,511,352 was measured as of June 30, 2019 and 
was determined by an actuarial valuation as of July 1, 2019. 

 
F. Actuarial Assumptions and Other Inputs 
 

The total OPEB liability as of June 30, 2020 was determined by an actuarial valuation as of July 1, 2019 using the 
following actuarial assumptions and other inputs, applied to all periods included in the measurement.  
 
 Assumptions: 

Salary increases 3.00% 
Inflation rate 3.00% 
Healthcare cost trend rate 6.00% for 2019; 5.90% for 2020; 5.80% for 2021; and decreasing 

0.10% per year to an ultimate rate of 5.00% for 2029 and later years 
 

Pre-retirement mortality rates were based on the RP-2014 Employee Mortality Table for Males or Females, 
as appropriate, without projection. Post-retirement mortality rates were based on the RP-2014 Health 
Annuitant Mortality Table for Males or Females, as appropriate, without projection. 

 
The actuarial assumptions used in the July 1, 2019 valuation were based on a review of plan experience during 
the period July 1, 2017 to June 30, 2019. 
 

 
  

Page 71



 

39 

HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, continued 
JUNE 30, 2020 
 
 
NOTE 10 – POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS (OPEB) (continued) 

 
G. Changes in Total OPEB Liability 

 
June 30, 2020

Total OPEB Liability
Service Cost 136,970$              
Interest on total OPEB liability 45,377                  
Difference between expected and actual experience 1,092,942             
Changes of assumptions 142,459                
Benefits payments (45,447)                 
Net change in total OPEB liability 1,372,301             
Total OPEB liability - beginning 1,139,051             
Total OPEB liability - ending 2,511,352$           

Covered-employee payroll 4,699,030$           

District's total OPEB liability as a percentage of 
covered-employee payroll 53.4%  

 
H. Sensitivity of the Total OPEB Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate 
 

The following presents the total OPEB liability of the Hamilton Unified School District, as well as what the District’s 
total OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is one percentage point lower (2.13 
percent) or one percentage point higher (4.13 percent) than the current discount rate: 
 

1% Decrease
Valuation 

Discount Rate 1% Increase
(2.13%) (3.13%) (4.13%)

Net OPEB liability 2,705,140$          2,511,352$          2,332,032$           
 

I. Sensitivity of the Total OPEB Liability to Changes in the Healthcare Cost Trend Rate 
 

The following presents the total OPEB liability of the Hamilton Unified School District, as well as what the District’s 
total OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using a healthcare cost trend rate that is one percentage point 
lower (4.00 percent) or one percentage point higher (6.00 percent) than the current healthcare cost trend rate: 
 

1% Decrease
Valuation Trend 

Rate 1% Increase
(4.00%) (5.00%) (6.00%)

Net OPEB liability 2,276,138$          2,511,352$          2,782,497$           
 

 
  

Page 72



 

40 

HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, continued 
JUNE 30, 2020 
 
 
NOTE 10 – POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS (OPEB) (continued) 

 
J. OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to OPEB 

 
For the year ended June 30, 2020, the Hamilton Unified School District recognized OPEB expense of $312,390. 
At June 30, 2020, the Hamilton Unified School District reported deferred outflows of resources related to OPEB 
from the following sources: 
 

Deferred Outflows
of Resources

Differences between expected and
actual experience 977,895$                 

Changes in assumptions 127,463                    
District contributions subsequent

to the measurement date 158,311                    
Total 1,263,669$               

 
The $158,311 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to OPEB resulting from District contributions 
subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the total OPEB liability in the year 
ended June 30, 2021.  The remaining $1,105,358 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to OPEB 
will be recognized in OPEB expense as follows: 

 
Deferred Outflows

Year Ended June 30, of Resources
2021 130,043$                 
2022 130,043                    
2023 130,043                    
2024 130,043                    
2025 130,043                    

Thereafter 455,143                    
Total 1,105,358$               

 
 

NOTE 11 – PENSION PLANS 
 
Qualified employees are covered under multiple-employer contributory retirement plans maintained by agencies of 
the State of California. Certificated employees are members of the California State Teachers' Retirement System 
(CalSTRS), and classified employees are members of the California Public Employees' Retirement System (CalPERS). 
The District reported its proportionate share of the net pension liabilities, pension expense, deferred outflow of 
resources, and deferred inflow of resources for each of the above plans as follows: 
 

Net pension 
liability

Deferred 
outflows related 

to pensions

Deferred inflows 
related to 
pensions Pension expense

STRS Pension 5,660,584$            1,619,445$            517,904$               746,578$               
PERS Pension 3,186,416              763,634                 32,071                   843,884                 

Total 8,847,000$            2,383,079$            549,975$               1,590,462$              

Page 73



 

41 

HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, continued 
JUNE 30, 2020 
 
 
NOTE 11 – PENSION PLANS (continued) 
 
A. California State Teachers’ Retirement System (CalSTRS)  
 

Plan Description 
The District contributes to the California State Teachers' Retirement System (CalSTRS); a cost-sharing multiple 
employer public employee retirement system defined benefit pension plan administered by CalSTRS. The plan 
provides retirement and disability benefits and survivor benefits to beneficiaries. Benefit provisions are 
established by state statutes, as legislatively amended, within the State Teachers' Retirement Law. CalSTRS 
issues a separate comprehensive annual financial report that includes financial statements and required 
supplementary information. Copies of the CalSTRS annual financial report may be obtained from CalSTRS, 7919 
Folsom Blvd., Sacramento, CA 95826. 
 
Benefits Provided  
The CalSTRS defined benefit plan has two benefit formulas: 

 
1. CalSTRS 2% at 60: Members first hired on or before December 31, 2012, to perform service that could be 

creditable to CalSTRS. CalSTRS 2% at 60 members are eligible for normal retirement at age 60, with a 
minimum of five years of credited service. The normal retirement benefit is equal to 2.0 percent of final 
compensation for each year of credited service. Early retirement options are available at age 55 with five 
years of credited service or as early as age 50 with 30 years of credited service. The age factor for retirements 
after age 60 increases with each quarter year of age to 2.4 percent at age 63 or older. Members who have 
30 years or more of credited service receive an additional increase of up to 0.2 percent to the age factor, 
known as the career factor. The maximum benefit with the career factor is 2.4 percent of final compensation. 

 
2. CalSTRS 2% at 62: Members first hired on or after January 1, 2013, to perform service that could be 

creditable to CalSTRS. CalSTRS 2% at 62 members are eligible for normal retirement at age 62, with a 
minimum of five years of credited service. The normal retirement benefit is equal to 2.0 percent of final 
compensation for each year of credited service. An early retirement option is available at age 55. The age 
factor for retirement after age 62 increases with each quarter year of age to 2.4 percent at age 65 or older.  

 
Contributions  
Active plan CalSTRS 2% at 60 and 2% at 62 members are required to contribute 10.25% and 10.205% of their 
salary for fiscal year 2020, respectively, and the District is required to contribute an actuarially determined rate. 
The actuarial methods and assumptions used for determining the rate are those adopted by CalSTRS Teachers' 
Retirement Board. The required employer contribution rate for fiscal year 2020 was 18.13% of annual payroll 
reduced to 17.10% pursuant to California Senate Bill 90 (SB 90). The contribution requirements of the plan 
members are established by state statute. Contributions to the plan from the District were $597,873 for the year 
ended June 30, 2020. 
 
On-Behalf Payments 
The District was the recipient of on-behalf payments made by the State of California to CalSTRS for K-12 
education.  These payments consist of state general fund contributions of approximately $430,778 to CalSTRS. 

 
 

  

Page 74



 

42 

HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, continued 
JUNE 30, 2020 
 
 
NOTE 11 – PENSION PLANS (continued) 
 
A. California State Teachers’ Retirement System (CalSTRS) (continued) 
 

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of 
Resources Related to Pensions 
At June 30, 2020, the District reported a liability for its proportionate share of the net pension liability that reflected 
a reduction for State pension support provided to the District. The amount recognized by the District as its 
proportionate share of the net pension liability, the related State support, and the total portion of the net pension 
liability that was associated with the District were as follows:  

 
District's proportionate share of the 

net pension liability 5,660,584$              
State's proportionate share of the net

pension liability associated with the District 3,088,251                
Total 8,748,835$               

 
The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2019, and the total pension liability used to calculate the 
net pension liability was determined by applying update procedures to an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2018 
and rolling forward the total pension liability to June 30, 2019. The District’s proportion of the net pension liability 
was based on a projection of the District’s long-term share of contributions to the pension plan relative to the 
projected contributions of all participating school districts, actuarially determined. At June 30, 2019, the District’s 
proportion was 0.006 percent, which did not change from its proportion measured as of June 30, 2018. 
 
For the year ended June 30, 2020, the District recognized pension expense of $746,578. In addition, the District 
recognized pension expense and revenue of $84,493 for support provided by the State. At June 30, 2020, the 
District reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the 
following sources: 
 

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows
of Resources of Resources

Differences between projected and
actual earnings on plan investments -$                              218,047$                 

Differences between expected and
actual experience 14,290                     159,509                   

Changes in assumptions 715,940                   -                                
Changes in proportion and differences

between District contributions and
proportionate share of contributions 291,342                   140,348                   

District contributions subsequent
to the measurement date 597,873                   -                                

Total 1,619,445$              517,904$                  

Page 75



 

43 

HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, continued 
JUNE 30, 2020 
 
 
NOTE 11 – PENSION PLANS (continued) 
 
A. California State Teachers’ Retirement System (CalSTRS) (continued) 
 

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of 
Resources Related to Pensions (continued) 
The $597,873 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from District contributions 
subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the year 
ended June 30, 2021. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of 
resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows: 

 
Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows

Year Ended June 30, of Resources of Resources
2021 268,055$                 104,133$                 
2022 268,055                   255,512                   
2023 220,101                   106,267                   
2024 220,289                   17,855                     
2025 37,591                     17,601                     
2026 7,481                        16,536                     
Total 1,021,572$              517,904$                  

 
Actuarial Assumptions 
The total pension liability was determined by applying update procedures to an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 
2018, and rolling forward the total pension liability to June 30, 2019 using the following actuarial assumptions, 
applied to all periods included in the measurement: 
 

Consumer Price Inflation  2.75% 
Investment Rate of Return*  7.10% 
Wage Inflation  3.50% 
   

* Net of investment expenses, but gross of administrative expenses. 
 
CalSTRS uses custom mortality tables to best fit the patterns of mortality among its members. These custom 
tables are based on MP-2016 series tables adjusted to fit CalSTRS experience.  
 
The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2018 valuation were based on the results of an actuarial 
experience study for the period July 1, 2010−June 30, 2015.  

 
 
 

Page 76



 

44 

HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, continued 
JUNE 30, 2020 
 
 
NOTE 11 – PENSION PLANS (continued) 
 
A. California State Teachers’ Retirement System (CalSTRS) (continued) 
 

Actuarial Assumptions (continued) 
The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-block 
method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension 
plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. The best-estimate ranges were 
developed using capital market assumptions from CalSTRS general investment consultant (Pension Consulting 
Alliance–PCA) as an input to the process. The actuarial investment rate of return assumption was adopted by the 
board in February 2017 in conjunction with the most recent experience study. For each future valuation, CalSTRS 
consulting actuary (Milliman) reviews the return assumption for reasonableness based on the most current capital 
market assumptions. Best estimates of 20-year geometrically-linked real rates of return and the assumed asset 
allocation for each major asset class for the year ended June 30, 2019, are summarized in the following table: 

 
 

Asset Class 
 Assumed Asset 

Allocation 
 Long-Term Expected 

Real Rate of Return* 
Global Equity  47%  4.80% 
Fixed Income  12%  1.30% 
Real Estate  13%  3.60% 
Private Equity  13%  6.30% 
Risk Mitigating Strategies  9%  1.80% 
Inflation Sensitive  4%  3.30% 
Cash/Liquidity  2%  -0.40% 
  100%   
*20-year geometric average 

 
Discount Rate 
The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.10 percent. The projection of cash flows used 
to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan members and employers will be made at 
statutory contribution rates in accordance with the rate increases per AB 1469. Projected inflows from investment 
earnings were calculated using the long-term assumed investment rate of return (7.10 percent) and assuming 
that contributions, benefit payments, and administrative expense occur midyear. Based on those assumptions, 
the Plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments to 
current plan members. Therefore, the long-term assumed investment rate of return was applied to all periods of 
projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability.  

 
Sensitivity of the District’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount 
Rate 
The following presents the District’s proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated using the discount 
rate of 7.10 percent, as well as what the District’s proportionate share of the net pension liability would be if it 
were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower (6.10 percent) or 1-percentage-point 
higher (8.10 percent) than the current rate: 

 
1% Current 1%

Decrease Discount Rate Increase
(6.10%) (7.10%) (8.10%)

District's proportionate share of
the net pension liability 8,429,078$         5,660,584$         3,364,975$          

 
 

Page 77



 

45 

HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, continued 
JUNE 30, 2020 
 
 
NOTE 11 – PENSION PLANS (continued) 
 
A. California State Teachers’ Retirement System (CalSTRS) (continued) 
 

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position 
Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net position is available in the separately issued CalSTRS 
financial report. 

 
B. California Public Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS) 
 

Plan Description 
The District contributes to the School Employer Pool under the California Public Employees' Retirement System 
(CalPERS); a cost-sharing multiple-employer public employee retirement system defined benefit pension plan 
administered by CalPERS. The plan provides retirement and disability benefits, annual cost-of-living adjustments, 
and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. Benefit provisions are established by state statutes, as 
legislatively amended, within the Public Employees' Retirement Laws. CalPERS issues a separate comprehensive 
annual financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary information. Copies of the 
CalPERS annual financial report may be obtained from the CalPERS Executive Office, 400 P Street, Sacramento, 
CA 95811. 
 
Benefits Provided  
The benefits for the defined benefit plan are based on members’ years of service, age, final compensation, and 
benefit formula. Benefits are provided for disability, death, and survivors of eligible members or beneficiaries. 
Members become fully vested in their retirement benefits earned to date after five years of credited service. 
 
Contributions  
Active plan members who entered into the plan prior to January 1, 2013, are required to contribute 7.0% of their 
salary. The California Public Employees’ Pension Reform Act (PEPRA) specifies that new members entering into 
the plan on or after January 1, 2013, shall pay the higher of fifty percent of normal costs or 7.0% of their salary. 
Additionally, for new members entering the plan on or after January 1, 2013, the employer is prohibited from 
paying any of the employee contribution to CalPERS unless the employer payment of the member’s contribution 
is specified in an employment agreement or collective bargaining agreement that expires after January 1, 2013.  
 
The District is required to contribute an actuarially determined rate. The actuarial methods and assumptions used 
for determining the rate are those adopted by the CalPERS Board of Administration. The required employer 
contribution rate for fiscal year 2020 was 20.733% of annual payroll reduced to 19.721% pursuant to California 
Senate Bill 90 (SB 90). Contributions to the plan from the District were $268,410 for the year ended June 30, 
2020. 
 
Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of 
Resources Related to Pensions 
At June 30, 2020, the District reported a liability of $3,186,416 for its proportionate share of the net pension 
liability. The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2019, and the total pension liability used to calculate 
the net pension liability was determined by applying update procedures to an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 
2018 and rolling forward the total pension liability to June 30, 2019. The District’s proportion of the net pension 
liability was based on a projection of the District’s long-term share of contributions to the pension plan relative to 
the projected contributions of all participating school districts, actuarially determined. At June 30, 2019, the 
District’s proportion was 0.011 percent, which did not change from its proportion measured as of June 30, 2018. 
  

Page 78



 

46 

HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, continued 
JUNE 30, 2020 
 
 
NOTE 11 – PENSION PLANS (continued) 
 
B. California Public Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS) (continued) 
 

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of 
Resources Related to Pensions (continued) 
For the year ended June 30, 2020, the District recognized pension expense of $843,884. At June 30, 2020, the 
District reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the 
following sources: 
 

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows
of Resources of Resources

Differences between projected and
actual earnings on plan investments -$                              29,555$                   

Differences between expected and
actual experience 231,462                   -                                

Changes in assumptions 151,683                   -                                
Changes in proportion and differences

between District contributions and
proportionate share of contributions 112,079                   2,516                        

District contributions subsequent
to the measurement date 268,410                   -                                

Total 763,634$                 32,071$                    
 

The $268,410 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from District contributions 
subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the year 
ended June 30, 2021. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of 
resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows: 
 

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows
Year Ended June 30, of Resources of Resources

2021 291,407$                   31,200$                   
2022 142,809                     (57,783)                    
2023 57,278                        (8,831)                      
2024 3,730                          67,485                     
Total 495,224$                   32,071$                    

 
Actuarial Assumptions 
The total pension liability was determined by applying update procedures to an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 
2018, and rolling forward the total pension liability to June 30, 2019 using the following actuarial assumptions, 
applied to all periods included in the measurement: 
 

Inflation  2.50% 
Discount Rate  7.15% 
Salary Increases  Varies by Entry Age and Service 

 
CalPERS uses custom mortality tables to best fit the patterns of mortality among its members. These custom 
tables are derived using CalPERS’ membership data for all funds. The table includes 15 years of mortality 
improvements using the Society of Actuaries Scale 90% of scale MP 2016.   

Page 79



 

47 

HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, continued 
JUNE 30, 2020 
 
 
NOTE 11 – PENSION PLANS (continued) 
 
B. California Public Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS) (continued) 
 

Actuarial Assumptions (continued) 
The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2018, valuation were based on the results of an actuarial 
experience study for the period from 1997 to 2015.  
 
The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building block method 
in which best estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension plan 
investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. In determining the long-term 
expected rate of return, both short-term and long-term market return expectations as well as the expected 
pension fund cash flows were taken into account. Such cash flows were developed assuming that both members 
and employers will make their required contributions on time and as scheduled in all future years. Using historical 
returns of all the funds’ asset classes, expected compound (geometric) returns were calculated over the short-
term (first 10 years) and the long-term (11-60 years) using a building block approach. Using the expected nominal 
returns for both short-term and long-term, the present value of benefits was calculated for each fund. The 
expected rate of return was set by calculating the single equivalent expected return that arrived at the same 
present value of benefits for cash flows as the one calculated using both short-term and long-term returns. The 
expected rate of return was then set equivalent to the single equivalent rate calculated above and adjusted to 
account for assumed administrative expenses.  
 
The table below reflects long-term expected real rate of return by asset class. The rate of return was calculated 
using the capital market assumptions applied to determine the discount rate and asset allocation. These 
geometric rates of return are net of administrative expenses.  

 
 

Asset Class 
 Assumed Asset 

Allocation 
 Real Return 

Years 1 – 10* 
 Real 

Return 
Years 11+** 

Global Equity  50.0%  4.80%  5.98% 
Fixed Income  28.0%  1.00%  2.62% 
Inflation Assets  0.0%  0.77%  1.81% 
Private Equity  8.0%  6.30%  7.23% 
Real Estate  13.0%  3.75%  4.93% 
Liquidity  1.0%  0.0%  -0.92% 
  100.0%     

 
*An expected inflation of 2.00% used for this period. 
**An expected inflation of 2.92% used for this period. 

 
Discount Rate 
The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.15 percent. A projection of the expected benefit 
payments and contributions was performed to determine if assets would run out. The test revealed the assets 
would not run out. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to 
all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability for the Schools Pool. The results 
of the crossover testing for the Schools Pool are presented in a detailed report that can be obtained at CalPERS’ 
website.  
 

Page 80



 

48 

HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, continued 
JUNE 30, 2020 
 
 
NOTE 11 – PENSION PLANS (continued) 
 
B. California Public Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS) (continued) 

 
Sensitivity of the District’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount 
Rate 
The following presents the District’s proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated using the discount 
rate of 7.15 percent, as well as what the District’s proportionate share of the net pension liability would be if it 
were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower (6.15 percent) or 1-percentage-point 
higher (8.15 percent) than the current rate: 

 
1% Current 1%

Decrease Discount Rate Increase
(6.15%) (7.15%) (8.15%)

District's proportionate share of
the net pension liability 4,593,010$         3,186,416$         2,019,550$          

 
Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position 
Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net position is available in the separately issued CalPERS 
financial report. 
 
 

NOTE 12 – COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 
 
A. Grants 
 

The District received financial assistance from federal and state agencies in the form of grants. The disbursement 
of funds received under these programs generally requires compliance with terms and conditions specified in the 
grant agreements and are subject to audit by the grantor agencies. Any disallowed claims resulting from such 
audits could become a liability of the General Fund or other applicable funds. However, in the opinion of 
management, any such disallowed claims will not have a material adverse effect on the overall financial position 
of the District at June 30, 2020. 

 
B. Litigation 
 

The District is involved in various litigation arising from the normal course of business. In the opinion of 
management and legal counsel, the disposition of all other litigation pending is not expected to have a material 
adverse effect on the overall financial position of the District at June 30, 2020. 
 

C. Construction Commitments 
 

As of June 30, 2020, the District had no construction commitments with respect to unfinished capital projects. 
 
 
NOTE 13 – PARTICIPATION IN JOINT POWERS AUTHORITIES 
 
The District is a member of two joint powers authorities (JPAs). The first is the California’s Valued Trust to provide 
health and welfare benefits, and the other is the Golden State Risk Management Authority to provide property and 
liability insurance and workers’ compensation insurance. The relationship is such that the JPAs are not component 
units of the District for financial reporting purposes. 

 

Page 81



 

49 

HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, continued 
JUNE 30, 2020 
 
 
NOTE 14 – DEFERRED OUTFLOWS/INFLOWS OF RESOURCES  
 
A. Pension Plans  
 

Pursuant to GASB Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions, the District recognized 
deferred outflows of resources related to pensions and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions in the 
District-wide financial statements. Further information regarding the deferred outflows of resources and deferred 
inflows of resources can be found at Note 11. At June 30, 2020, total deferred outflows related to pensions was 
$2,383,079 and total deferred inflows related to pensions was $549,975. 

 
B. Other Postemployment Benefits 

 
Pursuant to GASB Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other 
Than Pensions, the District recognized deferred outflows of resources related to other postemployment benefits 
and deferred inflows of resources related to other postemployment benefits in the District-wide financial 
statements. Further information regarding the deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources 
can be found at Note 10. At June 30, 2020, total deferred outflows related to other postemployment benefits was 
$1,263,669. 

 
 
 

Page 82



 

 

 

 

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
 

 
 

Page 83



 

See accompanying note to required supplementary information. 

50 

HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
GENERAL FUND – BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020 
 
 

Actual* Variances - 
Original Final (Budgetary Basis) Final to Actual

REVENUES
LCFF sources 7,980,647$               7,873,467$               7,892,810$               19,343$                     
Federal sources 254,861                    279,569                    315,268                     35,699                       
Other state sources 195,102                    386,640                    479,235                     92,595                       
Other local sources 69,840                      79,577                      118,156                     38,579                       

Total Revenues 8,500,450                 8,619,253                 8,805,469                  186,216                     

EXPENDITURES
Certificated salaries 3,452,793                 3,470,510                 3,490,940                  (20,430)                     
Classified salaries 1,193,213                 1,191,536                 1,188,677                  2,859                         
Employee benefits 1,985,570                 1,985,519                 1,961,387                  24,132                       
Books and supplies 498,894                    449,144                    314,170                     134,974                     
Services and other operating expenditures 796,286                    887,203                    876,765                     10,438                       
Capital outlay -                                 402,972                    419,876                     (16,904)                     
Other outgo

Excluding transfers of indirect costs 773,732                    868,599                    880,433                     (11,834)                     
Transfers of indirect costs (17,786)                     (17,786)                     (8,557)                        (9,229)                        

Total Expenditures 8,682,702                 9,237,697                 9,123,691                  114,006                     
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues

Over Expenditures (182,252)                   (618,444)                   (318,222)                   300,222                     
Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Transfers out (53,000)                     (53,000)                     (53,000)                      -                                 
Net Financing Sources (Uses) (53,000)                     (53,000)                     (53,000)                      -                                 

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (235,252)                   (671,444)                   (371,222)                   300,222                     
Fund Balance - Beginning 1,258,543                 1,258,543                 1,258,543                  -                                 
Fund Balance - Ending 1,023,291$               587,099$                  887,321$                   300,222$                  

Budgeted Amounts

 
 

* The actual amounts reported on this schedule do not agree with the amounts reported on the Statement of 
Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance for the following reasons: 
 

• On-behalf payments of $430,778 are not included in the actual revenues and expenditures reported in this 
schedule. 

• Capital lease in the amount of $13,344 is not included in the actual other financing sources reported in this 
schedule. 

• Actual amounts reported in this schedule are for the General Fund only, and do not agree with the amounts 
reported on the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances because the amounts 
on that schedule include the financial activity of the Special Reserve Fund for Other Than Capital Outlay 
Projects and the Special Reserve Fund for Postemployment Benefits, in accordance with the fund type 
definitions promulgated by GASB Statement No. 54. 

• Actual amounts reported in this schedule do not agree with the amounts reported on the Statement of 
Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances because the amounts on that schedule include 
federal revenues for the Medi-Cal Administrative Activities program that have been reclassified as local 
revenues. 

 
 
 

Page 84



 

See accompanying note to required supplementary information. 

51 

HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN TOTAL OPEB LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS  
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020 
 

June 30, 2020 June 30, 2019 June 30, 2018
Total OPEB Liability
Service Cost 136,970$              59,372$                57,643$                
Interest on total OPEB liability 45,377                  34,889                  35,569                  
Difference between expected and actual experience 1,092,942             (36,932)                 -                             
Changes of assumptions 142,459                -                             -                             
Benefits payments (45,447)                 (65,379)                 (163,783)               
Net change in total OPEB liability 1,372,301             (8,050)                   (70,571)                 
Total OPEB liability - beginning 1,139,051             1,147,101             1,217,672             
Total OPEB liability - ending 2,511,352$           1,139,051$           1,147,101$           

Covered-employee payroll 4,699,030$           4,907,547$           4,720,386$           

District's total OPEB liability as a percentage of 
covered-employee payroll 53.4% 23.2% 24.3%  

 
 
 

Page 85



 

See accompanying note to required supplementary information. 

52 

HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
SCHEDULE OF THE DISTRICT’S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY - CALSTRS  
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020 
 
 

June 30, 2020 June 30, 2019 June 30, 2018 June 30, 2017 June 30, 2016 June 30, 2015

District's proportion of the net pension liability 0.006% 0.006% 0.006% 0.006% 0.006% 0.006%

District's proportionate share of the net 
pension liability 5,660,584$              5,724,627$              5,517,090$              4,929,244$              4,289,136$              3,454,068$              

State's proportionate share of the net pension
liability associated with the District 3,088,251                3,277,633                3,263,891                2,806,545                2,268,474                2,085,715                

Total 8,748,835$              9,002,260$              8,780,981$              7,735,789$              6,557,610$              5,539,783$              

District's covered payroll 3,394,579$              3,327,082$              3,193,611$              3,041,124$              2,952,115$              2,632,667$              

District's proportionate share of the net
pension liability as a percentage
of its covered payroll 166.8% 172.1% 172.8% 162.1% 145.3% 131.2%

Plan fiduciary net position as a
percentage of the total pension liability 72.6% 71.0% 69.5% 70.0% 74.0% 76.5%

The amounts presented for each fiscal year were determined as of the year-end that occurred one year prior.  
 
 
 

P
age 86



 

See accompanying note to required supplementary information. 

53 

HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
SCHEDULE OF THE DISTRICT’S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY - CALPERS  
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020 
 
 

June 30, 2020 June 30, 2019 June 30, 2018 June 30, 2017 June 30, 2016 June 30, 2015

District's proportion of the net pension liability 0.011% 0.011% 0.009% 0.009% 0.009% 0.009%

District's proportionate share of the net 
pension liability 3,186,416$              2,810,059$              2,255,628$              1,829,810$              1,380,963$              1,064,892$              

District's covered payroll 1,512,968$              1,393,304$              1,207,955$              1,113,685$              1,030,826$              984,697$                 

District's proportionate share of the net
pension liability as a percentage
of its covered payroll 210.6% 201.7% 186.7% 164.3% 134.0% 108.1%

Plan fiduciary net position as a
percentage of the total pension liability 70.0% 70.8% 71.9% 73.9% 79.4% 83.4%

The amounts presented for each fiscal year were determined as of the year-end that occurred one year prior.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 87



 

See accompanying note to required supplementary information. 

54 

HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
SCHEDULE OF DISTRICT CONTRIBUTIONS - CALSTRS  
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020 
 
 

June 30, 2020 June 30, 2019 June 30, 2018 June 30, 2017 June 30, 2016 June 30, 2015

Contractually required contribution 597,873$                 568,939$                 480,098$                 400,723$                 327,759$                 262,013$                 

Contributions in relation to the 
contractually required contribution* (597,873)                  (568,939)                  (480,098)                  (400,723)                  (327,759)                  (262,013)                  

Contribution deficiency (excess) -$                              -$                              -$                              -$                              -$                              -$                              

District's covered payroll 3,520,694$              3,394,579$              3,327,082$              3,193,611$              3,041,124$              2,952,115$              

Contributions as a percentage of 
covered payroll 16.98% 16.76% 14.43% 12.55% 10.78% 8.88%

*Amounts do not include on-behalf contributions  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 88



 

See accompanying note to required supplementary information. 

55 

HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
SCHEDULE OF DISTRICT CONTRIBUTIONS - CALPERS  
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020 
 
 

June 30, 2020 June 30, 2019 June 30, 2018 June 30, 2017 June 30, 2016 June 30, 2015

Contractually required contribution 268,410$                 273,239$                 216,394$                 167,570$                 131,477$                 121,898$                 

Contributions in relation to the 
contractually required contribution* (268,410)                  (273,239)                  (216,394)                  (167,570)                  (131,477)                  (121,898)                  

Contribution deficiency (excess) -$                              -$                              -$                              -$                              -$                              -$                              

District's covered payroll 1,363,897$              1,512,968$              1,393,304$              1,207,955$              1,113,685$              1,030,826$              

Contributions as a percentage of 
covered payroll 19.68% 18.06% 15.53% 13.87% 11.81% 11.83%

*Amounts do not include on-behalf contributions  
 
 

 
 
 

P
age 89



 

56 

HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION  
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020 
 
 
NOTE 1 – PURPOSE OF SCHEDULES 
 
Budgetary Comparison Schedule 
This schedule is required by GASB Statement No. 34 as required supplementary information (RSI) for the General 
Fund and for each major special revenue fund that has a legally adopted annual budget. The budgetary comparison 
schedule presents both (a) the original and (b) the final appropriated budgets for the reporting period as well as (c) 
actual inflows, outflows, and balances, stated on the District’s budgetary basis. A separate column to report the 
variance between the final budget and actual amounts is also presented, although not required. 
 
Schedule of Changes in Total OPEB Liability and Related Ratios 
This 10-year schedule is required by GASB Statement No. 75 for all sole and agent employers that provide other 
postemployment benefits (OPEB). Until a full 10-year trend is compiled, the schedule will only show those years under 
which GASB Statement No. 75 was applicable. The schedule presents the sources of change in the total OPEB 
liability, and the components of the total OPEB liability and related ratios, including the total OPEB liability as a 
percentage of covered-employee payroll. 
 
Changes in Benefit Terms 
There were no changes in benefit terms since the previous valuation for OPEB. 
 
Changes in Assumptions 
There discount rate changed from 3.62% to 3.13% since the previous valuation for OPEB. 
 
Schedule of the District’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability 
This 10-year schedule is required by GASB Statement No. 68 for each cost-sharing pension plan. Until a full 10-year 
trend is compiled, the schedule will only show those years under which GASB Statement No. 68 was applicable. The 
schedule presents the District’s proportion (percentage) of the collective net pension liability, the District’s 
proportionate share (amount) of the collective net pension liability, the District’s covered payroll, the District’s 
proportionate share (amount) of the collective net pension liability as a percentage of the employer’s covered payroll, 
and the pension plan’s fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total pension liability. 
 
Changes in Benefit Terms 
There were no changes in benefit terms since the previous valuations for CalSTRS and CalPERS. 
 
Changes in Assumptions 
There were no changes in economic assumptions since the previous valuations for CalSTRS and CalPERS. 
 
Schedule of District Contributions 
This 10-year schedule is required by GASB Statement No. 68 for each cost-sharing pension plan. Until a full 10-year 
trend is compiled, the schedule will only show those years under which GASB Statement No. 68 was applicable. The 
schedule presents the District’s statutorily or contractually required employer contribution, the amount of 
contributions recognized by the pension plan in relation to the statutorily or contractually required employer 
contribution, the difference between the statutorily or contractually required employer contribution and the amount 
of contributions recognized by the pension plan in relation to the statutorily or contractually required employer 
contribution, the District’s covered payroll, and the amount of contributions recognized by the pension plan in relation 
to the statutorily or contractually required employer contribution as a percentage of the District’s covered payroll. 
 
  

Page 90



 

57 

HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION, continued 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020 
 
 
NOTE 2 – EXCESS OF EXPENDITURES OVER APPROPRIATIONS 
 
For the year ended June 30, 2020, the District incurred an excess of expenditures over appropriations in individual 
major funds presented in the Budgetary Comparison Schedule by major object code, as follows: 
 

Budget Actual Excess
General Fund

Certificated salaries 3,470,510$              3,490,940$              20,430$                   
Capital outlay 402,972$                 419,876$                 16,904$                   
Other outgo

Excluding transfers of indirect costs 868,599$                 880,433$                 11,834$                   
Transfers of indirect costs (17,786)$                  (8,557)$                    9,229$                     

Expenditures and Other Uses

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  

Page 91



 

 

 

 

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
 

 
 

Page 92



 

See accompanying note to supplementary information. 

58 

HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
SCHEDULE OF AVERAGE DAILY ATTENDANCE (ADA)  
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020 
 
 

Second
Period Annual
Report Report

 Certificate No.
6BF39A72 

 Certificate No.
3855E4FD 

SCHOOL DISTRICT
TK/K through Third

Regular ADA 171.62                     171.62                     
Total TK/K through Third 171.62                     171.62                     

Fourth through Sixth
Regular ADA 144.04                     144.04                     

Total Fourth through Sixth 144.04                     144.04                     
Seventh through Eighth

Regular ADA 88.80                        88.80                        
Total Seventh through Eighth 88.80                        88.80                        

Ninth through Twelfth
Regular ADA 262.35                     262.35                     

Total Ninth through Twelfth 262.35                     262.35                     
TOTAL SCHOOL DISTRICT 666.81                     666.81                      

 
 
 

Page 93



 

See accompanying note to supplementary information. 

59 

HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
SCHEDULE OF INSTRUCTIONAL TIME  
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020 
 
 

2019-20 2019-20 2019-20 2019-20 Instructional Number of
Planned Planned Actual Actual Minutes Days Certified

Minutes Instructional Number Instructional Number Closed due to Closed due to
Grade Level Requirement Minutes of Days Minutes of Days COVID-19 COVID-19* Status
Kindergarten 36,000 53,200 180 37,870 129 15,330 51 Complied
Grade 1 50,400 53,200 180 37,870 129 15,330 51 Complied
Grade 2 50,400 53,200 180 37,870 129 15,330 51 Complied
Grade 3 50,400 53,200 180 37,870 129 15,330 51 Complied
Grade 4 54,000 54,300 180 38,670 129 15,630 51 Complied
Grade 5 54,000 54,300 180 38,670 129 15,630 51 Complied
Grade 6 54,000 62,621 180 44,798 129 17,823 51 Complied
Grade 7 54,000 62,624 180 44,801 129 17,823 51 Complied
Grade 8 54,000 62,621 180 44,798 129 17,823 51 Complied
Grade 9 64,800 65,360 180 46,895 129 18,465 51 Complied
Grade 10 64,800 65,360 180 46,895 129 18,465 51 Complied
Grade 11 64,800 65,360 180 46,895 129 18,465 51 Complied
Grade 12 64,800 65,360 180 46,895 129 18,465 51 Complied

*On December 17, 2020 the District certified that all schools were closed from March 17, 2020 to June 5, 2020 for a total of 51 instructional days due to COVID-19.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 94



 

See accompanying note to supplementary information. 

60 

HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
SCHEDULE OF FINANCIAL TRENDS AND ANALYSIS  
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020 
 
 

2021 (Budget) 2020 2019 2018
General Fund - Budgetary Basis**

Revenues And Other Financing Sources 8,008,777$              8,805,469$              8,768,795$              7,991,664$              
Expenditures And Other Financing Uses 8,075,796                9,176,691                9,457,335                8,713,858                

Net change in Fund Balance (67,019)$                  (371,222)$                (688,540)$                (722,194)$                

Ending Fund Balance 820,302$                 887,321$                 1,258,543$              1,947,083$              

Available Reserves* 705,592$                 758,300$                 1,308,367$              1,532,032$              
Available Reserves As A

Percentage Of Outgo 8.74% 8.26% 13.83% 17.58%

Long-term Liabilities 14,122,604$            14,542,022$            13,002,591$            9,589,121$              
Average Daily

Attendance At P-2 667                           667                           688                           672                            
 
The General Fund balance has decreased by $1,059,762 over the past two years. The fiscal year 2020-21 budget 
projects a decrease of $67,019. For a District this size, the State recommends available reserves of at least 4% of 
General Fund expenditures, transfers out, and other uses (total outgo). 
 
The District has incurred operating deficits in each of the past three years and anticipates incurring an operating 
deficit during the 2020-21 fiscal year. Total long-term obligations have increased by $4,952,901 over the past two 
years. 
 
Average daily attendance has decreased by 5 ADA over the past two years. No change is anticipated during the 2020-
21 fiscal year. 
 
 
*Available reserves consist of all unassigned fund balance within the General Fund and the Special Reserve Fund for 
Other Than Capital Outlay Projects. 
 
**The actual amounts reported in this schedule are for the General Fund only, and do not agree with the amounts 
reported on the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances because the amounts on that 
schedule include the financial activity of the Special Reserve Fund for Other Than Capital Outlay Projects and Special 
Reserve Fund for Postemployment Benefits, in accordance with the fund type definitions promulgated by GASB 
Statement No. 54.  
 
On-behalf payments of $430,778 are not included in the actual revenues and expenditures reported in this schedule. 
 
Capital lease amount of $13,344 is not included in the actual revenues and other financing sources reported in this 
schedule. 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 95



 

See accompanying note to supplementary information. 

61 

HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
RECONCILIATION OF ANNUAL FINANCIAL AND BUDGET REPORT WITH AUDITED FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS  
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020 
 
 

General 

 Special Reserve 
Fund for Other 

Than Capital 

 Special Reserve 
Fund for 

Postemployment 
Fund Outlay Projects Benefits

887,321$                 437,962$                 216,610$                 
Adjustments and reclassifications:

Increase (decrease) in total fund balances:
Fund balance transfer (GASB 54) 654,572                   (437,962)                  (216,610)                  
To record capital lease 13,344                     -                                -                                

Net adjustments and reclassifications 667,916                   (437,962)                  (216,610)                  
1,555,237$              -$                              -$                              

June 30, 2020, annual financial and budget report fund balance

June 30, 2020, audited financial statement fund balance  
 
 

Page 96



 

See accompanying note to supplementary information. 

62 

HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET  
JUNE 30, 2020 
 

Adult Education 
Fund

Child Development 
Fund Cafeteria Fund

Deferred 
Maintenance Fund

Capital Facilities 
Fund

Bond Interest and 
Redemption Fund

Non-Major 
Governmental 

Funds
ASSETS

Cash and investments 137,514$                 12,497$                   2,500$                     67,089$                   182,259$                 482,447$                 884,306$                 
Accounts receivable 21,742                     169                           103,919                   169                           1,745                        6,631                        134,375                   
Due from other funds 41                             816                           17                             -                                -                                -                                874                           
Stores inventory -                                -                                4,745                        -                                -                                -                                4,745                        

Total Assets 159,297$                 13,482$                   111,181$                 67,258$                   184,004$                 489,078$                 1,024,300$              

LIABILITIES
Deficit cash -$                              -$                              21,944$                   -$                              -$                              -$                              21,944$                   
Accrued liabilities 10,530                     396                           834                           -                                -                                70                             11,830                     
Due to other funds 9,422                        10,529                     -                                -                                -                                -                                19,951                     
Unearned revenue -                                398                           -                                -                                -                                -                                398                           

Total Liabilities 19,952                     11,323                     22,778                     -                                -                                70                             54,123                     

FUND BALANCES
Non-spendable -                                -                                4,745                        -                                -                                -                                4,745                        
Restricted 139,345                   2,159                        83,658                     -                                184,004                   489,008                   898,174                   
Committed -                                -                                -                                67,258                     -                                -                                67,258                     

Total Fund Balances 139,345                   2,159                        88,403                     67,258                     184,004                   489,008                   970,177                   
Total Liabilities and Fund Balance 159,297$                 13,482$                   111,181$                 67,258$                   184,004$                 489,078$                 1,024,300$               

 
 
 
 
 

P
age 97



 

See accompanying note to supplementary information. 

63 

HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES  
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020 
 

Adult Education 
Fund

Child Development 
Fund Cafeteria Fund

Deferred 
Maintenance Fund

Capital Facilities 
Fund

Bond Interest and 
Redemption Fund

Non-Major 
Governmental 

Funds
REVENUES

LCFF sources -$                              -$                              -$                              53,000$                   -$                              -$                              53,000$                   
Federal sources 20,390                     -                                401,023                   -                                -                                -                                421,413                   
Other state sources 209,205                   139,007                   28,704                     -                                -                                2,282                        379,198                   
Other local sources 3,222                        274                           12,608                     414                           20,545                     352,374                   389,437                   

Total Revenues 232,817                   139,281                   442,335                   53,414                     20,545                     354,656                   1,243,048                
EXPENDITURES

Current
Instruction 94,424                     138,822                   -                                -                                -                                -                                233,246                   
Instruction-related services

School site administration 103,418                   -                                -                                -                                -                                -                                103,418                   
Pupil services

Food services -                                -                                476,492                   -                                -                                -                                476,492                   
General administration

All other general administration 8,557                        -                                -                                -                                -                                -                                8,557                        
Plant services 459                           459                           -                                23,664                     -                                -                                24,582                     

Debt service
Principal -                                -                                -                                -                                -                                76,500                     76,500                     
Interest and other -                                -                                -                                -                                -                                70,657                     70,657                     

Total Expenditures 206,858                   139,281                   476,492                   23,664                     -                                147,157                   993,452                   
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 25,959                     -                                (34,157)                    29,750                     20,545                     207,499                   249,596                   

Fund Balance - Beginning 113,386                   2,159                        122,560                   37,508                     163,459                   281,509                   720,581                   
Fund Balance - Ending 139,345$                 2,159$                     88,403$                   67,258$                   184,004$                 489,008$                 970,177$                  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 98



 

See accompanying note to supplementary information. 

64 

HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
LOCAL EDUCATION AGENCY ORGANIZATION STRUCTURE  
JUNE 30, 2020 
 
 
The Hamilton Unified School District was established on July 1, 2009 upon the unification of Hamilton High School 
District and Hamilton Elementary School District. The boundaries of the former districts changed in accordance with 
the approved plan of unification. The District is located in Glenn County and is currently operating one high school, 
one elementary school, two community day schools, one continuation high school, one preschool, and an adult 
education program.  
 

GOVERNING BOARD 

Member  Office  Term Expires 

Gabriel Leal  President  December 2020 

Hubert “Wendall” Lower  Clerk  December 2020 

Rod Boone  Member  December 2020 

Ray Odom  Member  December 2022 

Genaro Reyes  Member  December 2022 

     

 
DISTRICT ADMINISTRATORS 

 
Jeremy Powell, Ed.D. 

Superintendent 
 

Kristen Hamman 
Chief Business Official 

Page 99



 

65 

HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
NOTES TO SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION  
JUNE 30, 2020 
 
 
NOTE 1 – PURPOSE OF SCHEDULES 
 
Schedule of Average Daily Attendance (ADA) 
Average daily attendance (ADA) is a measurement of the number of pupils attending classes of the District. The 
purpose of attendance accounting from a fiscal standpoint is to provide the basis on which apportionments of state 
funds are made to school districts. This schedule provides information regarding the attendance of students at various 
grade levels and in different programs. 
 
Schedule of Instructional Time 
This schedule presents information on the amount of instructional time offered by the District and whether the District 
complied with the provisions of Education Code Sections 46200 through 46208. 
 
Schedule of Financial Trends and Analysis 
This schedule discloses the District's financial trends by displaying past years' data along with current year budget 
information. These financial trend disclosures are used to evaluate the District's ability to continue as a going concern 
for a reasonable period of time. 
 
Reconciliation of Annual Financial and Budget Report with Audited Financial Statements 
This schedule provides the information necessary to reconcile the fund balance of all funds reported on the Annual 
Financial and Budget Report Unaudited Actuals to the audited financial statements. 
 
Combining Statements – Non-Major Funds 
These statements provide information on the District’s non‐major funds. 
 
Local Education Agency Organization Structure 
This schedule provides information about the District's boundaries and schools operated, members of the governing 
board, and members of the administration.  
 
 

Page 100



 

 

 

 

OTHER INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORTS 
 

 
 

Page 101



O: 619-270-8222   
F: 619-260-9085
christywhite.com

348 Olive Street
San Diego, CA 
92103

Certified Public Accountants serving 
K-12 School Districts and Charter 
Schools throughout California

 

66 

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER 
MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH  

GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 
 
 

Independent Auditors’ Report 
 
Governing Board 
Hamilton Unified School District 
Hamilton City, California 
 
We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and 
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller 
General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental activities, each major fund, and the 
aggregate remaining fund information of Hamilton Unified School District, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2020, 
and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Hamilton Unified School District’s 
basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated January 25, 2021. 
 
Internal Control over Financial Reporting 
 
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Hamilton Unified School District’s 
internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate 
in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose 
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Hamilton Unified School District’s internal control. Accordingly, we 
do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Hamilton Unified School District’s internal control. 
 
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or 
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, 
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal 
control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial statements will 
not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to 
merit attention by those charged with governance.  
 
Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and 
was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant 
deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we 
consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. . We did 
identify certain deficiencies in internal control, described in the accompanying Schedule of Audit Findings and 
Questioned Costs that we consider to be significant deficiencies. (Finding #2020-001). 
 
 

Page 102



 

67 

Compliance and Other Matters 
 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Hamilton Unified School District's financial statements are 
free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, 
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the financial 
statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, 
and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance 
or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards. 
 
Hamilton Unified School District’s Response to Findings 
 
Hamilton Unified School District’s response to the findings identified in our audit are described in the accompanying 
schedule of findings and questioned costs. Hamilton Unified School District’s response was not subjected to the 
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it.  
 
Purpose of this Report 
 
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the 
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control or on 
compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards 
in considering the entity's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any 
other purpose. 
 
 
 
 
San Diego, California 
January 25, 2021 
 

Page 103



O: 619-270-8222   
F: 619-260-9085
christywhite.com

348 Olive Street
San Diego, CA 
92103

Certified Public Accountants serving 
K-12 School Districts and Charter 
Schools throughout California

 

68 

REPORT ON STATE COMPLIANCE 
 
 

Independent Auditors’ Report 
 
Governing Board 
Hamilton Unified School District  
Hamilton City, California 
 
Report on State Compliance 
 
We have audited Hamilton Unified School District’s compliance with the types of compliance requirements described 
in the 2019-2020 Guide for Annual Audits of K-12 Local Education Agencies and State Compliance Reporting, 
prescribed in Title 5, California Code of Regulations, section 19810, that could have a direct and material effect on 
each of Hamilton Unified School District’s state programs for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020, as identified below.  
 
Management’s Responsibility 
 
Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants 
applicable to its state programs.  
 
Auditor’s Responsibility 
 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of Hamilton Unified School District's state programs 
based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of compliance 
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable 
to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United 
States; and the 2019-2020 Guide for Annual Audits of K-12 Local Education Agencies and State Compliance 
Reporting, prescribed in Title 5, California Code of Regulations, section 19810. Those standards require that we plan 
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance 
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on the state programs noted below 
occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about Hamilton Unified School District's compliance 
with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. 
 
We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance with the requirements referred 
to above. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of Hamilton Unified School District's compliance 
with those requirements. 
 
Opinion on State Compliance 
 
In our opinion, Hamilton Unified School District complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance 
requirements referred to above that are applicable to the state programs noted in the table below for the year ended 
June 30, 2020.  
 
 

Page 104



 

69 

Other Matters 
 
The results of our auditing procedures disclosed instances of noncompliance, which are described in the 
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as Findings #2020-002, #2020-003. Our opinion on state 
compliance is not modified with respect to these matters. 
 
Hamilton Unified School District’s response to the noncompliance findings identified in our audit are described in the 
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs and corrective action plan. Hamilton Unified School 
District’s response was not subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of compliance and, accordingly, 
we express no opinion on the response. 
 
Procedures Performed 
 
In connection with the audit referred to above, we selected and tested transactions and records to determine Hamilton 
Unified School District's compliance with the state laws and regulations applicable to the following items: 
 

PROGRAM NAME
PROCEDURES 
PERFORMED

Local Education Agencies Other Than Charter Schools
Attendance Yes
Teacher Certification and Misassignments Yes
Kindergarten Continuance Yes
Independent Study Not Applicable
Continuation Education No
Instructional Time Yes
Instructional Materials Yes
Ratios of Administrative Employees to Teachers Yes
Classroom Teacher Salaries Yes
Early Retirement Incentive Not Applicable
Gann Limit Calculation Yes
School Accountability Report Card Yes
Juvenile Court Schools Not Applicable
Middle or Early College High Schools Not Applicable
K-3 Grade Span Adjustment Yes
Transportation Maintenance of Effort Yes
Apprenticeship: Related and Supplemental Instruction Not Applicable
Comprehensive School Safety Plan Yes
District of Choice Not Applicable

School Districts, County Offices of Education, and Charter Schools
California Clean Energy Jobs Act Yes
After/Before School Education and Safety Program Not Applicable
Proper Expenditure of Education Protection Account Funds Yes
Unduplicated Local Control Funding Formula Pupil Counts Yes
Local Control and Accountability Plan Yes
Independent Study-Course Based Not Applicable  

 
(Continued on the next page)  

Page 105



 

70 

Procedures Performed (continued) 
 

Charter Schools
Attendance; for charter schools Not Applicable
Mode of Instruction;  for charter schools Not Applicable
Nonclassroom-Based Instruction/Independent Study;  

for charter schools Not Applicable
Determination of Funding for Nonclassroom-Based 

Instruction;  for charter schools Not Applicable
Annual Instructional Minutes – Classroom Based;  for 

charter schools Not Applicable
Charter School Facility Grant Program Not Applicable  

 
We did not perform testing for continuation education because total reported ADA was not material.   
 
 
 
 
San Diego, California 
January 25, 2021 
 
 
 

Page 106



 

 

 

 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND  
QUESTIONED COSTS 

 

 
 
 

Page 107



 

71 

HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
SUMMARY OF AUDITORS’ RESULTS  
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020 
 
 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Type of auditors' report issued: Unmodified
Internal control over financial reporting:

Material weakness(es) identified? No
Significant deficiency(ies) identified? Yes

Non-compliance material to financial statements noted? No

FEDERAL AWARDS

STATE AWARDS
Internal control over state programs:

Material weaknesses identified? No
Significant deficiency(ies) identified? Yes

Type of auditors' report issued on compliance for state programs: Unmodified

The District was not subject to Uniform Guidance Single Audit for the year ended
    June 30, 2020 because federal award expenditures did not exceed $750,000.

 
 
 
 

Page 108



 

72 

HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS  
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020 
 
 

FIVE DIGIT CODE AB 3627 FINDING TYPE 
20000 
30000 

Inventory of Equipment 
Internal Control 

 
FINDING #2020-001: INTERFUND ACTIVITY (30000) 
 
Criteria: Education Code Section 42603 allows the governing board to authorize the temporary borrowing of monies 
held in any fund to another fund for payment of obligations. The transfer shall be accounted for as temporary 
borrowing between funds and shall not be available for apportionment or be considered income to the borrowing 
fund. Amounts transferred shall be repaid either in the same fiscal year, or in the following fiscal year if the transfer 
takes place within the final 120 calendar days of a fiscal year.  
 
Condition: Through review of interfund borrowing transaction detail it was apparent that prior year interfund payable 
and receivable was not properly repaid to the respective fund. The uncleared interfund activity consisted of a $10,000 
payable from the Child Development Fund to the General Fund for repayment of loan for completion of preschool 
project. 
 
Effect: Interfund borrowing activities are not being properly monitored and cleared as required by Education Code 
Section 42603. 
 
Cause: Lack of oversight during the year and closing procedures. 
 
Repeat Finding: No, this is not a repeat finding. 
 
Recommendation: We recommend the District implement proper controls to ensure interfund payables and 
receivables are cleared within the same fiscal year or in the following fiscal year if the transfer takes place within the 
final 120 calendar days of a fiscal year.  
 
Corrective Action Plan: This issue is related to a interfund temporary borrowing that occurred in 2012-13.  In the 
future, during the closing process, the District will review all interfund payable and receivable accounts to ensure they 
are cleared in a timely manner as required by Education Code Section 42603. 
 
 
 

Page 109



 

73 

HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
STATE AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS  
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020 
 
 

FIVE DIGIT CODE AB 3627 FINDING TYPE 
10000 Attendance 
40000 
42000 
43000 
60000 

State Compliance 
Charter School Facilities Programs 

Apprenticeship: Related and Supplemental Instruction 
Miscellaneous 

61000 Classroom Teacher Salaries 
62000 Local Control Accountability Plan 
70000 Instructional Materials 
71000 Teacher Misassignments 
72000 School Accountability Report Card 

 
FINDING #2020‐002: CLASSROOM TEACHER SALARIES (61000)  
 
Criteria: As set forth in California Education Code section 41372, a unified school district should expend a minimum 
of 55% of the District’s current expenses of education towards salaries of classroom teachers.  
 
Condition: In the 2019-20 fiscal year, the District did not meet the minimum percentage requirement of 55% for a 
unified school district.  The District spent 52.80% on classroom teacher salaries resulting in a shortfall of 2.20%. 
 
Effect: The District’s current expense of education for the year ended June 30, 2020 was $7,490,225 and the total 
salaries and benefits for classroom teachers was $3,954,866. The District was below the minimum required 
percentage of 55% by 2.2% which calculates out to a deficiency of $164,785.  
 
Cause: The deficiency was due to hardship during 2019-20. 
 
Questioned Costs: The questioned costs are the deficiency of $164,785.  
 
Repeat Finding: No, this is not a repeat finding.  
 
Recommendation: We recommend that the District submit an application for exemption with the County. 
 
Corrective Action Plan: The District submitted an application for exemption with the County which was approved.  
The District is striving to meet the minimum percentage requirement for future years. 
 
 
  

Page 110



 

74 

HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
STATE AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS, continued 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020 
 
 
FINDING #2020‐003: INSTRUCTIONAL MATERIALS (70000)  
 
Criteria: Per Education Code Section 60119, the public hearing for instructional materials must occur on or before 
the end of the eighth week from the first day pupils attended school for that year.  
 
Condition: The District’s did not hold a public hearing regarding the sufficiency of instructional materials prior to the 
adoption of the resolution on August 28, 2019. 
 
Cause: There were changes in personnel during this time which contributed to the oversight of requirements.  
 
Effect: The District is not in compliance with California Education Code Section 60119.  
 
Questioned Costs: Funding for this program has ended, thus there are no questioned costs related to instructional 
materials.  
 
Repeat Finding: No, this not a repeat finding. 
 
Recommendation: We recommend that the District comply with Education Code Section 60119 in the future and 
ensure that the public hearing for instructional materials occurs on or before the end of the eighth week from the first 
day pupils attended school for that year.  
 
Corrective Action Plan: The District was going through several personnel changes during the time of the oversight.  
Personnel has been stable over the last year and is anticipated to continue.  The District has also put procedures in 
place to ensure compliance with Education Code Section 60119. 
 
  

Page 111



 

75 

HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS  
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020 
 
 
There were no prior audit findings or questioned costs for the year ended June 30, 2019. 
 
 

P
age 112



HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

 

Agenda Item Number: 13c Date: 2/24/2021 

Agenda Item Description: 

Accept HUSD Updated Protocols Matrix 

Background:  

CDPH revised recommended close contact quarantine period from 14 days to 10 days in a memo dated 

December 14, 2020. As a result, we have updated our HUSD Protocols Matrix to reflect these changes. 

Status: Pending board acceptance 

Fiscal Impact: None 

Educational Impact:  None 

Recommendation: Recommend board accept HUSD Updated Protocols Matrix. 

 

 

Page 113



COVID-19 Case Process for Hamilton Unified School District 
Adapted from Shasta County Protocols 

SCENARIO #1 IMMEDIATE ACTIONS COMMUNICATION 

A student or staff member either -answers 

“yes” to a health screening question 

-OR-  

Exhibits the following COVID-19 

symptoms: 

Students: Fever of 100.4 degrees or 

higher; Sore throat; New uncontrolled 

cough that causes difficulty breathing; 

Diarrhea, vomiting, or abdominal pain; 

New onset of severe headache, especially 

with a fever. 

School site will remain open 

• Student/staff are isolated at the site until they can be sent home or to a

healthcare facility per CDPH guidance

• If student/staff tests positive, see Scenario 3.

• If student/staff tests negative, see Scenario 4.

• In addition, the individual may have a medical note by a physician that clears

student to return to school. The individual may also return to school after 24-

hours fever free (without the use of fever-reducing medicine) and

improvement in other symptoms.

Site: 

• COVID-19 symptoms letter

provided to individual or

individual’s guardian

SCENARIO #2 IMMEDIATE ACTIONS COMMUNICATION 

A family member or someone in close 

contact with a student or staff member 

(outside the school community) tests 

positive for COVID-19 

School site will remain open 

• Student/staff sent home

• District Office notified

• Student/staff instructed to quarantine and monitor for symptoms, even if 
they test negative, for a full 10 days after: 

   The date of last exposure to a COVID-19 positive non-household contact 

-OR- 

The date COVID-19 positive household member completes their isolation 

If student/staff begin to show COVID-19 like symptoms, it is recommended to 

be tested. 

• If student/staff test positive, see Scenario 3

No action is required by individuals that have not had direct contact with the 

confirmed COVID-19 case. 

Student (Guardian) or Staff: 

Immediately notify the District 

Office if they are a close contact of 

a confirmed case and provide the 

Quarantine Dates listed on the 

Public Health Order 

District Office: 

Inform Glenn County Public Health 

that student/staff is on 

Quarantine/Isolation per Public 

Health 

https://www.cdph.ca.gov/Programs/CID/DCDC/Pages/COVID-19/COVID-19-Quarantine.aspx Updated 1/27/2021

P
age 114

https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/symptoms-testing/symptoms.html
https://covid19.ca.gov/pdf/guidance-schools.pdf
twilhelm
Highlight



SCENARIO #3 IMMEDIATE ACTIONS COMMUNICATION 

A student or staff member tests positive 

for COVID-19 

School site will remain open/Cohort may close for 14 days 

• Student/staff sent home, if not already at home

• School administration and District Administration notified

• Glenn County Public Health notified

• Close off and clean any areas used by the person who tested positive, per

CDPH and CDC guidance.

• Student/staff that tested positive: Can return to school after isolating for 10

days after symptom onset and at least 24-hours fever free (without fever-

reducing medication) and symptoms have improved or 10 days since test date

• School-based close contacts: identified and instructed to self-quarantine and

monitor symptoms for 10 days. Close contacts are identified as:

o In stable elementary classroom cohorts: entire cohort

o In other settings: use seating chart, consult with teacher/staff

• If close contacts begin to show COVID-19 like symptoms, it is recommended

to be tested. Testing does not shorten 10-day quarantine

No action is required by individuals that have not had direct contact with the 

confirmed COVID-19 case. 

COVID-19 positive Individual: 

Immediately notify school 

administration and/or District 

Office of positive result and 

Isolation Dates. 

District Office: 

• Contact Glenn County Public

Health

• Close Contact letter and Self-

Quarantine Instructions sent to

school close contacts within 48

hours.

• Confirmed COVID-19 case

notification sent to school

community 

SCENARIO #4 IMMEDIATE ACTIONS COMMUNICATION 

A student or staff member tests negative 

for COVID-19 after Scenario 1 

(symptomatic) 

School site will remain open 

Student/staff may return to school after at least 24-hours with no fever (and no 

fever reducing medications) AND improvement in other symptoms. 

Student family/staff to bring 

evidence of negative COVID-19 test 

or medical note if testing not 

performed. 

SCENARIO #5 IMMEDIATE ACTIONS COMMUNICATION 

A student or staff member tests negative 

after Scenario 2 (close contact) 

School site will remain open 

• Student/staff must remain in quarantine for a full 10 days
after: 1) The date of last exposure to COVID-19 positive non-household contact.

-OR-

2) The date that COVID-19 positive household member completes their

isolation

No action is needed 

https://www.cdph.ca.gov/Programs/CID/DCDC/Pages/COVID-19/COVID-19-Quarantine.aspx Updated 1/27/2021

P
age 115

https://covid19.ca.gov/pdf/guidance-schools.pdf
https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/community/organizations/cleaning-disinfection.html
twilhelm
Highlight

twilhelm
Highlight

twilhelm
Highlight



Page Last Updated : December 14, 2020

December 14, 2020

TO:

SUBJECT:

Sandra Shewry 
Acting Director 

Erica S. Pan, MD, MPH 
Acting State Health O�icer

GAVIN NEWSOM 
Governor

State of California—Health and Human Services Agency 
California Department of Public Health

 

 
 

California Local Health Departments
 

COVID-19 Quarantine Guidance
 

 
  

All asymptomatic close contacts (within 6 feet of an infected person for a cumulative total of 15 minutes or more over a 24-hour period) may discontinue quarantine a�er Day 10 from the

date of last exposure with or without testing.

During critical sta�ing shortages when there are not enough sta� to provide safe patient care, essential critical infrastructure workers in the following categories are not prohibited from

returning a�er Day 7 from the date of last exposure if they have received a negative PCR test result from a specimen collected a�er Day 5:

Exposed asymptomatic health care workers; and

Exposed asymptomatic emergency response and social service workers who work face to face with clients in the child welfare system or in assisted living facilities.

All exposed asymptomatic contacts permitted to reduce the quarantine period to less than 14 days must:

Adhere strictly to all recommended non-pharmaceutical interventions, including wearing face coverings at all times, maintaining a distance of at least 6 feet from others and the

interventions required below, through Day 14.

Use surgical face masks at all times during work for those returning a�er Day 7 and continue to use face coverings when outside the home through Day 14 a�er last exposure.

Self-monitor for COVID-19 symptoms through Day 14 and if symptoms occur, immediately self-isolate and contact their local public health department or healthcare provider and

seek testing. 

Context and Considerations 

Local health jurisdictions may be more restrictive than the above guidance. 

Health care employers with critical sta�ing shortages and lacking the sta� to provide safe patient care may use Contingency Capacity Strategies as described by CDC where asymptomatic

healthcare personnel (including in skilled nursing facilities during an outbreak when all sta� are considered potentially exposed) are allowed to work with a surgical mask or respirator,

but still report temperature and absence of symptoms each day until 14 days a�er exposure.  

Persons who reside or work in a high-risk congregate living setting (e.g. skilled nursing facilities, prisons, jails, shelters) or persons residing or working with severely immunosuppressed

persons (eg. Bone marrow or solid organ transplants, chemotherapy) should still quarantine for 14 days in the absence of sta�ing shortages. 

Background 
The Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC) and California Department of Public Health (CDPH) currently still recommend a quarantine period of 14 days a�er COVID-19 exposure,

based on estimates of the upper bounds of the COVID-19 incubation period. However, a 14-day quarantine can impose burdens that may a�ect physical and mental health as well as cause

economic hardship that may reduce compliance. In addition, the prospect of quarantine may also dissuade recently diagnosed persons from naming contacts and may dissuade contacts from

responding to contact tracer outreach if they perceive quarantine as onerous. In settings with critical sta�ing shortages of health care personnel, for example, the inability to provide adequate

sta�ing for safe patient care due to quarantine is another consideration impacting health outcomes.

Therefore, on December 2, 2020, CDC posted options to reduce quarantine for contacts of persons with SARS-CoV-2 infection.

Based on modeling data demonstrating the residual post-quarantine transmission risk if quarantine were discontinued early, CDC provided two shorter quarantine options. These options were

presented with the recognition that any quarantine shorter than 14 days balances a reduced burden of quarantine and the potential for increased compliance against a small possibility of

increasing the spread of the virus. In both options, additional criteria (e.g., continued symptom monitoring and use of face coverings through Day 14) must be met.

Other persons can also continue to be quarantined for 14 days without a requirement for a negative test result per existing recommendations. This option maximally reduces risk of post-

quarantine transmission risk and is the strategy with the greatest collective experience at present. The residual post-quarantine transmission risk for a 10-day quarantine is estimated to be

about 1% with an upper limit of about 10%. The residual post-quarantine transmission risk for a 7-day quarantine with a negative test at 5-7 days is estimated to be about 5% with an upper

limit of about 12%. Testing for the purpose of earlier discontinuation of quarantine should be considered only if it will have no impact on community diagnostic testing. Testing of symptomatic

persons seeking evaluation for infection must be prioritized.

  

 

California Department of Public Health 
PO Box, 997377, MS 0500, Sacramento, CA 95899-7377  

Department Website (cdph.ca.gov)

Page 116

https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/prevent-getting-sick/prevention.html
https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/hcp/mitigating-staff-shortages.html
https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/more/scientific-brief-options-to-reduce-quarantine.html
http://cdph.ca.gov/


Page Last Updated : January 7, 2021

January 6, 2021

TO:

SUBJECT:

TOMÁS J. ARAGÓN, M.D.,
Dr.P.H. 

State Public Health O�icer &
Director 

GAVIN NEWSOM 
Governor

State of California—Health and Human Services Agency 
California Department of Public Health

 

 
 

All Californians
 

Travel Advisory
 

Travel Advisory

Updated January 6, 2021

The incidence of COVID-19 is increasing in many states and countries, even as California continues to grapple with its own surge of COVID-19 cases.  Persons arriving in California from other

states or Californians returning from other states or countries could introduce new sources of infection (potentially including new strains of the SARS-CoV-2 virus) to California.  Intra-state

travel, likewise threatens to exacerbate community spread within California—particularly because travel itself (especially the use of shared conveyances in air, bus, or rail travel) can increase a

person's chance of spreading and getting COVID-19.  Postponing travel and staying home is the best way to protect yourself and others from COVID-19.

Amid the current COVID-19 surge, it is imperative that California take steps necessary to curb the spread of COVID-19 and contain new sources of infection.  The State is issuing the following

recommendations, which supercede the Travel Advisory issued on November 13, 2020 and shall apply prospectively from January 6, 2021:

Non-Essential Travel [i]
1.    Except in connection with essential travel, Californians should avoid non-essential travel to any part of California more than 120 miles from one's place of residence, or to other states or

countries. Avoiding travel reduces the risk of virus transmission, including by reducing the risk that new sources of infection and, potentially, new virus strains will be introduced to California.

2.    Non-essential travelers from other states or countries are strongly discouraged from entering California, and should adhere to the quarantine procedures set forth in Paragraph 3.

Quarantine Post-Travel
3.    All persons arriving in or returning to California from other states or countries, should self-quarantine for 10 days [ii] a�er arrival, except as necessary to meet urgent critical healthcare

sta�ing needs or to otherwise engage in emergency response. Additionally, this recommendation does not apply to individuals who routinely cross state or country borders for essential travel

[iii].

A Local Health O�icer may determine if and when the situation within the Local Health O�ficer's jurisdiction warrants measures that are more restrictive than this statewide order, and retains

authority to implement such measures.

 

 

i "Non-essential travel" includes travel that is considered tourism or recreational in nature. 

ii The quarantine period was updated consistent with emerging science and the CDC's latest recommendations.

iii "Essential travel" is travel associated with the operation, maintenance, or usage of critical infrastructure or otherwise required or expressly authorized by law (including other applicable

state and local public health directives), including work and study, critical infrastructure support, economic services and supply chains, health, immediate medical care, and safety and

security.

 

 

California Department of Public Health 
PO Box, 997377, MS 0500, Sacramento, CA 95899-7377  

Department Website (cdph.ca.gov)

Page 117

https://www.cdph.ca.gov/Programs/CID/DCDC/Pages/COVID-19/COVID-19-Quarantine.aspx
https://ca.usembassy.gov/travel-restrictions-fact-sheet/
https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/more/scientific-brief-options-to-reduce-quarantine.html
http://cdph.ca.gov/


HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

 

Agenda Item Number: 13d Date: 2/24/2021 

Agenda Item Description: 

Accept Local Plan Section B: Governance and Administration FY 2020-21 SELPA 

Background:  

Last board meeting, the Board was presented and reviewed the Local Plan Selection B: Governance and 

Administration FY 2020-2021 SLEPA.  This document outlines services provided by the District by our 

local SELPA (managed through Glenn County Office of Education).   

 

Status: Pending board acceptance 

Fiscal Impact: None 

Educational Impact:  Provides Special Education services to our students in need of services. 

Recommendation: Recommend board accept Local Plan Section B: Governance and Administration FY 

2020-21 SELPA. 

 

 

Page 118



Special Education Local Plan Area (SELPA) Local Plan 

SELPA Glenn County Fiscal Year 2020-21 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

LOCAL PLAN 

Section B: Governance and Administration 

SPECIAL EDUCATION LOCAL PLAN AREA 

 

 

 

California Department of Education 

Special Education Division 

January 2020 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

CDE Form Version 2.0 

Page 119



Section B: Governance and Administration 

SELPA Glenn County Fiscal Year 2020-21 

Page B-1 of 47 CDE Form Version 2.0 

 

 

 

B. Governance and Administration 

California Education Code (EC) sections 56195 et seq. and 56205 
 

Participating Local Educational Agencies 
 

Participating local educational agencies (LEAs) included in the Special Education Local Plan Area 

(SELPA) local plan must be identified in Attachment I. 
 

Special Education Local Plan Area—Local Plan Requirements 
 

1. Describe the geographic service area covered by the local plan: 
 

 

2. Describe the SELPA regional governance and administrative structure of the local plan. 

Clearly define the roles and structure of a multi-LEA governing body, or single LEA 

administration as applicable: 
 

The Glenn County SELPA's geographic service area is the geographic boundaries of the 

following school districts: 
 

Capay Joint Union School District 

Glenn County Office of Education 

Hamilton Unified School District 

Lake Elementary School District 

Orland Unified School District 

Plaza Elementary School District 

Princeton Unified School District 

Stony Creek Joint Unified School District 

Willows Unified School District 

2.1 Governing Body 
 

The governing body of the SELPA is the Governance Committee. Members of the Governance 

Committee include the superintendent of each school district, the county superintendent of 

Page 120



Section B: Governance and Administration 

SELPA Glenn County Fiscal Year 2020-21 

Page B-2 of 47 CDE Form Version 2.0 

 

 

 

schools, and the SELPA Director.  The SELPA Director is a non-voting member. 
 

2.1.1 Procedure for Change to LEA Membership 
 

2.1.2 Addition of an LEA or Charter LEA -A request by a charter school to participate as an LEA 

in the Glenn County SELPA will not be treated differently from a similar request made by a 

school district. For more information, see the SELPA's Policies and Procedures, for the Charter 

School policy and procedure. In reviewing and approving such a request, the following 

requirements shall apply: 
 

The new LEA shall participate in state and federal funding for special education and will 

receive the funding in the same manner as other LEAs of the SELPA as specified in the 

SELPA funding allocation plan. 
 

The new LEA shall participate in the governance of the SELPA in the same manner as 

other LEAs of the SELPA. 
 

2.1.2 Procedure for Change to LEA Membership 

Addition of an LEA - Any LEA in Glenn County may request to join the Glenn County SELPA. 

The procedures for such action follow: 

The Superintendent/director of the LEA requesting to join must submit written 

notice to the SELPA Administrator on or before September 1 of the school year 

preceding the school year in which the LEA anticipates adding 

The SELPA Director will notify the SELPA Governance Committee 

The SELPA Governance Committee will take action to approve or disapprove the 

LEA joining the SELPA within 100 days of application 

If approved, the new LEA will become a voting member effective on July 1 of the 

next fiscal year 

 
Withdrawal of an LEA - Any LEA in Glenn County SELPA may request to withdraw from the 

Glenn County SELPA. The procedures for such action follow: 

The Superintendent of the LEA requesting withdrawal must submit written notice to 

the SELPA Administrator on or before September 1 of the school year preceding 

the school year in which the LEA anticipates withdrawing 

The SELPA Director will notify the SELPA Governance Committee 

The SELPA Governance Committee will take action to approve or disapprove the 

LEA withdrawing from the SELPA within 100 days of application 

If approved, the withdrawal will become effective on July 1 of the next fiscal year 

2.2 Governance Structure and Administrative Support 
 

The Glenn County SELPA's legal status is that of an unincorporated association. Each LEA 

shall be responsible for adoption and implementation of the Local Plan as outlined. 
 

The LEAs within the Glenn County SELPA join together to assure access to special education 

Page 121



Section B: Governance and Administration 

SELPA Glenn County Fiscal Year 2020-21 

Page B-3 of 47 CDE Form Version 2.0 

 

 

 

and services for all eligible individuals who reside in the geographic area served by these 

agencies. In adopting the Local Plan, each participating agency agrees to carry out the duties 

and responsibilities assigned to it within the Local Plan (See Education Code Section 56205.) 

Participating agencies may enter into additional contractual arrangements to meet the 

requirements of applicable Federal and State law. 
 

2.3 Responsibilities of Participating Agencies 
 

In adopting the Local Plan, each participating local education agency (LEA) agrees to carry out 

the duties and responsibilities assigned to it within the plan. LEAs are responsible for the 

identification, referral, evaluation and IEP development for students residing within their 

attendance areas. LEAs will employ a student study team process (SST) to ensure that the 

resources of the general education program have been considered and, where appropriate, 

utilized prior to referring students for a special education evaluation. 
 

All LEAs will retain primary responsibility for the education of individuals with exceptional needs 

residing in their respective boundaries, including students attending charter schools where an 

LEA of the SELPA has granted that charter, and will participate in all meetings to develop, 

review, and/or revise the individualized education programs for such students, including such 

meetings conducted by other agencies which are providing services to such students. LEAs 

may either provide services directly or through agreement with a program operator within the 

SELPA, a public agency other than a public school or a non-public school or agency. In 

addition, each agency shall cooperate to the maximum extent possible with other agencies to 

serve disabled individuals who cannot be served in the LEA of residence programs. Such 

cooperation ensures that a range of program options is available throughout the Glenn County 

SELPA. 
 

2.4 Implementation of Administrative Functions 
 

The Glenn County Office of Education shall serve as the responsible local Administrative Unit 

(AU) for the SELPA to perform functions such as receipt and distribution of funds, provision of 

administrative support, and coordination of the implementation of the Local Plan. 
 
 
 

 

3. Describe the SELPA's regional policy making process. Clearly define the roles of a multi-LEA 

governing body, or single LEA administration as applicable related to the policy making 

process for coordinating and implementing the local plan: 
 

3.1 Policy Development: Each district Governing Board and the County Superintendent of 

Schools, in adopting this Local Plan, adopt the SELPA policies and procedures contained 

herein. District Governing Boards also participate in the governance of the Glenn County 

SELPA through their designated representative to the Governance Committee. The governing 

boards provide the Governance Committee with the authority to act as the Board designee to 

Page 122



Section B: Governance and Administration 

SELPA Glenn County Fiscal Year 2020-21 

Page B-4 of 47 CDE Form Version 2.0 

 

 

 

approve and amend policies as necessary. 
 

Individual LEAs may elect to utilize alternative procedures to meet their specific needs provided 

that they consult with the SELPA Director to assure their compliance with federal and state laws 

and their conformity with the general intent of the SELPA’s procedural framework. 
 

3.2 SELPA Governance Committee 
 

The Governance Committee serves as the decision making body for the SELPA. The 

membership of the Governance Committee shall include a superintendent, or designee, from 

each of the participating LEAs and the Glenn County Superintendent of Schools. 
 

Superintendents must notify the SELPA Director prior to a meeting when appointing a designee 

in their absence. When possible, notification should be at least 24 hours prior to the meeting. 

Superintendents may appoint a designee for a period of up to one school year. Appointments 

for extended periods of time must be submitted in writing to the SELPA Director prior to the 

date of the first meeting the designee is scheduled to attend. The SELPA Director as a non- 

voting member shall assist in the preparation of agendas, gather special education program 

information, and complete other duties as requested by the Governance Committee. 
 

The Governance Committee meets monthly during the school year to implement the business 

of the SELPA and to provide the necessary direction and guidance to the SELPA Director with 

regard to SELPA related issues. The Committee may meet more or less often depending on 

the needs of the SELPA, but no less than 4 times per year. All meetings shall comply with 

Brown Act requirements and be posted accordingly. Summary minutes of each meeting shall 

be distributed to each superintendent at least 3 calendar days prior to the next Governance 

Committee meeting. 
 

Voting in the Governance Committee shall be on a one agency-one vote system. A two thirds 

vote of the total number of eligible voting members of the Governance Committee, including at 

least one vote from each of the following, a unified school district, a joint unified school district 

and an elementary school district, is required in order to approve an action item. Two thirds of 

the voting members, including at least one representative from each of the following, a unified 

school district, a joint unified school district and an elementary school district, must be present 

to constitute a quorum. If a school district is without a superintendent, either the person 

designated to act as temporary superintendent or a person designated by the district governing 

board will be considered a valid voting member of the Governance Committee until the 

permanent superintendent is available. 
 

Unless otherwise agreed upon, the Governance Committee shall annually elect one of the 

members to act as chairperson which will be voted on at the February SELPA Governance 

meeting with the term beginning July of the current year. If the chairperson is unable to attend 

a Committee meeting, the chairperson will appoint a substitute from among the remaining 

Committee members to act as chairperson for the meeting. Examples of the duties of the 

chairperson include the following: 

Page 123



Section B: Governance and Administration 

SELPA Glenn County Fiscal Year 2020-21 

Page B-5 of 47 CDE Form Version 2.0 

 

 

 

• Review and become familiar with agenda items prior to each meeting 

• Consult with the SELPA Director as appropriate regarding agenda items 

• Facilitate the meeting process 
 

The duties of the Governance Committee include but are not limited to the following: 
 

• Establish policies and procedures for the implementation of the local plan. 
 

• Approve SELPA financial actions including distribution of special education funding, 
development of cost containment agreements and procedures, and review the budgets 
of the AU and other program operators 

 

• Monitor the appropriate use of State, Federal, and local funds allocated for special 
education programs. Annually reviews the prior year expenditures and the proposed 
budgets of the SELPA AU and the LEAs providing special education programs and 
services, regionalized services, and program specialist services 

 

• Review and approve needed modifications, and adopt amendments to the permanent 
portion of the Local Plan. 

 

• Approve the SELPA-wide annual service and budget plans, and subsequent 
modifications as needed. 

 

• Approve operation manuals and handbooks to assist in the implementation of the Local 
Plan. 

 

• Establishes operational procedures and renders decisions regarding the administration, 
implementation, and operation of special education programs and services in 
accordance with the Local Plan 

 

• Approve the type, number, location and relocation of special education programs and 
services with consideration of recommendations from the Advisory Cabinet. 

 

• Review in-service/staff development programs, including parent education activities 
developed by the Advisory Cabinet. 

• Consider recommendations from the SELPA Director 
 

• At the request of any LEA, reviews administrative decisions or recommendations made 
by the SELPA Director 

• Provides for public input at each meeting 

In addition to carrying out the responsibilities identified in the Local Plan, the SELPA Governance 
Committee may form specific subcommittees to focus on special issues. Such subcommittees 
shall report to the SELPA Governance Committee.  Agenda items for the Governance 
Committee may originate from the Governance Committee, the Advisory Cabinet, another 
subcommittee appointed by the Governance Committee or from individual members of these 

Page 124



Section B: Governance and Administration 

SELPA Glenn County Fiscal Year 2020-21 

Page B-6 of 47 CDE Form Version 2.0 

 

 

 

 
 

4. Clearly define the roles of the County Office of Education (COE) as applicable, and/or any 

other administrative supports necessary to coordinate and implement the local plan: 

 
4.1 Responsibilities of District Governing Boards, the County Board of Education and the 

County Superintendent of Schools 
 

The Governing Board for each participating school district, the County Board of Education and 

the County Superintendent of Schools have overall responsibility for the development, 

implementation, and operation of the Local Plan, which assures access to special education 

and services for all disabled individuals, birth to age 22 years, residing in the geographic region 

served by the Local Plan. Responsibilities for governing board members and the County 

Superintendent of Schools include the following: 
 

4.2 Plan Adoption: The Governing Board of each participating school district and the Glenn 

County Office of Education have individual responsibility for approving and adopting this Local 

Plan and any significant revisions thereto. 
 

This Local Plan shall be considered the general policy under which school districts and the 

county office of education, as participants in the Local Plan and members of the Glenn County 

SELPA, share in the management and operation of special education programs and services to 

meet their shared responsibility for providing a free appropriate public education for individuals 

with exceptional needs. 
 

The respective Governing Boards shall have input into the development or significant revision 

of a Local Plan through their appointments to the Community Advisory Committee, their 

administrative representation on the Governance Committee, and their individual approval/ 

adoption process. 
 

Adoption of this Local Plan, and any substantive revision thereto, shall be the final step in the 

policy making process for the management of the SELPA. Thus, the District Governing Boards 

and the County Superintendent of Schools serve as approval agencies, reviewing and adopting 

the Local Plan and, thereby, continuing their individual commitments to the implementation of 

groups. 
 

3.3 Policy and Procedure Adoption 
 

Policies and procedures are formulated and refined by the aforementioned committees. 

Policies and procedures may originate at the Governance Committee or Advisory Cabinet level. 

Once a program policy or procedure is approved through the Advisory Cabinet, it moves 

forward to the Governance Committee for final approval. Once approved by the Governance 

Committee policies and procedures must be implemented by each participating member of the 

SELPA. Individual LEAs may develop additional policies and procedures provided they are 

consistent with those adopted by the SELPA. 

Page 125



Section B: Governance and Administration 

SELPA Glenn County Fiscal Year 2020-21 

Page B-7 of 47 CDE Form Version 2.0 

 

 

 

the Local Plan. 
 

Proposed additions to, or modifications of, existing policies concerning the management of the 

SELPA may originate at any administrative level, from site administrator to Governing Board 

member, or through recommendation of the Community Advisory Committee.  The 

development of such additions or modifications shall be the responsibility of the SELPA 

Advisory Cabinet (see Section 1.10 of the local plan) with the assistance of the SELPA Director. 

Approval of such additions or modifications shall be the responsibility of the SELPA 

Governance Committee (see Section 1.9 of the local plan) with the assistance of the SELPA 

director. If such additions or modifications are of a significant nature, they must also be 

considered a revision of the Local Plan and would be, therefore, subject to the Local Plan 

approval process. 
 

The Governing Board of each school district and the County Superintendent of Schools, in 

adopting this Local Plan also adopt the organizational structure, the governance mechanism, 

the operational agreements, and the coordinated identification, referral, assessment, 

instructional planning, implementation, and review framework contained herein. Any 

substantive revisions to these elements will be subject to the Local Plan approval process. 
 

4.3 Program Operation: The Governing Board of each school district and the County 

Superintendent of Schools has the responsibility to operate those programs which have been 

assigned to them through the annual budget and service plans developed for the Local Plan 

Area. Each school district and the county office of education will retain control over the 

recruitment and hiring of personnel necessary to staff the programs they respectively operates. 
 

4.4 Fiscal Authority: The Governing Board of each school district and the County 

Superintendent of Schools will retain authority over the budgets for the special education 

programs which they operate. However, special education program budgets shall be made 

available for review upon the request of the SELPA Governance Committee. The special 

education budget for each program operator shall be developed and reviewed utilizing 

procedures established by the SELPA. 
 

The individual school districts and the county office of education will also adopt fiscal and 

budgetary procedures that assure funds apportioned to their respective LEAs under Part 30 of 

the Education Code and Part B of the Individuals with Disabilities Education Act are expended 

exclusively for the purposes for which they were intended. 
 

4.5 Responsibilities of District and County Program Administrators 
 

District and county administrators of special education are responsible for the coordination of 

special education services and programs within their agencies and for the implementation of 

the policies and procedures contained in the Local Plan. 

Page 126



Section B: Governance and Administration 

SELPA Glenn County Fiscal Year 2020-21 

Page B-8 of 47 CDE Form Version 2.0 

 

 

 
 

5. Describe the policies and procedures of the SELPA that allow for the participation of charter 

schools in the local plan: 
 

 

6. Identify and describe the representation and participation of the SELPA community advisory 

committee (CAC) pursuant to EC Section 56190 in the development of the local plan: 

 
6.1 Community Advisory Committee: 

 

Each district Governing Board and the County Board of Education shall appoint representatives 

to the Community Advisory Committee as specified elsewhere in this Local Plan.  The 

appointing boards will solicit nominees for these appointments from the representative groups, 

including School Site Councils, and will invite periodic reports from their appointees. 
 

Involvement of parents and community in the local education process is a goal of high 

importance to the Glenn County SELPA. The involvement of special and general education 

teachers is of equally high value. It is expected that this goal will be facilitated through the CAC. 

The CAC of Glenn County is formed to advise Districts, County Offices of Education, and the 

SELPA Director on matters pertaining to the local plan and planning and implementation of 

special education programs and services throughout the Glenn County SELPA. 
 

6.2 Membership 
 

All parents are encouraged to participate in the CAC. The composition of the voting members 

of the CAC will be determined by the SELPA Director according to EC 56191 and 56192. 

Voting members will be appointed by their respective school district or county office governing 

board. Members shall be appointed for at least 2 years with appointments annually staggered 

to ensure that no more than half of the membership serves the first year of the term in any one 

year. 
 

All District and County Boards are encouraged to have at least one representative at all times. 

As a group, parents shall be a majority of the total committee with the parents of children with 

disabilities comprising the majority of parents. Members of local PTA/PTO's, education 

specialist teachers, general education classroom teachers and school personnel, students with 

disabilities, representatives of related public and private agencies, and other persons 

concerned with the needs of children with disabilities may also be represented.  All members of 

5.1 Charter Schools (E.C. 56207.5 (a-c)) 
 

It shall be the policy of this SELPA that a request by a charter school to participate as a local 

educational agency in a special education local plan area may not be treated differently from a 

similar request made by a school district. 

Page 127



Section B: Governance and Administration 

SELPA Glenn County Fiscal Year 2020-21 

Page B-9 of 47 CDE Form Version 2.0 

 

 

 

 
 

7. Describe the SELPA's process for regular consultations regarding the plan development with 

representative of special education and regular education teachers, and administrators 

selected by the groups they represent and parent members of the CAC: 

 
7.1 Responsibilities 

 

The SELPA has established the CAC to serve in an advisory capacity to the SELPA. The CAC 

will have the opportunity to review and provide input on policy and budget development matters 

prior to action by the Governance Committee. Special education teachers, general education 

teachers, administrators, and parent members of the CAC shall participate in regular 

consultations regarding policy and budget development. The CAC meets regularly during the 

school year. The bylaws for the CAC are on file at the SELPA Office. The responsibilities of the 

CAC include, but are not limited to, the following: 
 

• Advise the SELPA Director, the Superintendent of the AU, the Governance Committee 
and Superintendent's Council regarding the development, amendment and review of the 
Local Plan, programs, and services. 

 

• Inform and advise Special Education Local Plan Area staff regarding community 
conditions, aspirations, and goals for children with disabilities. 

• Make recommendations for annual priorities to be addressed by the SELPA. 
 

• Assist in parent education and in recruiting parents, volunteers, and agencies that may 
contribute to the implementation of the Local Plan. 

 

• Encourage community awareness and involvement in the development and review of the 
Local Plan. 

• Support activities on behalf of children with disabilities. 

• Facilitate communication between schools, parents, and community. 

• Assist in parent awareness of the importance of regular school attendance. 
 
 

8. Identify and describe the responsible local agency (RLA), Administrative Unit (AU), or other 

agency who is responsible for performing tasks such as the receipt and distribution of funds, 

provision of administrative support, and coordination and implementation of the plan: 
 

CAC shall be charged with the responsibility of serving the SELPA region as a whole. 

8.1 FISCAL RESPONSIBILITIES 
 

All Federal and State special education funds shall be allocated to the GCOE for distribution to 

Page 128



Section B: Governance and Administration 

SELPA Glenn County Fiscal Year 2020-21 

Page B-10 of 47 CDE Form Version 2.0 

 

 

 

the LEAs according to an approved Special Education Funding Allocation Plan. Any 

changes to the allocation of Federal and State special education funds shall be made by the 

Governance Committee. 
 

8.2 Responsibilities for Distribution of State and Federal Funds 
 

The governing boards of the local education agencies participating in the SELPA have agreed 

that students with disabilities will be provided with appropriate special education services. 

The Governance Committee has been designated the authority to determine the distribution 

of all federal and state special education funds in order for local education agencies to carry 

out their responsibilities. The GCOE shall be responsible for the distribution of special 

education funds according to an approved Local Special Education Funding Allocation Plan. 
 

8.3 Provision of Special Education Services to Students with Disabilities 
 

It is the intention of the SELPA to provide a full continuum of services to students with 

disabilities, including students in charter schools, throughout the geographic region of the 

SELPA. Access to services is through each of the local education agencies. The referral, 

assessment and IEP process is utilized to identify the needs of each individual student with 

disabilities. The local education agencies are committed to policies and procedures to 

assure that students have access to appropriate services provided in the least restrictive 

environment. 
 

The SELPA Director in collaboration with program specialists, administrators of special 

education, the Advisory Cabinet and Governance Committee will identify, on a regular basis, 

any unmet needs of students within the SELPA. With the assistance of the SELPA Director, 

LEAs will identify resources that could provide the appropriate services within the SELPA. 

When services are required beyond the programs and services being provided by any LEA 

or the County Office, the Advisory Cabinet shall develop a plan for consideration by the 

Governance Committee. 
 

The Advisory Cabinet will annually review the continuum of services and delivery model for all 

special education services provided within the SELPA and report their findings and 

recommendations to the Governance Committee. 
 

8.4 Preparation of Program and Fiscal Reports 
 

The SELPA Director and the CBO of the GCOE, or designee, shall be responsible to prepare 

all program and fiscal reports required of the SELPA by the state. LEAs shall provide 

information as necessary in order to compile reports. 
 

Annual Budget Plan - The SELPA Director and the CBO of the GCOE, or designee, shall 

develop the annual budget plan for review and approval by the Governance Committee. 

Adoption of the annual budget plan will follow a 15-day posting of a public hearing notice and 

Brown Act rules as applied to public meetings and agendas.  The annual budget plan will be 

Page 129



Section B: Governance and Administration 

SELPA Glenn County Fiscal Year 2020-21 

Page B-11 of 47 CDE Form Version 2.0 

 

 

 

adopted according timelines provided by the CDE. 
 

Annual Service Plan – The SELPA Director shall develop the annual service plan for review 

and approval by the Governance Committee. Adoption of the annual service plan will follow 

a 15-day posting of a public hearing notice and Brown Act rules as applied to public 

meetings and agendas. The annual service plan will be adopted according timelines 

provided by the CDE. 
 

Amendments to the Annual Service and Budget Plans - The governing boards of the local 

education agencies agree to designate authority to the Governance Committee to approve 

the SELPA-wide annual service and budget plans and any subsequent modifications. 
 

8.5 Joint Fiscal Oversight Committee: The Joint Fiscal Oversight Committee will have a 

Superintendent as Chair that reports back to the SELPA Governance. Positions to be 

included in the Committee are: 
 

• 3 Superintendents from the following types of districts: Elementary, Unified, and Joint as 
defined by the Local Plan voting structure. 

 

• 2 Chief Business Officers, with one of the CBO's being from the same district as the 
Chair Superintendent if possible. 

• CBO from County Office of Education 

• Director of Special Education Glenn County Office of Education 

• The SELPA Director as an ex-facto member 

The SELPA governing committee shall appoint by unanimous decision the Chair person, the 

Superintendents, and the CBO's. 
 

Purpose and responsibility of Joint Fiscal Oversight Committee: 
 

• Coordinate timely submission of data for fiscal reporting purposes 

• Coordinate timely submission of fiscal reports 

• Review and recommend budget priorities to the Governance Committee 
 

• Submits to the Governance Committee an Annual list of required fiscal reports and dates 
due 

 

• Shall submit all agenda and minutes of each committee meeting to Governance 
Committee 

• Shall meet prior to each SELPA Governance Committee Meeting 

The committee will be consistent with Brown Act Regulations: postings, agenda, minutes and 

Page 130



Section B: Governance and Administration 

SELPA Glenn County Fiscal Year 2020-21 

Page B-12 of 47 CDE Form Version 2.0 

 

 

 

 
 

9. Describe the contractual agreements and the SELPA’s system for determining the 

responsibility of participating agency for the education of each student with special needs 

residing within the geographical area served by the plan: 
 

 

10. For multi-LEA local plans, specify: 
 

a. The responsibilities of each participating COE and LEA governing board in the 

policymaking process: 
 

monthly reporting to the SELPA governance committee. 
 

Appointments for membership will be made in April with July 1 membership for three year 

staggered terms: with initial appointments being made with three members: one person 

nominated for a one-year term, one for two-year term, and one for three-year term. The initial 

chair will be the nominee for the two-year term. 
 

Meeting Frequency:  Minimum of 3 times per year to be aligned with fiscal cycles. 

Local educational agencies (LEAs) are responsible for the students ages 3 to 22 within the 

geographical area consistent with California education code. 

For children from Birth to age 3 will be served by Glenn County Office of Education Early Start 

program. Far Northern Regional Center also provides for services for children from birth to three as 

outlined in the Local Intera-agency Agreement between Far Northern Regional Center and GCOE. 

Each participating LEA's governing board has the responsibilities outlined below. The LEA 

governing boards designate authority to the Superintendents' Council to approve SELPA-wide 

policies and procedures, Annual Budget and Service plans and any subsequent modifications. 

As it is not a participating member, the COE does not participate in the policy making process. 
 

• Approve the Local Plan. 
 

• Implement policies and procedures approved by the Superintendents' Council. The Governing 

Board may appeal unacceptable provisions as prescribed in the appeals policies. 
 

• Appoint members to the Special Education Community Advisory Committee (CAC) in 

accordance with CAC bylaws and LEA policies. Encourage parental involvement through the 

members of CAC, receive and consider requests and recommendations from their CAC 

representatives and other parent groups. 
 

• Review formal complaints forwarded by the respective LEA Superintendents as outlined in the 

LEA's Uniform Complaint Procedures. 

Page 131



Section B: Governance and Administration 

SELPA Glenn County Fiscal Year 2020-21 

Page B-13 of 47 CDE Form Version 2.0 

 

 

 

 
 

b. The responsibilities of the superintendents of each participating LEA and COE in the 

implementation of the local plan: 
 

 

c. The responsibilities of each LEA and COE for coordinating the administration of the 

local plan: 
 

• Address questions and concerns of the public, including parents or guardians of students with 

disabilities who are receiving services under the Local Plan. 
 

• Notify the California Department of Education, impacted LEAs, SELPAs and participating 

county offices of education of the intent to elect an alternative option from those specified in 

California Code, Section 56195.1, at least one year in advance. 
 

Exercise authority over the programs they directly maintain consistent with the Local Plan for 

the SELPA and individual LEA policies. Such programs may include students with disabilities 

who reside in other LEAs or SELPAs. 

Each Superintendent, as chief administrative officer of the participating LEA and the COE, is 

responsible for implementation of the local plan in that LEA. The COE also serves a role as the AU. 

 
Superintendents of the participating LEAs are responsible for serving on the SELPA Governance 

Committee for the SELPA which instructs the SELPA Administrator regarding the implementation of 

the local plan. Under the direction of the SELPA Governance, the SELPA Administrator develops, 

implements, and administers the SELPA budget for the establishment of designated services. The 

SELPA Administrators serves as an ex-officio member of all committees. 

 
Each LEA Director, or the person performing these duties, is to provide leadership in the 

development, implementation, evaluation and improvement of special education programs and 

services within the LEA. 

The role of each LEA and the COE for coordinating the administration of the local plan includes: 

Individual LEAs' are responsible for: 

• Exercising authority over the programs they directly maintain consistent with the local plan and 

individual LEA policies (may include students with disabilities who reside in other LEAs or SELPAs) 

• Developing, implementing, and evaluating, and improving of special education programs and 

services within the LEA 

• Gathering, interpreting, and reporting special education program data and annual performance 

plan indicators, regarding current program operations and effectiveness 

• Cooperating among LEAs pertaining to the implementation, administration and operation of the 

local plan 

• Recommending allocation of resources within the SELPA in accordance with the local plan and the 

Glenn County SELPA Allocation Plan 

• Establishing, modifying, and implementing procedures for the operations of the local plan 

• Establishing and implementing guidelines and procedures to ensure that students with disabilities have access to 

appropriate programs and services regardless of his/his district of special education accountability 

The SELPA Administrator is responsible to plan, organize, coordinate, direct and manage program 

Page 132



Section B: Governance and Administration 

SELPA Glenn County Fiscal Year 2020-21 

Page B-14 of 47 CDE Form Version 2.0 

 

 

 

 
 

11. Identify the respective roles of the RLA/AU, the SELPA administrator, and the individual 

LEAs associated with the SELPA related to: 
 

a. The hiring, supervision, evaluation, and discipline of the SELPA administrator and staff 

employed by the AU in support of the local plan: 

 
11a.1 SELPA ADMINISTRATION 

 

LEA Governing Boards agree that the Governance Committee shall identify the need for and 

designate the positions necessary for the operation of SELPA functions. 
 

11a.2 Administrative Unit 
 

The Glenn County Office of Education serves as the AU for the Glenn County SELPA. The AU 

is responsible for but not limited to the following functions: 
 

· Coordinates the governance, administration, and implementation of this Local Plan 
 

· Receive funds that fall under SELPA authority 
 

· Distributes federal local assistance funds and state aid funds to assist LEAs to provide 

special education services and programs in accordance with the Annual Budget Plan and 

Annual Service Plan. 
 

· Provides regionalized programs and services and program specialist services 
 

· Directly operates special education programs and services as determined by the SELPA 

governance 
 

· Monitors the use of special education funds including maintenance of effort requirements. 
 

The County Superintendent of Schools shall be designated as the Superintendent of the 

Administrative Unit.  SELPA staff shall be employed by the Administrative Unit and supervised 

by the SELPA Director according to the Administrative Unit's policy and practices. The SELPA 

Director shall use a selection process that includes representation from appropriate members of 

the educational community. Evaluations will be conducted according to the policies of the 

Administrative Unit. 
 

11a.3 SELPA Director 
 

The SELPA Director provides assistance and serves as a special education administrative 

resource to all the participating LEAs. The fundamental role of the SELPA Director is to provide 

leadership and facilitate the decision making process. The SELPA Director’s role includes the 

activities and services related to the local plan implementation. They are also responsible for providing 

leadership on legislative issues impacting the SELPA programs. 

Page 133



Section B: Governance and Administration 

SELPA Glenn County Fiscal Year 2020-21 

Page B-15 of 47 CDE Form Version 2.0 

 

 

 

provision of information, consultation, technical assistance, leadership and mediation. It is the 

SELPA Director's responsibility to represent the interests of the SELPA as a whole without 

promoting any particular local education's interest over the interest of any other LEAs. In the 

event there are differences of opinions and/or positions on issues, it is the SELPA Director's 

responsibility to attempt to assist the LEAs with reaching a mutually agreeable resolution of the 

issue(s). 
 

The Governance Committee shall participate in the selection, direction, discipline and annual 

evaluation of the SELPA Director.  The governance committee shall appoint two of its 

members, one program operator and one non-program operator, to assist the County 

Superintendent in the selection and annual evaluation of the SELPA Director. Selection, 

evaluation and discipline of the SELPA Director will be according to the Glenn County Office of 

Education HR procedures and timelines. The evaluation process will include input from other 

Governance Committee members as appropriate. As an employee of the County 

Superintendent of Schools, the SELPA Director is subject to the policies and procedures of the 

Administrative Unit and the County Superintendent for daily direction relative to his/her duties. 
 

11a.4 Responsibilities of the SELPA Director 
 

The duties of the SELPA Director include but are not limited to the following: 
 

· Formulates SELPA policy recommendations for governance committee review and 

approval. 
 

· Serves as liaison between the SELPA's member agencies and the Office of Special 

Education of the California State Department of Education, other public agencies, and other 

SELPAs. 
 

· Administers the implementation of the Local Plan, the provision of regionalized services, 

and the delivery of program specialist services. 
 

· With input from the SELPA Advisory Cabinet, develops and provides forms and 

procedures manuals that will assist the Districts in complying with procedural safeguards. 
 

· Provides the Advisory Cabinet and the Governance Committee with ongoing fiscal and 

programmatic "state of the SELPA" reports including the identification of any needs or revisions 

to which those bodies should attend. 
 

· Assists the State Department of Education in conducting investigations of complaints 

including conducting local investigations, or assisting therein, when so requested by the 

Department and/or the local education agency under investigation. 
 

· Facilitates the implementation of due process procedures throughout the SELPA. 
 

· Assists LEAs in identifying non-compliant practices and procedures and in developing 

Page 134



Section B: Governance and Administration 

SELPA Glenn County Fiscal Year 2020-21 

Page B-16 of 47 CDE Form Version 2.0 

 

 

 

action plans to correct findings of non-compliance; 
 

· Monitors the SELPA and coordinates the provision of services to assure that all 

individuals with exceptional needs have equitable access to all programs and services in the 

Glenn County SELPA regardless of where they reside in the County. 
 

· Provides LEAs with advice and consultation so as to assist them in providing FAPE and 

in utilizing compliant practices and procedures throughout the referral/assessment/IEP 

development/service delivery process. 
 

11a.5 Regionalized Services 
 

The SELPA shall assure that all functions as listed below are performed in accordance with the 

governance structure and processes as described in the Local Plan: 
 

· Coordination and implementation of the SELPA's Local Plan. 
 

· Assist LEAs in the development/implementation of policies and procedures to assure 

procedural safeguards for individuals with exceptional needs and their parents including: 
 

o Assurance of equal access to all programs and services in the SELPA region; 
 

o Advice to parents on the availability of free or low cost legal services and sources from 

which independent assessments can be obtained; 
 

o The development of resolution processes for complaints and the correction of identified 

compliance concerns; and, 
 

o The implementation of due process procedures; 
 

· Develop and facilitate the implementation of coordinated systems for identifying, 

referring, and assessing individuals with exceptional needs, determining eligibility for the 

provision of special education services, developing individualized education programs for those 

found eligible for special education services, determining appropriate educational placements 

for such individuals, and reviewing the progress of such individuals in those programs and 

placements; 
 

· Implement a coordinated system of personnel development, including parent education 

programs; 
 

· Implement a coordinated system of curriculum development and alignment with the 

respective areas of the core curriculum; 
 

· Implement a coordinated system of internal program review including the coordination of 

the SELPA's self-review for compliance with state and federal special education requirements; 

Page 135



Section B: Governance and Administration 

SELPA Glenn County Fiscal Year 2020-21 

Page B-17 of 47 CDE Form Version 2.0 

 

 

 

· Implement a coordinated system of data collection and maintenance of management 

information; 
 

· Implement a coordinated system for the evaluation of the Local Plan's effectiveness; 
 

· Coordinate interagency agreements; 
 

· Coordinate services to medical facilities, licensed children's institutions, and family foster 

homes; 
 

· Coordinate services provided by certified non-public schools and agencies; 
 

· Coordinate services provided to students who have been placed in private schools by 

their parents; 
 

· Serve as liaison to the State Department of Education and prepare program and fiscal 

reports required of the SELPA; 
 

· Fund the incidental expenses of and provide logistical support to the Community 

Advisory Committee; 
 

· Coordinate the specialized transportation within the SELPA; 
 

· Assure a full educational opportunity for all disabled children birth to 22 years of age; 
 

· Receives and distributes funds for the support of special education programs and 

services; 
 

· Coordination of career and vocational education and transition services 
 

· Through the use of program specialists and other support personnel provide direct 

instructional program support to staff 
 

11a.6 Program Specialists 
 

The governing boards of the local education agencies and the SELPA recognize the 

importance of program specialists to provide unique and necessary services to agencies, staff 

and pupils within the Glenn County SELPA. Program specialist services include, but are not 

limited to, the following: 
 

· Observes the instruction of individuals with exceptional needs, advises teachers on 

techniques of instruction for such students, providing demonstration teaching as necessary 

and, at the request of administration, assists special education teaching personnel in the 

improvement of their instructional performance 
 

· Plans programs, coordinate curricular resources and participate in the evaluation of the 

Page 136



Section B: Governance and Administration 

SELPA Glenn County Fiscal Year 2020-21 

Page B-18 of 47 CDE Form Version 2.0 

 

 

 

effectiveness of programs for children with disabilities. 
 

· Assists with local education agency staff development, program development and 

innovation of special methods and approaches. 
 

· Provides coordination, consultation and program development in one or more specialized 

areas of expertise. 
 

· Upon request, participates in IEP/IFSP team meetings where technical assistance is 

needed 
 

· Provides LEAs with advice and consultation so as to assist them in providing FAPE and 

in utilizing compliant practices and procedures throughout the referral/assessment/IEP 

development/service delivery process 
 

· Assists in developing training for parents and members of the Community Advisory 

Committee. 
 

· Provides staff development and technical assistance for general and special education 

teachers, administrators, support staff, and parents 
 

· Assists as a liaison to various community agencies such as Department of Health 

Services, Department of Human Services, Regional Centers, California Children's Services, 

Department of Rehabilitation, and Probation Department. 
 

· Reviews and disseminates current research relating to special education programs, 

practices and curriculum. 
 
 
 
 
 

b. The local method used to distribute federal and state funds to the SELPA RLA/AU and 

to LEAs within the SELPA: 
 

11b.1 Responsibilities for Distribution of State and Federal Funds 
 

The governing boards of the local education agencies participating in the SELPA have agreed 

that students with disabilities will be provided with appropriate special education services. The 

Governance Committee has been designated the authority to determine the distribution of all 

federal and state special education funds in order for local education agencies to carry out their 

responsibilities. The GCOE shall be responsible for the distribution of special education funds 

according to an approved Local Special Education Funding Allocation Plan. 

Page 137



Section B: Governance and Administration 

SELPA Glenn County Fiscal Year 2020-21 

Page B-19 of 47 CDE Form Version 2.0 

 

 

 
 

c. The operation of special education programs: 

 
11c.1 LEAs shall operate special education programs and services as specified in the Local 

Plan. Programs will be assigned or re-assigned pursuant to Section 56207 of the California 

Education Code and local SELPA policy. The annual service plan provides a list of authorized 

program operators and the special education programs and services provided by each. 
 

LEAs that operate special programs, including the Glenn County Office of Education shall: 
 

· Operate programs under the guidelines established by the Local Plan Policies and 

Procedures. 
 

· Provide ongoing instructional and procedural support to special education staff 
 

· Conduct referral, identification, and placement of special education students in 

accordance with applicable State and Federal requirements and policies and procedures of the 

Local Plan 
 

· Assure equal access to all programs and services operated by the District/County Office. 
 

· Follow procedural safeguards in accordance with State and Federal laws and 

regulations. 
 

· Utilize the same management information forms, procedures, and system. 
 

· Follow interagency agreements between the State Department of Education and other 

State Public Agencies, as well as agreements between the SELPA and other local Public 

Agencies. 
 

· Assume responsibility for any unfunded deficits associated with the operation of special 

education programs subject to SELPA funding policies. 
 

· Recruit, employ, evaluate and, when appropriate, dismiss staff. 
 

Program operators who operate regional programs/services and/or provide special education 

services to students from other school districts will involve LEAs when reviewing the efficacy of 

programs and when changing the nature and availability of programs. Prior to eliminating or re- 

designating any program or service, program operators will inform the Governance Committee 

of their intentions. 

Page 138



Section B: Governance and Administration 

SELPA Glenn County Fiscal Year 2020-21 

Page B-20 of 47 CDE Form Version 2.0 

 

 

 
 

d. Monitoring the appropriate use of federal, state, and local funds allocated for special 

education programs: 

 
11d.1 Monitoring the Use of Special Education Funds 

 

It is the intent of the SELPA that the needs of students with disabilities, as identified in the IEP/ 

IFSP, shall be met. Funds allocated for special education programs shall be used for services 

to students with disabilities. 
 

11d.2 Federal funds under Parts B and C of IDEA may be used for the following activities: 
 

For the costs of special education, related services, and supplementary aids and services 

provided in the general education class or other education-related setting for a student with a 

disability in accordance with the IEP, even if one or more non-disabled children benefit from 

these services. 
 

For the development and implementation of a fully integrated and coordinated services system. 
 

For the provision of applicable services and activities to infants and toddlers (birth-36 months) 

and their families who are eligible for early intervention services under Part C, as defined in 

State and Federal law. 
 

11d.3 The Governance Committee is responsible for the fiscal review of all special education 

programs provided in the SELPA. The SELPA Director and CBO of the GCOE, or designee, 

shall be responsible for monitoring annually the appropriate use of all funds allocated for 

special education programs through the Annual Budget process and maintenance of effort 

requirements. LEAs shall provide fiscal reports as requested by the Governance Committee. 

Final determination and action regarding the appropriate use of special education funds shall 

be made by the Governance Committee after consideration of recommendations from the 

SELPA Director and CBO. 
 

 

12. Describe how specialized equipment and services will be distributed within the SELPA in a 

manner that minimizes the necessity to serve students in isolated sites and maximizes the 

opportunities to serve students in the least restrictive environments: 
 

12.1 DISTRIBUTION OF SPECIALIZED EQUIPMENT AND MATERIALS 
 

Funding for specialized books, materials and equipment and funding for specialized services 

for identified special education students with low incidence disabilities shall be made 

available through the SELPA. The use of funds must relate to the unique educational needs 

resulting from a student’s low incidence disability. The SELPA Director shall allocate funds 

for specialized books, materials, equipment and services to low incidence students enrolled 

Page 139



Section B: Governance and Administration 

SELPA Glenn County Fiscal Year 2020-21 

Page B-21 of 47 CDE Form Version 2.0 

 

 

 

 
 

Policies, Procedures, and Programs 
 

Pursuant to EC sections 56122 and 56205(a), the SELPA ensures conformity with Title 20 United 
States Code (USC) and in accordance with Title 34 Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Section 

300.201 and has in effect policies, procedures, and programs. For each of the following 23 areas, 

identify whether, or not each of the following provisions of law are adopted as stated. If the policy 

is not adopted as stated, briefly describe the SELPA's policy for the given area. In all cases, 

provide the SELPA policy and procedure numbers; the document title; and the physical location 

where the policy can be found. 
 

 

1. Free Appropriate Public Education: 20 USC Section 1412(a)(1) 
 

Policy/Procedure Number: 

Document Title: 

Document Location: 
 

 

"It shall be the policy of this LEA that a free appropriate public education is available to all children 

with disabilities residing in the LEA between the ages of 3 and 21, inclusive, including children with 

disabilities who have been suspended or expelled from school." The policy is adopted by the SELPA 

as stated: 
 

Yes  No 

 

2. Full Educational Opportunity: 20 USC Section 1412(a)(2) 
 

Policy/Procedure Number: 

Document Title: 

Document Location: 
 

 

“It shall be the policy of this LEA that all children with disabilities have access to educational 

programs, non-academic programs, and services available to non-disabled children.” The policy is 

in public special education and general education classrooms, enrolled in non-public and 

private schools by a public school, or served in the student’s home pursuant to an approved 

IEP. The primary goal for the use of these funds is to serve students in the least restrictive 

environment. 

SELPA Policies and Administrative Regulations 12.1 

Free Appropriate Public Education 

Policy and Procedure Manual available at the SELPA Office and each 

LEA District Office 

SELPA Policies and Administrative Regulations 13.1 

Full Educational Opportunity 

Policy and Procedure Manual available at the SELPA Office and each 

LEA District Office 

Page 140



Section B: Governance and Administration 

SELPA Glenn County Fiscal Year 2020-21 

Page B-22 of 47 CDE Form Version 2.0 

 

 

 

adopted by the SELPA as stated: 
 

Yes  No 

 

3. Child Find: 20 USC Section 1412(a)(3) 
 

Policy/Procedure Number: 

Document Title: 

Document Location: 
 

 

"It shall be the policy of this LEA that all children with disabilities residing in the State, including children 

with disabilities who are homeless or are wards of the State and children with disabilities attending  

private schools, regardless of the severity of their disabilities, who are in need of special education and 

related services, are identified, located, and evaluated. A practical method has been developed and 

implemented to determine which children with disabilities are currently receiving needed special 

education and related services." The policy is adopted by the SELPA as   stated: 
 

Yes  No 
 

4. Individualized Education Program (IEP) and Individualized Family Service Plan (IFSP): 

20 USC Section 1412(a)(4) 
 

Policy/Procedure Number: 

Document Title: 

Document Location: 
 

 

“It shall be the policy of this LEA that an IEP, or an IFSP that meets the requirements of 20 USC   
Section 1436 (d), is developed, implemented, reviewed, and revised for each child with a disability who 

requires special education and related services in accordance with 20 USC Section 1414 (d). It shall     

be the policy of this LEA that an IEP will be conducted on at least an annual basis to review a student’s 

progress and make appropriate revisions.” The policy is adopted by the SELPA as   stated: 
 

Yes  No 

 

5. Least Restrictive Environment: USC Section 1412(a)(5) 
 

Policy/Procedure Number: 

SELPA Policies and Administrative Regulations 14.1 

Child Find 

Policy and Procedure Manual available at the SELPA Office and each 

LEA District Office 

SELPA Policies and Administrative Regulations 15.1 

Individualized Education Program (IEP) and Individualized Family 

Service Plan (IFSP) 

Policy and Procedure Manual available at the SELPA Office and each 

LEA District Office 

SELPA Policies and Administrative Regulations 16.1 

Page 141



Section B: Governance and Administration 

SELPA Glenn County Fiscal Year 2020-21 

Page B-23 of 47 CDE Form Version 2.0 

 

 

 

Document Title: 

Document Location: 

"It shall be the policy of this LEA that to the maximum extent appropriate, children with disabilities, 

including children in public or private institutions or other care facilities, are educated with children 

who are not disabled. Special classes, separate schooling, or other removal of children with 

disabilities from the general educational environment, occurs only when the nature or severity of the 

disability of a child is such that education in regular classes with the use of supplementary aids and 

services cannot be achieved satisfactorily." The policy is adopted by the SELPA as stated: 
 

 

6. Procedural Safeguards: 20 USC Section 1412(a)(6) 
 

Policy/Procedure Number: 

Document Title: 

Document Location: 
 

 

“It shall be the policy of this LEA that children with disabilities and their parents shall be afforded all 

procedural safeguards according to state and federal laws and regulations.” The policy is adopted by 

the SELPA as stated: 
 

 

7. Evaluation: 20 USC Section 1412(a)(7) 
 

Policy/Procedure Number: 

Document Title: 

Document Location: 
 

 

“It shall be the policy of this LEA that a reassessment of a child with a disability shall be conducted at 

least once every three years or more frequently, if appropriate.” The policy is adopted by the SELPA 

as stated: 
 

Yes No 

Yes No 

Yes No 

Least Restrictive Environment 

Policy and Procedure Manual available at the SELPA Office and each 

LEA District Office 

SELPA Policies and Administrative Regulations 17.1 

Procedural Safeguards 

Policy and Procedure Manual available at the SELPA Office and each 

LEA District Office 

SELPA Policies and Administrative Regulations 18.1 

Annual and Triennial Assessment/Evaluations 

Policy and Procedure Manual available at the SELPA Office and each 

LEA District Office 

Page 142



Section B: Governance and Administration 

SELPA Glenn County Fiscal Year 2020-21 

Page B-24 of 47 CDE Form Version 2.0 

 

 

 

 

8. Confidentiality: 20 USC Section 1412(a)(8) 
 

Policy/Procedure Number: 

Document Title: 

Document Location: 
 

 

"It shall be the policy of this LEA that the confidentiality of personally identifiable data, information, 

and records maintained by the LEA relating to children with disabilities and their parents and families 

shall be protected pursuant to the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act, non-academic 

programs, and services available to non-disabled children." The policy is adopted by the SELPA as 

stated: 
 

 

9. Part C to Part B Transition: 20 USC Section 1412(a)(9) 
 

Policy/Procedure Number: 

Document Title: 

Document Location: 
 

 

"It shall be the policy of this LEA that children participating in early intervention programs under the 

Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (IDEA), Part C, and who will participate in preschool 

programs, experience a smooth and effective transition to preschool programs in a manner 

consistent with 20 USC Section 1437(a)(9). The transition process shall begin prior to the child's third 

birthday."The policy is adopted by the SELPA as stated: 
 

 

10. Private Schools: 20 USC Section 1412(a)(10) 
 

Policy/Procedure Number: 

Document Title: 

Document Location: 
 

 

"It shall be the policy of this LEA to assure that children with disabilities voluntarily enrolled by   their 

Yes No 

Yes No 

SELPA Policies and Administrative Regulations 19.1 

Confidentiality 

Policy and Procedure Manual available at the SELPA Office and each 

LEA District Office 

SELPA Policies and Administrative Regulations 20.1 

Part C 

Policy and Procedure Manual available at the SELPA Office and each 

LEA District Office 

SELPA Policies and Administrative Regulations 21.1 

Children in Private Schools 

Policy and Procedure Manual available at the SELPA Office and each 

LEA District Office 

Page 143



Section B: Governance and Administration 

SELPA Glenn County Fiscal Year 2020-21 

Page B-25 of 47 CDE Form Version 2.0 

 

 

 

parents in private schools shall receive appropriate special education and related services pursuant to 

LEA coordinated procedures. The proportionate amount of federal funds will be allocated for the 

purpose of providing special education services to children with disabilities voluntarily enrolled in  

private school by their parents." The policy is adopted by the SELPA as   stated: 
 

 

11. Local Compliance Assurances: 20 USC Section 1412(a)(11) 
 

Policy/Procedure Number: 

Document Title: 

Document Location: 
 

 

"It shall be the policy of this LEA that the local plan shall be adopted by the appropriate local board(s) 

(district/county) and is the basis for the operation and administration of special education programs, 

and that the agency(ies) herein represented will meet all applicable requirements of state and federal 

laws and-regulations, including compliance with the IDEA; the Federal Rehabilitation Act of 1973, 

Section 504 of Public Law; and the provisions of the California EC, Part 30." The policy is adopted by 

the SELPA as stated: 
 

 

12. Interagency: 20 USC Section 1412(a)(12) 

Policy/Procedure Number: 

Document Title: 

Document Location: 
 

 

"It shall be the policy of this LEA that interagency agreements or other mechanisms for interagency 

coordination are in effect to ensure services required for free appropriate public education are 

provided, including the continuation of services during an interagency dispute resolution process." 

The policy is adopted by the SELPA as stated: 
 

 

13. Governance: 20 USC Section 1412(a)(13) 
 

Policy/Procedure Number: 

Yes No 

Yes No 

Yes No 

SELPA Policies and Administrative Regulations 22.1 

Compliance Assurances 

Policy and Procedure Manual available at the SELPA Office and each 

LEA District Office 

SELPA Policies and Administrative Regulations 23.1 

Interagency 

Policy and Procedure Manual available at the SELPA Office and each 

LEA District Office 

SELPA Policies and Administrative Regulations 24.1 

Page 144



Section B: Governance and Administration 

SELPA Glenn County Fiscal Year 2020-21 

Page B-26 of 47 CDE Form Version 2.0 

 

 

 

Document Title: 

Document Location: 

"It shall be the policy of this LEA to support and comply with the provisions of the governance bodies 

and any necessary administrative support to implement the local plan. A final determination that an   

LEA is not eligible for assistance under this part will not be made without first affording that LEA with 

reasonable notice and an opportunity for a hearing through the State Education Agency." The policy is 

adopted by the SELPA as stated: 
 

 

14. Personnel Qualifications 
 

Policy/Procedure Number: 

Document Title: 

Document Location: 
 

 

"It shall be the policy of this LEA to ensure that personnel providing special education related services  

are appropriately and adequately prepared and trained, and that those personnel have the content 

knowledge and skills to serve children with disabilities. This policy shall not be construed to create a right 

of action on behalf of an individual student for the failure of a particular LEA staff person to be highly 

qualified or to prevent a parent from filing a State complaint with the California Department of Education 

(CDE) about staff qualifications." The policy is adopted by the SELPA as stated: 
 

 

15. Performance Goals and Indicators: 20 USC Section 1412(a)(15) 
 

Policy/Procedure Number: 

Document Title: 

Document Location: 
 

 

"It shall be the policy of this LEA to comply with the requirements of the performance goals and 

indicators developed by the CDE and provide data as required by the CDE." The policy is adopted by 

the SELPA as stated: 

Yes No 

Yes No 

Governance 

Policy and Procedure Manual available at the SELPA Office and each 

LEA District Office 

SELPA Policies and Administrative Regulations 25.1 

Personnel Standards 

Policy and Procedure Manual available at the SELPA Office and each 

LEA District Office 

SELPA Policies and Administrative Regulations 26.1 

Performance Goals 

Policy and Procedure Manual available at the SELPA Office and each 

LEA District Office 

Page 145



Section B: Governance and Administration 

SELPA Glenn County Fiscal Year 2020-21 

Page B-27 of 47 CDE Form Version 2.0 

 

 

 

 
 

16. Participation in Assessments: 20 USC Section 1412(a)(16) 
 

Policy/Procedure Number: 

Document Title: 

Document Location: 
Policy and Procedure Manual available at the SELPA Office and each 
LEA District Office 

"It shall be the policy of this LEA that all students with disabilities shall participate in state and district- 

wide assessment programs described in 20 USC Subsection 6311. The IEP team determines how a 

student will access assessments with or without accommodations, or access alternate assessments 

where necessary and as indicated in their respective Reps.." The policy is adopted by the SELPA as 

stated: 
 

 

17. Supplementation of State, Local, and Federal Funds: 20 USC Section 1412(a)(17) 
 

Policy/Procedure Number: 

Document Title: 

Document Location: 
 

 

"It shall be the policy of this LEA to provide assurances that funds received from Part B of the IDEA 

will be expended in accordance with the applicable provisions of the IDEA, and will be used to 

supplement and not to supplant state, local, and other federal funds." The policy is adopted by the 

SELPA as stated: 
 

 

18. Maintenance of Effort: 20 USC Section 1412(a)(18) 
 

Policy/Procedure Number: 

Document Title: 

Document Location: 
 

 

"It shall be the policy of this LEA that federal funds will not be used to reduce the level of local funds 

Yes No 

Yes No 

Yes No 

SELPA Policies and Administrative Regulations 27.1 

Participation in State Assessments 

SELPA Policies and Administrative Regulations 28.1 

Supplementation 

Policy and Procedure Manual available at the SELPA Office and each 

LEA District Office 

SELPA Policies and Administrative Regulations 29.1 

Maintenance of Effort 

Policy and Procedure Manual available at the SELPA Office and each 

LEA District Office 

Page 146



Section B: Governance and Administration 

SELPA Glenn County Fiscal Year 2020-21 

Page B-28 of 47 CDE Form Version 2.0 

 

 

 

and/or combined level of local and state funds expended for the education of children with disabilities 

except as provided in federal laws and regulations." The policy is adopted by the SELPA as stated: 
 

 

19. Public Participation: 20 USC Section 1412(a)(19) 
 

Policy/Procedure Number: 

Policy/Procedure Title: 

Document Location: 
 

 

"It shall be the policy of this LEA that public hearings, adequate notice of the hearings, and an opportunity 

for comments are available to the general public,including individuals with disabilities and parents of 

children with disabilities, and are held prior to the adoption of any policies and/or regulations needed to 

comply with Part B of the IDEA." The policy is adopted by the SELPA as stated: 

 

 

20. Suspension and Expulsion: 20 USC Section 1412(a)(22) 
 

Policy/Procedure Number: 

Document Title: 

Document Location: 
 

 

"The LEA assures that data on suspension and expulsion rates will be provided in a manner 

prescribed by the CDE. When indicated by data analysis, the LEA further assures that policies, 

procedures, and practices related to the development and implementation of the IEPs will be 

revised." The policy is adopted by the SELPA as stated: 
 

 

21. Access to Instructional Materials: 20 USC Section 1412(a)(23) 
 

Policy/Procedure Number: 

Document Title: 

Yes No 

Yes No 

Yes No 

SELPA Policies and Administrative Regulations 30.1 

Public Participation 

Policy and Procedure Manual available at the SELPA Office and each 

LEA District Office 

SELPA Policies and Administrative Regulations 31.1 

Suspension and Expulsion 

Policy and Procedure Manual available at the SELPA Office and each 

LEA District Office 

SELPA Policies and Administrative Regulations 32.1 

Access to Instructional Materials 

Policy and Procedure Manual available at the SELPA Office and each 

Page 147



Section B: Governance and Administration 

SELPA Glenn County Fiscal Year 2020-21 

Page B-29 of 47 CDE Form Version 2.0 

 

 

 

Document Location: LEA District Office 

"It shall be the policy of this LEA to provide instructional materials to blind students or other 

students with print disabilities in a timely manner according to the state-adopted National 

Instructional Materials Accessibility Standard." The policy is adopted by the SELPA as stated: 
 

 

22. Over-identification and Disproportionality: 20 USC Section 1412(a)(24) 
 

Policy/Procedure Number: 

Document Title: 

Document Location: 
 

 

"It shall be the policy of this LEA to prevent the inappropriate over-identification or disproportionate 

representation by race and ethnicity of children as children with disabilities." The policy is adopted by 

the SELPA as stated: 
 

 

23. Prohibition on Mandatory Medicine: 20 USC Section 1412(a)(25) 
 

Policy/Procedure Number: 

Document Title: 

Document Location: 
 

 

"It shall be the policy of this LEA to prohibit school personnel from requiring a student to obtain a 

prescription for a substance covered by the Controlled Substances Act as a condition of attending 

school or receiving a special education assessment and/or services." The policy is adopted by the 

SELPA as stated: 
 

 

Administration of Regionalized Operations and Services 

Yes No 

Yes No 

Yes No 

SELPA Policies and Administrative Regulations 33.1 

Over-identification and Disproportionality 

Policy and Procedure Manual available at the SELPA Office and each 

LEA District Office 

SELPA Policies and Administrative Regulations 34.1 

Prohibition on Mandatory Medicine 

Policy and Procedure Manual available at the SELPA Office and each 

LEA District Office 

Page 148



Section B: Governance and Administration 

SELPA Glenn County Fiscal Year 2020-21 

Page B-30 of 47 CDE Form Version 2.0 

 

 

 

Pursuant to EC sections 56195.7(c), 56205(a)(12)(B), 56368, and 56836.23, describe the 

regionalized operation and service functions. Descriptions must include an explanation of the 

direct instructional support provided by program specialists; and the respective roles of the RLA/ 

AU, the SELPA administrator, and the individual LEAs associated with the SELPA. Information 

provided should include the reference number, document title, and the location (e.g., SELPA 

office) for each function: 
 

1. Coordination of the SELPA and the implementation of the local plan: 

 

Reference Number: 

Document Title: 

Document Location: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Description: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

2. Coordinated system of identification and assessment: 

1 

Local Plan, Section B Governance and Administration 

Policy and Procedure Manual available at the SELPA Office and each 

LEA District Office 

Direct Instructional support provided by program specialists: Not 

Applicable 

Role of the RLA/AU: The RLA/AU is responsible for the receipt and 

distribution of special education funds to LEAs and SELPA accounts for 

the operation of special education programs and services, providing for 

administrative support, and employment of SELPA staff to coordinate 

implementation of the plan. 

Role of the Administrator of the SELPA: The SELPA Administrator will 

ensure that the local plan is implemented and will make 

recommendations to the Superintendents’ Council when revisions are 

needed. They will facilitate the review, revision, and administration of 

the local plan. They will also facilitate development and approval of 

SELPA policies and procedures necessary to implement the local plan. 

Role of the individual LEAs: The individual LEAs ensure a full continuum 

of services are available in order to provide a free and appropriate 

public education to all students with disabilities for whom they are 

responsible. The individual LEAs, through the representative to the 

Superintendents’ Council, will approve any policies and procedures 

needed to implement the local plan. Each LEA will approve and 

implement the local plan as well as any LEA policies and procedures 

needed to implement the plan. The LEAs through their representative 

to the Superintendents’ Council directs the SELPA Director regarding 

the implementation, administration and operation of the local plan. The 

Special Education Directors provide input on the modification and 

implementation procedures for the operation of the local plan. 

Page 149



Section B: Governance and Administration 

SELPA Glenn County Fiscal Year 2020-21 

Page B-31 of 47 CDE Form Version 2.0 

 

 

 

Reference Number: 

Document Title: 

Document Location: 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Description: 

Direct Instructional support provided by program specialists: The 

program specialists and others that are assigned to carry out these 

duties, whether they are employed by the SELPA or the LEA will 

observe, consult and assist service providers, as appropriate. 

Role of the RLA/AU: Not applicable. 

Role of the Administrator of the SELPA: The SELPA Administrator will 

ensure each LEA conducts child find activities through monitoring of 

each LEA’s data. The SELPA will also provide targeted and intensive 

support to LEAs as needed to assist them in meeting their obligation. 

The SELPA Administrator, or designee, will facilitate the annual 

consultation to the private schools. The SELPA will also participate in 

child find activities by establishing policies and procedures for the 

member LEAs and ensuring appropriate interagency agreements are in 

place. The SELPA Administrator, or designee, will serve on committees 

as interagency agreements are being reviewed, revised, or developed. 

The SELPA Administrator will ensure that interagency agreements are 

in place as required by California Education Code, and provide technical 

assistance and dispute resolution as needed. The SELPA Administrator, 

or designee, will also provide guidance to parents, as needed. 

Role of the individual LEAs: Consistent with education code each LEA is 

responsible for identifying and assessing all students for whom they are 

the district of special education accountability. They are also 

responsible for conducting child find activities and implementing SELPA 

and LEA policies and procedures. The LEAs will also provide guidance 

to parents, staff, and community members. 

Through their representative to the Superintendents’ Council, the LEAs 

will approve interagency agreements. Each individual LEA is 

responsible for implementing approved interagency agreements, as 

appropriate. 
 

3. Coordinated system of procedural safeguards: 

 

Reference Number: 

Document Title: 

2 

Local Plan, Section B Governance and Administration 

Policy and Procedure Manual available at the SELPA Office and each 

LEA District Office 

3 

Local Plan, Section B Governance and Administration 

Policy and Procedure Manual available at the SELPA Office and each 

Page 150



Section B: Governance and Administration 

SELPA Glenn County Fiscal Year 2020-21 

Page B-32 of 47 CDE Form Version 2.0 

 

 

 

Document Location: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Description: 

 

 

Direct Instructional support provided by the program specialist: The 

program specialists and others that are assigned to carry out these 

duties, whether they are employed by the SELPA or the LEA, to provide 

for alternate dispute resolution with districts as requested by parents. 

The program specialists assist parents with filing due process or 

compliance complaints when requested. The program specialists also 

assure procedural safeguards by providing technical assistance and 

guidance on forms and procedures to LEAs in the areas of assessment, 

identification, and placement. 

Role of the RLA/AU: Not applicable 

Role of the Administrator of the SELPA: The SELPA Administrator, or 

their designee, provides for alternate dispute resolution with districts as 

requested by parents. When requested, the SELPA Administrator, or 

their designee, assists parents with filing due process or compliance 

complaints. The SELPA Administrator, or their designee, also assures 

procedural safeguards by providing technical assistance and guidance 

on forms and procedures to LEAs in the areas of assessment, 

identification, and placement. The Administrator, or their designee, will 

also provide parents with a copy of their procedural safeguards upon 

request and will maintain a copy on their website. The SELPA 

Administrator, or their designee, also reviews compliance complaint 

determinations provided by the CDE and provides targeted or intensive 

assistance as appropriate. 

Role of the individual LEAs: The LEAs provide procedural safeguards to 

parents consistent with the education code, assist parents with 

understanding them, and ensure that they are implemented. The LEAs 

assist parents with filing complaints when requested. The LEAs will 

respond to all complaints. 
 

4. Coordinated system of staff development and parent and guardian education: 

 

Reference Number: 

Document Title: 

Document Location: 
 

LEA District Office 

Direct Instructional support provided by the program specialist: The 

program specialists and others that are assigned to carry out these 

duties, whether they are employed by the SELPA or the LEA support 

parent and guardian education, provide for staff development, program 

4 

Local Plan, Section B Governance and Administration 

Policy and Procedure Manual available at the SELPA Office and each 

LEA District Office 

Page 151



Section B: Governance and Administration 

SELPA Glenn County Fiscal Year 2020-21 

Page B-33 of 47 CDE Form Version 2.0 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Description: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

5. Coordinated system of curriculum development and alignment with the core curriculum: 

 

Reference Number: 

Document Title: 

Document Location: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Description: 

development, and innovation of special methods and approaches. 

Role of the RLA/AU: Not applicable. 

Role of the Administrator of the SELPA: On an annual basis input is 

collected from the Special Education Directors from member LEAs to 

determine the staff development needs that the SELPA is requested to 

provide for teachers, administrators, volunteers, CAC members, and 

district governing board members. On an annual basis, the Community 

Advisory Committee will provide input on the parent and guardian 

education needs. The SELPA Administrator, or designee, will provide 

for needed training and supports as determined appropriate. The 

SELPA Administrator may also provide technical assistance to 

individual LEAs regarding staff development and parent and guardian 

education. 

Role of the individual LEAs: Individual LEAs will determine their staff 

development and parent and guardian education, based on their local 

needs. They will also provide input to the SELPA Administrator for any 

regional staff development needs. Consistent with education code 

requirements, they will assist in coordinating with other staff 

development programs in the LEAs. 

5 

Local Plan, Section B Governance and Administration 

Policy and Procedure Manual available at the SELPA Office and each 

LEA District Office 

Direct Instructional support provided by the program specialist: The 

program specialists and others that are assigned to carry out these 

duties, whether they are employed by the SELPA or the LEA, 

coordinate curricular resources for students with disabilities, as 

requested. 

Role of the RLA/AU: Not applicable. 

Role of the Administrator of the SELPA: The SELPA Administrator, or 

designee, will provide technical assistance and staff development on 

curriculum develop and alignment with the common core, as determined 

appropriate. 

Role of the individual LEAs: LEAs will determine their needs for 

curriculum development and alignment with the core curriculum, based 

on their local needs. They ensure that each student with a disability has 

full access to the required core curriculum, any alternative curriculum 

and textbooks, and supplementary curriculum and textbooks as 

Page 152



Section B: Governance and Administration 

SELPA Glenn County Fiscal Year 2020-21 

Page B-34 of 47 CDE Form Version 2.0 

 

 

 

 
 

6. Coordinated system internal program review, evaluation of the effectiveness of the local plan, 

and implementation of the local plan accountability system: 

 

Reference Number: 

Document Title: 

Document Location: 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Description: 

Direct Instructional support provided by the program specialist: Upon 

request, the program specialists and others that are assigned to carry 

out these duties, whether they are employed by the SELPA or the LEA, 

will evaluate the effectiveness of programs for students with disabilities. 

Role of the RLA/AU: Not applicable. 

Role of the Administrator of the SELPA: The SELPA Administrator, or 

designee, will facilitate the review of the Annual Budget and Service 

Plans, and the LEAs’ Annual Performance Indicators. This includes and 

any additional pertinent data such as the annual evaluation of services 

offered by the SELPA. They will also facilitate reviews by the 

Superintendents, Directors, CAC, and other interested parent, 

community or educational groups. The SELPA Administrator will also 

review of the Funding Allocation Plan prior to the distribution of yearly 

funds to LEAs. annual evaluation of services offered by the SELPA 

Office, completed in the spring of each year by the LEA Special 

Education Directors. 

Role of the individual LEAs: Individual LEAs through their representative 

to the Superintendents’ Council, review the Annual Budget and Service 

Plans, and the evaluation of services offered by the SELPA. Each  

LEAs’ Special Education Director provide input through the annual 

evaluation of SELPA services on the effectiveness of the local plan. 

Each individual LEA reviews and monitors Annual Performance 

Reports, the California School Dashboard, and other data sources to 

ensure students with disabilities receive a free and appropriate public 

education. Individual LEAs also engage in monitoring activities as 

required by the CDE. The Special Education Directors provide 

leadership for cooperative action among LEAs pertaining to the 

implementation, administration, and operation of the local plan. 
 

7. Coordinated system of data collection and management: 

appropriate, and instructional materials to blind student or other 

students with print disabilities. 

6 

Local Plan, Section B Governance and Administration 

Policy and Procedure Manual available at the SELPA Office and each 

LEA District Office 

Page 153



Section B: Governance and Administration 

SELPA Glenn County Fiscal Year 2020-21 

Page B-35 of 47 CDE Form Version 2.0 

 

 

 

Reference Number: 

Document Title: 

Document Location: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Description: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

8. Coordination of interagency agreements: 

 

Reference Number: 

Document Title: 

Document Location: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Description: 

7 

Local Plan, Section B Governance and Administration 

Policy and Procedure Manual available at the SELPA Office and each 

LEA District Office 

Direct Instructional support provided by the program specialist: Not 

applicable. 

Role of the RLA/AU: Enter into any requested contracts on behalf of the 

SELPA to ensure a coordinated system of data collection and 

management. 

Role of the Administrator of the SELPA: The SELPA Administrator will 

approve the California Longitudinal Assessment and Pupil Data System 

(CALPADS) submission of each member LEA as required by the 

California Department of Education. The SELPA Administrator, or 

designee, will provide technical assistance and staff development to 

LEAs as requested and/or deemed necessary by the SELPA. 

Role of the individual LEAs: Individual LEAs are responsible for data 

entry, accuracy, and integrity. The LEAs gather, interpret, and report 

special education program data and quality indicators regarding current 

program operations and effectiveness. The LEAs will approve the 

California Longitudinal Assessment and Pupil Data System (CALPADS) 

submission as required by the California Department of Education. 

8 

Local Plan, Section B Governance and Administration 

Policy and Procedure Manual available at the SELPA Office and each 

LEA District Office 

Direct Instructional support provided by the program specialist: Not 

applicable. 

Role of the RLA/AU: Not applicable. Role of the Administrator of the 

SELPA: The SELPA Administrator, or 

designee, will serve on committees as interagency agreements are 

being reviewed, revised, or developed. The SELPA Administrator will 

ensure that interagency agreements are in place as required by 

California Education Code, and provide technical assistance and 

dispute resolution as needed. 

Role of the individual LEAs: Through their representative to the 

Page 154



Section B: Governance and Administration 

SELPA Glenn County Fiscal Year 2020-21 

Page B-36 of 47 CDE Form Version 2.0 

 

 

 

 
 

9. Coordination of services to medical facilities: 

 

Reference Number: 

Document Title: 

Document Location: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Description: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

10. Coordination of services to licensed children's institutions and foster family homes: 

 

Reference Number: 

Document Title: 

Document Location: 
 

Superintendents’ Council, the LEAs will approve interagency 

agreements. Each individual LEA is responsible for implementing 

approved interagency agreements, as appropriate. 

Direct Instructional support provided by the program specialist: The 

program specialists and others that are assigned to carry out these 

duties, whether they are employed by the SELPA or the LEA, assure 

pupils have a full educational opportunity regardless of the district of 

special education accountability. 

9 

Local Plan, Section B Governance and Administration 

Policy and Procedure Manual available at the SELPA Office and each 

LEA District Office 

Direct Instructional support provided by the program specialist: The 

program specialists and others that are assigned to carry out these 

duties, whether they are employed by the SELPA or the LEA, assures 

students with disabilities have a full educational opportunity regardless 

of the district of residence. 

Role of the RLA/AU: Not applicable. 

Role of the Administrator of the SELPA: The SELPA Administrator, or 

designee, will facilitate the coordination of these services by the 

designated LEAs and provide technical assistance to the medical 

facilities and LEAs as appropriate. 

Role of the individual LEAs: Each individual LEA is responsible for 

students with disabilities who are placed in a public hospital, state 

licensed children's hospital, psychiatric hospital, proprietary hospital, or 

a health facility for medical purposes when the hospital or facility is 

located within their boundaries, unless based on education code there is 

another district of special education accountability which would be 

responsible. 

10 

Local Plan, Section B Governance and Administration 

Policy and Procedure Manual available at the SELPA Office and each 

LEA District Office 

Page 155



Section B: Governance and Administration 

SELPA Glenn County Fiscal Year 2020-21 

Page B-37 of 47 CDE Form Version 2.0 

 

 

 
 
 

 

Description: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

11. Preparation and transmission of required special education local plan area reports: 

 

Reference Number: 

Document Title: 

Document Location: 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Description: 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

12. Fiscal and logistical support of the CAC: 

 

Reference Number: 

Document Title: 

Document Location: 
 

Direct Instructional support provided by the program specialist: Not 

applicable. 

Role of the RLA/AU: Not applicable. 

Role of the Administrator of the SELPA: The SELPA Administrator, or 

designee, will facilitate the coordination of these services by the 

designated LEAs and provide technical assistance to the licensed 

children’s institutions and foster family homes and LEAs as appropriate. 

Role of the individual LEAs: Special education services for students with 

disabilities residing in foster family homes or licensed children’s 

institutions shall be the responsibility of the district in which the foster 

family home or the licensed children’s institution is located, unless 

based on education code there is another district of special education 

accountability which would be responsible. 

11 

Local Plan, Section B Governance and Administration 

Policy and Procedure Manual available at the SELPA Office and each 

LEA District Office 

Direct Instructional support provided by the program specialist: Not 

applicable. 

Role of the RLA/AU: The RLA/AU reviews, sign and submit as 

appropriate any required special education local plan area reports. Role 

of the Administrator of the SELPA: The SELPA Administrator will 

ensure timely transmission of required reports and provide technical 

assistance to LEAs in completing those reports. 

Role of the individual LEAs: Individual LEAs will submit required 

accurate data in order for the SELPA to submit timely reports. The LEAs 

gather, interpret, and report special education program data and quality 

indicators regarding current program operations and effectiveness. 

12 

Local Plan, Section B Governance and Administration 

Policy and Procedure Manual available at the SELPA Office and each 

LEA District Office 

Page 156



Section B: Governance and Administration 

SELPA Glenn County Fiscal Year 2020-21 

Page B-38 of 47 CDE Form Version 2.0 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Description: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

13. Coordination of transportation services for individuals with exceptional needs: 

 

Reference Number: 

Document Title: 

Document Location: 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Description: 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

14. Coordination of career and vocational education and transition services: 

 

Reference Number: 

Document Title: 

Role of the RLA/AU: Not applicable. 

Role of the Administrator of the SELPA: The SELPA Administrator, or 

designee, will provide fiscal and logistical support CAC meetings, 

events, and trainings that are approved by the Superintendents’ 

Council. 

Role of the individual LEAs: The LEA through their representative to the 

Superintendents’ Council will ensure the SELPA has sufficient 

resources to provide fiscal and logistical support for the CAC. LEA 

Directors shall facilitate communication between their CAC 

representative from the LEA. Each LEA is responsible to appoint 

members to the CAC in accordance with CAC bylaws and LEA policies. 

Each LEA’s governing board encourages parental involvement through 

the members of CAC, receives and consider requests and 

recommendations from their CAC representatives and other parent 

groups. 

13 

Local Plan, Section B Governance and Administration 

Policy and Procedure Manual available at the SELPA Office and each 

LEA District Office 

Direct Instructional support provided by the program specialist: The 

program specialists and others that are assigned to carry out these 

duties, whether they are employed by the SELPA or the LEA, provides 

staff development as requested by the LEAs. 

Role of the RLA/AU: Not applicable. 

Role of the Administrator of the SELPA: The SELPA Administrator, or 

designee, will provide technical assistance, training and support in 

coordinating transportation as requested by the LEAs. 

Role of the individual LEAs: Each member LEA is responsible for 

providing transportation for their students with disabilities as determined 

by their IEP teams. 

14 

Local Plan, Section B Governance and Administration 

Policy and Procedure Manual available at the SELPA Office and each 

Page 157



Section B: Governance and Administration 

SELPA Glenn County Fiscal Year 2020-21 

Page B-39 of 47 CDE Form Version 2.0 

 

 

 

Document Location: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Description: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

15. Assurance of full educational opportunity: 
 

Reference Number: 

Document Title: 

Document Location: 
 

Direct Instructional support provided by program specialist: The 

program specialists and others that are assigned to carry out these 

duties, whether they are employed by the SELPA or the LEA assure 

pupils have a full educational opportunity regardless of the district of 

special education accountability. 

Role of the RLA/AU: Not applicable. 

Role of the Administrator of the SELPA: Through approval of the Annual 

Services Plan the SELPA Administrator will ensure that the full 

continuum of services is provided. The SELPA Administrator will be 

LEA District Office 

Direct Instructional support provided by the program specialist: The 

program specialists and others that are assigned to carry out these 

duties, whether they are employed by the SELPA or the LEA, support 

staff development, program development, and innovation of special 

methods and approaches. 

Role of the RLA/AU: Not applicable. 

Role of the Administrator of the SELPA: The SELPA Administrator, or 

designee, will provide technical assistance and staff development as 

needed. The SELPA Administrator, or designee, may provide targeted 

or intensive support to LEAs based on identified needs in the Annual 

Performance Report and assist LEAs in completing any monitoring 

activities required by the CDE. The SELPA Administrator, or designee, 

will serve on committees as interagency agreements that address this 

area as they are being reviewed, revised, or developed. The SELPA 

Administrator will ensure that interagency agreements are in place as 

required by California Education Code, and provide technical assistance 

and dispute resolution as needed. 

Role of the individual LEAs: Each LEA will provide appropriate career 

and vocational education and transition services as required under state 

and federal laws. They may also provide staff development in this area. 

Additionally, through their representative to the Superintendents’ 

Council, the LEAs will approve interagency agreements. Each 

individual LEA is responsible for implementing approved interagency 

agreements, as appropriate. 

15 

Local Plan, Section B Governance and Administration 

Policy and Procedure Manual available at the SELPA Office and each 

LEA District Office 

Page 158



Section B: Governance and Administration 

SELPA Glenn County Fiscal Year 2020-21 

Page B-40 of 47 CDE Form Version 2.0 

 

 

 

Description: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

16. Fiscal administration and the allocation of state and federal funds pursuant to EC Section 

56836.01—The SELPA Administrator's responsibility for the fiscal administration of the annual 

budget plan; the allocation of state and federal funds; and the reporting and accounting of special 

education funding. 

 

Reference Number: 

Document Title: 

Document Location: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Description: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

17. Direct instructional program support that maybe provided by program specialists in accordance 

with EC Section 56368: 

 

Reference Number: 

responsible. The SELPA Administrator, or designee, will assist with 

intra- and inter-SELPA Transfers, as needed. Additionally, professional 

development and technical assistance is available upon request or as 

determined to be needed by the SELPA to LEAs and/or nonpublic 

schools. 

Role of the individual LEAs: Each LEA, through their representative to 

the Superintendents’ Council will determine the regional programs 

needed to meet the needs of the students with disabilities within the 

SELPA. Additionally, each LEA is responsible for providing a full 

continuum of services for students for whom they are the district of 

special education accountability. 

16 

Local Plan, Section B Governance and Administration 

Policy and Procedure Manual available at the SELPA Office and each 

LEA District Office 

Direct Instructional support provided by the program specialist: Not 

applicable. 

Role of the RLA/AU: The role of the RLA/AU is to receive federal and 

state funds on behalf of the SELPA, and distribute the funds as 

determined by the Superintendents’ Council. 

Role of the Administrator of the SELPA: The SELPA Administrator will 

facilitate the distribution of funds in accordance to the funding allocation 

plan approved by the Superintendents’ Council. The SELPA 

Administrator will also facilitate the Annual Budget Plan. 

Role of the individual LEAs: Each LEA through their representative to 

the Superintendents’ Council, determines and approves the distribution 

allocation of funds to the member LEAs and the Annual Budget Plan. 

The LEAs will also submit required fiscal reports as required by state 

and federal laws. 

17 

Page 159



Section B: Governance and Administration 

SELPA Glenn County Fiscal Year 2020-21 

Page B-41 of 47 CDE Form Version 2.0 

 

 

 

Document Title: 

Document Location: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Description: 

Direct Instructional support provided by the program specialist:  

A program specialist is a pupil services employee possessing (or 

eligible for) one of the following California credentials: Special 

Education, Clinical Rehabilitative Services, Adapted Physical Education, 

or School Psychology. He/she shall also have an in-depth knowledge of 

specific disabilities, preschool, and/or vocational development, 

depending upon the needs of the SELPA. 

The program specialists and others that are assigned to carry out these 

duties, whether they are employed by the SELPA or the LEA services 

shall be available to all students with disabilities, their families, and LEA 

staff. They shall work in a cooperative manner planning activities to 

meet the needs of the students with disabilities within the SELPA. They 

help to coordinate the delivery of services by serving on SELPA 

committees that deal with topics such as staff development, infant and 

preschool services, low incidence services, transition between districts, 

and the SELPA’s CAC. Program specialists’ services and 

responsibilities may include, but are not limited to: 

• Assure that students with disabilities have full educational opportunity 

regardless of LEA of residence 

• Plan, direct, coordinate and evaluate instructional programs in 

accordance with state and federal regulations 

• Provide direct instructional support, as directed 

• Identify needs and develop short and long-range plans for staff 

development, curriculum development, and program effectiveness 

• Provide staff development and training for general and special 

education administrators and staff 

• Represent the East County SELPA on committees 

• Coordinate student placements across LEA and SELPA boundaries 

• Develop and disseminate forms, policies and procedures throughout 

the SELPA 

• Monitor services and programs in nonpublic schools 

• Provide direction to LEAs regarding complaints filed with the CDE 

• Develop and submit proposals for grants and research projects, as 

requested 

• Assure appropriate coordination of general and special education 

instructional resources for students 

• Serve as LEA representatives and commit LEA resources, as 

appropriate 

• Interpret and implement new laws and regulations (Federal and State) 

Local Plan, Section B Governance and Administration 

Policy and Procedure Manual available at the SELPA Office and each 

LEA District Office 

Page 160



Section B: Governance and Administration 

SELPA Glenn County Fiscal Year 2020-21 

Page B-42 of 47 CDE Form Version 2.0 

 

 

 

• Design and implement alternative dispute resolution strategies 

• Coordinate mediation and due process issues for LEAs as requested 

• Serve as liaison with other public agencies (such as: San Diego 

Regional Center, San Diego County Health and Human Services) 

• Provide support to LEAs in the area of positive behavior intervention 

• Coordinate program reviews and the effectiveness of the Local Plan 

• Assist in the preparation, implementation and follow-up of reviews by 

the state including those that are part of the Focused Monitoring and the 

Quality Assurance Process 

• Conduct audits or reviews for the LEAs as requested 

Role of the RLA/AU: The RLA/AU will hire staff to perform these duties 

upon request of the Superintendents’ Council. 

Role of the Administrator of the SELPA: The SELPA Administrator, or 

designee, will hire, supervise, evaluate, and discipline the program 

specialists who are employed by the SELPA, and provide technical 

support needed for the implementation of the duties above for those 

carrying out these functions regardless of their employer. The SELPA 

Administrator will annually request an allocation for the services of the 

staff required to provide the function in EC 56836 to serve SELPA-wide 

needs from the Superintendents’ Council. 

Role of the individual LEAs: Each LEA individually decides on its 

allocation of staff who perform the duties of programs specialists listed 

above. LEAs may request to enter into an MOU with the SELPA on an 

individual basis for the services of a program specialist within their LEA. 

The individual LEAs will select, direct the work, supervise, evaluate and 

discipline staff that they employ to carry out these functions. 

Individual LEAs, through their representative to the Superintendents’ 

Council, determine annually the allocation the services of the staff 

required to provide the functions in EC 56836 to serve SELPA-wide 

needs. 

 
Special Education Local Plan Area Services 

 

1. A description of programs for early childhood special education from birth through five years of 

age: 

 

Reference Number: 

Document Title: 

Document Location: 
 

Early Education Services are provided for all eligible infants, toddlers, 

1 

Local Plan, Section B Governance and Administration 

Policy and Procedure Manual available at the SELPA Office and each 

LEA District Office 

Page 161



Section B: Governance and Administration 

SELPA Glenn County Fiscal Year 2020-21 

Page B-43 of 47 CDE Form Version 2.0 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 

Description: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2. A description of the method by which members of the public, including parents or guardians of 

individuals with exceptional needs who are receiving services under the local plan, may address 

questions or concerns to the SELPA governing body or individual administrator: 

 

Reference Number: 

Document Title: 

Document Location: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Description: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

3. A description of a dispute resolution process, including mediation and final and binding 

arbitration to resolve disputes over the distribution of funding, the responsibility for service 

provision, and the other governance activities specified within the local plan: 

 

Reference Number: 3 

and preschool children by member local educational agencies (LEAs) 

through the following ways. For children from Birth to age 3 will be served 

by Glenn County Office of Education Early Start program. Far Northern 

Regional Center also provides for services for children from birth to three 

as outlined in the Local Intera-agency Agreement between Far Northern 

Regional Center and GCOE. 

 
For students ages three through five, each LEA is responsible for 

providing services to eligible students for whom they are the district of 

special education accountability. This can be accomplished through 

LEA programs, intra- or inter-SELPA transfers. 

2 

Local Plan, Section B Governance and Administration 

Policy and Procedure Manual available at the SELPA Office and each 

LEA District Office 

Members of the public, including parents or guardians of students with 

disabilities who are receiving services under the local plan, may address 

questions or concerns to the SELPA governing body or individual 

administrator through: 

• Contacting their school of attendance to communicate with the site 

administrator 

• Contacting their LEA to communicate with a district administrator 

• Contacting the SELPA office to request communication with the 

SELPA Administrator 

• Contacting their LEA governing board as they are responsible to 

address questions and concerns of the public, including parents or 

guardians of students with disabilities who are receiving services under 

the Local Plan 

• Providing public comment at the SELPA Governance Committee 

meeting 

Page 162



Section B: Governance and Administration 

SELPA Glenn County Fiscal Year 2020-21 

Page B-44 of 47 CDE Form Version 2.0 

 

 

 

Document Title: 

Document Location: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Description: 

Individual LEA Complaint 

A superintendent who disagrees with the contents of the Local Plan, a 

policy or a specific decision made by the SELPA Governance 

Committee, or who experiences an inter-LEA disagreement, may 

present the issue to his/her respective Governing Board. Based upon 

procedures adopted by the Governing Board of each LEA, any 

individual may address his/her Governing Board. Each Governing Board 

has the right to initiate an appeal to the SELPA Appeals Board. 

When a Governing Board initiates an appeal, a SELPA Appeals Board 

shall consist of three members. The appealing Governing Board shall 

select one member and the SELPA Governance Committee shall select 

one member. The third member shall be a mediator agreed upon by 

both parties. The Governing Board that initiates the appeal and the 

SELPA shall share costs of the mediator equally. If there is 

disagreement upon the selection of the third member, the 

Superintendent of Glenn County Office of Education shall appoint the 

third member, who shall not have prior relationship or bias with respect 

to the issue to be arbitrated. 

The SELPA Governance Committee shall select its representative on 

the Appeals Board by a majority vote. 

Each member of the Appeals Board has one vote. Final decision must 

be approved by a majority vote (two) of the members of the Appeals 

Board. Decisions made by the Appeals Board are binding on both the 

appealing Governing Board and the SELPA Governance Committee, 

except to the extent adjudicated by a State or Federal Court to be in 

violation of the Local Plan or State or Federal Law. A decision shall be 

made within thirty (30) calendar days of the appointment of the Appeals 

Board members. There shall be no action on the issue being appealed 

until after the Appeals Board has adjudicated it. 

An LEA may appeal a decision of the Appeals Board to the appropriate 

court of competent jurisdiction. Inter-LEA Complaints 

If two LEAs are in disagreement and the respective Directors cannot 

resolve the problem, the following course of action will be taken: 

Directors of the two opposing LEAs shall present the issues to each of 

their respective Superintendents (Or Assistant Superintendents) who 

will attempt to resolve the issue. They may request assistance/ 

consultation form the SELPA Administrator. 

If the conflict cannot be resolved between the respective 

superintendents, either Director of one of the two opposing LEAs can 

Local Plan, Section B Governance and Administration 

Policy and Procedure Manual available at the SELPA Office and each 

LEA District Office 

Page 163



Section B: Governance and Administration 

SELPA Glenn County Fiscal Year 2020-21 

Page B-45 of 47 CDE Form Version 2.0 

 

 

 

 
 

4. A description of the process being used to ensure a student is referred for special education 

instruction and services only after the resources of the regular education program have been 

considered and, where appropriate, utilized: 

 

Reference Number: 

Document Title: 

Document Location: 
 
 
 
 
 

Description: 
 
 
 
 

 

5. A description of the process being used to oversee and evaluate placements in nonpublic, 

nonsectarian schools and the method of ensuring that all requirements of each student's 

individualized education program are being met. The description shall include a method for 

present the issue in writing to the SELPA Administrator who unless a 

longer time is agreed upon, wills attempt to resolve the problem within. 

Two weeks. The written correspondence should specify the nature of 

the complaint and the requests action, if any. The Superintendents (Or 

Assistant Superintendent) shall be kept informed of resolution efforts by 

their respective Director in writing. 

If this course of action fails, either Superintendent, or designated 

Assistant Superintended, may present a written request to the SELPA 

Director or SELPA Governance Committee chair for placement of the 

issue on the SELPA Governance Committee agenda. 

The Chair of the SELPA Governance Committee shall place the item on 

the next SELPA Governance Committee agenda. If the nature of the 

conflict requires immediate resolution, the Chair of the SELPA 

Governance Committee will call a special Superintendents’ Council 

meeting. 

The SELPA Governance Committee may resolve the disagreement or 

refer the parties to the appeals process delineated in the local plan. 

If the conflict involves a parental complaint, the parents may address 

the SELPA Governance Committee. 

4 

Local Plan, Section B Governance and Administration 

Policy and Procedure Manual available at the SELPA Office and each 

LEA District Office 

Each LEA shall ensure that a pupil is referred for special educational 

instruction and services only after the resources of the general 

education program have been considered and, where appropriate, 

utilized. Such resources may include, but not limited to, response to 

intervention models, student success teams, early literacy programs, 

and remedial programs. Each LEA will develop, implement, and revise 

their own policies and procedures as needed. 

Page 164



Section B: Governance and Administration 

SELPA Glenn County Fiscal Year 2020-21 

Page B-46 of 47 CDE Form Version 2.0 

 

 

 

evaluating whether the student is making appropriate educational progress: 

 

Reference Number: 

Document Title: 

Document Location: 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Description: 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

6. A description of the process by which the SELPA will fulfill the obligations to provide free and 

appropriate public education (FAPE) to a student age 18 to 21 (or age 22 under the circumstances 

described in EC 56026(c)(4)) who has been incarcerated in a county jail and remains eligible for 

special education services: 
 

The obligation to make FAPE available extends to those otherwise-eligible adults in county jail, 

age 18 to 21, who: (a) had been identified as a child with a disability and had received services in 

accordance with an IEP, but left school prior to their incarceration; or (b) did not have an IEP in 

their last educational setting, but had actually been identified as a child with a disability. 

(EC Section 56040) 
 

It is the responsibility of the district of residence (DOR) to provide special education services and 

related services to an adult student in county jail who remains eligible for these services and 

wishes to receive them. The DOR is the district in which the student's parents resided when the 

student turned 18, unless and until the parents move to a new DOR. For conserved students, the 

DOR is based on the residence of the conservator. (EC Section 56041) 

 

Reference Number: 

Document Title: 

Document Location: 

5 

Local Plan, Section B Governance and Administration 

Policy and Procedure Manual available at the SELPA Office and each 

LEA District Office 

Each LEA that contracts with a nonpublic, nonsectarian school shall 

evaluate the placement of its pupil(s) in such schools on at least an 

annual basis as part of the annual IEP review. The IEP team will 

determine if the student is making appropriate educational progress 

through review of progress on IEP goals, including those specific to a 

Behavior Intervention Plan as well as any other assessments or 

pertinent data. The LEA will observe a pupil during instruction and will 

conduct a walkthrough of the facility. 

An LEA representative shall review the master contract, the individual 

services agreements, and the IEP to ensure that all services agreed 

upon and specified in the IEP are provided. 

6 

Local Plan, Section B Governance and Administration 

Policy and Procedure Manual available at the SELPA Office and each 

LEA District Office 

Page 165



Section B: Governance and Administration 

SELPA Glenn County Fiscal Year 2020-21 

Page B-47 of 47 CDE Form Version 2.0 

 

 

 
 
 
 

Description: 

The SELPA will provide technical support to any districts identified as 

the DOR for students age 18 to 21 who are incarcerated in a county jail 

and remaining eligible for special education to assist in meeting their 

obligation. The SELPA may facilitate collaboration with the county jails 

as requested. 

Page 166



HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

 

Agenda Item Number: 13e Date: 2/24/2021 

Agenda Item Description: 

Approve COVID-19 State Regulations Updates: 

● HUSD COVID-19 School Guidance Checklist 

● HUSD CPP 

Background:  

Per new guidance that was issued by the Governor on January 14, 2021 in the COVID-19 and Reopening 

In-Person Instruction Framework & Public Health Guidance for K-12 School in California, 2020-2021 

School Year the District was required to complete the COVID-19 School Guidance Checklist and, in 

accordance to CAL OSHA, the COVID-19 Cal/OSHA Prevention Program (CPP) to remain open for student 

attendance. 

Status: Pending board approval 

Fiscal Impact: None 

Educational Impact:  None 

Recommendation: Recommend board approve COVID Funds/State Regulations Updates 

 

 

Page 167



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

COVID-19 School 

Guidance 

Checklist 

 

 

 

 

 

 
January 14, 2021 

Page 168



 

Date: ___________ 

 

2021 COVID-19 School Guidance Checklist 

 
Name of Local Educational Agency or Equivalent: Hamilton Unified School District 

Number of schools: 4 

Enrollment: 713 

Superintendent (or equivalent) Name: Dr. Jeremy Powell 

Address: 620 Canal Street, PO Box 488, 

Hamilton City, Ca. 95951 

Date of proposed reopening: 

• Reopened to K-2 on: 10/12/2020 

• Reopened to 3-5 on: 10/26, 2020 

• Reopened to 6-12 on: 11/16/2020 

County: Glenn County 

Current Tier: Purple(please indicate 

Purple, Red, Orange or Yellow) 

Type of LEA:  Public School 

Phone Number: 530-826-3261 

Email: jpowell@husdschools.org 

 

 

Grade Level (check all that apply) 

xTK x 2nd x 5th x 8th  x 11th 

x K x 3rd  x 6th  x 9th   x 12th 

x 1st x 4th  x 7th x 10th 

 

 

This form and any applicable attachments should be posted publicly on the 

website of the local educational agency (or equivalent) prior to reopening or 

if an LEA or equivalent has already opened for in-person instruction. For those 

in the Purple Tier, materials must additionally be submitted to your local health 

officer (LHO), local County Office of Education, and the State School Safety 

Team prior to reopening. 

 

The email address for submission to the State School Safety for All Team for LEAs 

in Purple Tier is: 

K12csp@cdph.ca.gov 

LEAs or equivalent in Counties with a case rate >=25/100,000 individuals can 

submit materials but cannot re-open a school until the county is below 25 cases 

per 100,000 (adjusted rate) for 5 consecutive days. 

 

For Local Educational Agencies (LEAs or equivalent) in ALL TIERS: 

I, Dr. Jeremy Powell, post to the website of the local educational agency (or 

equivalent) the COVID Safety Plan, which consists of two elements: the COVID-

19 Prevention Program (CPP), pursuant to CalOSHA requirements, and this CDPH 

COVID-19 Guidance Checklist and accompanying documents, Page 169

mailto:K12csp@cdph.ca.gov


 

 
 

which satisfies requirements for the safe reopening of schools per CDPH 

Guidance on Schools. For those seeking to open while in the Purple Tier, these 

plans have also been submitted to the local health officer (LHO) and the State 

School Safety Team. 

I confirm that reopening plan(s) address the following, consistent with guidance 

from the California Department of Public Health and the local health 

department: 

 
Stable group structures (where applicable): How students and staff will be kept 

in stable groups with fixed membership that stay together for all activities 

(e.g., instruction, lunch, recess) and minimize/avoid contact with other 

groups or individuals who are not part of the stable group. 

Please provide specific information regarding: 

• How many students and staff will be in each planned stable, group 

structure? (If planning more than one type of group, what is the 

minimum and maximum number of students and staff in the 

groups?) 

• If you have departmentalized classes, how will you organize staff 

and students in stable groups? 

• If you have electives, how will you prevent or minimize in-person 

contact for members of different stable groups? 

 

Instruction:  

• Hamilton Elementary School will implement a hybrid model reducing the 

class sizes in half by meeting with half of the class enrollment each day 

using an AM/PM in-person instructional model.  Based on square footage 

and desk size, social distancing will be maximized to the extent possible 

with fewer students in the room plus the teacher and at times, an aide.  

• Small group work will not be assigned until social distancing is no longer 

necessary. 

 

Lunch:  

• Lunch and breakfast will be provided in a "grab and go” manner.   AM 

students will eat breakfast in their classroom and grab their lunch on the 

way out the door.  PM students will eat lunch in their classrooms and grab 

their next day breakfast on the way home. 

 

Recess:  

• There will be no mass recess scheduled during the hybrid schedule.  

Recess will be broken down by grade level, and classes, as allowed by 

supervision.    

 

Library & Media Lab:  

• The library and media lab will remain closed to students during the hybrid 

schedule.  Page 170

https://www.cdph.ca.gov/Programs/CID/DCDC/CDPH%20Document%20Library/COVID-19/Consolidated_Schools_Guidance.pdf


 

 

School Bus:  

• Parents will be directed to screen their students for any COVID symptoms 

before allowing students to ride on the bus.  Parents will be encouraged 

to transport their children to school if possible - reducing the number of 

riders on each bus. 

• Parents should have their children wash their hands before heading to the 

bus stop. 

• Drivers will meet students outside of the bus. 

• Before entry on the bus, students will have a temperature check (must be 

below 100.4); have a visual/verbal check for illness by bus driver; be 

provided hand sanitizer as they enter the bus; and be offered a mask if 

they do not have one. 

• Windows will be open as weather allows to circulate fresh air through the 

bus. 

• Enhanced disinfection–drivers will sanitize the bus on return to the District 

and will thoroughly clean and sanitize the bus at the end of the day. 

• Extra cleaning will be focused on high-touch surfaces including seats, 

windows, floors, and fixtures such as the pass scanner. 

• Drivers and aides will be required to wear a mask and gloves. 

• Parents will be required to wait at the bus stop and not leave until the 

student has entered the bus. 

o If no parent is available, the bus driver will contact school and 

school will contact parent/guardian. 

o School bus will wait until the parent arrives OR the school 

administrator arrives at the bus stop. 

o Bus privileges will be revoked if a parent is not available. 

• If a student has a temperature over 100.3 or is showing any signs of illness, 

they will not be allowed on the bus. Students will be required to wear a 

mask at the bus stop and on the bus. 

• Students should be at their stop five minutes before the bus is scheduled 

to arrive. 

• Students should maintain six feet of distance from one another at the bus 

stop and while loading and exiting the bus.  

• If a seat is marked with an X, it is not available to sit in. 

• First students on the bus must take a seat in the rear then others load from 

back to front. Riders may not change seats and must sit with their bottoms 

on the seat, facing forward. 

• Riders should exit the bus one at a time from the front to back, 

maintaining six feet of distance from one another. 

 

Other notable exceptions:   

• No whole school assemblies until allowed by public health.  

• No band/choir classes will be held.  

• No field trips will be taken until allowed by public health.  

• No access to water fountains, students need to bring refillable water 

bottles (water bottles can be provided).  

• Sports are postponed until further notice.  

• Classroom volunteers will not be approved.  

Entrance, Egress, and Movement Within the School: How movement of students, 

staff, and parents will be managed to avoid close contact and/or mixing of 

cohorts. 

• Access to District schools and sites by nonessential visitors will be limited.  
Page 171



 

• Access to the campus will be minimized to faculty, staff, students and essential 

personnel. There will be no access to non-essential visitors and volunteers.  

• All faculty, staff, students and visitors will be required to participate in pre-

screening upon arrival at the point of entry. 

• Masks will be required upon entry of either location and hand sanitizing stations 

will be established to be compliant with hygiene requirements.  

• Signage will be provided in walkways throughout the campus to reinforce social 

distancing.  

• Parents will be encouraged to remain in their vehicles during drop off and pick 

up.  

• Parents that need to escort younger children will be required to wear a mask 

and practice physical distancing.  

• Parents and students will be assigned an access point to campus.  Parents of 

multiple children at one site will drop all their students at the gate where the 

oldest student is assigned to enter. 

• Student Entry to Campus: 

o HES: K-2 enter through North Gate/Playground area; 3-5 enter through 

front of school by office, 6-8 enter near cafeteria 

o HHS: Students will enter campus and be screened in the Library Parking 

Lot and/or the Front of the Administrative Office off of Canal Street.  

Physical Barriers or Chalk will be used to identify entry areas 

o All entry points will be attended by Administrators, clerical staff, or para-

professionals 

o All students must wear mask 

o No Visitors will be allowed on campus before school 

o Health Screening with Temperature check, verbal/visual check will be 

conducted. 

▪ If a student has COVID symptoms, they will be taken to office or 

returned to their parents. 

o Portable carts with extra masks and hand sanitizer will be at each entry 

point. 

Face Coverings and Other Essential Protective Gear: How CDPH’s face covering 

requirements will be satisfied and enforced for staff and students. 

Face Coverings: 

• All staff and students in 3rd grade and above will be required to wear a cloth 

face covering, mask, or face shield while at school or on a school bus.  

• Students in 2nd grade and below are strongly encouraged to wear a face 

covering, mask, or face shield, while at school or on a school bus.  

Protective Equipment:  

• Access and availability of protective equipment that complies with 

CDPH/CDE/local public health department guidance for schools. The 

following will be provided at each Elementary School:  

o Surgical masks, face shields, disposable gloves for screenings  

o Face coverings and disposable gloves for front office and food 

service employees PPE for staff engaged in deep cleaning and 

disinfecting following Cal/OSHA standards  

o Plan for continuity of supply for protective equipment is on file at the 

district office. 

o Thermometers have been purchased for temperature screening.  

o Requirements for different populations (e.g., students with disabilities, 

and individuals with medical, toileting, lifting, and/or mobility 

assistance needs) may be modified on a case by case basis. 
Page 172



 

o Appropriate hand-washing, sneezing, face covering use, and other 

safe hygiene practices will be taught and encouraged throughout 

the 2020-2021 school year.  

o Sharing of belongings is discouraged, and sharing of supplies will be 

minimized to the extent possible and practicable. Where sharing 

occurs, cleaning and disinfecting between uses is strongly 

encouraged.  

• Individual plexiglass barriers that will accommodate ½ of student population 

at a time have been purchased. 

 

Health Screenings for Students and Staff: How students and staff will be 

screened for symptoms of COVID-19 and how ill students or staff will be 

separated from others and sent home immediately. 

• Any student or staff exhibiting a fever of greater than 100.3 or other symptoms 

while on District premises during school operation hours will be immediately sent 

home. The District will also encourage students and/or staff to stay home if 

anyone in their household is exhibiting any COVID-19 symptoms.  

• The District will consult with local health authorities to determine whether 

surveillance testing may be implemented based on local disease trends. Staff 

may be tested periodically as testing capacity and as practicable. Additional 

COVID-19 prevention measures may be implemented pending further state 

and/or local guidance, resources, and/or technical assistance for COVID-19 

investigations in school settings. Encourage screening at home (e.g., parents, 

older siblings, employees themselves) The district will establish and communicate 

appropriate hand-washing, sneezing, and face covering use techniques, 

sanitizing practices/requirements for students, families, and staff, face 

mask/covering policy, limit avoid sharing of materials, health office triage plan 

and transportation practices.  

• Parents/guardians will be educated on the screening criteria prior to in-person 

learning. This training will occur via recorded videos and pushed out through 

emails. Parents must sign-off that they have watched the videos before their 

child will be allowed to return to in-person learning.  

• Each morning, prior to dropping child(ren) off at school or getting on the bus, 

parents/guardians will screen their child for the following criteria:  

o Fever greater than 100.3 or chills, cough, shortness of breath, difficulty 

breathing, fatigue, muscle or body aches, headaches, sore throat, 

congestion, or runny nose, recent loss of smell or taste and diarrhea.  

• Active monitoring/screening at school sites:  The district will provide prior to 

opening school all of the following: Hygiene training for staff, Sufficient 

equipment for training, Proper disinfecting and disposing of screening items, 

Isolation area(s) for suspected symptomatic individuals which must be sufficiently 

large for social distancing within the area(s). At all points of entry established on 

each Elementary campus, symptom screening/questioning will be conducted 

for anyone entering the campus.  

• Becoming Ill at School - Should either student or staff become ill during the 

school day, they will be separated from the class and sent home immediately.  

• The district will recommend anyone who screens with symptoms, fever, or 

becomes sick to get a COVID-19 test with their healthcare provider or at a 

community testing site.  

Healthy Hygiene Practices: The availability of handwashing stations and hand Page 173



 

sanitizer, and how their safe and appropriate use will be promoted and 

incorporated into routines for staff and students. 

 

• Students will be educated frequently on the importance of hygiene and 

respiratory  

etiquette.  

• Hand sanitizer stations will be positioned in every classroom, common areas and 

building entrance.  

• Students will wash their hands anytime they use the restroom.  

• Staff will model proper handwashing techniques and reinforce handwashing 

throughout the day. 

• Four Additional Hand Washing Stations will be installed in high traffic areas. 
 

Identification and Tracing of Contacts: Actions that staff will take when there is a 

confirmed case. Confirm that the school(s) have designated staff persons 

to support contact tracing, such as creation and submission of lists of 

exposed students and staff to the local health department and 

notification of exposed persons. Each school must designate a person for 

the local health department to contact about COVID-19. 

• The district administrator, administrative assistant, and the district nurse will be 

the designated staff to support local contact tracing.  

• The District nurse will be the contact person for the local health department to 

contact regarding COVID-19.  

• The district nurse will assist in the documentation and tracking of potential 

exposure. When warranted, local public health officials will be notified along 

with parents.  

Physical Distancing: How space and routines will be arranged to allow for 

physical distancing of students and staff. 

Please provide the planned maximum and minimum distance between 

students in classrooms. 

Maximum: 12 feet 

Minimum: 6 feet.  

If this is less than 6 feet, please explain why it is not possible to maintain a 

minimum of at least 6 feet. 

• The number of individuals on campus will be limited to half the student 

enrollment in the AM/PM sessions thereby creating class sizes half of the regular 

class sizes. 

• Adults will maintain six feet from one another and six feet away from children, 

while students should maintain six feet of distance from one another as 

practicable during school activities.  

• Appropriate signage and barriers to direct traffic and daily reminders to socially 

distance while at school during normal school/business hours. 

• Large gatherings of over 16 people will be delayed until the schools reopen 

fully.  

• Privacy boards/clear screens will be installed in office and classrooms when 

social distance can't be met. 

Page 174



 

• "Grag and Go" food service periods establishing physical barriers at appropriate 

areas, signage to ensure physical distancing, cleaning and trash removal plans  

• Transportation will distance students as much as possible, and assign seats to 

limit cohort mixing.  

Staff Training and Family Education: How staff will be trained and families will be 

educated on the application and enforcement of the plan. 

• As outlined in Cleaning and Disinfecting, staff will participate in training specific 

to safety  

and hygiene regarding the Coronavirus. Staff will be provided with educational 

materials for implementing protocols in their classrooms and with students.  

• Families will have access to the Hamilton Unified School District Reopening of 

Schools Framework and Safety Plan through the school office and website. 

• COVID-19 resources are posted on the district website.  

• Hand washing instructions provided to every student to share at home.  

 

Testing of Staff: How school officials will ensure that students and staff who have 

symptoms of COVID-19 or have been exposed to someone with COVID-19 

will be rapidly tested and what instructions they will be given while 

waiting for test results. Below, please describe any planned periodic 

asymptomatic staff testing cadence. 

Staff asymptomatic testing cadence. Please note if testing cadence will 

differ by tier: 

• All Staff are required to test for COVID-19 every two months. 

• Staff are recommended to use: Optium Testing Service--Orland Memorial Hall, 

320 3rd Street, Orland, Ca. 95963 but may use any COVID-19 testing service. 

• If a student, teacher or staff member is exhibiting COVID symptoms, they are 

sent home and it is recommended they seek testing. 
• When a student, teacher or staff member is a contact of someone infected with 

COVID or is diagnosed with COVID-19 the District will consult with Glenn County 

Public Health. 

Testing of Students: How school officials will ensure that students who have 

symptoms of COVID-19 or have been exposed to someone with COVID-

19 will be rapidly tested and what instructions they will be given while 

waiting for test results. Below, please describe any planned periodic 

asymptomatic student testing cadence. 

Planned student testing cadence. Please note if testing cadence will differ 

by tier: 

_______________________________________________________________________ 
 

• If a student, teacher or staff member is exhibiting COVID symptoms, they are 

sent home and it is recommended they seek testing. 
• When a student, teacher or staff member is a contact of someone infected with 

COVID or is diagnosed with COVID-19 the District will consult with Glenn County 

Public Health. 

 

Page 175



 

   Student or Staff with: Action   Communication   

1 COVID-19 Symptoms 

(e.g., fever, cough, loss 

of taste or smell, difficulty 

breathing) Symptom 

Screening: Per CA 

School Sector Specific 

Guidelineshttps://files.co

vid19.ca.govipdílquidan

ce-schools.opdf  

1. Send home  

2. Recommend testing (If positive, see 

#3, if negative, see #4)  

3. School/classroom remain open   

No Action 

needed 

2 Close contact (*) with a 

confirmed COVID19 

case 

1. Send home  

2. Quarantine for 14 days from last 

exposure Recommend testing (but 

will not shorten 14 day quarantine) 

3. School/classroom remain open   

Consider school 

community 

notification of a 

known contact  

3 Confirmed COVID-19 

case infection   

1. Notify the local public health 

department 

2. Isolate case and exclude from school 

for 10 days from symptom onset or 

test date 

3. Identify contacts (*), quarantine & 

exclude exposed contacts (likely 

entire cohort (**) for 14 days after the 

last date the case was present at 

school while infectious 

4. Recommend testing of contacts, 

prioritize symptomatic contacts (but 

will not shorten 14-day quarantine) 

5. Disinfection and cleaning of 

classroom and primary spaces where 

case spent significant time  

6. School remains open  

School 

community 

notification of a 

known case   

 
Tests negative after 

symptoms 

1. May return to school 3 days after 

symptoms resolve  

2. School/classroom remain open 

Consider school 

community 

notification is 

prior awareness 

of testing  

 

• (*) A contact is defined as a person who is <6 feet from a case for > 15 minutes. 

In some school situations, it may be difficult to determine whether individuals 

have met this criterion and an entire cohort, classroom, or other group may 

need to be considered exposed, particularly if people have spent time together 

indoors.  

• (**) A cohort is a stable group with fixed membership that stays together for all 

courses and activities (e.g., lunch, recess, etc.) and avoids contact with other 

persons or cohorts.  
 
 

Identification and Reporting of Cases: At all times, reporting of confirmed positive Page 176



 

and suspected cases in students, staff and employees will be consistent 

with Reporting Requirements. 

• All confirmed positive and suspected cases in students, staff and 

employees will be reported to our school nurse and response will be 

consistent with current reporting requirements. 

Communication Plans: How the superintendent will communicate with 

students, staff, and parents about cases and exposures at the school, 

consistent with privacy requirements such as FERPA and HIPAA. 

The following guidance to staff and parents will be provided prior to returning to in-

person learning:  

• It is necessary for us to communicate when there are confirmed positive 

COVID-19 cases at any throughout the Hamilton Unified School District. There 

is a fine line between keeping our school community informed and 

protecting an individual's privacy. The purpose of this communication is to 

share with you how, and when, we plan to communicate COVID-19 

information involving Hamilton Unified students and staff.  

• First, let's define our terms. Confirmed positive cases (verified by any County 

Public Health Department) are "Positive". People who are "Positive" are 

isolated in their home by Public Health request.  

• A person who has been in contact with a confirmed "Positive", within 6-feet or 

less, for 15 minutes or more (with or without a mask) will be referred to as a 

"Close Contact". People identified, by Public Health, as "Close Contacts" are 

quarantined to their home and advised by public health to get tested. Public 

Health will direct the "Close Contacts" as to if, or how long, they should self 

quarantine. 

• Someone who is in contact with a "Close Contact" is referred to as a 

"Secondary Contact". "Secondary Contacts" are to monitor their symptoms 

and can continue going to school or work. If they become symptomatic, 

they should contact public health and their health care provider.  

• When we become aware of a confirmed "Positive" case, either from the 

employee, student's family, or the public health officials directly, we will be in 

contact with public health for contact tracing and next steps. We will supply 

Glenn County Public Health with contact tracing information relative to our 

site. Health officials will interview, reach out, and provide assistance directly 

to individuals with an elevated risk of exposure who may have been in recent 

close contact with the student or staff member. We will communicate 

confirmed positive cases districtwide in a general sense informing 

stakeholders that a staff member, or student, tested positive. We will not state 

the person's name and be very nondescript about their role or position.  

• We are all asked to please respect everyone's privacy during this time. If you 

suspect you have had Close Contact with someone who later was 

confirmed Positive, call Glenn County Public Health at 530.934.6588. You do 

not need to wait for the Contact Tracers to call you.  

The Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC) recommends 

contacting your doctor if you believe you have been exposed to COVID-19 

and develop a fever and other symptoms, such as coughing or difficulty 

breathing. Thank you for your continued support toward our collective purpose 

of slowing the spread of COVID-19, ensuring the health and safety of our 

students and staff, maintaining relationships, and facilitating student learning. 

By working together, we will meet the challenges of these unprecedented Page 177

https://www.cdph.ca.gov/Programs/CID/DCDC/Pages/COVID-19/Schools-Case-Reporting-Directive.aspx


 

times. 

This Section is not Applicable to HUSD as we have been open: 

• Reopened to K-2 on: 10/12/2020 

• Reopened to 3-5 on: 10/26, 2020 

• Reopened to 6-12 on: 11/16/2020 

☐ Consultation: (For schools not previously open) Please confirm 

consultation with the following groups 

☐ Labor Organization 

Name of Organization(s) and Date(s) Consulted: 

Name: ________________________________ 

Date: ________________________________ 

☐ Parent and Community Organizations 

Name of Organization(s) and Date(s) Consulted: 

Name: ________________________________ 

Date: ________________________________ 

 

If no labor organization represents staff at the school, please describe the 

process for consultation with school staff: 

________________________________________________________________________ 

________________________________________________________________________ 

 
For Local Educational Agencies (LEAs or equivalent) in PURPLE: 

☐ Local Health Officer Approval: The Local Health Officer, for (state 

County) _______________________________________. County has certified 

and approved the CRP on this date: __________________. If more than 7 

business days have passed since the submission without input from the 

LHO, the CRP shall be deemed approved. 

 
Additional Resources: 

Guidance on Schools 

Safe Schools for All Hub 

Page 178

https://www.cdph.ca.gov/Programs/CID/DCDC/CDPH%20Document%20Library/COVID-19/Consolidated_Schools_Guidance.pdf
https://schools.covid19.ca.gov/


 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 

COVID 19 Prevention Program (CPP) 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

January 30,2021 

  

Page 179



 

COVID-19 Prevention Program (CPP) for Hamilton Unified School District 
This CPP is designed to control exposures to the SARS-CoV-2 virus that may occur in our workplace.  
Date: February 1, 2021 

Authority and Responsibility 

The District Superintendent has overall authority and responsibility for implementing the provisions of this CPP in 
our workplace. In addition, all managers and supervisors are responsible for implementing and maintaining the 
CPP in their assigned work areas and for ensuring employees receive answers to questions about the program in 
a language they understand. 
All employees are responsible for using safe work practices, following all directives, policies and procedures, and 
assisting in maintaining a safe work environment. 

Identification and Evaluation of COVID-19 Hazards 

We will implement the following in our workplace: 

• Conduct workplace-specific evaluations using the Appendix A: Identification of COVID-19 Hazards form.  

• Evaluate employees’ potential workplace exposures to all persons at, or who may enter, our workplace. 

• Review applicable orders and general and industry-specific guidance from the State of California, Cal/OSHA, 
and the local health department related to COVID-19 hazards and prevention. 

• Evaluate existing COVID-19 prevention controls in our workplace and the need for different or additional 
controls.  

• Conduct periodic inspections using the Appendix B: COVID-19 Inspections form as needed to identify 
unhealthy conditions, work practices, and work procedures related to COVID-19 and to ensure compliance 
with our COVID-19 policies and procedures. 

Employee participation 
Employees and their authorized employees’ representatives are encouraged to participate in the identification 
and evaluation of COVID-19 hazards by reporting any conditions or situations considered hazardous by any 
employee. The report of these conditions or situations will be investigated by the district’s administrative team, 
and evaluated to correct the condition or situation, if it is deemed that any exist. 

Employee screening 
 We screen our employees by: 

• Upon arrival on campus or worksite, employees will need to check-in with your administrator or direct 

supervisor to verify these questions and then have a temperature check.  

• Daily health self assessments must be conducted by each employee from home and verify immediately 

upon reporting to the worksite.  

• Once on site, staff is to check in with their site administrator or direct supervisor each day upon arrival to 

their school site.  

• Staff Self-Assessment and On-Site Screening: 

o Please answer the following with a Yes/No, if any responses are Yes, please contact your direct 

supervisor immediately.  

o Are you experiencing any symptoms such as current or recent fever (100.40 or higher), new or 

worsening cough, new or worsening shortness of breath or respiratory illness, sudden lack of 

taste or smell, sudden onset of unexplained gastrointestinal illness?  

o Have you been in close contact with anyone who has been diagnosed with COVID-19 or who is 

experiencing symptoms of COVIDS-19? 

o Have you traveled outside of the continental United States within the past 10 days? Upon arrival 

on campus or worksite, you will need to check-in with your administrator or direct supervisor to 

verify these questions and then have a temperature check. 

Page 180



• Contact the Human Resources Department for further instructions  

Correction of COVID-19 Hazards 

Unsafe or unhealthy work conditions, practices or procedures will be documented on the Appendix B: COVID-19 

Inspections form, and corrected in a timely manner based on the severity of the hazards, as follows:  Inspections 

will be conducted bimonthly to survey for any unreported potentially unsafe or unhealthy conditions.  Once an 

unsafe or unhealthy work condition, practice or procedure is reported to the administration, a member of the 

administration team will assess the issue for severity and report to the superintendent the result.  If the situation 

calls for instant resolve, the administrative investigator will make the executive decision to correct the situation 

immediately, and report to the superintendent after immediate correction.  If the situation requires immediate 

attention within the working day, the administrative investigator will contact the superintendent, reporting the 

results and requesting a decision be made to implement correction.  The administrative investigator will then 

oversee and/or enact the correction. If the situation requires attention but does not reflect an unsafe or 

hazardous work condition, the administrative investigator will review the condition and report it to the 

superintendent. The administration will meet within 72 hours to establish a plan of action for correction, and the 

original administrative investigator will oversee correction of the situation. 

Control of COVID-19 Hazards 

Physical Distancing 

Where possible, we ensure at least six feet of physical distancing at all times in our workplace by:  

• Reducing the number of persons in an area at one time, including visitors. 

• Visual cues such as signs and floor markings to indicate where employees and others should be located or 
their direction and path of travel. 

Individuals will be kept as far apart as possible when there are situations where six feet of physical distancing 
cannot be achieved. 

Face Coverings 

We provide clean, undamaged face coverings and ensure they are properly worn by employees over the nose 

and mouth when indoors, and when outdoors and less than six feet away from another person, including non-

employees, and where required by orders from the California Department of Public Health (CDPH) or local 

health department.   

Face coverings are provided to all students, staff, visitors, contractors, and anyone else requiring entrance to 
the campus.  These face coverings are readily available and free of charge to the person requiring the face 
covering.  These face coverings are new when provided and disposable, as to lessen exposure to potential 
contact with the virus.  When employees recognize a non-employee not wearing a mask or face covering, the 
person(s) is advised that face coverings are required while on the campus, and the person(s) will be provided a 
face covering immediately. 

  
 The following are exceptions to the use of face coverings in our workplace: 

• When an employee is alone in a room. 

• While eating and drinking at the workplace, provided employees are at least six feet apart and outside air 
supply to the area, if indoors, has been maximized to the extent possible. 

• Employees wearing respiratory protection in accordance with CCR Title 8 section 5144 or other safety 
orders. 

• Employees who cannot wear face coverings due to a medical or mental health condition or disability, or 
who are hearing-impaired or communicating with a hearing-impaired person. Alternatives will be 
considered on a case-by-case basis. 

• Specific tasks that cannot feasibly be performed with a face covering, where employees will be kept at 

Page 181



least six feet apart. 

Any employee not wearing a face covering, face shield with a drape or other effective alternative, or 

respiratory protection, for any reason, shall be at least six feet apart from all other persons unless the 

unmasked employee is tested at least twice weekly for COVID-19. 

Engineering controls 

We implement the following measures for situations where we cannot maintain at least six feet between 

individuals:  

• Desks have been removed from classrooms to allow for 6’ distance between students 

• Solid individual partitions are installed on all student and teacher work stations. 

We maximize, to the extent feasible, the quantity of outside air for our buildings with mechanical or natural 

ventilation systems by:  

• The District has purchased and installed Rabbit HEPA Air Filtration systems in all classrooms and 

common areas throughout the District.  

• Ensuring our HVAC system is regularly maintained in all occupied buildings. 

• Ensuring the MOT staff continues to monitor the efficiency and effectiveness of the units. Ensuring 

HVAC filters are changed as necessary and within the specified time frame before the life of the filter is 

extended past the appropriate time frame. 

• Monitor MOT records that reflect the usage of efficient and up to date filtration within the ventilation 

system. 

• When feasible, windows and doors are open to allow for cross-ventilation.  

Cleaning and disinfecting 

We implement the following cleaning and disinfection measures for frequently touched surfaces:  

• All necessary cleaning and disinfecting supplies are ordered in a timely manner and to the best of our 
ability and supply ability. 

• All necessary cleaning and disinfecting supplies are made available to all appropriate staff for use. 

• Informing the employees and authorized employee representatives of the frequency and scope of cleaning 
and disinfection. 

• Daily cleaning and disinfection by custodial staff using products approved for use against COVID-19 on the 
EPA-approved list. 

• Cleaning between AM/PM sessions of all high touch areas throughout the District. 

• Ensuring MOT and related staff are trained on current and best practices for cleaning and disinfecting to 
prevent the spread of COVID-19. 

• Administration will continually update staff about current frequency and scope of cleaning and disinfecting 
procedures as new procedures become available. 

Should we have a COVID-19 case in our workplace, we will implement the following procedures:  

• The area used by the COVID-19 case will be closed off from use.  

• Doors and windows will be opened, if possible, to increase air circulation.  

• The affected area will be left vacant for a minimum of 24 hours before cleaning.  

• All areas used by the COVID-19 case will be cleaned and disinfected.  

• Only disinfecting products approved for use against COVID-19 on the EPA-approved list will be used.  

• Soft surfaces will be misted using an electrostatic sprayer.  

• If more than seven days since the COVID-19 case visited or used the affected area, additional cleaning and 
disinfection is not necessary. 

Shared tools, equipment and personal protective equipment (PPE) 

Page 182



PPE must not be shared, e.g., gloves, goggles and face shields. 

Items that employees come in regular physical contact with, such as phones, headsets, desks, keyboards, writing 

materials, instruments and tools must also not be shared, to the extent feasible.  Where there must be sharing, 

the items will be disinfected between uses by: 

• Use of a cleaning/sanitizing crew daily 

• Using EPA-approved products to disinfect shared items and workspaces 

• Using hand sanitizer before and after each use. 

Hand sanitizing 

In order to implement effective hand sanitizing procedures, the District will: 

• Install hand sanitizing stations in all classrooms and common areas. 

• Evaluate handwashing facilities. 

• Determine the need for additional facilities. 

• Encourage staff to wash hands as frequently as possible.   

• Provide employees with an effective hand sanitizer and prohibit hand sanitizers that contain methanol (i.e. 
methyl alcohol). 

Personal protective equipment (PPE) used to control employees’ exposure to COVID-19 

We evaluate the need for PPE (such as gloves, goggles, and face shields) as required by CCR Title 8, section 3380, 
and provide such PPE as needed. 
 
When it comes to respiratory protection, we evaluate the need in accordance with CCR Title 8 section 5144 when 
the physical distancing requirements are not feasible or maintained.  

Investigating and Responding to COVID-19 Cases 

This will be accomplished by using the Appendix C: Investigating COVID-19 Cases form.  

Employees who had potential COVID-19 exposure in our workplace will be excluded from the worksite and 

interviewed to establish:  

• Dates they have been at the work site  

• Dates COVID-19 case tested positive or first experiences symptoms  

• With whom they have been in contact  
 
The District will respond to COVID-19 cases by:  

• Notifying all staff who have been at the worksite with the qualified individual during the infectious period  

• Encouraging COVID-19 testing to exposed employees, provided at no cost to the employee and during working 
hours  

• Investigating whether any workplace conditions could have contributed to the risk of COVID-19 exposure and 
what can be done to reduce exposure  

• Cleaning and disinfecting all areas the qualified individual has been to help prevent the spread of the virus  

• Notifying Glenn County Public Health, if applicable  

• Notifying Cal/OSHA, if applicable  

• All employee COVID-19 cases will be reported to workers' compensation claims department  
System for Communicating 

Our goal is to ensure that we have effective two-way communication with our employees, in a form they can 

readily understand, and that it includes the following information: 

• Who employees should report COVID-19 symptoms and possible hazards to, and how  

o Employees should report COVID-19 symptoms to the administration immediately, as well as any 

possible hazards to be investigated.  Reporting can be done through any medium and will be kept 

Page 183



as anonymous as reasonably possible. 

• That employees can report symptoms and hazards without fear of reprisal 

• Our procedures or policies for accommodating employees with medical or other conditions that put them at 

increased risk of severe COVID-19 illness. 

• Where testing is not required, how employees can access COVID-19 testing employees are encouraged to 

test at any time they see fit even if not required. Information about where to test as well as other health 

resources can be referenced by the employee at any time by calling the information hotline phone number 

listed on the back of their insurance card. 

• In the event we are required to provide testing because of a workplace exposure or outbreak, we will 

communicate the plan for providing testing and inform affected employees of the reason for the testing and 

the possible consequences of a positive test. This required testing will be at no cost to the employee, and the 

employee will be referred to call the information hotline listed on the back of their insurance card in order to 

obtain information regarding where they will be able to obtain a test at no cost to the employee. If the 

employee cannot access the insurance hotline or insurance is unavailable to the employee, the employee will 

be provided a list of community testing sites available at no cost to them. This list will be provided by the 

district administration’s human resources representative during normal business hours. The affected 

employees will not have any portion of their leave balance deducted for testing of COVID-19 in response to a 

potential exposure or outbreak. 

• Information about COVID-19 hazards employees (including other employers and individuals in contact with 

our workplace) may be exposed to, what is being done to control those hazards, and our COVID-19 policies 

and procedures. 

 

After a confirmed COVID-19 case has been identified, the District will provide a written notice, within one 

business day, to all employees, and employers of subcontracted employees, who were on the premises as the 

qualifying individual within the infectious period that they may have been exposed to COVID-19, in a manner the 

employer normally uses to communicate employment-related information, typically via email.  

 

Notification must include information regarding COVID-19-related benefits to which the employee may be 

entitled under applicable federal, state, or local laws: 

• Available sick leave/paid time off 

• Negotiated Provisions 

• Workers Compensation 

  

Notification must include information on the disinfection and safety plan that the District plans to implement and 

complete per the guidelines of the federal Centers for Disease Control and also working closely with Glenn 

County Public Health as soon as the District is notified of a positive case.  

 

Confidentiality:  

Personal identifying information of COVID-19 cases or persons with COVID-19 symptoms shall be kept 

confidential. The District will ensure that all employee COVID-19 medical records are kept confidential and are 

not disclosed or reported without the employee's express written consent to any person within or outside the 

workplace.  Exceptions to this include: Unredacted medical records shall be provided to Glenn County Public 

Health, CDPH, Cal/OSHA or as otherwise required by law immediately upon request. 

 

This provision does not apply to records that do not contain individually identifiable medical information or from 

which individually identifiable medical information has been removed.  

Training and Instruction 

We will provide effective training and instruction that includes: 

• Our COVID-19 policies and procedures to protect employees from COVID-19 hazards. 

Page 184



• Information regarding COVID-19-related benefits to which the employee may be entitled under applicable 

federal, state, or local laws.  

• The fact that: 
o COVID-19 is an infectious disease that can be spread through the air. 
o COVID-19 may be transmitted when a person touches a contaminated object and then touches their eyes, 

nose, or mouth. 
o An infectious person may have no symptoms. 

• Methods of physical distancing of at least six feet and the importance of combining physical distancing with 
the wearing of face coverings. 

• The fact that particles containing the virus can travel more than six feet, especially indoors, so physical 

distancing must be combined with other controls, including face coverings and hand hygiene, to be effective. 

• The importance of frequent hand washing with soap and water for at least 20 seconds and using hand 

sanitizer when employees do not have immediate access to a sink or hand washing facility, and that hand 

sanitizer does not work if the hands are soiled. 

• Proper use of face coverings and the fact that face coverings are not respiratory protective equipment - face 
coverings are intended to primarily protect other individuals from the wearer of the face covering. 

• COVID-19 symptoms, and the importance of obtaining a COVID-19 test and not coming to work if the 
employee has COVID-19 symptoms. 
 

Appendix D: COVID-19 Training Roster will be used to document this training. 

Exclusion of COVID-19 Cases 

Where we have a COVID-19 case in our workplace, we will limit transmission by: 

• Ensuring that COVID-19 cases are excluded from the workplace until our return-to-work requirements are 
met. 

• Excluding employees with COVID-19 exposure from the workplace for 10 days (or current accepted timeframe 
following Glenn County Public Health recommendation) after the last known COVID-19 exposure to a COVID-
19 case. 

• Continuing and maintaining an employee’s earnings, seniority, and all other employee rights and benefits 

whenever we’ve demonstrated that the COVID-19 exposure is work related. 

• Providing employees at the time of exclusion with information on available benefits. 

Reporting, Recordkeeping, and Access 

It is our policy to: 

• Email our JPA within 3 business days when it is known by administrative or HR staff that an employee has 
tested positive for COVID-19 (to assist the district in tracking and determine if an outbreak has occurred). 

o Include information such as: the date the employee’s COVID-19 test was taken, the address(s) or 
locations where the employee worked during the 10 days prior to the date the test was taken and 
whether or not the employee believes their positive test was work related. 

• Report information about COVID-19 cases at our workplace to the local health department whenever 
required by law, and provide any related information requested by the local health department. 

• Report immediately to Cal/OSHA any COVID-19-related serious illnesses or death, as defined under CCR Title 8 

section 330(h), of an employee occurring in our place of employment or in connection with any employment. 

• Maintain records of the steps taken to implement our written COVID-19 Prevention Program in accordance 
with CCR Title 8 section 3203(b). 

• Make our written COVID-19 Prevention Program available at the workplace to employees, authorized 

employee representatives, and to representatives of Cal/OSHA immediately upon request. 

• Use the Appendix C: Investigating COVID-19 Cases form to keep a record of and track all COVID-19 cases. The 

information will be made available to employees, authorized employee representatives, or as otherwise 

Page 185



required by law, with personal identifying information removed. 

Return-to-Work Criteria 

• COVID-19 cases with COVID-19 symptoms will not return to work until all the following have occurred: 
o At least 24 hours have passed since a fever of 100.4 or higher has resolved without the use of fever-

reducing medications. 
o COVID-19 symptoms have improved. 
o At least 10 days have passed since COVID-19 symptoms first appeared. 

• COVID-19 cases who tested positive but never developed COVID-19 symptoms will not return to work until a 

minimum of 10 days have passed since the date of specimen collection of their first positive COVID-19 test. 

• A negative COVID-19 test will not be required for an employee to return to work. 

• If an order to isolate or quarantine an employee is issued by a local or state health official, the employee will 

not return to work until the period of isolation or quarantine is completed or the order is lifted. If no period 

was specified, then the period will be 10 days from the time the order to isolate was effective, or 10 days 

from the time the order to quarantine was effective or accepted timeframe following Glenn County Public 

Health or California Department of Public Health recommendation. 

 
 
Superintendent         February 1, 2021 
Title of Owner or Representative Signature     Date 

  

Page 186



Appendix A: Identification of COVID-19 Hazards 

All persons, regardless of symptoms or negative COVID-19 test results, will be considered potentially infectious.  
Particular attention will be paid to areas where people may congregate or come in contact with one another, 
regardless of whether employees are performing an assigned work task or not. For example:  meetings, entrances, 
bathrooms, hallways, aisles, walkways, elevators, break or eating areas, cool-down areas, and waiting areas. 

Evaluation of potential workplace exposure will be to all persons at the workplace or who may enter the workplace, 
including coworkers, employees of other entities, members of the public, customers or clients, and independent 
contractors. We will consider how employees and other persons enter, leave, and travel through the workplace, in 
addition to addressing fixed work locations. 

Person conducting the evaluation:  

Date:  

Name(s) of employee and authorized employee representative that participated:  

Interaction, area, activity, 
work task, process, 
equipment and material that 
potentially exposes 
employees to COVID-19 
hazards 

Places and times 

Potential for COVID-19 exposures 

and employees affected, including 

members of the public and 

employees of other employers 

Existing and/or 
additional COVID-19 
prevention controls, 
including barriers, 
partitions and 
ventilation 

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

Page 187



Appendix B: COVID-19 Inspections 

Date:  

Name of person conducting the inspection:  

Work location evaluated:  

Exposure Controls Status 
Person Assigned to 

Correct 
Date Corrected 

Engineering 
   

Barriers/partitions    

Ventilation (amount of fresh air and 

filtration maximized) 

   

Additional room air filtration    

    

    

Administrative    

Physical distancing    

Surface cleaning and disinfection 

(frequently enough and adequate 

supplies) 

   

Hand washing facilities (adequate 

numbers and supplies) 

   

Disinfecting and hand sanitizing solutions 
being used according to manufacturer 

instructions 

   

    

    

PPE (not shared, available and being worn)    

Face coverings (cleaned sufficiently often)    

Gloves    

Face shields/goggles    

Respiratory protection    

    

Page 188



Appendix C: Investigating COVID-19 Cases 

All personal identifying information of COVID-19 cases or symptoms will be kept confidential. All COVID-19 testing 

or related medical services provided by us will be provided in a manner that ensures the confidentiality of 

employees, with the exception of unredacted information on COVID-19 cases that will be provided immediately 

upon request to the local health department, CDPH, Cal/OSHA, the National Institute for Occupational Safety and 

Health (NIOSH), or as otherwise required by law. 

All employees’ medical records will also be kept confidential and not disclosed or reported without the employee’s 

express written consent to any person within or outside the workplace, with the following exceptions: (1) Unredacted 

medical records provided to the local health department, CDPH, Cal/OSHA, NIOSH, or as otherwise required by law 

immediately upon request; and (2) Records that do not contain individually identifiable medical information or from 

which individually identifiable medical information has been removed. 

Date:  

Name of person conducting the investigation:  

COVID-19 Case Investigation Information 

Employee (or non-
employee*) name: 

 Occupation (if non-
employee, why they were 

in the workplace): 

 

Location where employee 
worked (or non-employee 

was present in the 
workplace): 

 
Date investigation was 

initiated: 
 

Was COVID-19 test 
offered? 

 

Name(s) of staff involved 
in the investigation: 

 

Date and time the COVID-
19 case was last present 

in the workplace: 

 Date of the positive or 
negative test and/or 

diagnosis: 

 

Date the case first had 
one or more COVID-19 

symptoms: 

 Information received 
regarding COVID-19 test 

results and onset of 
symptoms (attach 

documentation): 

 

Results of the evaluation 

of the COVID-19 case 

and all locations at the 

workplace that may 

have been visited by the 

COVID-19 case during 

the high-risk exposure 

period, and who may 

have been exposed 

(attach additional 

information): 

 

  

Page 189



 
Notice given (within one business day, in a way that does not reveal any personal identifying information of the 

COVID-19 case) of the potential COVID-19 exposure to: 

All employees who may 
have had COVID-19 
exposure and their 

authorized 
representatives. 

Date:  

Names of employees that 
were notified: 

 

Independent contractors 
and other employers 

present at the workplace 
during the high-risk 

exposure period. 

Date:  

Names of individuals that 
were notified: 

 

What were the workplace 
conditions that could have 

contributed to the risk of 
COVID-19 exposure? 

 What could be done to 
reduce exposure to 

COVID-19? 

 

Was local health 
department notified? 

 
 

Date: 
 

 

*Should an employer be made aware of a non-employee infection source COVID-19 status.

Page 190



Appendix D: COVID-19 Training Roster 

Date:  

Person that conducted the training:  

Employee Name Signature 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

 
  

Page 191



Additional Consideration #1 

Multiple COVID-19 Infections and COVID-19 Outbreaks 

This section will need to be added to your CPP if your workplace is identified by a local health department as 
the location of a COVID-19 outbreak, or there are three or more COVID-19 cases in your workplace within a 14-
day period. Reference section 3205.1 for details.  

This section of CPP will stay in effect until there are no new COVID-19 cases detected in our workplace for a 14-
day period. 

COVID-19 testing 

• We will provide COVID-19 testing to all employees in our exposed workplace except for employees who were 

not present during the period of an outbreak identified by a local health department or the relevant 14-day 

period. COVID-19 testing will be provided at no cost to employees during employees’ working hours. 

• COVID-19 testing consists of the following: 

○ All employees in our exposed workplace will be immediately tested and then tested again one week later. 
Negative COVID-19 test results of employees with COVID-19 exposure will not impact the duration of any 

quarantine period required by, or orders issued by, the local health department. 

○ After the first two COVID-19 tests, we will continue to provide COVID-19 testing of employees who 

remain at the workplace at least once per week, or more frequently if recommended by the local health 

department, until there are no new COVID-19 cases detected in our workplace for a 14-day period. 

○ We will provide additional testing when deemed necessary by Cal/OSHA. 

Exclusion of COVID-19 cases 

We will ensure COVID-19 cases and employees who had COVID-19 exposure are excluded from the workplace in 
accordance with our CPP Exclusion of COVID-19 Cases and Return to Work Criteria requirements, and local 
health officer orders if applicable. 

Investigation of workplace COVID-19 illness 

We will immediately investigate and determine possible workplace-related factors that contributed to the 

COVID-19 outbreak in accordance with our CPP Investigating and Responding to COVID-19 Cases. 

COVID-19 investigation, review and hazard correction 

In addition to our CPP Identification and Evaluation of COVID-19 Hazards and Correction of COVID-19 Hazards, 

we will immediately perform a review of potentially relevant COVID-19 policies, procedures, and controls and 

implement changes as needed to prevent further spread of COVID-19. 

The investigation and review will be documented and include: 

• Investigation of new or unabated COVID-19 hazards including: 

○ Our leave policies and practices and whether employees are discouraged from remaining home when 
sick. 

○ Our COVID-19 testing policies. 

○ Insufficient outdoor air. 

○ Insufficient air filtration. 

○ Lack of physical distancing. 

• Updating the review: 

○ Every thirty days that the outbreak continues. 

○ In response to new information or to new or previously unrecognized COVID-19 hazards. 

○ When otherwise necessary. 

• Implementing changes to reduce the transmission of COVID-19 based on the investigation and review. We 
will consider: 

Page 192



○ Moving indoor tasks outdoors or having them performed remotely. 

○ Increasing outdoor air supply when work is done indoors. 

○ Improving air filtration. 

○ Increasing physical distancing as much as possible. 

○ Respiratory protection. 

○ [describe other applicable controls]. 

Notifications to the local health department 

• Immediately, but no longer than 48 hours after learning of three or more COVID-19 cases in our workplace, 

we will contact the local health department for guidance on preventing the further spread of COVID-19 

within the workplace. 

• We will provide to the local health department the total number of COVID-19 cases and for each COVID-19 

case, the name, contact information, occupation, workplace location, business address, the hospitalization 

and/or fatality status, and North American Industry Classification System code of the workplace of the COVID-

19 case, and any other information requested by the local health department. We will continue to give notice 

to the local health department of any subsequent COVID-19 cases at our workplace. 

 
  

Page 193



Additional Consideration #2 

Major COVID-19 Outbreaks 

This section will need to be added to your CPP should your workplace experience 20 or more COVID-19 cases 
within a 30-day period. Reference section 3205.2 for details. 

This section of CPP will stay in effect until there are no new COVID-19 cases detected in our workplace for a 14-
day period. 

COVID-19 testing 

We will provide twice a week COVID-19 testing, or more frequently if recommended by the local health 

department, to all employees present at our exposed workplace during the relevant 30-day period(s) and who 

remain at the workplace. COVID-19 testing will be provided at no cost to employees during employees’ working 

hours. 

Exclusion of COVID-19 cases 

We will ensure COVID-19 cases and employees with COVID-19 exposure are excluded from the workplace in 
accordance with our CPP Exclusion of COVID-19 Cases and Return to Work Criteria, and any relevant local health 
department orders. 

Investigation of workplace COVID-19 illnesses 

We will comply with the requirements of our CPP Investigating and Responding to COVID-19 Cases. 

COVID-19 hazard correction 

In addition to the requirements of our CPP Correction of COVID-19 Hazards, we will take the following actions: 

• In buildings or structures with mechanical ventilation, we will filter recirculated air with Minimum Efficiency 

Reporting Value (MERV) 13 or higher efficiency filters if compatible with the ventilation system. If MERV-13 or 

higher filters are not compatible with the ventilation system, we will use filters with the highest compatible 

filtering efficiency. We will also evaluate whether portable or mounted High Efficiency Particulate Air (HEPA) 

filtration units, or other air cleaning systems would reduce the risk of transmission and implement their use 

to the degree feasible. 

• We will determine the need for a respiratory protection program or changes to an existing respiratory 

protection program under CCR Title 8 section 5144 to address COVID-19 hazards. 

• We will evaluate whether to halt some or all operations at our workplace until COVID-19 hazards have been 
corrected 

• Implement any other control measures deemed necessary by Cal/OSHA. 

Notifications to the local health department 

We will comply with the requirements of our Multiple COVID-19 Infections and COVID-19 Outbreaks-
Notifications to the Local Health Department. 

 
 

Page 194



HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

 

Agenda Item Number: 13f Date: 2/24/2021 

Agenda Item Description: 

Approve School Site Safety Plans 

Background:  

These are the annual required Safety Plans for our District schools.  We must review and approve 

annually.  The District has worked to update these plans to meet the changing safety needs of our 

students. 

Status: Pending board approval 

Fiscal Impact: None 

Educational Impact:  None 

Recommendation: Recommend board approve school site safety plans. 

 

 

Page 195



P
age 196



P
age 197



P
age 198



P
age 199



P
age 200



P
age 201



P
age 202



P
age 203



P
age 204



Page 205



Page 206



P
age 207



P
age 208



P
age 209



P
age 210



P
age 211



P
age 212



P
age 213



P
age 214



HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

 

Agenda Item Number: 13g Date: 2/24/2021 

Agenda Item Description: 

Adopt Resolution No. 20-21-106 Emergency Management Resolution 

Background:  

This is an annual resolution ensuring that the District has School Safety Plans in place for all school sites 

and facilities and those plans are in accordance with local, state, and federal laws. 

Status: Pending board approval 

Fiscal Impact: None 

Educational Impact:  None 

Recommendation: Recommend board adopt Resolution No. 20-21-106 Emergency Management 

Resolution. 

 

 

Page 215



RESOLUTION NO. 20-21-106 
February 24, 2021 Regular Board Meeting 

 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE GOVERNING BOARD OF THE HAMILTON UNIFIED 
SCHOOL DISTRICT 

 
EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT 

 
WHEREAS, the Hamilton Unified School District has implemented a School Emergency 

Operations Plan for all school sites and facilities. The objectives of the plan are to: 1) protect the 
safety and welfare of students, employees, and staff; 2) provide a safe and coordinated response 
to emergencies; 3) protect the district’s facilities and property; and 4) enable the school to 
restore normal conditions with minimal confusion in the shortest time possible. 
 

WHEREAS, in an effort to fully implement the School Emergency Operations Plan, the 
Hamilton Unified School District supports planning, training, and exercising the plan at the school 
site level. 

 
WHEREAS, the Hamilton Unified School District participates with all responding agencies 

within the State of California and in the National Incident Management System (NIMS) and the 
Standardized Emergency Management System (SEMS). 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED, that the Governing board of the Hamilton 
Unified School District of the County of Glenn, State of California, does hereby support the School 
Emergency Operations Plan. 
 

APPROVED, PASSED and ADOPTED by the Governing Board of the Hamilton Unified School 
District this 24th day of February 2021 by the following vote: 
 

AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSENT: 
ABSTAINED: 

 
Attest:         
 
___________________________________________   
Hubert “Wendell” Lower, President 
Governing Board of Hamilton Unified School District 
 
 
___________________________________________ 
Jeremy Powell Ed., D., Superintendent 
Hamilton Unified School District 

Page 216



GAMUT CONVERSION RECONCILIATION CHECKLIST  

Please return this completed checklist with approval dates within 45 days of receipt.  
CSBA Consultant: Greg Francis | gfrancis@csba.org | 916.669.3287 

 

 

 

District: Hamilton USD District Contact: Tiffany Wilhelm 

Contact Phone: (530) 826-3261 Contact Email: twilhelm@husdschools.org 

 

Instructions: 

1) Read through each category of changes below.  

2) Add the changes that must be reviewed by the board to the agenda of an upcoming board meeting. You 

can usually bundle these as one item on the agenda. Depending on your local process, you may need a 

first reading and a second reading. The final approval can usually be included in a consent agenda. 

3) Once all changes have been made, enter the dates of approval in the final column. 

4) Return this completed checklist to gfrancis@csba.org. CSBA will then finalize your GAMUT Policy 

Plus site. 

 

CHANGES THAT MUST BE REVIEWED AND APPROVED BY THE BOARD 

 

1) Policies and Bylaws to Delete 

 

Several policies in your manual are no longer relevant due to changes in governing laws and regulations. Please 

bring the following policies to your board for deletion. Enter the date when the board approved deletion 

in the final column. 

 

REQUESTED ACTION: Board approves deletion of these policies 

 

POLICY 

CODE 

DISTRICT 

POLICY TITLE 
REASON 

DATE OF BOARD 

APPROVAL 

BP 0520.2 Title I Program 

Improvement 

Schools 

Policy deleted 10/17 as the federal program 

improvement requirements have been replaced by 

a new system of comprehensive and targeted 

improvement established by the Every Student 

Succeeds Act. 

 

BP 0520.3 Title I Program 

Improvement 

Schools 

Policy deleted 10/17 as the federal program 

improvement requirements have been replaced by 

a new system of comprehensive and targeted 

improvement established by the Every Student 

Succeeds Act. 

 

BP 1020 Youth Services Policy deleted 7/18 and key concepts moved to BP 

1400 - Relations Between Other Governmental 

Agencies And The Schools. 

 

BP 4112.24 Teacher 

Qualifications Under 

The No Child Left 

Behind Act 

Policy deleted 5/16 since federal law P.L. 114-95 

repealed requirements that teachers meet criteria of 

“highly qualified” teachers, as defined. 

 

BP 6161.3 Toxic Art Supplies 
Policy deleted 5/18 and key concepts incorporated 

into BP 3514.1 - Hazardous Substances. 
 

Page 217

mailto:gfrancis@csba.org
mailto:gfrancis@csba.org


GAMUT CONVERSION RECONCILIATION CHECKLIST 

Hamilton Unified School District 
 

 

POLICY 

CODE 

DISTRICT 

POLICY TITLE 
REASON 

DATE OF BOARD 

APPROVAL 

BP 6162.52 
High School Exit 

Examination 

Policy deleted 12/17 due to repeal of requirement 

to pass high school exit exam as condition of 

graduation. 

 

 

2) Policies and Bylaws to Rename 

 

Several policies in your manual have slightly different titles than the ones in our coding system. Formally 

changing the title of a policy is not a substantive change, but it does require formal board approval. Please 

bring the following policies to your board for renaming. Enter the date when the board approved 

renaming in the final column. 

 

REQUESTED ACTION: Board approves renaming of these policies 

 

POLICY 

CODE 

DISTRICT POLICY 

TITLE 
REASON 

DATE OF BOARD 

APPROVAL 

BP 6146.5 

Elementary/Middle School 

Promotion/Graduation 

Requirements  

Policy title mismatch. CSBA title is 

Elementary/Middle School Graduation 

Requirements 

 

BP 6164.5 Student Study Team 
Policy title mismatch. CSBA title is Student 

Success Teams 
 

BB 9240 Board Development 
Board Bylaw title mismatch. CSBA title is 

Board Training 
 

 

3) Policy to Renumber 

 

Ask your board to renumber your current BP 3541.2(a) Transportation For Students With Disabilities to 

CSBA’s number for this policy, which is simply BP 3541.2. 

__________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

 

CHANGES THAT DO NOT REQUIRE BOARD REVIEW 

 

In addition to changes to board policies and bylaws, we found several administrative regulations and exhibits 

that need to be changed. Since these elements are under managerial discretion, these changes do not need board 

approval, although we highly recommend sharing them with your board as courtesy.  

 

1) Regulations and Exhibits to Delete 

 

Several regulations (and exhibits) in your manual are no longer relevant due to changes in governing laws and 

regulations. Please ask your superintendent to approve deletion of these regulations. Enter the date when 

the superintendent approved deletion in the final column.  

 

Page 218



GAMUT CONVERSION RECONCILIATION CHECKLIST 

Hamilton Unified School District 
 

 

POLICY 

CODE 

DISTRICT 

POLICY TITLE 
REASON 

DATE OF 

SUPERINTENDENT 

APPROVAL 

AR 0520.2 

Title I Program 

Improvement 

Schools 

 Regulation deleted 10/17 as the federal program 

improvement requirements have been replaced by a 

new system of comprehensive and targeted 

improvement established by the Every Student 

Succeeds Act. 

 

AR 0520.3 

Title I Program 

Improvement 

Districts 

 Regulation deleted 7/16 (and policy deleted 10/17) 

as the federal program improvement requirements 

have been replaced by a new system of 

comprehensive and targeted improvement 

established by the Every Student Succeeds Act. 

 

AR 

4112.24 

Teacher 

Qualifications 

Under The No 

Child Left Behind 

Act 

Regulation deleted 5/16 since federal law P.L. 114-

95 repealed requirements that teachers meet criteria 

of “highly qualified” teachers, as defined. 
 

AR 

6162.52 

High School Exit 

Examination 

Regulation deleted 12/17 due to repeal of 

requirement to pass high school exit exam as 

condition of graduation. 
 

 

2) Regulations and Exhibits to Rename 

 

Several regulations (and exhibits) in your manual have slightly different titles than the ones in our coding 

system. Please ask your superintendent to approve renaming of these regulations. Enter the date when 

the superintendent approved renaming in the final column.  

 

POLICY 

CODE 

DISTRICT 

POLICY TITLE 
REASON 

DATE OF 

SUPERINTENDENT 

APPROVAL 

AR 6164.5 
Student Study 

Team 

Regulation title mismatch. CSBA title is Student 

Success Teams 
 

 

Page 219



CSBA MANUAL MAINTENANCE SERVICE CHECKLIST – December 2020 

1 

 

 

District Name: Hamilton Unified School District  

 

Contact Name: Tiffany Wilhelm Phone 530-826-3261 Email: twilhelm@husdschools.org 
 

 

POLICY TITLE OPTIONS/BLANKS ADOPT 

DATE 

AR 0430 Comprehensive Local Plan for Special 
Education 

New Law  

BP 1312.3 Uniform Complaint Procedures New Federal Regulation  

AR 1312.3 Uniform Complaint Procedures Fill in Blanks   

Superintendent 

PO Box 488 

Hamilton City, CA 95951 

 

OPTION 1: ◼ 

BP 4119.25 
4219.25 
4319.25 

Political Activities of Employees Policy Update  

AR 4119.25 
4219.25 
4319.25 

Political Activities of Employees Policy Update  

BP 4140 
4240 
4340 

Bargaining Units Policy Update  

BP 5113.2 Work Permits New Law  

AR 5113.2 Work Permits New Law  

BP 5126 Awards for Achievement Policy Update  

AR 5126 Awards for Achievement Policy Update  

BP 5141.31 Immunizations New Law  

AR 5141.31 Immunizations New Law  

BP 5148.3 Preschool/Early Childhood Education New State Regulation  

Page 220



CSBA MANUAL MAINTENANCE SERVICE CHECKLIST – December 2020 

2 

 

 

District Name: Hamilton Unified School District  
 

 

POLICY TITLE OPTIONS/BLANKS ADOPT 

DATE 

AR 5148.3 Preschool/Early Childhood Education New Law  

BP 6146.1 High School Graduation Requirements Fill in Blanks   

(list course projects if any) 

 

 

BP 6146.2 Certificate of Proficiency/High School 
Equivalency 

Policy Update  

AR 6146.2 Certificate of Proficiency/High School 
Equivalency 

Policy Update  

E 6146.2 Certificate of Proficiency/High School 
Equivalency 

NEW EXHIBIT  

BP 6170.1 Transitional Kindergarten New Law  

BB 9012 Board Member Electronic Communications New Law  

BB 9320 Meetings and Notices Fill in Blanks   

The board shall hold one 

regular meeting per 

month. Regular meetings 

shall be held at 6:00 p.m. 

on the 4th Wednesday of 

the month in the 

Hamilton High School 

Library unless otherwise 

noted on the agenda. 

 

Page 221



HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

Agenda Item Number: 13j Date: 02/24/2021 

Agenda Item Description: 
Adopt California AB 908. Establish a probationary period for students involved in extracurricular 
and cocurricular activities due to COVID-19 for the remainder of the 2020-21 school year. 

Background: 
AB 908 was passed by the California Assembly to allow School Districts to establish a policy regarding 
participation in extracurricular and cocurricular activities by pupils in those grades as a condition for the 
receipt of specified school funding allocations. Existing law requires the policy to condition pupil 
participation in extracurricular and cocurricular activities upon satisfactory educational progress in the 
previous grading period. Existing law authorizes the governing board of each school district to adopt, as 
part of the policy, provisions that would allow a pupil who does not achieve satisfactory educational 
progress in the previous grading period to remain eligible to participate in extracurricular and 
cocurricular activities during a probationary period that does not exceed one semester in length. Existing 
law prohibits a pupil who does not achieve satisfactory educational progress during the probationary 
period from participating in extracurricular and cocurricular activities in the subsequent grading period. 
This bill would authorize the governing board of each school district to adopt a policy that would allow a 
probationary period to exceed one semester in length through the completion of the 2020–21 school 
year due to the impact of COVID-19. 

Status: Pending board adoption. 

Fiscal Impact: 
none 

Educational Impact: 
Adopting AB908 for this school year would be in concert with previous HUSD school board adoptions 
regarding student participation in extracurricular and cocurricular activities due to COVID-19 effects on 
student educational opprotunities. 

Recommendation: Recommend board adopt California AB 908. 

Page 222



Page 223



Page 224



HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

 

Agenda Item Number: 13k Date: 02/24/2021 
 

Agenda Item Description: 
Waive Senior Project Graduation Requirement for Hamilton High School Class of 2021.  

Background: 
 
Due to the coronavirus pandemic and subsequent state and school Stay at Home, lockdown, and other 
safety orders, mentors have not been able to have our students work alongside them as part of any 
Senior Project components.  This has been since March 17, 2020 when Stay at Home orders, and ensuing 
school closures first occurred.  The Class of 2021 has not and will not have the benefit of any work 
shadow, mentoring, or interview component times due to the ongoing restrictions in place by the state, 
county, and local agencies relative to the coronavirus.  Therefore, in order to cause no harm to Class of 
2021 seniors, the Senior Project Graduation Requirement should be waived for the 2020-21 school year. 

Status: Pending board waiver. 
 
 

Fiscal Impact: 
none 

Educational Impact: 
Will allow Class of 2021 students the opportunity to continue focusing on other graduation 
requirements. 

Recommendation: Recommend board waive Senior Project Graduation Requirement for Hamilton High 
School Class of 2021 
 

 

Page 225



HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

 

Agenda Item Number: 13l Date: 2/24/2021 

Agenda Item Description: 

Donation of Edgewater Property to Hamilton City Community Service District 

Background: 

This agreement with the Hamilton City Community Service District and the Hamilton Unified School 

District would allow the Hamilton City Community Service District to be the sole owner of the Edgewater 

Park Property.  This would allow for additional improvement grants to develop and renovate Edgewater 

Park. 

Status: For Discussion and vote 

Fiscal Impact: The District currently spends $8,000-$10,000 annually maintaining this property. 

Educational Impact:  None 

Recommendation: Approve HUSD Donation of Edgewater Park Property to Hamilton City Community 

Service District 

 

 

Page 226



0ct,23, 2007 12:42PM GttNN COUNTY TITTE No,2836 ? 1/13

Glenn County Titfe. Willows Office
250 W. Sycamore Street
P.O. Box 187
Wlllows, CA 95g8g
Phone: (530) gg4-3gg8 Fax: (530) 934-5200
w\ryw

GLENN COUNTY TITTE COMPAI\Y

Please Dcliver the following pages ro:

Attention:

Companyl

Froml

We are transmitting a total of \3 trqc¡a l¡¡tr¡,1:-- +Ll ^ysÞve +r¿vrssrrré [r¡rJ vuyE;r pÈ[Eç,

Date & Time: \ Õ

SubjeclClient: _
Our Order No.:

Your Order No

Additional Information:

fue-rr.{re-

Customçr's Fax Number: 5 I
WillowE Office: (590) 994-sgg8
Fax: (530) eg4-5208 0rland Offtce: (690) g6g-8978

Fax: (530) 86O-8992

Page 227



0ct.23, 2007 12:42PÍVI GLENN COUNIY TITLE

RECORDINC REQUESTED BY

Glenn County Board of Educ¡fion

AND WHEN RBCORDBD I\4AIL ro
Nrnê Hamllton union Elementary schoolDistrlctAddrcss P, O,Box277
Clty, StEtê, & Z{p Hsmllton City, CA 95g5l

c0Nr"'rJrî11ü'u c.lg, ,2 
B 3 6 P' 2/ 13

tlopy...of Document; lieco.rcled
on . f,Ë/fla /'ê,nøT ge : sriÞ-aä-äøfil,¿*.64JA
$1,çnn Ëor"rnty lllark*,Reeordar

A,P,N; 032-240-014-e

STATE OF CALIFORNIA
COUNTY OF Glcnn

Signaturo

IVIAIL TAX
STATEMENTS TO;

NAME

9l?l-n goJn$ Supertntendent of School¡, r
Callfornla Fubilc Entity

The undorelgned granto(r) declaro(s):
Documontary transfor tâx i8 NoNE
[EI] computod on fullvalue of proporty convoyed, or
[E] cotnputod on full vatue le¡å vauoirtienr aná encumbranses romalnlng at gmc of sale.t Unincorpornrod area: [] IEII c¡ty Wld;;
FôP ,A VÁT IIÁtrÌ Et 

^r.rÀrõrñEb ^m¡^r' .-, - , .î.a!u¡aDir', vväÈiiiHr{¡î,'i'rû¡ir rççeipi oiwhlch ir horoby acknowledgod,

3liltÏ,"T:ïJi,,Tiïf,di-t,1"iiîl'ix; ilfiî:'io** 
runric liirtv 

"îJ cru"n" counrv superinrondenr or schoorr, a

horoby cRANT(s) to Hrm¡lton u¡lon Elsnentary school Dirtrlct, r c¡[fornis publlc Enttty
the following dosorrbod rcar property in tho , county of Grenn, state of carifomiar

See &xhlblt rrA'nttoched herefo and m¡de a pnrt hereof
Tltic conveyanoe is in oompteto satlsfaction and sancollatíon of the Laaso/puroh¡se Agnoment evidonced by the Abstract ofLenre, rccorded on scptembor 20, Iggg ng Instrumont No. 9g-i626 of oftici¡r Rocord¡,

ifli ïät ilåitrå'låï 
to the logal dee*iptlon orthat certsin doed rçoorded on ocrober s, 200s as rn¡rrumenr No, 2003.

Datod: Octobor 12,2007

6lenn County Bonrd of Educatlon, r CalÍfornla
Publlc Entity

INDIVIDUAT GRANT DEEI)
SPACB ABOVE THIS LINB FOR RECORDER'$ USB

Julln La rgonr

By: Arturo Superlntcndent

) ss,

On -gryllr--lj/ .'A0Z beforc me, G-ïllicana, Norarg,
Publlc, penonnlly apperred ArJu.o narrorã pãñnu-ily iorou,n r;'
mo (or provçd to me on ttre.bieit;f miory .oiOino.j to uotho peroon(r) whooç name(s) iriare subsoribËo to the'wiürln
instrument and acknowrodgoà'to mo that trøstrøìt ry oxecuted thogame in hi¡/hsr/their authorlæd capaoity(ies), and tlrat by
his/hcrltheir signotun(s) ¡¡.rhe inrnr¡rüinlli pçrson(r), or tha
entity upon bohalf of whrch thç person(o) uaå¿, o*orutJ iüi
in¡trument

WITNBSS my hand and ofTlolal seal.

t Vl¡lon Fom S0OOdCA RËv, 0ã/10Íig

ADDRESS CITY, TE&

Page 228



0ct,23, 2007 12:42PM CILENN COUNIY TITLE

Recording Rcquested by:

'Whcn Recorded Mail To:
Hamilton Union Elementary School District

p, O,BoxZ77
Harnilton Ciry, CA 95951

No,2B36 P, l/1?

CfiFY

n {.)ourrty t.lerk_Reeondsr

ËrTll
t¡n I.*Ë43
t'i lL en

[Ë:Bo
cu/P.

OR
ç,

tà/
ir

for

Access snd Utílity Easement

This Pago Addsd to provido Adequato spaco for Rooording Information
(Additional recording fee nppller)

Page 229



0ct 23. 2007 12;42PM GTE[ll! COUNTY IITTE No, 2836 P, 4/13

ACCTSS AND UTTIITY EASI]T{ENT
($ewer, Water, Electriclfy)

Thç HAMILTON INION ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DrSTRICT,

grant to the HAMILTON CITY C0MMTINTTY sERvIcEs ÐIs
do hereby

TRICT ("Grantee") a permarcnt
easement ovcr and along the fi¡ll width snd lengfh ofthe premises (the toPrçmigss"), 

as doscribed ínexhibits A and B, att¿chpd for the constructiorr and installation ofgewôr, water and electricity utility¡¡fraetructufe tO service a structure
pþeline, hereinafter dcscribed.

Thç Pa¡tiee agreo ås follows:

('l¡tilitiËs" or'\rtillty") including but not lirnitçd to laying oftlæ

1, @n¡¡r Each of the Grantors*rrçmr)¡+sd h¿ve thÊ sole right to
enter Ínto thís Agreenrent, Howevçr, eash of the Grantors agrsêÊ thet ttrs eâ¡ement dçssribed

Ffþ should be granted to the Gruntcc accotdíng to thc coñdfti"* *l trr*- äiecr¡ued
nerorn.

2' For the dghte granted hereÍr\ Gmntce agreËs to recordthis Agreement with the county of
oienn-.and 

lo pay ell fccs and costs charled by the couotv orblcnn assoriatulwfth saidrccording' Grsntee also agtoorto forwat¿ frleetamped roii"r;i;hr;;;;;drã&rcerrEnr to allsignatorr as Boon as recording is completed, 
¡ -' - -5'

3' Ths eassmçil shsll inctude the right of Crrantes to çxcevate for and to sonstruct, plÊceo
operate, maintain,.repair, replace, roloçate, Írupcct, and rçmove all utilitíes with alleppurtemnccs incident tlrercto or rccesssry therewith, inclu¿ing b"i;|flillËd to *o'lrolu,
tttttupurpoge of.conyeyþs $öuage vva¡t; under saidprentirei toerrhui*iti;ih soteoblþation of Ërantcc to place, excävateo rrplrcr,.*p-åii-inìt"rç rneintsín, operato, inspect, endtçloçgle utilíty infrasüiuctutË and neaessary eppurtonûrces, and make oxcavations thËreforefromtlmc ft time, rrr, und,or, and tluoughttnïu"*:¿wrrihd premisos within gaid easemcnt,and to cut and rËmove ftom said oaÊËment my troos and oth*äb$ruçtions ;ilrî *uyendanger tlæ sofety or lntcrferc wlth ttre urc ormi¿ utititiri or rppurtçnåncos attaphod to orconncsted therewith¡ 

ljrg thÊ rleht of insress and egfrw to *d ovÊr sÊid above_described
prcnrlses at üly end all tlfies for the n¡r.p..q5 orrepîirins, renewing, excnvating, replacing,lnspecting, maintainlng the number ofuùff.tirranO re¡,ñr**os, qnd for doing anythlngnecessriry' ueoful, or convenient forthe onjoyment oi'ttr* ràro*rri lürby [ir"iru. N"building ehåll bç constructcd o'yor ths utiliiy'rumieni;i;r carrhfill or embankment sheu bËplaced within this caæmçnt, nor ovcr tlrc ulilithr øi-r,*t . rpæino *in.iîer**nt
botwecn Grantee ¿nd tråiclewr Grantor ry;,;the owner of the Prçmises 

sucçossors ofæsþnr' Such an Êgxçcment shs'tl ¡ncludc the condítionr uo¿sr whích such fill or embankmentmay bc placed, includíng a stþulation ttat all ti*tr'oi-å*nrge to tho utilities shåll be assumsdby Orantoe, its succossors, or àssigns.

4' GtantcE Êgreçs thnt the utilities shall bs inslsllËd to^lg4gng as close as reosonnbly porsÍbleto the prop#y line deslgnared partíally or firlly a, sCi;z+ iä0,,E on Exhibir B.

5' Grantcq shall tndcmni$, defend and hold har¡nlçss the{*hinaÊe orantor, its successors årdaseþns in perpetuity, ftorn claims of Ínjury t;dd pruprtry * a resutiofthe negligence ofGranteen its agents, or onrployees ín thicoïrdrdd;ãd;i"r,, or maíntensnce of said

1 nf3

Page 230



0ct, 23. 2007 12:42PM GLE[il! COUNTY TITTE

utiltties' This instrument, sJId thn covertnnts and qgrçements oontåined in this instn¡mçnt, shålllnure to the beneflt o{uttd be.bindíng and obligatJry uporr-the adminl$rators, sucççBsoro, and
assigns ofthe rcspective partios. Grantce, upon the iniiÍal installatíon, *¿ ui* each a¡rd
evÊry oççåsionþ tE P*t bo repaired, replaced, rernwed, added d, ;il;;;ed, shnll
re6torÊ the premiees ofGrantor, and any improvements disturbed by dr."t;;io tho sarne
condÍtion ae thoy wero prior to any such in¡tallation or worþ inch,ífru üñij¡ntitu¿ ro th€restoration of any topsoil, lawrr and/or asphalt,

6' should the orailtee dissolve, bçcomc ínsolvont or othorwisç stop opêretingo all rþhts granted
h€rein *hsll revert to thctl*ÊinretÞGrantor. Grantee rg*r; to obtain and/or maintain anlnsurarico policyto indomnit, dsfend a¡rd hotd rtrr*iË** t-r,r{#tforf,f"Grarrtä, fo, *ymonetary or legal liabilÍty ttnt exÍsts or csn bc fo¡oseen at ihç timçìhr;ig#oäcd heroinrer¡ert back to the sltha*ç Gm¡rtor. Proof of cuch i*;**r shall be provided to the uttínee$rGrantor annually,

7 ' Tho parties agtee thnt Grantçç shsll hlve t $gttt to allow aw .enplgyoe of a publio utílítyçompaüy aecess to thc propertv in ordS to fulflllrhc prnporu drs;;lÉå h;;ril,ïchding butnot limitqd to utílity Ínerallation, rnaintenåncr qnd/oriñ;Ír,

8' l*ri* lEreqt ttni, Bhouid s schooi be buílt appurtenant to rhe building/rtruøure thât rhëutilitÍes de¡oribed inrhis agrooment *9 irtrøã.d to;r*tü rhar rlre Criñä*iiìrrc stçs tosqparate said buildlng/struc'ture from thp school site ¡n or¿ir to prutect cudffit saftty,

9' The partios aeree J\!the public shall h¿vc acçess via thc a,roe çurcntly deeignated as apmking lot to the buildingÀtruoture that ttæ uttlftilsi*rriur¿ in this agreement are intendedto eeruice during houru deelgnated by the Gruntee

10' should åt\v pårt ofthis Agreemont bç deemcd invalid or void by ony lognl authority withjtuisdictlon orry this Aguement, the Pnrties rgn*ìüirhr Agreomçnt as a whols will be void,

1l' Thç Partics ogroe that thÍs Agreernent ís the cntfuB ÊgreemÊnt bstwççn tho partios pe,rtÊiüing tothB Prçmiseo supcrsedl4g all ottrer oral or rvrfttq rgt**;;i; pÊrrq,ining to rhe promlecs andthf,t this Agrcomont can be modiflod churged úty"tluðüh ä rvrlttng signed and datod by theGranteç and thetthina+o Granton

12' ThË Pfftiee Êgrcç that thie Agreomeff rnfly bo exccuted in identÍcal counterpârte, wlth eachcountorpart compooing thc entire agreement,

13' ThF eignators to thls Agroement wqrrant that they he\æ the aühority to öntçr into thÍsAgreement,

No 2B36 P, 5/13

tftF I{AMIIT0N
UMON $CHOOL DISTRICT

Hector Gonzalez Datcd: t-¿'r*o7

wçítrwf/
2 nf3

þl&t/ / / / // ///////

Page 231



0ct,23. 2007 12:42Plvl GTENN COU[lTY TIItE

ED'/ç4TIçDT

D$pi:t

Jose I puente Dated; 6' lç*"

No,2836 P 6/13

Fçr COMMUNITY
CË$ DISTRICT

Date

srATE OF CALTFORNTA )

COTINTY OF GLENN

CTRTIFICATE OF ACCEPTANCN

Jo

District, do hereby
ExhÍbit "A'r as

OnO9-t?-O"7 ,,, ,6'frro

Manager
CIty Cornmunity Sorvices District

G County, Califomía

ctnl\ ô 0

) ss,
)

personally appeared Joee
satisfactory evídonce) to
acknowledged t0 mç that

Puçntc, peÌsonÊlly knoWrr to me (or prowd to me on tlæ basis of
be thc person whoee namc ie subsçrihd to thç within irutrumcnt urd
he e¡rçcuted tlæ sane h his authorizcd capæit¡ and that by his signaturepçrson, 0rthç entity upon behalf of which the pËrson actçd, executed ths

on the instrwrpnt thp
inetrurflÉnt.

Witness my tnd offictal sesJ.

3 of3

Page 232



0c t. 23 2007 2 43PM GTE[IN COUNTY TITLE 2836N P 1/11

AÖKNOI,VLEDGMENT

State of California
County 61 Glenn

On I before me, i++
(here insert nsme and title of the

personally appes¡r6 Hector Gonzalez

personally known to me (or proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence) to be

the person(e) whoee name(s) is/aro subscriþed to the within inshurnent and

acknowledged to mo that he/ehe/they exocuted the same ln his/her/thelr authorized

capaclty(ies), and that by hig/herltheir signature(s) on the instrument the person(a),

or the entity upon behalf of which the person(s) acted, executed the inetrument.

WTNE$S my and official t.

Signature

(Seal)

Page 233



3P
(\/
0/No, 2836T]TtFCOUNTYGLENN4 3 Pl\/l20c i, 23 2007

ACKNOWLEDGIUIENT

State of Cslifornia
County s1 Glenn

gn October 18,2007before me, G, Villicana, Public
(here insert name and title of the offTcer)

personally Jose l. Puente

personally known to me (or proved to me on the basÍs of eatisfactory evidence) to be

the person(e) whose name(s) is/are eubecribed to the wlthin instrument and

acknowledged to me that he/she/they executed the same in his/her/thelr authorízed

capacity(ies), and that by hie/herlthoir slgnature(s) on the ínstrument the person(s),

or the entity upon behalf of which the pereon(s) acted, executed the instrurïent.

WTNE$S my hand and officialeeal,

$ignature

(Seal)

Page 234



0ct.23 2007 12:43P[4 GTENN COUNIY TITLE No2836 P 9/13

$l that real property beíng a portion of that parcel of land as shown on that certain
Record of survey as such map ie recorded in goot t I of Mapr and surveys ut p*g"l+, u,
said map is recorded in olçnn county, california, described is follows; 

r L v

Beginning at thc northeast corner of the Townsite of Hamilton marked by a
Oranite monumçnt as shown on that ccrtain Record of Survey rc.ordcd in gook
I 1 of Maps and surveys at pqge 94; thence south 20o32'00,;Eart, oo.óó ruct to
thç northwest corner of the ebove noted Parcel of Land as shoriln on noted Record

3f'swe1; thçnçe corttinuing south 20o32'00" East, along the eusieriy iii, or
saçramenio Avenue, i794,20, feet to ttre TRUB poINT or,gnorN¡lña of the
Southerly linc of a 60 foot widç eascment for ingress, çgress and public utilitíes.
Thcnce South 63?4'00" East, 210.00 feet to tie *uslcdy linc oi ttt*t oirtuinparcel of land described in dosumçnJ nurnbsr g}-s6i7, cie,nn Co*iy nrrårar.
Thc northerly line of said 60 foot wide eassrnerrt is to uå tength."e¿ oí *iã"trnro
so as to begin on the easterly line of Sacrame,nto Averruc an¿ä¿ on rriJ*rriofy
Iine of gaid parcel of land described in eaid documo,nt number gg.s677, ótr*
County Record¡.

EXHBIT ú(A''

END OF DESCRIPTION

Page 235



30P2836N22 CILENN43Pi\/l 0COUNTY T]TLE20070ct

HHtsN TN

VICINITY lì{AP
NO ÉCAIJ

"s

10

HIGHWAY 32

É$l
n$

BtrStrtôr 0r¡nlta Honutnrn{
Northro¡t. Eô7rrtr ol lhË

IIA¡TII.ffi{ 1vÞ

of Hrnllton Clly
crÎr ntç

par
Cs¡nrr of
Ir [r$ 84

E.r
Þ(¡

"ó

6so

ORâFHIC ICTI¡

{ Hntl¡
I l¡oh . t00 fL

SCHOOL SITE

FROPOSTD
ô0. EASEMTNT

PARK SITE

Page 236



3P2836N 04 3 Pi\/i GLENN COUNTY TITTE?20()70ct 23

ACKNOWLEDGIl/IENT

State of Cslifornla
County 9¡ Gtenn

g¡ october 19 
-209 betore mè, c. Villlcana

(he re ineert neme â title of otficer)

personally appe Julia Larson

personally known to me (or proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence) to be

the person(s) whose name(s) is/are subecribed to the withln instrument snd

acknowledged to me that he/she/they executed the same in hle/her/thelr authorlzed

capacity(ies), and that by his/her/their elgnature(s) on the Ínstrument the person(s),

or the entity upon bohaff of which the person(e) acted, executed the instrument.

WïNESS my hand and officialseal.

Signature

(Seal)

Page 237



0ct 23. 2007 12:43Pfvi 0LE[1N COUNTY TITTE

N No¡re

Approved:

Ðanlel ident
D¿te: ftb1=ctors

Hamilton Union Elementary School

Resolution 061103
A Resolution of Acceptance

\ryHEREAS: Hamilton tlnion Erernentary schoor Dietrict nceded to bomow $230,000f:rom the Glenn counry office of Educarion in order .o ñ;;h;;; rhe properry on
Sacrarnento Ave. for a new school site,

\ryHEREAS: The Glcnn county officc of Education rçtained title to the property ascollateral for tlrç loan.

WHEREAS: The Hamilton union Elernenta¡y school District has repaid ttie entirearnount of the loan plus intçrest oharges.

TIIEREFORE IT Is HERTBY RnsoLvED: Thet the inrerest in the rcalpropefty de¡cribed as 8,7 actes located adjacent to Sacramento Ave, in Hamilton Cityrcfened to as the nsw middle cchool site is herby AccEpiED by öRö,Eli'äirlräi'il¿of Tructces and oonsents to recordation thercof uv it, ¿*rv *t¡orized offìcer,

This Resolution was paseed by the Board of Trustees of the Hamilton union Elernentaryschool District at a regular mèeting thereof held "; i"* ïi;ãõô¡ ¡v the following vorer

No.2B36 P 12/11

AllAyes

0
foI,

Page 238



0ct, 23, 2007 12:43PlV 0LE[lN CO|JNIY IITLE No, 2836 P 1l/11

EXHBIT r.Art

(tt esc rlf fJ o n n t-rg qlrool jroF er.ry)

All rhet rcol properry 
^b::*: q:líon of flrat parc+l of larrd as ehorvn on rh.t ccrrqif¡ Rccord of su:.vcv

ä1",",1,'å:T,[få:l"iJitå'#Ål,J,lY;r;iliffiül'iio*; e4; ;;;ii *îp ¡, rccordcd in Grcnn

Bcginning at thc northead corfler ef thç Tow¡rsito of Hnmilton city marked 6yGrsnite monuûront as shown on irtri srrr¿in noror¿ ïföü,rry rcc,¡rded in Boohll of survcyF ßt pagc g4; rhoncc iouir, ¿t' degreas r¿ut¡;'gr*t, óû,00 feer ro thenofihwcsr of tho abovc notcd panÆr oilrn¿ .s-rrro*-on noìed Recod ofsurvcy;
[1T: :lntinutng s."g! 

3O- 
arI*" :1''00,, I,aur, atons rhe E¿sr tine år$a'Ísmsnt' Avctttto, 1360,00 foet [o thc TRUE poñh öî'becr¡¡NING; rhcnceNorth 69 degraes z!: ,)9" errl iiO¡ö ä.t tf*ùiöì,i tiodogreu 32,00,. &sr,40,00 feer; thoncs trtlntr 

.oe. 
d;Ëril; tglod, Erri)¿ó.dä îru,, ro rhc E¡rst linc ofnoled parcel; ftencc sourh t¡ d',:erco, 10'02" grii 1ìüt irtr¿ Eart rine, 2g5.6 rfccs; rhencc Sourh 69 degrcer tg¡ô=d;wrsr, 46?,,01 loor; tt erlll ffJlilff,^,ï:::t?'00,' B*'ì, rzd'iÈ"ri ll-oid sãuñ, ot irgrccs tr:.00,, *;r,l',iïlilnoïl,îr#;south 52 dcgrcr*s 32'1.0" wc¡r, rilzi'ririrhcnccsou*,-rä,rogrces 36,00,,wcsrt77,00 fecr ro rhs eourhwe$r ri;.;¡;Jg nr"¡i;ir"-rii'ñð,ìn 63 dcgrces z,.,0o*wc¡r 2r0.00 rcer, ro_a poinr'irrtïruiilíd*i.+;;;;ñ;il;rrnuc; 

rhence rrorrrr20 dcgrcer Jz'00', y-rr]'{r¡ùuio,rrr'lin, of $acr¿menro Ri*nur, 4z4,lgf,rer t0thc TRUE POINT Or BpOñiñG. 
-' "

APN: 32-Z4O.A0Z-g (ponion)

Page 239



FRON :GCOE

C

Arturo Bnrrern
Superinrendent

Boùr(l of E(luurtion

Ray Gôllnick
()rland Ârea

Cotherine flanes
Elk Creek Àrea

Liridn Miller
Willows Area

Ja¡¡es Mnson
Princeton Alea

.lulìo Lst',son

tlrrnrilton Arun

Progrante

Atlministr¡tivc Scrviccs
Atlrrlt Educrr.ticrn

ßusiness Services
Cl¡itd & Ëanrily Services
Cuniculum & lnstn¡ction

Facilities
Hurnan Rcsot¡rccs

Regionrl OctuÞütiùnrìl Progrorns
Scnior Nutrition
Shrdent Scrv¡ccs

'f'echrrology

'Williarn l'inch Chaner School

(ìlcnn Çounty Qfficc ol Erlucstloll

3l I S. Villa Avcnuc
Willows, C^ 95988

530-934-6575
¡.AX .530-934-657f;

Glenn County Lenrnlng

Ccnler - North

lì.O, Box 817

ó07 E, Tch¡una St.

Orland, CA 95963
530.865.1683

FAX 530.865"r688

Glenn County Lenrning

Center - Sorrth

451 S. VillaÄvennc
Willows. CA 95988

530-934-6320
FÂX 53û.934.6325

0rlnnd Admlnlstrntion Officc

P.0. uox 817

676 E. W¡lker Street
Orland, CA 95963

530-865- I 267
tAX 530-865-1276

E EDUCATION

FRX NO. :53Ø93465?6 0ct. II 2ØØ7 Ø3:39PN Pl

QcordaÅ ln(ôrrøLl\
FÀX TRÀNSMISSTON'COVER SHËET

Hq¡+qr{ REsotrRcEg,

Fax No, .(530) 934-6694
Phone No. (530) 934-687F Ext,

TO¡

FRoM¡ å<"Ü-r*t

DATE I / -."o TTME:

EUBT.TECT:

llotaL Nunrber of Fages InqLudj.ng This Cover gheet,5l_

If you did noE TeceÍve aLl the ¡rageer p1êaeê call- uE âð
ËooII åg Þô8Éible.

Thank youl

co¡,rlfENTg/ussgeen I

3,J& -
.et

/rt {-Ò 3

j""-- J*-¿-l/ /

"Qualíty Pmgrams ant{ Sa.ruice.J'or Lífe\ong Learnírtg"

Page 240



FRON IGCOE

RËCORDINC ruQUESTED ËY

Glcnn County llflc Comprny
BrorcwNo.000¡f9JS6 ord€rNo.5g3g6

AND IilI{EN RECÔRDED MÀILTO
IlT. llrnllton U_nton Etrmõ,rti., i"f,""¡ Dt¡rrtcrAddttc!¡ P, O. Bo* 277
Clty. Shh, &, Zip ll¡mflton Clty, CA glgtl

Ëø6t-7143

iËiüUËËu=j;lihËË' tseE'ù' r
reË! --U;ø0 Hq õt Ë.agealê

giïËï' 
i:llii$F-Ëiçrl, -Rçconr, e r

FÊX N0. :53Ø93465?6

Ç5¡ m¡¡

Oct. LI 2ØØ7 ø3:4ØP¡1 P2

o
çRÂNT IIEED

The undffrigned granmr(r) dcclarc(r):
Docurnaury trBr¡sfËf tax is $0.00

I cornpurcd on û¡ll vrtuc of pmpcty conwyed, ortr compubd on full varuc r.rr utlur oru.n¡'J¿ oo.orut*ces rËfisinins at timo of calc
S.-un1n¡ornot"r.do.:1,__-__F cityof - 

ä"¡v-'s¡eu.+

q-*lr*r*i#i*îîi,,i:i'-;,;*Ïïî,ïi:f 
*_;ern,cqden,.f 

$ch..a,a

tlte followlng dosorlbed raol propcrty in thc unhcorporutrd A*r, counry of GLENN,.srato of crliforni¡:

Soc exhlblt I'A'f nttfçhßd hereto rnd mnde I part hereof.

Datcú $optembcr lt, 100J

STATE OF CALIFORNTA
COUNTY OF Grr4n ì

J ss.
Glenn County Borrd of Etlucrtlon, u Crllfornln
Publlc Entlty

On SP r 2003 befott nte, The
- Pcreonally epfigt¡.od

IUndorafncd,
€ 1e r

by¡ lonnli¿.,tfepet r ep{.dent

Glcnn County Suporlnttndent of 6choolr, å
Publlc ftnüry

onl SawpIeE¡ $uperln

t wElttE
\4¡ITNESS ¡ny hand and oflicisl scil,

rftcilffit

MATLTAX
STATEMEMS TO:

N^ME ADDN.ESS clrYr STAT8&.äP

f Vdon Foßn 0DOorC¡ nev, Oll10/gÊ

I llllll lllll fll ffill t{l ltfl ffi il ffi ilil m 3'.1i;i 
o'

Page 241



FROM :GCOE FÊX NO. :53Ø9346576 Oct. l-L 2ØØ7 Ø324ØPl1 P3

Exr{tBtIl

ffi {hi'{ffii$.,$ffi.i,n.få$i:{,ffi 
äiffi r,üilii,*',Hlfri,.gF:?[9i:,f.,åJiiffl 

,Ì,,ùÅl g,r 
å*1fi b?¡* ;1o ïf [ffiiäâålil,rl x srn u ue u i ñ ;, -,

ifi¡lii^iffi$Èätffiî;ÉîåEåil,.ffi 
,BEGINNING ¡IORTX C¡

IIR$AT ,x^o.ô^qåEl

'ffiËËfu ÊËîi^åtr[ffiî31F,'tri'ï#d,$îft tftïif;}þ^iî'ins"î:s5,ffi

M. O,NËILL
LS 7sô1
EXP 12/31/os

*

l2/5r

I ffiT ffi fl ffi fl ilil [H fl ffit flt ffit Tå'orr, 
o,

Page 242



HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

 

Agenda Item Number: 13m Date: 2/24/2021 

Agenda Item Description: Approve change to Middle School Bell Schedule Lunch to end at 12:25 p.m. 

Background:  
 
Hamilton Elementary Bell schedule was approved on 12/17/2021 with lunch end time at 12:25 p.m. The 
Middle School lunch was typed as ending at 12:20 p.m. In order to be in accordance with the Elementary 
Bell schedule, the Middle School Bell schedule needs to have a lunch end time of 12:25 p.m. 

Status: Pending board approval. 

Fiscal Impact: None 

Educational Impact: None 

Recommendation:  
Recommend approving change to Middle School Bell Schedule Lunch to end at 12:25 p.m. 

 

Page 243



HES (K-5) 

 Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday 

8:10-11:00 Morning A Cohort  
 

Intervention 

Schedule 
11:00-11:50 Teacher Prep Period 

11:50-12:25 Teacher Lunch 

12:25-3:05 Afternoon B Cohort 

HMS (6-8) 

Morning AM Cohort 

Monday/Wednesday Tuesday/Thursday 

Period 1 8:10-9:00 (50) Period 3 8:10-9:00 (50) 

Passing 9:00-9:07 (7) Passing 9:00-9:07 (7) 

Period 2 9:07-9:57 (50) Period 4 9:07-9:57 (50) 

Passing 9:57-10:04 (7) Passing 9:57-10:04 (7) 

Period 5/7 10:04-11:00 (56) Period 6/8 10:04-11:00 (56) 

Teacher Prep Period 11:00-11:50 Teacher Prep Period 11:00-11:50 

Teacher Lunch 11:50-12:25 Teacher Lunch 11:50-12:25 

Afternoon PM Cohort 

Monday/Wednesday Tuesday/Thursday 

Period 1 12:25-1:15 (50) Period 3 12:25-1:15 (50) 

Passing 1:15-1:22 (7) Passing 1:15-1:22 (7) 

Period 2 1:22-2:12 (50) Period 4 1:22-2:12 (50) 

Passing 2:12-2:19 (7) Passing 2:12-2:19 (7) 

Period 5/7 2:19-3:05 (46) Period 6/8 2:19-3:05 (46) 

● Students will continue to have Asynchronous learning during the regular school day when not 

attending in-person. 

● PM Class begins at 12:25 

● Friday Intervention: Minimum of 8 students, Can have as many students as will allow 6’ between 

desks; Teacher will arrange students and notify office; Office will screen students from 8:00-8:15 

Page 244



HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING MINUTES 

Hamilton High School Library/Zoom/Facebook Live 
Wednesday, January 20, 2021 

 
5:30 p.m.  Public session for purposes of opening the meeting only via Zoom:  
5:30 p.m.  Closed session to discuss closed session items listed below via Zoom (For Board Only) 
6:00 p.m. Reconvene to open session no later than 6:30 p.m. via Facebook Live or Zoom (see below) 

 

Hamilton Unified School District Board Meetings are open to the public. We are still adhering to social distancing for 
public safety so in-person seating capacity in the Hamilton High School Library is limited to thirteen attendees.  
As authorized by the Governor’s Emergency Executive Orders issued on March 12 and 17, 2020, the Hamilton Unified 
School District Board of Education will continue to conduct Board of Education meetings by video conference until further 
notice. Please join the meeting by attending the livestream via Facebook Live on the District’s Facebook page or through 
the below Zoom link or dial by phone as listed below: 

 
Join Zoom Meeting 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/83991686943?pwd=cFJ6Y2REa0R6NXdaT1dyMGJ5TUFoUT09 
 
Meeting ID: 839 9168 6943 
Passcode: board 
 
Dial in by phone 
        +1 669 900 6833 
Meeting ID: 839 9168 6943 
Passcode: 032752 

1.0 OPENING BUSINESS: 
a. Call to order and roll call at 5:30 p.m. 

 

√_ Hubert “Wendell” Lower, President  √_ Rod Boone, Clerk   √_via zoom Gabriel Leal 

√_ Genaro Reyes    √_ Ray Odom 
 

2.0 IDENTIFY CLOSED SESSION ITEMS: 
 

3.0 PUBLIC COMMENT ON CLOSED SESSION ITEMS: Public comment will be heard on any closed session items. The board 
may limit comments to no more than three minutes per speaker and 15 minutes per item. None 

 
4.0 ADJOURN TO CLOSED SESSION: To consider qualified matters. 

a. Government Code Section 54957 (b), Personnel Issue. To consider the employment, evaluation, reassignment, 
resignation, dismissal, or discipline of a classified and certificated employees. 

b. Government Code Section 54957.6, Labor Negotiations. To confer with the District’s Labor Negotiator, 
Superintendent Jeremy Powell regarding HTA and CSEA negotiations. 

c. Government Code Section 54956.9, Subdivision (a), Existing litigation. Name of case: Crews v. Hamilton Unified 
School District, Glenn County Superior Court, Case No. 15CV01394. 

d. Conference with Real Property Negotiators. Property: Westermann property north of Hamilton High School, 
approximately located at 500 Sixth Street, Hamilton City, CA 95951 (APN: 032-230-015-000). Agency 
Negotiator: Jeremy Powell, Superintendent; Matt Juhl-Darlington, Attorney for District. Negotiating Parties: 
Westermann Family and Hamilton Unified School District. Under negotiation: Price and terms of payment. 

e. Conference with labor Negotiator Gov. Code sec. 54957.6, subd. (a). Agency designated representative: Dr. 
Jeremy Powell; Employee Organization: Hamilton Teachers Association. 

f. Conference with Real Property Negotiators (Gov. Code Section 54956.8) APN: 032-230-015 Agency Negotiators: 
MJD, DWK. Negotiating parties; District and Westermann Farms, a California Limited Partnership. Under 
negotiation: price and terms of payment. 

 
Report out action taken in closed session: None. 

  

Page 245

https://www.google.com/url?q=https://us02web.zoom.us/j/83991686943?pwd%3DcFJ6Y2REa0R6NXdaT1dyMGJ5TUFoUT09&sa=D&source=calendar&ust=1610814934935000&usg=AOvVaw0mYq9_dYVkYyjw-48rk7et


 
5.0 PUBLIC SESSION/FLAG SALUTE:  Lead by Mr. Boone. 

 
6.0 ADOPT THE AGENDA: (M) 

Mr. Lower requested to move item 11.0a Spring 2021 Instructional Schedule up to 7.0f 
Motion to adopt the agenda by Mr. Boone 2nd  by Mr. Odom. Motion Carried 5-0 

Leal: AYE Lower: AYE 

Boone: AYE Reyes: AYE 

Odom: AYE  

 
7.0   COMMUNICATIONS/REPORTS: 

a. Board Member Comments/Reports. 
i. Mr. Odom requested that a teacher from the elementary, middle and high school each attend and give 

a five minute report at the next meeting. 
b. District Reports (written) 

i. Technology Report by Frank James & Derek Hawley (p. 6) 
ii. Nutrition Services Report by Sean Montgomery (p. 7) 

iii. Operations Report by Alan Joksch (p.8) 
c. Principal and Dean of Student Reports (written) 

i. Kathy Thomas, Hamilton Elementary School Principal (p. 10) 
1. Ms. Thomas gave her report orally. 

ii. Maria Reyes, District Dean of Students (p. 11) 
iii. Cris Oseguera, Hamilton High School Principal (p. 12) 

1. Mr. Oseguera gave his report orally and answered questions and comments from public and 
board. 

iv. Sylvia Robles, Adult School (p. 14) 
d. Chief Business Official Report by Kristen Hamman (p. 15) 
e. Superintendent Report by Jeremy Powell (p. 16) 

i. Dr. Powell gave his report orally 
f. Spring 2021 Instructional Schedule (moved from 11.0a.) 

i. Dr. Garrison from Glenn County Public Health gave a presentation and answered questions from 
public and board. 

8.0  PRESENTATIONS: 
a.  None 

 
9.0  CORRESPONDENCE: 

a. None 
 

10.0   INFORMATION ITEMS: 
Dr. Powell reviewed and commented on items b, c, d below: 

a. Form 700 – Annual Statement of Economic Interests (P. 17) 
b. HUSD Enrollment History for 5 years (p. 21) 
c. Bond Status (Fund 21) Update (p.22)  
d. HHS Site Expansion Permitting Status Update – Mike Cannon (p. 25) 

i. Mike Cannon reviewed the expansion permitting status update. 
 

11.0   DISCUSSION ITEMS: 
Dr. Powell reviewed and commented on the discussion items below: 

a. Spring 2021 Instructional Schedule (handout) 
b. Local Plan Section B: Governance and Administration FY 2020-21 SELPA (p. 27) 
c. Gamut CSBA Policy Conversion Reconciliation – First Reading and Discussion (p. 75) 

i. Deletion of Board Policy BP 0520.2 – Title I Program Improvement Schools 
ii. Deletion of Board Policy BP 0520.3 – Title I Program Improvement Schools 

iii. Deletion of Board Policy BP 1020 – Youth Services 
iv. Deletion of Board Policy BP 4112.24 – Teacher Qualifications Under the No Child Left Behind Act 
v. Deletion of Board Policy BP 6161.3 – Toxic Art Supplies 

vi. Deletion of Board Policy BP 6162.52 – High School Exit Examination 

Page 246



vii. Renaming Board Policy BP 6146.5 – Elementary/Middle School Promotion/Graduation Requirements 
to Elementary/Middle School Graduation Requirements 

viii. Renaming Board Policy BP 6164.5 – Student Study Team to Student Success Teams 
ix. Renaming Board Policy BP 9240 – Board Development to Board Training 
x. Renumber Board Policy (current) BP 3541.2(a) to CSBA BP 3541.2 – Transportation for Students with 

Disabilities 
xi. Deletion of Administrative Regulation AR 0520.2 – Title I Program Improvement Schools 

xii. Deletion of Administrative Regulation AR 0520.3 – Title I Program Improvement Districts 
xiii. Deletion of Administrative Regulation AR 4112.24 – Teacher Qualifications Under the No Child Left 

Behind Act 
xiv. Deletion of Administrative Regulation AR 6162.52 – High School Exit Examination 
xv. Renaming Administrative Regulation AR 6164.5 – Student Study Team to Student Success Teams 

d. Gamut CSBA December 2020 Policies for First Reading and Discussion (p. 78) 
i. Administrative Regulation AR 0430 – Comprehensive Local Plan for Special Education 

ii. Board Policy BP 1312.3 - Uniform Complaint Procedures 
iii. Administrative Regulation AR 1312.3 – Uniform Complaint Procedures  
iv. Board Policy BP 4119.25/4219.23/4319.25 – Political Activities of Employees 
v. Administrative Regulation AR 4119.25/4219.25/4319.25 – Political Activities of Employees 

vi. Board Policy BP 4140/4240/4340 – Bargaining Units  
vii. Board Policy BP 5113.2 – Work Permits 

viii. Administrative Regulation AR 5113.2 – Work Permits 
ix. Board Policy BP 5126 – Awards for Achievement 
x. Administrative Regulation AR 5126 – Awards for Achievement 

xi. Board Policy BP 5141.31 – Immunizations 
xii. Administrative Regulation AR 5441.31 – Immunizations 

xiii. Board Policy BP 5148.3 – Preschool/Early Childhood Education 
xiv. Administrative Regulation AR 5148.3 – Preschool/Early Childhood Education 
xv. Board Policy BP 6146.1 – High School Graduation Requirements 

xvi. Board Policy BP 6146.2 – Certificate of Proficiency/High School Equivalency 
xvii. Administrative Regulation AR 6146.2 – Certificate of Proficiency/High School Equivalency 

xviii. Exhibit E 6146.2 – Certificate of Proficiency/High School Equivalency 
xix. Board Policy BP 6170.1 – Transitional Kindergarten 
xx. Board Bylaw BB 9012 – Board Member Electronic Communications 

xxi. Board Bylaw BB 9320 – Meetings and Notices 
 

12.0   PUBLIC COMMENT: Public comment on any item of interest to the public that is within the Board’s jurisdiction will be 
heard (agenda and non-agenda items). The Board may limit comments to no more than three minutes per speaker and 
15 minutes per topic. Public comment will also be allowed on each specific action item prior to board action thereon. 
 
Public comments were made. 

 
13.0   ACTION ITEMS: 

a. Determine Extracurricular Activities for Independent Study Students (p. 225) 
Several comments were made by administrators, board members and staff. 

 
Motion to allow independent study students to participate in extracurricular and cocurricular activities this semester by  
Mr. Odom 2nd  by Mr. Boone. Motion Carried 4-1 

Leal: AYE Lower: NO 

Boone: AYE Reyes: AYE 

Odom: AYE  

 
b. Approve Spring 2021 Instructional Schedule (p. 226) 

Dr. Powell reviewed proposed instructional schedule prior to vote. 
Mr. Oseguera commented after the vote. 

Motion to approve continuing AM/PM schedule to March 1st by  Mr. Reyes 2nd  by Mr. Odom. Motion Carried 5-0 
Leal: AYE Lower: AYE 

Boone: AYE Reyes: AYE 

Odom: AYE  

Page 247



 
c. Adopt CSBA Policies for 2nd Reading Review and adoption (p. 227) 

 
Motion to approve CSBA policies as listed by  Mr. Boone 2nd  by Mr. Reyes. Motion Carried 5-0 

Leal: AYE Lower: AYE 

Boone: AYE Reyes: AYE 

Odom: AYE  

 
i. Exhibit E 1113 (New Exhibit) District and School Web Sites 

ii. Board Policy BP 3280 Sale or Lease of District-Owned Real Property 
iii. Board Policy BP 3530 Risk Management Insurance 
iv. Administrative Regulation AR 3530 Risk Management Insurance 
v. Board Policies BP 4119.11/4219.11/4319.11 Sexual Harassment 

vi. Administrative Regulations AR 4119.11/4219.11/4319.11 Sexual Harassment 
vii. Administrative Regulations AR 4119.12/4219.12/4319.12 Title IX Sexual Harassment Complaint 

Procedures 
viii. Exhibits E 4119.12/4219.12/4319.12 (New Exhibit) Title IX Sexual Harassment Complaint Procedures 

ix. Board Policy BP 4157/4257/4357 Employee Safety 
x. Administrative Regulation AR 4157/4257/4357 Employee Safety 

xi. Administrative Regulation AR 4157.1/4257.1/4357.1 Work-Related Injuries 
xii. Board Policy BP 5113.1 Chronic Absence and Truancy 

xiii. Administrative Regulation AR 5113.1 Chronic Absence and Truancy 
xiv. Administrative Regulation AR 5113.11 Attendance Supervision 
xv. Board Policy BP 5145.7 Sexual Harassment 

xvi. Administrative Regulation AR 5145.7 Sexual Harassment 
xvii. Administrative Regulation AR 5145.71 Title IX Sexual Harassment Complaint Procedures 

xviii. Exhibit E 5145.71 (New Exhibit) Title IX Sexual Harassment Complaint Procedures 
xix. Board Policy BP 6161.1 Selection and Evaluation of Instructional Materials 
xx. Administrative Regulation AR 6161.1 Selection and Evaluation of Instructional Materials 

xxi. Exhibit E 6161.1 Selection and Evaluation of Instructional Materials 
xxii. Exhibit E (1) 9323.2 Actions by the Board 

 
 

14.0   CONSENT AGENDA: Items in the consent agenda are considered routine and are acted upon by the Board in one 
motion.  There is no discussion of these items prior to the Board vote and unless a member of the Board, staff, or public 
request specific items be discussed and/or removed from the consent agenda. Each item on the consent agenda 
approved by the Board shall be deemed to have been considered in full and adopted as recommended. 

Motion to accept consent agenda by  Mr. Boone 2nd  by Mr. Reyes. Motion Carried 5-0 
Leal: AYE Lower: AYE 

Boone: AYE Reyes: AYE 

Odom: AYE  

 
a. Minutes from Regular Board Meeting on December 9, 2020 (p. 233) 
b. Minutes from Special Board Meeting on December 17, 2020 (p. 239) 
c. Approve 2019-20 School Accountability Report Cards (SARC): Hamilton High School, Ella Barkley High School, 

Hamilton Elementary School and Hamilton Community Day School. (p. 241) 
d. Warrants and Expenditures (p. 279) 
e. Interdistrict Transfers (new only; elementary students reapply annually). 

i. Out 
1. Hamilton Elementary School 

a. none 
2. Hamilton High School 

a. none 
ii. In 

1. Hamilton Elementary School 
a. none 

2. Hamilton High School 

Page 248



a. 9th Grade x 2 
b. None 

 
f. Personnel Actions as Presented: 

i. New hires: 

Sheila Skemp 

Long Term Substitute Teacher - Position 

ending June 2021 HUSD 

Chloe Patton 

Long Term Substitute Teacher - Position 

ending June 2021 HUSD 

Giovanni Martinez Barron 

Child Nutrition Assistant, Short-Term - 

Position starting December 14, 2020 and 

ending June 4, 2021 HES/HHS 

Derek Nall JV Girls Basketball Coach HHS 

Trevor Heyl 

Temporary Multiple Subject Teacher (5th 

Grade) HES 

Mariesa Fitzgerald-Adams Special Education Paraprofessional HUSD 

Rosa Rivera Office Assistant I HES 

Jonathan Romano District Custodian HUSD 

Cierra McCarthy District Custodian HUSD 

Dianna Camarena Social Services Coordinator HUSD 

 
ii. Resignations/Retirement: 

Sheila Skemp 

Multiple Subject Teacher, Long Term 

Substitute - Position ending December 2020 HUSD 

Chloe Patton 

English Teacher, Long Term Substitute - 

Position ending December 2020 HUSD 

Marisa Fitzgerald-Adams 

Paraeducator/Library Media Technician - 

Position ending December 2020 

 

Rosa Rivera 

Temporary Office Assistant I - Position 

Ending December 2020 HES 

Jonathan Romano 

Short-Term District Custodian - Position 

Ending December 2020 HUSD 

Cierra McCarthy 

Short-Term District Custodian - Position 

Ending December 2020 HUSD 

Dianna Camarena Office Assistant I HES 

Dianna Camarena 

Temporary District Case 

Manager/Parent/Family Coordinator HUSD 

 

Page 249



 
15.0   ADJOURNMENT: 8:49 p.m.  Question in closing: “What have you done to unify our district?” 

 
 
 
 

X
Rod Boone

HUSD Board Clerk

 
 
 

X
Jeremy Powell, Ed.D.

Superintendent

 

Page 250



HUSD Certificated Seniority List

First Name Last Name Hire Date* Status

Trudy Bryan 26-Aug-88
Lynn Larson 24-Aug-89
Betty Mercado 27-Aug-93
Liz (Adriana) Cox (El Allie) 25-Aug-95
Maribel Hernandez (Medina) 25-Aug-97
Maria Gonzalez-Alvarez 25-Aug-97
Kelly Langan 19-Aug-98
Bertha Carter 19-Aug-99
Rina Gonzalez 23-Aug-00
Alexandra Charlon 16-Aug-01
Guadalupe Funderburk 15-Aug-02
Ellese Mello Buttitta 29-Aug-03
Margrit Vogelesang 12-Aug-04
Maria Llamas 13-Aug-04
Maria Esquivel 13-Aug-04
Blanca Godinez 13-Aug-04
Hogan Brown 8-Jan-07
Janice Lohse 15-Aug-07
Matthew Steele 15-Aug-07
Maria Reyes 27-Aug-07
Matthew Jarvis 15-Aug-12
Raquel Bocast 9-Aug-13
Jennifer Firth 11-Aug-14
Kristy Eden 7-Aug-15
Paula Garcia 7-Aug-15
Mary Hansen 7-Aug-15
Patricia Hernandez   7-Aug-15
John Hironimus 7-Aug-15
Shelley Whittaker 7-Aug-15
Nancy Heffley 14-Sep-15
Andrew Martin 10-Aug-18
Knutson Heather 9-Aug-19 Prob II
Curiel Aimee 9-Aug-19 Prob II
Zuppan Kol (Joshua) 9-Aug-19 Prob II

* represents the beginning date of service

Intern Teachers
Long Term Subs 

OR Temp. Teachers

Aaron Johnson
Derek Nall
Chloe Patton
Sheila Skemp 10/5/2020 (GCOE Substitute for HUSD 9/27/2016)

8/24/2020

8/17/2020 (Temporary Position during 2019-20 hire date 3/25/20)

Hire Date

8/6/2020 (On 39 Month Rehire List, original hire date 8/10/2018 was at Prob II)

Developed: 3.4.2010  
Revised: 2.18.2011 / Adopted: 2.22.2011 
Revised: 2.25.2011 / Adopted: 3.9.2011 
Revised: 1.04.2012 / Adopted: 1.17.2012 
Revised: 3.5.2012 / Adopted: 3.19.2012 
Revised: 12.5.2012/ For Certificated Staff review 
Revised: 1.11.2013/ Adopted: 1.22.2013 
Revised: 2.08.2013/ Adopted: 2.12.2013 
Revised: 12.18.2013/For Certificated Staff review/Adopted:  1.21.2014 
Revised: 10.17.2014/For Certificated review/Adopted:  1.20.2015 
Revised: 12.15.2015/For Certificated review/Adopted: 1.21.2016 
Revised: 10.25.2016/For Certificated review/Adopted: 1.25.2017 
Revised: 11.8.2017/For Certificated review/Adopted: 1.30.2018 
Revised: 10.24.2018/For Certificated review 
Revised: 11.28.2018/For Certificated review/Adopted: 1.23.2019 
Revised: 10.15.2019/For Certificated review/Adopted: 1.22.2020 
Revised: 10.22.2020/For Certificated review/Adopted: 
 
(See Seniority Change log for details of revisions.) 

Page 251



HUSD CLASSIFIED SENIORITY LIST

NAME POSITION SERVICE DATE SERVICE DATE FROM BEGINNING OF EMPLOYMENT W/ DISTRICT(S)

DelaCruz, Yolanda (Bernice) Paraeducator/Library Media Technician 7/1/2019 2/5/1985 (Paraeducator)
Paraeducator 8/11/2014 x
Paraeducator II 8/9/2010 x
Cook Helper 8/24/2009 x
Instructional Aide 8/28/1989 x
Teacher Aide 2/5/1985 x

Crosby, Clyde (Austin) District Universal - Maintenance & Transportation 7/1/2013 (7/1/1996) Custodian
Custodian/Sub Bus Driver 7/1/2005 x
Custodian 10/1/1996 x

Mercado, Guadalupe (Lupe) Administrative Technician 1/1/2014 (5/1/1997) Business Asst/Adult Ed Secrty
Adult Ed & Continuation Office Assistant I 7/1/2010 x
Adult Ed & Continuation Office Assistant I/Business Asst 7/1/2009 x
Adult Ed Office Assistant I 7/1/2000 x
Adult Ed Secretary 11/3/1997 x
Adult Ed Teacher Aide I 5/12/1997 x

Garcia, Irma Preschool Assistant 11/7/2013 (8/20/1998) Preschool Aide
Preschool Paraeducator II (Paraeducator) 8/9/2013 x
Preschool Paraeducator I 8/11/2011 x
Preschool Teacher Aide 8/27/2001 x
Preschool Teacher 8/20/1998 x

Moreno, Erendida Child Nutrition Lead 8/9/2013 (8/19/2002) Cook
Head Cook 8/13/2009 x
Cook 8/18/2006 x
Assistant Cook 3/6/2006 x
Cook Helper/Dish 8/19/2002 x

Lopez-Reyes, Bertha (Maria) District Custodian 10/08/2003

DeVries, Chris Business Services Technician 7/1/2019 (4/29/2004) Accounting Clerk
District Account Clerk 5/10/2004 x

Johnson, Erin Student Services and Library Coordinator 8/11/2014 (1/10/2005) Clerk, Counseling & Library 
Office Assistant II 8/15/2007 x
Paraeducator II 1/6/2005 x

Fitzgerald-Adams, Mariesa SPED Paraeducator 1/11/2021  (8/12/2016) Paraeducator
Short-Term SPED Paraeducator 10/19/2020 Hired in Short-Term Position
Short-Term Paraeducator 8/10/2020 Hired in Short-Term Position
Paraeducator/Library Media Technician 7/1/2019 Placed on 39 Month Rehire List Effective 6/30/20
Paraeducator 8/12/2016 x

Kitahara, Chris District Universal - Maintenance & Transportation 12/21/2016

Elkin, Dave District Universal - Maintenance & Transportation 5/30/2017

Mundo, Asha Child Nutrition Assistant 8/9/2019 (9/19/2017) Yard Duty Supervisor/Crossing Guard
District Universal - Maintenance & Transportation 8/14/2018 x
Yard Duty Supervisor/Crossing Guard 9/19/2017 x

Dietle, Rowan Office Assistant I 1/10/2018

Rivera, Rosa Office Assistant I 1/11/2021 (8/27/2018) Office Assistant I
Temporary Office Assistant I 9/30/2020 Hired in Temp. position
Office Assistant I 8/27/2018 Placed on 39 Month Rehire List Effective 6/30/20

Deatherage, Dallas District Universal - Maintenance & Transportation 6/3/2019

Malagon, Liliana Preschool Teacher 8/9/2019

Rivera, Marcie Child Nutrition Lead 8/9/2019

Montgomery, Maxwell Paraeducator/Library Media Technician 1/11/2021

Short-Term Paraeducator/Library Median Technician 9/24/2020 x Short-Term Paraeducator/Library Median Technician 9/24/20 - 12/18/20
Romano, Jonathan District Custodian 1/11/2021

Short-Term District Custodian 8/26/2020 x Short-Term District Custodian 8/26/20 - 12/18/20
Cierra McCarthy District Custodian 1/11/2021

Short-Term District Custodian 10/14/2020  x Short-Term District Custodian 10/14/20 - 12/18/20

Brand, Maribel Temporary Child Nutrition Assistant 8/6/2020 - 12/18/2020 (10/11/2018) Yard Duty Supervisor/Crossing Guard
Yard Duty Supervisor/Crossing Guard 10/11/2018 Placed on 39 Month Rehire List Effective 6/30/20

Revision:  January 26, 2021

EMPLOYED FROM 39 MONTH REHIRE LIST

(See Seniority Change Log for details of revisions) 
Adopted:  

Page 252



Hamilton Unified School District 

 

 

Quarterly Report on Williams Uniform Complaints 
(Education Code § 35186) 

 

 

Person completing this form:  Jeremy Powell Title:  Superintendent 

 

 

Quarterly Report Submission Date:           January 2021 

                                                (check one)     April 2021 

       July 2021 

       October 2021 

 

Date for information to be reported publicly at governing board meeting:   

 

Please check the box that applies: 

  

 No complaints were filed with any school in the district during the quarter 

indicated above. 

 

 Complaints were filed with schools in the district during the quarter 

indicated above.  The following chart summarizes the nature and 

resolution of these complaints. 

 

 Total No. of 

Complaints 

No. Resolved No. Unresolved 

Textbooks and 

Instructional Materials 

 

0 

  

Teacher Vacancy or 

Misassignment 

 

0 

  

Facilities Conditions  

0 

 

 

 

 

 

TOTALS 0 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

_________________________________________ 

Dr. Jeremy Powell, Superintendent 

 

 

__________________________________________ 

Date Signed 

 

February 24, 2021 

Page 253



HES School Site Council Minutes 

11/10/2020 

6:15 PM  

Item 1: Welcome and introductions 

Item 2: Establish Quorum 

Parents present: Rocio Jauregui, Teresa Alvarado, Ana Lozano, Fabiola Mata, Maria Guerra,  

Staff present: Kathy Thomas, Maribel Hernandez, Jenny Firth, Maggie Sawyer, Aaron Johnson, Ariel Ellis, Dianna 

Camarena 

Item 3: verification of posting of agenda 11/6/2020  

Item 4: Public comment: 

Jenny Firth shared what’s happening with the Middle School and how much she appreciated having the Car 

Parade. 

Item 5: Approval of Minutes 

Ariel motioned and Maribel seconded the October minutes.  

Item 6: Prepare for elections 

Explanation of the SSC and the roles, responsibilities and the purpose of the body. Ana Lozano was nominated as 

chair by J. Firth. Ana Lozano nominated Teresa Alvarado for Vice Chair. Rocio was nominated by Maggie Sawyer to 

serve as secretary.  

Item 7: Attendance and Engagement Update 

Mrs. Thomas shared current Attendance percentages for all grade levels and talked about the difference between 

ADA and period attendance/engagement. There was a question about tardies and when students are marked 

absent. It was explained that right now tardies are flexible due to the car traffic and drop offs---there is a 5 minute 

grace being asked of teachers, but tardies are being tracked by classroom teachers.   

Item 8: LCFF (Local Control Funding Formula) Presented by Dr. Powell by invitation of council members.  

Dr. Powell explained that there is a base grant based on ADA (ADA explained by Mrs. Thomas in Item 7). The high 

school receives slightly more because of additional costs needed at the HS level.  All schools do receive the same 

amount of money but there is supplemental funding based on students receiving free/reduced lunch qualification, 

as well as special populations—EL, Special Education, homeless which is a supplemental/concentration grant. The 

Elementary school does qualify for this additional funding due to their student population, but the HS does not get 

this additional funding. This additional funding is targeted to support students of need.   

 

Parent asked a question if this is broken down to grade level, but it is a “whole school” funding.  

o Title I is a federal program based on Free and Reduced numbers.  

o COVID $: expenditures for cleaning, tent, etc. 

 NOT permanent.  

Additional staffing 

Any resources needed to serve during the pandemic.  

Page 254



 

Rocio asked if the COVID $ is not permanent, what about the current resources that our school needs? 

Will these resources continue next semester and next year? Dr. Powell explained that this is not a funding 

that we get, but not sure of how long this situation will last, and we could have the same issues next year 

to work with, for example, the liaison position was cut, but brought back with the COVID $. This is an 

“integral and key” position at the Elementary School. Title I money could be spent for this kind of resource 

and the SCC has a voice in these kinds of decisions.  

 

Members thanked Dr. Powell for explaining the funding and have a clearer understanding of how our 

school receives its money and how it can be spent.  

Item 9: Parent feedback shared by Mrs. Thomas regarding the return to in-person instruction. Feedback is positive 

and complimentary of the district, teachers and staff.  

Action Items: 

Item 10: Nominate and Elect Chair, Vice Chair and Secretary. 

Ana Lozano was nominated as chair by J. Firth. Ana Lozano nominated Teresa Alvarado for Vice Chair. Rocio was 

nominated by Maggie Sawyer to serve as secretary. All in favor. Motion carried.  

Item 11: Approve Addition to By Laws 

Council Agreements overview--take action at next meeting 

 -bring multiple perspective 

 -share open and honest 

 -stay on agenda 

 -assume positive intent 

 -respect commitment of role: attend all meetings, arrive on time, and come prepared 

 -keeping students at the center 

Maggie Sawyer made motion and Ariel Ellis seconded. All in Favor. Motion carried. 

Item 12: Approve Site  Budget 

Ana Lozano made motion. Maggie Sawyer seconded. All in Favor. Motion carried.  

Item 13: Approve SSC dates and times 

Approve SSC dates. Maribel Hernandez seconded. All in favor. Motion carried.  

Maggie Sawyer made motion and Ariel Ellis seconded. 

Meeting adjourned 7:05 PM 

 

Page 255



 

Hamilton Elementary School 
277 Capay Avenue   •   P.O. Box 277 

Hamilton City, CA  95951-0277 
School Office (530) 826-3474   •   Fax (530) 826-0419  

District Office (530) 826-3261 

Hamilton Elementary School  
School Site Council Meeting  

 
Tuesday, February 9th  @ 6:00 p.m. 

 
Join Zoom Meeting 

https://zoom.us/j/97601934227?pwd=Zi9QQ2JLMWFMSktXU1p2T1JjaFMrdz09 
  

Meeting ID: 976 0193 4227 
Passcode: HES SSC 

 
Norms:  

 
● Bring multiple perspectives 
● Share openly & honestly 
● Stay on agenda 
● Assume positive intent 
● Respect commitment of role: Attend all meetings, arrive on time, come prepared 

 
Agenda 

ORDER OF BUSINESS 
 
Item 1 Call to Order 

● Welcome 
● Introductions 

 
Item 2 Establish Quorum (3 HES Staff, 2 Parents/Community Members) 
 
Staff Present: 
 
Parents Present: 
 
Item 3 Verification of Posting of the Agenda—72 Hours in Advance 
 
Anticipated posting by 2/5/21 
 
Item 4 Public Comment 

This is the time for members of the audience to present items not on the Agenda. 
Comments should be limited to a maximum of three minutes duration.  The SSC is 
prohibited by State Law from taking action on any item presented if it is not listed on the 
Agenda. 
 

Item 5 Approval of Minutes— (5 minutes.) 
 
DISCUSSION ITEMS 
 
Item 6               In-person am/pm sessions 
 
Item 7               PBIS incentives/support  and Title I funds  
                          Brag Tags  
                          Mascot   or another  

 
Page 256

https://zoom.us/j/97601934227?pwd=Zi9QQ2JLMWFMSktXU1p2T1JjaFMrdz09
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1PyJEOQHgMnOgSd9qlwHCqooBUin8JnllPPFqSZz7jQM/edit?usp=sharing
https://docs.google.com/forms/d/e/1FAIpQLSdCXKoYQ69bqk1JKOI5N9u7-VewcRDXeQxhxSgraWjOOLLU_w/viewform
https://www.schoollife.com/school-products/brag-tags.html
https://www.joymascot.com/wolf-mascot/blue-wolf-mascot-costumes-8868
https://www.greatmascot.com/wolf-mascot/blue-wolf-mascot-costumes-free-shipping


 

                         Achievement bracelets 
 
 
Item 8                Title I funds and personnel/support  for 21-22  
 
Item 9               SARC --what questions do you have?  
 
Item 10               Safety Plan Goals  

 
ACTION ITEMS 
 
Item 11            SARC approval   

 
Item 12           Approve Safety Plan Goals  
 
Item 13            Title I fund expenditures: PBIS support  

 
 

 
 
 
 
   
ADJOURMENT By 7:00 pm 
 

 

Hamilton Elementary School Site Council By-laws  

Revised January 2015  

 
ARTICLE I – HAMILTON ELEMENTARY SCHOOL SITE COUNCIL  
The Hamilton Unified School District has established the Hamilton Elementary School Site 
Council. Hereinafter, the School Site Council may be referred to as the Council .  

ARTICLE II - ROLE OF THE COUNCIL  
The School Site Council is required, under state law, to serve as the school community 
representative body for determining the focus of the school’s academic instructional program 
and all related categorical resources. The School Site Council has responsibilities for these 
duties:  

• Analyzing and evaluating the academic achievement of all students in the school.  

• Obtaining recommendations from school site advisory, standing, and special 
committees regarding the focus of the School’s Single Plan for Student Achievement  

• Developing and approving the school plan and all related budget expenditures to the 
local governing board  

 
Page 257

https://www.positivepromotions.com/my-principal-believes-in-me-silicone-bracelets-pack-of-10/p/gn8033f/


 

• Providing ongoing monitoring of the implementation of the plan and budget 
expenditures in accordance with all state and federal laws and regulations  

• Recommending the school plan including related budget expenditures to the local 
governing board  

• Providing ongoing monitoring for the implementation of the plan and 
budgets/expenditures  

• Revising the school plan, including expenditures, timelines, and evaluation criteria, 
as needed  

• Participating in all local, state, and federal reviews of the school’s program for 
compliance and quality  

• Annually evaluating the effectiveness of the school’s progress toward meeting school 
goals to raise student achievement for all students  

• Encouraging broad representation of parents, community members, teachers, and 
students, if appropriate, including all socioeconomic, ethnic, and programmatic 
groups represented in the school in leadership roles and in the activities of the 
School Site Council  

• Carry out all other duties assigned to the council by the district governing board 
and by state or federal law.  

 
Every two years, an English Learner Advisory Committee may elect to have the School Site               
Council serve as the site leadership body for the EL program. If this occurs, the School Site                 
Council, after training, will assist the principal and staff in:  
 

• Developing a detailed school plan for EL students as a part of the Single Plan for 
Student Achievement that is submitted to the local board of education  

• Developing the school’s needs assessment for EL students  
• Administering the school’s language census  
• Assuring that efforts have been made to notify EL parents of the importance of 

regular school attendance  
 

If funding for Economic Impact Aid becomes available, every two years a School Advisory 
Committee may elect to have the School Site Council serve as the site leadership body for the 
Economic Impact Aid Program will assist the principal and staff in:  
 

• Developing a detailed school plan for low income educationally disadvantaged and 
English learner students as a part of the Single Plan for Student Achievement that is 
submitted to the local board of education. 

  

 
Page 258



 

The School Site Council will vote to determine whether the school will participate in the School 
based Coordination Program.  
 
ARTICLE III – Members  
 
Section 1: Size and Compensation  
The School Site Council will be composed of (10) members. Half of the representation on the 
council shall be from the school staff. This council half will include:  
(1 )-Principal  
(3 )-Teachers, selected by teachers; (NOTE: Classroom teachers shall constitute the majority of 
those persons representing the school staff)  
(1 )-Other School Personnel  
(5 )-Parents or community members, selected by parents at the school  
 
Section 2: Term of Office  
All parents of the Council shall serve for a term of 2 years. All teachers or other school personnel 
shall serve for a term of one year. However, in order to achieve staggered membership, one half, 
or the nearest approximation, of each representative group shall be selected during the odd years 
and the remaining number of members selected during the even years.  At the end of each 
representative member’s term, membership terminates. In order to continue to serve as a council 
member, the member must be reselected by the appropriate representative group.  
 
(New Councils) With the exception of the principal a chance method or lottery will be used 
to determine the length of each member’s term at the first council meeting.  
 
Section 3: Selection/Election of Members  
Elections of council members shall be held each year, no later than September 30th.  
 
Annually, the SSC will establish an Election Committee composed of a teacher, other school 
personnel, a parent to oversee the election of council members.  
 
Election Committee: The duties of the committee shall be to supervise the election procedure, to 
identify nominees on the basis of the nominating procedure, to unseal and count the ballots, and 
to declare elected representatives on the basis of the election procedure.  
 
The following procedures shall be followed in nominating candidates and selecting/electing 
council members:  

• Teachers: Secret ballot of HES certificated staff that are HTA members; election by the 
end of September 30  

• Parents/Guardians: Secret ballot of parents/guardians election by September 30  

 
Page 259



 

• Other School Personnel: Secret ballot of HES classified staff that are CSEA members 
election by September 30.  

 
Election ballots shall be prepared by the Election Committee with the assistance of the principal 
and shall be distributed to each peer group.  
 
In all elections for council members, ties will be decided by lot.  
 
Section 4: Voting Rights  
Each member of the council shall be entitled to one vote and may cast that vote on each matter 
submitted to a vote of the Council. Absentee ballots shall not be permitted.  
 
An alternate representative may not cast a vote in the absence of the selected member. The role 
of an alternate is for information collection only.  
 
Section 5: Termination of Membership  
A member shall no longer hold membership should he or she cease to be a resident of the school 
or no longer meets the membership requirements under which he or she was selected (e.g., a 
parent becomes employed by the district). Membership shall automatically terminate for any 
member who is absent from all regular meetings for a period three consecutive meetings. The 
Council, by an affirmative vote of two-thirds of all the members, can suspend or expel a 
member.  
 
Section 6: Transfer of Membership  
Membership on the Council may not be assigned or transferred.  
 
Section 7: Resignation  
Any selected council member may terminate his or her membership by submitting a written letter 
of resignation to the Council chairperson.  
 
Section 8: Vacancy  
Any vacancy on the Council that occurs during the term of a member shall be filled 
by:  

• An election of a new member by the appropriate representative group  
• Or an appointment of a new member through the remainder of the term (selected 

by the remaining peer group members, not the council as a whole).  
 
ARTICLE IV - OFFICERS  
 
Section 1: Officers  

 
Page 260



 

The officers of the Council shall include a chairperson, vice- chairperson, 
secretary, parliamentarian and any other officers the Council shall deem as 
desirable.  
 
Section 2: Election of Officers and Terms of Office  
The officers of the Council shall be elected annually and shall serve a term for one year or until 
a successor has been elected. Any member of the Council, including the principal, may serve in 
any officer capacity.  
 
Section 3: Removal of Officers  
Any officer may be removed from their office by a two-thirds vote of all council 
members.  
 
Section 4: Vacancy in an Officer Position  
A vacancy in any office because of resignation, removal, disqualification, death. or otherwise 
shall be filled for the remainder of the officer‘s term. A vacancy in any office shall be filled by 
a special election of the Council. This special election will be included in the posted meeting 
agenda.  
 
Section 5: Officer duties  
The chairperson shall:  

• Preside at all meetings of the Council  
• Sign all letters, reports. and other communications of the Council  
• Perform all duties incident to the Office of the chairperson  

The vice-chairperson shall:  
• Represent the chairperson or council in assigned duties  
• Substitute for the chairperson in his or her absence  

The secretary shall:  
• Keep minutes of all regular and special meetings of the Council  
• Promptly transmit to each of the council members and district representative true 

and correct copies of the minutes of such meetings  
• Provide all notices in accordance with the provisions of these by laws  
• Serve as custodian of the School Site Council records  
• Maintain a register of the address, phone number, and term of office of each council 

member  
• Maintain a register of the chairpersons of other school advisory and subcommittee 

members, including addresses and phone numbers  
• Perform all duties incident to the office of secretary  
• Perform such duties that are assigned by the chairperson or the council  

The Parliamentarian shall:  

 
Page 261



 

• Be the time keeper for the meeting  
• Ensure the Bylaws are followed  
• Draft positions or plans for council review  
• Perform the duties of Sargent at Arms  
 

Annually each School Site Council shall convene a professional development committee, 
composed of a majority of teachers, to determine the professional development activities 
included within the Single Plan for Student Achievement.  
 
ARTICLE V – COMMITTEES  
 
Section 1: Standing and Special Committees  
The School Site Council may, from time to time, establish standing or special committees to 
perform various functions as prescribed by the Council. All such committees will include 
representation from the various representative groups. All appointed individuals and committees 
serve at the pleasure of the Council and are advisory to it. No standing or special committee may 
exercise the authority of the Council. A standing or special committee may be abolished by a 
vote of the Council.  
 
The purpose of these committees is 
to:  

• Gather and analyze data  
• Examine materials staffing or fund possibilities  
• Propose to the Council strategies for improving the instructional practices  

 
Section 2: Standing and Special Committee Membership  
Unless otherwise determined by the Council, the Council chairperson shall appoint members of 
the standing or special committees. A vacancy on a standing or special committee shall be filled 
by appointment of the chairperson.  
 
 
Section 3: Standing and Special Committee Term of Office  
The Council shall determine the membership terms for all standing and special 
committees. This term should be communicated to the committee members at the 
beginning of their assignment.  
 
Section 4: Standing and Special Committee Rules  
Each standing and special committee will establish procedural rules that are consistent with 
the Council’s bylaws and the district governing board.  
 
ARTICLE VI - MEETINGS OF THE SCHOOL SITE COUNCIL  

 
Page 262



 

 
Section 1: Meetings  
The council shall hold regular monthly meetings with the day and time as agreed upon by the 
Council at the September meeting of that school year. Special meetings of the Council may be 
called by the chairperson or by a majority vote of the Council.  
 
Section 2: Place of Meetings  
The Council shall hold its regular meetings at a facility provided by the school, unless the school 
principal determines that such a facility accessible to the public, including 'handicapped persons, 
is unavailable or does not meet health and/or safety codes. Alternative meeting sites shall be 
determined jointly by the school principal and Council chairperson.  
 
Section 3: Notice of Meetings  
Written notice of the meeting shall be posted at least 72 hours in advance of the meeting at the 
school site, or any other appropriate place that is accessible to the public. This written notice 
shall specify the date, time, and location of the meeting, and contain an agenda describing each 
item of business to be discussed or acted upon. Any change in the established date, time, or 
location of the meeting needs to be especially noted in the agenda. The Council shall not take 
any action on any item of business unless that item appears on the posted agenda or unless the 
Council or committee members present by unanimous vote, find that there is a need to take 
immediate action and that the need for action came to the attention of the council or committee 
subsequent to the posting of the agenda.  
 
Questions or brief statements made at a meeting by members of the Council, committee, or 
public that do not have a significant effect on pupils or employees in the school or school 
district or that can be resolved solely by the provision of information need not be described on 
an agenda as items of business.  
 
All required notices shall be delivered to council and committee members to no less than 72 
hours, and no more than (5) days in advance of the meeting, personally, by mail, or by 
email.  
 
The Council will annually notify representative groups of the meetings through:  

• Inclusion in school communications (e.g.. bulletins, newsletters)  
• Posted (e.g., in the school office window and community services bulletin)  

 
Section 4: Quorum  
The presence of 5l% of the Council membership (51% school and 51% parent) in attendance at 
the meeting will constitute a quorum. No decisions of the Council shall be valid unless a quorum 
of the membership is present.  

 
Page 263



 

 
Section 5: Conduct of Meetings  
Meeting of the Council shall be conducted in accordance with the rules of order established by 
Education Code 35147 and the Robert’s Rules of Order or an adaptation thereof approved by the 
Council.  
 
If the Council violates any of the procedural meeting requirements found in Ed. Code Section 
35147, and upon demand of any person, the Council shall reconsider the item at its next 
meeting, after allowing for public input.  
 
Section 6: Meetings Open to the Public  
All meetings of the Council and its appointed committees shall be open to the public. Any 
member of the public shall be able to address the Council during the meeting on any item within 
the subject matter jurisdiction of the Council. Every agenda for regular meetings shall provide 
an opportunity for members of the public to directly address the School Site Council on any 
item of interest to the public, before or during the Council’s consideration of that item.  
 
The Council may not take any action on any item of business unless that item appears on the 
posted agenda or unless council members present, by unanimous vote, find that there is a need 
to take immediate action and that the need for action came to the attention of the Council 
subsequent to the posting of the agenda.  
 
Each meeting agenda will include a time for public comment. The School Site Council will 
provide opportunities for the public to comment on matters that are not on the agenda, but no 
action may be taken by the Council.  
 
The minutes of the Council meeting are public records and are available to the public.  
Any materials provided to a School Site Council shall be made available to any member of 
the public who requests the materials pursuant to the California Public Records Act (Chapter 
3.5 (Commencing with Section 6250] of Division 7 of Title 1).  
 
Section 7: Communication with the Local Board of Education  
The School Site Council shall implement the rules and regulations as defined in local board 
policy. The Council may communicate with the board by submitting a letter to the Board of 
Education office. A School Site Council may request to speak at a local board of education 
meeting by following district procedures for communicating with the school board.  
 
A local board of education has the right to deny the content and related and related budget 
found in the school’s Singe Plan for Student Achievement. The Board of Education will provide 
written notification to the Council about their concerns.  
 

 
Page 264



 

Section 8: Uniform Complaint Procedures  
Annually, the School Site Council shall participate in training about the district’s uniform 
complaint procedures. This training will review procedures for filing a complaint. lf any School 
Site Council member or member of the public believes that the School Site Council has taken an 
action that is in violation of their legal authority, the individual or group may file a uniform 
compliant form with the district. 
  
ARTICLE VII – BYLAW AMENDMENTS 
  
An amendment of these bylaws maybe made at any regular meeting of the Council 'by a vote of 
two -thirds of the members present. Written notice of the proposed amendment must be posted 
as a part of the agenda and must be submitted to the Council members at least (5) days prior to 
the meeting at which the amendment is to be considered for adoption.  

 
Page 265



Hamilton High School 
School Site Council 

Agenda 
January 15, 2021 

HHS Zoom Meeting - 1:55pm 
 

I. Call to Order: (time)_______________ 
II. Approve agenda:______________ 
III. Approve Minutes of Previous Meeting 
IV.  

Public Comment: Public invite of items not listed/Public Comment: 

This is the time for members of the audience to present items not on the Agenda.  
Comments should be limited to a maximum of three (3) minutes duration.  The 
SSC is prohibited by California state law from taking any action on any item 
presented if it is not listed on the Agenda. 

 
Non-Agenda Items:  
1. 
2. 
3. 

V.    Business Items: 
1. SARC Review of HHS/EBHS  

a. Information from SARC 
2. HHS Safety Plan Discussion/Review 

a. Coronavirus Pandemic protocols 
b. Other updates or discussion 

3. 20-21 Assessment Information  
a. Will there be testing for 20-21 School Year? 
b. Testing Window 

4. Spring Semester Hybrid Model 
a. Screening Protocol 
b. AM/PM schedule 
c. Independent Study Model Info 

 
VI.  Other/Announcements 
VII. Adjourn 
 
 

Page 266



Hamilton High School 
School Site Council 

Agenda 
January 15, 2021 

HHS Zoom Meeting - 1:55pm 
 

I. Call to Order: (time) 2:05pm 
II. Approve agenda: 1st.: C. Rios, 2nd: K. Langan 
III. Approve Minutes of Previous Meeting: 1st: Gonzalez, 2nd: Oseguera 
IV. Members present: Gonzalez, Hernandez, Funderburk, Garcia, Brown, 

Charlon, Mello, Song, Hansen, Martin, Lohse, Mercado, Johnson, 
Jarvis, Steele, VK, K. Brown, Dietle, Rios, Reyes, Langan and Natalie 
Castro. 

Public Comment: Public invite of items not listed/Public Comment:  

This is the time for members of the audience to present items not on the Agenda.  
Comments should be limited to a maximum of three (3) minutes duration.  The 
SSC is prohibited by California state law from taking any action on any item 
presented if it is not listed on the Agenda. 

 
Non-Agenda Items:  
1.  We have been back in person this week with AM/PM model.  Things 
are going good; staff and students seem to like small groups and are 
glad to be back in person for at least some time.   
2.  Nothing on sports at this time.   
3.  Various Staff said they are glad to be back on campus, seeing 
students and having some king of normalcy.  

V.    Business Items: 
1. SARC Review of HHS/EBH  

a. Information from SARC:  We reviewed last year’s plan, not 
much has changed other than there is a distance learning 
component.  

2. HHS Safety Plan Discussion/Review: Goals were reviewed, no 
changes were recommended.  Focus was on COVID-19 protocols. 
On-going review of District live binder.   

a. Coronavirus Pandemic protocols:  Conduct health check on 
students, if there are any health issues, student will be 
isolated and send home.  we will get advisement from nurse.  
If quarantine needs to happen, date will be given to us by 
nurse.  All families are asked to monitor their student’s health 

Page 267



and keep them home if needed.  If a teacher sees that a 
student isn’t feeling good, student will be sent to office.   

b. Other updates or discussion: None 
3. 20-21 Assessment Information:  Mr. O reported on this.  More 

information to come regarding actual testing, state may not have 
testing again this year.  

a. Will there be testing for 20-21 School Year?  
b. Testing Window:   

4. Spring Semester Hybrid Model 
a. Screening Protocol:  We will continue to have two locations 

for screening, in cafeteria parking lot and at corner, outside of 
Ms. Gonzalez’s room.  We will ask the questions, take 
temperatures, check off students and give them a label to 
wear so teachers know that they have been screened.  

b. AM/PM schedule:  Two groups, one in the morning and one in 
the afternoon, Monday thru Thursday. Fridays is just for 
intervention/extra help, 8am to 10am.  Teachers will ask 
some student to come or students may also come if they feel 
they need more help.   

c. Independent Study Model Info:  Student who choose to do IS 
will be working off a program.  There will be a teacher who 
will be responsible for K-5 and another teacher 6-8.  

 
VI.  Other/Announcements:  Keep up the good work.  We will get thru this 
together.  
VII. Adjourn: 2:37pm 
 
 

Page 268



P
age 269



P
age 270



P
age 271



P
age 272



P
age 273



P
age 274



P
age 275



P
age 276



P
age 277



P
age 278



P
age 279



P
age 280



P
age 281



P
age 282



P
age 283



P
age 284



P
age 285



P
age 286


	13B3 HUSD AUDIT REPORT FINAL 1.28.2021.pdf
	FINANCIAL SECTION
	REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
	SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
	OTHER INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORTS
	SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
	Independent Auditors’ Report
	Governing Board
	San Diego, California
	MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
	INTRODUCTION
	FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
	OVERVIEW OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
	Components of the Financial Section
	OVERVIEW OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
	Components of the Financial Section (continued)
	Government-Wide Statements
	FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE ENTITY AS A WHOLE
	Net Position
	The District’s net position was $(870,322) at June 30, 2020, as reflected in the table below. Of this amount, $(7,235,952) was unrestricted. Restricted net position is reported separately to show legal constraints from debt covenants and enabling legi...
	FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE ENTITY AS A WHOLE (continued)
	Changes in Net Position
	The results of this year's operations for the District as a whole are reported in the Statement of Activities.  The table below takes the information from the Statement and rearranges it slightly, so you can see our total revenues, expenses, and speci...
	FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE ENTITY AS A WHOLE (continued)
	Changes in Net Position (continued)
	FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE DISTRICT’S MAJOR FUNDS
	CURRENT YEAR BUDGET 2019-2020
	CAPITAL ASSETS AND LONG-TERM LIABILITIES
	By the end of 2019-2020 the District had invested $6,653,569 in capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation.
	Long-Term Liabilities
	ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR’S BUDGET AND RATES
	ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR’S BUDGET AND RATES (continued)
	CONTACTING THE DISTRICT’S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT
	June 30, 2020
	NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
	NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
	NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
	NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
	Net Position equals assets and deferred outflows of resources minus liabilities and deferred inflows of resources. Net investment in capital assets consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by the outstanding balances of any...
	NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
	NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
	NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
	NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
	Nonspendable - The nonspendable fund balance classification reflects amounts that are not in spendable form. Examples include inventory, prepaid items, the long-term portion of loans receivable, and nonfinancial assets held for resale. This classifica...
	Restricted - The restricted fund balance classification reflects amounts subject to externally imposed and legally enforceable constraints. Such constraints may be imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governmen...
	Committed - The committed fund balance classification reflects amounts subject to internal constraints self-imposed by formal action of the Governing Board. The constraints giving rise to committed fund balance must be imposed no later than the end of...
	NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
	Assigned - The assigned fund balance classification reflects amounts that the government intends to be used for specific purposes. Assignments may be established either by the Governing Board or by a designee of the governing body, and are subject to ...
	Unassigned - In the General Fund only, the unassigned fund balance classification reflects the residual balance that has not been assigned to other funds and that is not restricted, committed, or assigned to specific purposes. However, deficits in any...
	The District applies restricted resources first when expenditures are incurred for purposes for which either restricted or unrestricted (committed, assigned and unassigned) amounts are available. Similarly, within unrestricted fund balance, committed ...
	NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
	NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
	December 2022
	Independent Auditors’ Report
	Governing Board
	Internal Control over Financial Reporting
	Compliance and Other Matters
	REPORT ON STATE COMPLIANCE
	Governing Board

	13D Local Plan Section B updated 11-13-20.pdf
	Participating Local Educational Agencies
	Special Education Local Plan Area—Local Plan Requirements
	Policies, Procedures, and Programs
	1. Free Appropriate Public Education: 20 USC Section 1412(a)(1)
	2. Full Educational Opportunity: 20 USC Section 1412(a)(2)
	3. Child Find: 20 USC Section 1412(a)(3)
	4. Individualized Education Program (IEP) and Individualized Family Service Plan (IFSP): 20 USC Section 1412(a)(4)
	5. Least Restrictive Environment: USC Section 1412(a)(5)
	6. Procedural Safeguards: 20 USC Section 1412(a)(6)
	7. Evaluation: 20 USC Section 1412(a)(7)
	8. Confidentiality: 20 USC Section 1412(a)(8)
	9. Part C to Part B Transition: 20 USC Section 1412(a)(9)
	10. Private Schools: 20 USC Section 1412(a)(10)
	11. Local Compliance Assurances: 20 USC Section 1412(a)(11)
	12. Interagency: 20 USC Section 1412(a)(12)
	Administration of Regionalized Operations and Services
	Special Education Local Plan Area Services




